
March 12, 2018 - City Council Regular Meeting - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber
Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www.ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

Clty COLIt7C11
4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal,, Mayor Public Hearings

Mark Elliott, Vice Mayor
Appeals      

Referrals and Reports from
Paul Akinjo Commissions and Committees

Steve Dresser All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action
Items

Martha Salcedo
Study Sessions

6. Council Communications

City Staff
Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager
Order of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

information by staff followed by City Council
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk questions and inquiries.  The applicant,  or their

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
authorized representative,  or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may only
Cari James, Finance & Administrative speak once to each item.  At the close of public

Services Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Rebecca Schmidt, Community
Development Director Consent Calendar

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be
Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one

Director motion and one vote.  There will be no separate

James Hood, Police Chief
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or
interested resident so requests,  in which case the

item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and

considered separately.

MARCH 12, 2018 - City Council Regular Meeting Agenda - 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

11



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the meeting.
To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, address and
number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the City Council,
please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and address. In
order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by the Mayor
for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each speaker may
only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to new material;
do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a proposed action in

court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the p'ublic
hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or
prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is nof scheduled on this agenda may do so under
the Citizen' s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to the
commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have
expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be called

upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from
taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item
meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation ( see
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, citvcouncil@ci. lathrop.ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide Web
Address: www.ci. lathrop.ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the City
Council Page or use the URL www.ci. lathroa.ca. us/ council/

Information     

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 l"owne Centre Drive,
Lathrop,  on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.  Supplemental

documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk' s Office.
This agenda was posted at the following locations:   City Hall, Community Center, Generations
Center, Senior Center, and " J" Street Fire Department. The meetings of the Lathrop City Council
are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or accommodations to this
meeting.   [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II]   Interested persons must request the

accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the City Clerk
at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330
Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City's business is appreciated.     

22



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, MARCH 12, 2018

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: There wil/ be a C/osed Session commencina at 6:30 a.m.  The Renu/ar Meetina
wi// reconvene at 7:00 a.m., or immediate/v fo/lowina the C/osed Session. whichever is/ ater.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9( b)

2 Potential Case( s)

1. 2. 2 CONFEREIVCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Existing Litigation Pursuant
to Government Code Section 54956. 9( a) J & J Farm Services vs.

City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County Superior Court, Case No.:
STK- CV- UOCT- 2015 00007071

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1. 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO THE LATHROP HIGH SCHOOL GIRLS
VARSITY BASKETBALL TEAM

2. 2 PRESENTATION - GENERAL PLAN UPDATE AND KICKOFF SESSION

Receive Information Related to the General Plan Update, Including
a Summary of the Process and the Public Outreach Opportunities

March 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

33



2. 3 PRESENTATION - DRAFT 2018 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN AND

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES STRATEGY

Receive Information from the San Joaquin Council of Governments
Related to the Release of the Draft 2018 Regional Transportation

Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do
so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to
the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only.those who have submitted speaker cards, or
have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be

called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City
Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the
agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can,
however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond to
statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or report
on his or her own activities. ( See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)). Unless

directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered
at the meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC
COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL
HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council and will
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless the Mayor., Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the item

will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of February 12, 2018

4. 3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 388 ADDING
CHAPTER 3. 25 ENTITLED  SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN CAPITAL
FACILITY FEES" TO TITLE 3, REVENUE AND FINANCE" OF THE LATHROP
MUNICIPAL CODE

Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 18- 388 Adding Chapter 3. 25.
Entitled  South Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility Fees" To Title 3,

Revenue and Finance" of the Lathrop Municipal Code

March 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

44



4.4 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORD.INANCE 18- 389 AMENDING

TITLE 10 " VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC", CHAPTER 10. 24 PARKING", SECTION

10. 24. 030 PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO PLACE SIGN INDICATING NO

PARKING AREAS"  OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD A NO

PARKING AREA ON LATHROP ROAD

Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 18- 389 Amending 10 " Vehicles
and TrafFic",  Chapter 10. 24 Parking",  Section 10. 24. 030 Public Works

Director to Place Sign Indicating No Parking Areas" of the Lathrop Municipal
Code to Add a No Parking Area on Lathrop Road Beginning at the Westerly
Right- of-Way of Interstate 5 and Proceeding Approximately 8, 300' East on
Both Sides of Lathrop Road to the Eastern City Limits

4. 5 DECLARE CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS PROPERTY AND

AUTHORIZE THEIR DISPOSAL

Adopt a Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and Equipment Surplus
Property and Authorizing Their Disposal

4. 6 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 34 LOTS IN TRACT 3830 VILLAGE ' H" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE OF

RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3830 Village H" within East
Village, Totaling 34 Single Family Lots .and a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

4. 7 APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH WOODARD & CURRAN FOR RECYCLED WATER

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT,  CIP RW 16- 06 AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopt a Resolution Approving an Agreement with Woodard & Curran for the

Recycled Water Program Administration and Management, CIP RW 16- 06
and Related Budget Amendment

4. 8 CERTIFY AND APPROVE SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

Approve Resolution to Update the City of Lathrop Sewer System

Management Plan and Program Implementation

4. 9 TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

Approve Resolution Authorizing StafF to Install Speed Humps on Pine Valley
Drive, Between Prairie Dune Drive and Oakhill Street, Associated with CIP

PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures

4. 10 APPROVE THE LONGITUDINAL PIPELINE AGREEMENT WITH UNION PACIFIC
RAILROAD  ( UPRR) ASSOCIATED WITH THE RIVER ISLANDS EAST SIDE

SEWER FORCE MAIN PROJECT AND A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Agreement with UPRR for the River
Islands East Side Sewer Force Main Project and a Related Budget
Amendment

4. 11 ACCEPT CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN DETENTION BASIN IMPROVEMENTS
Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements Completed by Richland
Communities for the Expansion of the Crossroads Storm Drain Detention
Basin

March 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

55



4. 12 ACCEPTANCE OF RECYCLED WATER STORAGE POND,   SPRAYFIELDS,

PIPELINE AND PUMP STATION FOR THE RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP

PROJECT WITHIN THE SOUTHEAST STEWART TRACT

Adopt Resolution Accepting the Recycled Water Storage Pond, Sprayfields,
Pipeline,  Pump Station Improvements within Southeast Stewart Tract,
Easement Deed

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AfV ORDINANCE TO
TRANSFER THE SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT, ADOPTED ON AUGUST 3, 2015, AND RICHLAND' S INTEREST

IN THE PHASE 2 EXPANSION OF THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY FUNDING AGREEMENT, DATED NOVEMBER 21, 2016,

FROM THE EXISTING AGREEMENT HOLDER, RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, INC.,
TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC.

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing;
2.  Introduce and Conduct First Reading of an Ordinance to Assign and

Transfer the South Lathrop Development Agreement and Funding
Agreement to South Lathrop Land LLC

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE

AMENDING LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 13  PIJBLIC SERVICES",
CHAPTER 13. 09 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE SYSTEM"

Council to Consider the Following:
3.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
4.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amendment to Title

13  Public Services",   Chapter 13. 09  " Recycled Water Service
System"

5. 3 DISCUSSIOIV OF PARK LIGHTING AT MOSSDALE LANDING COMMUNITY

PARK

Council to Discuss and Provide Direction Related to Park Lighting at
Mossdale Landing Community Park

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the
Youth Advisory Commission with Term Expiring May 30,  2018,  due to

Unscheduled/ Unexpired Term Vacancy
One Application Received - Aliyah Conley

March 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

66



6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Salcedo/ Akinjo)
Council of Governments ( Dresser/Dhaliwal)

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Elliott)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaguin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission ( Dresser)   

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Dhaliwal/ Elliott)
Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo/ Dresser)
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Elliott/Dresser)

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

er sa Vargas, CMC

City Clerk

March 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

77



88



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP
CITY COUNCIL REGULe4R f IEETIIoIG

MOIVDAY, FEBRU 4RY 12, 2018

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAfM EI, CITY H LL

390 Tovvne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE/ HOTE: There was rro C/osed Session. The Requ/ar hleetina commenced at 7:02
m.

PIZELII IINAItY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Vice Mayor Elliott called the meeting to order at 7: 02
p. m.

1. 2 ROLL CALL Present:       Vice Mayor Elliott;

Councilmembers: Akinjo, Dresser, and Salcedo.

Absent: Mayor Dhaliwal.

1. 3 INVOCATION - Pastor Chris Scoz, Thrive Church, provided the invocation.

1. 4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Pastor Chris Scoz led the pledge of allegiance.

1. 5 ANNOUIVCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

City Manager Stephen Salvatore introduced Lathrop Police Chief ] ames

Hood. Chief Hood provided information related to the Citizen' s Academy,
scheduled for March 14 through May 9, 2018 at the Lathrop Generations
Center.

1. 6 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 7 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF IfVTEREST - None

2.       PRESEf+lTATION

2. 1 PROCLAMATION DECLARING FEBRUARY AS BLACK HISTORY MONTH -

Vice Mayor Mark Elliott, accompanied by City Council, presented the
proclamation to community member Minnie Jordan- Diallo and students
from Lathrop High School.

2. 2 INTRODUCTIOIV OF fVEW EMPLOYEE( S):

Sarah Pimentel, Administrative Assistant I
m Catherine Fair, Facility Attendant

Francisco Garcia, Maintenance Worker II

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



City Clerk Teresa Vargas introduced Sarah Pimentel,  Administrative

Assistant in the City Clerk' s Office;  Parks and Recreation Director Zach

Jones introduced Catherine Fair,  Facility Attendant in the Parks and
Recreation Department; and Operations and Maintenance Superintendent

Milton Daley introduced Francisco Garcia, Maintenance Worker in the Public
Works Department.  Councilmembers welcomed the new staff.

2. 3 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)
Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones provided the presentation:

2018 Valentine' s Day Dance
Reported event held February 3,   2018 at Scott Brooks

Gymnasium.

Libby Park Improvements
Provided an overview of recent park improvements,  which

included new accessible walkway, interior lighting, additional park
benches, and rubberized paly surface.

Basin Park Improvements

Provided an overview of recent park improvements to the new       -

Basin Park located at the corner of Lathrop Road and Woodfield
Drive,  which included 1/ 3 mile walking loop,  seven fitness

stations, and picnic area with BBQ stations and game tables.

2. 4 PRESEIVTATION.- LATHROP POLICE FACILITY FUNDING OVERVIEW

Receive Information Related to Funding Options Associated with
the Future Lathrop Police Facility

Finance Director Cari James provided the presentation, which included a

summary of the new police facility project, past City Council meetings in
which the topic was discussed, ' an overview of the proposal from River

Islands to design and build a new facility, and information related to the
issuance of bonds.  A question and answer period ensued.  Reverend Lu

Davis ( Lathrop, CA) commented on the River Islands proposal; requested

information related to the status of discussions with San Joaquin County
regarding overhead charges. City Manager Stephen Salvatore responded to
the inquiry. No action was taken by Council. Staff stated they would bring
back an item for Council consideration.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Nellie Zavala ( Commission on Aging) reported her attendance to a San Joaquin

County Commission on Aging held on February 5, 2018, in which social security
and public health programs were discussed.  Jason Laughlin  ( Manteca,  CA)

representing Assemblyman Heath Flora' s Office, provided an overview of recently
introduced AB 1914, relating to an act to amend Section 1522 of the Health and
Safety Code, relating to health care facilities.

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



Sharon Land ( Lathrop, CA) expressed concern with traffic issues on Lathrop Road;
requested digital speed signs;  and additional enforcement on Lathrop Road.
Dierdre Veals ( Lathrop, CA) expressed concern with insufficient street lighting on
6th Street.  Council directed stafF to observe the area and report back to the

resident. City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional information related
to previous Council discussions regarding the formation of a community

assessment district for the Historic Lathrop area.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Dresser, the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar, and provided additional direction on Item

4. 8 as listed below, by the following roll call vote unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott

Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless

otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Special and Adjourned Regular Council Meeting
of] anuary 29, 2018.

4. 3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 387 TO PROHIBIT

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITIES IN THE CITY OF LATHROP

Adopted Ordinance 18- 387 of the City Council of the City of Lathrop
modifying Chapter 17. 18 and adding new Chapter 5. 26 to the Municipal
Code to prohibit the establishment and operation of commercial cannabis

activities in the City Of Lathrop.

4. 4 TREASURER' S REPORT DECEMBER 2017

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
Finance Director Cari James provided the information.

Approved Quarterly Treasurer' s Investment Report for December 2017.

4. 5 APPROVE AMENDMENTS WITH EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC.   ( EKI)

FOR THE INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCE MASTER PLAN, ( IWRMP) PW 10-

10 & WW 15- 08 AND A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 18- 4341 approving amendments with EKI for the
IWRMP update, Capital Improvement Projects PW 10- 10 and WW 15- 08,

and approved related budget amendment( s) for:

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



1.  Amendment No.  2 for hydraulic modeling evaluations and
IWRMP revisions to include California Military Department
Cantonment at the Former Army Sharpe Depot; and

2.  Amendment No. 3 for tracking tool development for water and
sewer allocations.

4. 6 '   APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 5 WITH INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP FOR

PROFESSIONAL BUILDING DIVISION SERVICES AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 18- 4342 approving Task Order No. 5 with Interwest
Consulting Group to provide professional building division plan check
services, and approved related budget amendment.

4. 7 AGREEMENTS WITH WGR SOUTHWEST,  INC. TO PROVIDE COMPLIANCE

SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CITY'S STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

SD 14- 10 AND A RELATED BUDGEf AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 18- 4343 approving agreements with WGR

Southwest, Inc., for permit compliance and construction project plan review

and inspection support services for the Phase II MS4 Storm Water

Discharge Permit SD 14- 10, and approved related budget amendment.

4. 8 ACCEPT SEWER FORCE MAIN CONSTRUCTED BY KNIFE RIVER

CONSTRUCTION AT 11800 S. HARLAN ROAD MAIN

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
Principal Engineer Jay Davidson and City. Attorney Salvador Navarrete
provided additional information.  Council discussion led to consensus to
accept the improvements contingent that bonds not be released until all

work is confirmed completed.

Adopted Resolution 18-4344 accepting the sewer force main

improvements by UPS, located at 11800 S.  Harlan Road, contingent that

bonds not be released until all work is confirmed completed.

4. 9 APPROVE DFIA 18- 01 FOR 865 E. ROTH ROAD

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. A question and answer period ensued.
Principal Engineer Jay Davidson provided the information.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4345 approving Deferred Frontage Improvement
Agreement   ( DFIA)   18- 01 with Sukhchain Gill,   to defer frontage

improvements on Roth Road.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDEFt CDBG AND HOME
FUNDING ALLOCATIONS FOR FY 2018/ 2019

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



v

Assistant Community Development Director Mark Meissner provided the
presentation. A question and answer period followed. City Manager Stephen
Salvatore and Senior Administrative Assistant Maria Hermosilla provided
additional information. Vice Mayor Elliott opened the public hearing. Walton
Lathrop,  CA  /  purple card not provided)  expressed interested in the

process for unused or unallocated funds. City Manager Stephen Salvatore
provided additional information. There were no other speakers. Vice Mayor
Elliott closed the public hearing. The question and answer period continued.
Finance Director Cari James provided additional information.

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser,  seconded by Councilmember
Salcedo, the City Council:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopted  . Resolution 18- 4346 approving recommended

allocations of the CDBG and HOME Funds for FY 2018- 2019 as
follows:

Allocations to Multi- Agency Organizations
San ] oaquin Fair Housing 1, 000
Second Harvest Food Bank 2, 500
Stockton Emergency Food Bank ( MFM)     1, 000
Human Services Agency ( Meals on Wheels)      1, 000
Give Every Child a Chance ( GECAC)  1, 224

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal
Abstain: None

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser,  seconded by Councilmember
Akinjo,  the City Council further adopted the following recommended
allocations ( incorporated in Resolution 18- 4346) of the CDBG and HOME
Funds for FY 2018- 2019 as follows:

Allocations to Local Organizations
City of Lathrop Youth Activity Assistance Program    $ 5, 000
Boys and Girls Club of Lathrop and Manteca 5, 000

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE TO
ADD CHAPTER 3. 25 ENTITLED SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN CAPITAL
FACILITY FEES" TO TITLE 3, REVENUE AND FINANCE" OF THE LATHROP
MUNICIPAL CODE

Principal Engineer Jay Davidson introduced Victor Irzyk,  Senior Principal
with  Goodwin Consulting Group,   Inc.   Mr.   Davidson provided the
presentation.

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



Vice Mayor Elliott opened the public hearing. Kate Hart ( Land Use Counsel,
Richland Investments) thanked stafF and the City Council for consideration
of the item. There were no other speakers. Vice Mayor Elliott closed the
public hearing. A question and answer period ensued.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo, seconded by Vice Mayor Elliott, the
City Council:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduced an Ordinance adding Chapter 3. 25 entitled " South
Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility Fees" to Title 3, " Revenue

and Finance" of the Lathrop Municipal Code.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal
Abstain: None

5. 3 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO
TITLE 10,   CHAPTER 10. 24,   SECTIOIV 10. 24. 030 OF THE LATHROP
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD A NO PARKING AREA ON L 4THROP ROAD

Senior Civil Engineer Michael King provided the presentation. Vice Mayor
Elliott opened the public hearing. Adriana Lopez ( Lathrop, CA) expressed

various concerns, including discontent with the timing of the public hearing;
the item being heard after the start of construction of the Lathrop Road
project; and lack of street parking on Lathrop Road. Sharon Land ( Lathrop,
CA)  expressed various concerns,  including difficulty backing out of her
property; deliveries to her property; traffic issues on Lathrop Road; and

damages to her water sprinklers. There were no other speakers. Vice Mayor
Elliott closed the public hearing. A question and answer period ensued. City
Manager Stephen Salvatore and City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided
additional information.  Vice Mayor Elliott re- opened the public hearing.
Sharon Land ( Lathrop, CA) expressed discontent with the removal of street
parking.  Adriana Lopez  ( Lathrop,  CA)  expressed discontent with the
removal of street parking; reiterated her discontent with the timing of the
public hearing.  Speaker ( name not provided/ purple card not provided)
commented on the safety concerns mentioned by other speakers.  MaryMeninga  ( Manteca,  CA)  requested that the Council consider approving
street parking on Lathrop Road. There were no other speakers. Vice Mayor
Elliott closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser,  seconded by Councilmember
Akinjo, the City Council:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Introduced an Ordinance amending Title 10, Chapter 10. 24,

Section 10. 24. 030 of the Lathrop Municipal Code adding a " No
Parking Area" on Lathrop Road,  beginning at the westerly
right- of-way of Interstate 5 and proceeding approximately
8, 300' east on both sides of Lathrop Road to the eastern city
limits.

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

5. 4 BIENNIAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR ( FY) 2018 - 2019 MID- YEi4R REPORT

Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari James provided the
presentation. A question and answer period followed the presentation.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo,
the City Council adopted Resolution 18-4347 approving the Biennial
Budget FY 2018- 19 Mid- Year Report;  Grade Step Table;  and staffing
requests.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal

Abstain: None

5. 5 OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL APPROVAL FOR THE 2018 SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY
ONE- VOICE TRIP

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided the presentation. A question and answer
period followed.  City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional

information. Councilmembers commented on the matter.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Dresser,
the City Council adopt Resolution 18- 4348 authorizing Option 1, out- of-
state travel for two Council Members  ( nominated Mayor Dhaliwal and

another Councilmember depending on availability) and the City Manager to
attend the 2018 San Joaquin One Voice Trip to Washington, D. C. from April
15, 2018 to April 19, 2018, and related budget amendment with Option 1.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, and Elliott
Noes:   Salcedo
Absent: Dhaliwal
Abstain: None

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL: Set Application Deadline for Appointment of
One ( 1) Member to the Youth Advisory Commission with Term Expiring May
30, 2018, due to Unexpired Term Vacancy

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided an overview and reported that the Youth
Advisory Commission had one unscheduled vacancy with term ending May
30, 2018.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo,
the City Council provided application deadline of February 28, 2018, with
appointment at the next Regular City Council Meeting.

February 12, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Salcedo, and Elliott
Noes:    None

Absent: Dhaliwal
Abstain: None

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMIl7EE REPORT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo reported on his attendance to the San Joaquin
Valley Air Pollution Control District meeting.

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Salcedo thanked those in attendance.  Councilmember
Dresser commented on aggressive solicitation from solar vendors.  PoliceChief ] ames Hood provided additional information regarding aggressive
solicitation. Councilmember Akinjo expressed condolences to the Dhaliwal
family; commented on his attendance to the Lathrop High School Athletic
Booster crab/ tri- tip dinner event.  Vice Mayor Elliott thanked those in
attendance; and expressed condolences to the Dhaliwal family.

7.       AD OURNMENT — There being no further business, Vice Mayor Elliott adjourned
the meeting at 9: 24 p. m.

G 
eresa Vargas, CM

City Clerk

February 12, 2018
Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



ITENi 4. 3   

ORDINANCE NO. 18- 3

AN ORDINANCE OF TFIE CIl'Y COUNCIL OF YHE CITI( OF L14THROP ADDING
CHAPTER 3. 25 ENTITLED SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLa41V CAPITAL

FACYLITY FEES" TO TITLE 3, 12EVENlJE AIVD FIN NCE" OF THE LATHROP

Ml11VICIPAL CQD

WHEREAS, on June 7, 2017, the City Council approved Task Order No. 6 with
Goodwin Consulting Group,   ( GCG)   which,   among other tasks,   included the

preparation of the South Lathrop Specific Plan ( SLSP) Capital Facilities Fee Study to
support the City' s potential adoption of the South Lathrop Specific Plan Capital
Facility Fee Program; and

VI/ FIEFtEAS,  GCG prepared the South Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility
Fee Study dated February 2, 2018; and

A/ HEREAS,  on February 2,  2018,  the City released the South Lathrop
Specific Plan Capital Facility Fee Study for public viewing; and

WHEREAS,   subsequently the City released an updated South Lathrop
Specific Plan Capital Facility Fee Study  ( Nexus Study")  by GCG on February 6,
2018; and

VI/ HERE IS,  the Nexus Study of February 6,  2018 has been reviewed and

considered by the City Council and by reference is hereby entered into the public
record; and

WHEREAS, a notice of the public hearing on this Ordinance was published in
the Manteca Bulletin on February 1St & 6t'', 2018; and

il1oHEREAS, the findings required by the State of California Mitigation Fee Act
also known as AB 1600," Government Code sections 66000, et seq.) are made by

Council with this action as contained in the administrative record and hereby
incorporated by reference herein; and

WFIERE IS, the fees imposed by the City pursuant to this ordinance can be
amended by resolution; and

V1/ HEREAS,   the City Council did use its independent judgment and

considered all of said reports including but not limited to the Nexus Study,
recommendations and other evidence in the administrative record, all of which is

hereby incorporated by reference herein;

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COlJNCIL AF THE CITY OF L. THROP
DOES HEI E Y ORD 4IN AS FOLLOVIIS:

Ordinance No. 18- 388

17



SECTION 1.  APPROVAL OF NEXUS STUDY AND FINDINGS.  The City
Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby approve the South Lathrop Specific Plan
Capital Facilities Fees, dated February 6, 2018 attached as Attachment " C" to the

City Council Staff Report of February 12,  2018 and incorporated herein by this
reference and Council hereby adds the SLSP Capital Facilities Fees to the Capital
Facility Fee Program based on findings required by the State of California Mitigation
Fee Act  (also known as " AB 1600," Government Code sections 66000,  et seq.),

specifically Council hereby makes all of the following findings:

1. The purpose of the SLSP Fees is to provide funding for the infrastructure
and facilities identified in this Nexus Study.  Pursuant to the Lathrop
Municipal Code Section 3. 20. 040 collected fees may be used for no other
purpose.

2.  The geographic area in which the fees will be imposed is SLSP study area,
located south of State Route 120,  north and west of the Union Pacific
Railroad, and east of the San Joaquin River, as illustrated in Attachment

B" boundary map to. the City Council Staff Report of February 12, 2018

and incorporated herein by this reference.

3.   The estimated fair and proportionate share of the cost of SLSP' s

contribution to providing infrastructure and community facilities within the
City are contained in the SLSP Capital Facilities Nexus Study.

4.  There is a reasonable relationship between the type of development
projects on which the fee is imposed and the uses of the fees. The Fee
revenue collected from the SLSP area will fund the facilities included in
this Nexus Study. These facilities will serve development in the SLSP area
and the estimated fees are a fair- share cost allocation based on the
impact that future development will have on these facilities and

improvements.

5.  There is a reasonable relationship between the amount of each SLSP CFF
and the cost of the public facility, or portion thereof, is established in this
Nexus Study through the use of cost allocation factors to estimate the
demand for a facility or, the impact that a land use will have on a facility.
For example, the cost allocation for the Transportation Fee is based on
the number trips generated for each specific land use.     The trip
generation rates, which difFer between land use categories, measure each
land use' s impact on facilities and infrastructure.   As a result, each land

use category or development type is allocated its fair share of the cost
based on its impact, as identified by its cost allocation factor.

By assigning the demand for infrastructure and facilities based on the cost
allocation factors for each land use and quantifying that demand in the
calculation of the SLSP CFF,  a reasonable relationship is established
between the amount of the fee and the cost of the facilities attributable to
the different types of non- residential development in the SLSP area.

Ordinance No. 18- 388

18



SECTION 2. APPROVAL OF FEE. The City Council of the City of Lathrop,
based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and

pursuant to its independent review and consideration, hereby establishes the South
Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility Fee as detailed in the South Lathrop Specific
Plan  ( SLSP)  Capital Facilities Fee Study by Goodwin Consulting Group,  dated

February 6, 2018, as Attachment " C" to the City Council StafF Report of February
12, 2018 and incorporated herein by this reference.

The City Council may, following the procedures set forth in Chapter 3: 20 of the
Municipal Code, take future action by resolution to revise to these fees. These fees
shall be in addition to, all other fees imposed by the City including, but not limited
to, the Municipal Services Facilities Fee and San ] oaquin County fees, such as the

San Joaquin County Regional Transportation Impact Fee  ( RTIF)  and the County
Capital Facilities Fee.   Additionally, pursuant to the SLSP Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program,   SLSP project proponents shall participate in-  the City' s
agriculture mitigation program and the San Joaquin Multi- Species Habitat

Conservation and Open Space Plan by paying the per- acre fees for the loss of
important farmland as well as to mitigate for habitat impacts to covered special
status species.   This SLSP CFF shall be collected and administered in the manner

set forth in Chapter 3. 20 of the Municipal Code. These fees shall be efFective sixty
60) days after the adoption of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3.  ADDITION TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE. . Chapter 3. 25 is

added to Title 3, ' Revenue and Finance" of the Lathrop Municipal Code to read as
follows:

Chapter 3. 25: SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN CAPITAL FACILITY FEES

Section 3. 25. 010.   TITLE.   This Chapter shall be known as the " South

Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility Fees"  regulation of the City of
Lathrop.

Section 3. 25. 020.   PURPOSE.  This chapter is adopted to impose the
South Lathrop Specific Plan Capital Facility Fees  ( SLSP CFF")  to

ensure that new development within the South Lathrop Specific Plan
pays its proportionate share of providing infrastructure,  community
facilities and the provision of services. This SLSP CFF, in combination
with other sources of funding, will mitigate the impacts as a result of

the South Lathrop Specific Plan Area development.

Section 3. 25. 030.   Establishment of Fees. The South Lathrop Specific
Plan Capital Facility Fees are initially established as detailed in the
South Lathrop Specific Plan  ( SLSP)  Capital Facilities Fee Study by
Goodwin Consulting Group dated February 6,  2018.    The SLSP CFF

may be amended from time to time by resolution consistent and with
Lathrop Municipal Code 3. 20.

Ordinance No. 18- 388

19



SECTION 4. PU LICATION. Within fifteen ( 15) days after its final passage,

the City Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be published in full accordance with
Section 36933 of the Government Code.

TFiIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a meeting of the City Council
of the City of Lathrop on the 12t'' day of February 2018,  and was PASSED AIVD

4DOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on 12tn
day of March 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 18- 388

20



E ibit 1— SLSP Pro ect Site

vy.a,.:.       1       . r,,,     . t r-.     ,  _'      /   w}    '+ w,,•       ph     ' t"  _ i

i      —_.      
t           , i t

t 

Ci,",         ,
i.

j P l         (. .   . {     

j

J
fY " Y f      "' Si   .  

i     `

t      ,_,,.....  ..    a t i         
i     ""°."'  r j f  }   r l s  ?a  - k.-   

l t          y
Y     ie      2  \    . ..-

d Y.f    .   fN:'"sX'' s' r ,-''       `-i i    (_    __........,,_     +  y'i     ,   JrF l   r ,  f,
7

a

t + rr 7      + g   -' i...   

4     
s L.,  

f
f  `  

rm
f   -  d' j M̀, s    

r I ' ' .__.,... ;,«—.

m.....,`....., `,,. •  ' `' i I   +•     
iJ l~ f' t" a'

v

f"'  `
f  ..

7` u,

t         M
1   . _..    ;'_       _._

i   ..._ M 

E a 1          6 usK"      -  }  ` t. I

I t  
t          

i    -   
a   '''  s

Ii__,  1   { ,       t r   i I',       .  _   f . :-y

r4   .:.- i      ;     _....       "    y i

t' '.
i  i'  r

f'   
1

f;,-.     i   '.I 1;
r;       - ^,

p

i
i a     : l z

i!  ,.   

a,      .. w

l+'  , 1     ,'     , i 4"

j            '  
i        .  r,    {,.  

i__    ';      

1          "_i..
i_            1-. y." F -.`'      .

I   ^"*...i i i
J      

i I      
e 4    !                 '

1'.`.
e-a'—    .. i

1  h R  :.    .      
I      j ..     Y-     i

I i-  t   .  
t

4._       •"   .  `    ` x       -.  * s,    f-g' r 3
i  .        . a f  '"           

4    1 1 .,      .       "- y°. .

w

t..  ±      '      i   J 

r   

I'-  irfx    i       ;-
t;

i1 ( 
ia`.     +. 1`==   `, ___..,  h  ' i . ,

r  c;. LatF fQEi i` ,  ,°    .    

4   , 1      '`, ? a s tp'  { -        ,  .,'

t'^^,. e'

v"       / •.       • ,..
t 

Y-  `. . } F.           `:     

f..'r'I',     J
f'ti,/ r , I.i       €s"  :

t, i  ` j
f      j--.      -    . ;' l

i   {>  r! T s ii .         ' d t      °
r       /`   .   / 

l
1`.\      `. .    '. °..    .-       

1   1 V#{   ` 
y t  

I
j    ,  

a 1

1" i'""d- t`       .
LEI' 1' Op   ;^.  3 I, "` h 

z`.
wr    '-  i        t    t    [ B' ,

7  ^'-. 1         ./
r  ` i,  .         t`'' (,+    . i t 1     f 

7  ,  .
4—   i t C r

i'"       .,._i   •   `,;,;-_     r  :,    _          _   -  ,,.;,  a L ,   
w   = M2Int6€

1 1 1 1".                    a  ,           , 

f   >;  t    ,    ;C       >        , ` ..    -'    
4 .    `` f%r    .+- i       -=.   „ :    •1  r

t     ,
f.  J    ;         '

u

r {-->.t.   .• -- i r.',   /   ...
e.,; 

f{ ',    .:.     ..'`   }  '`.            :

x .    x' , /

f},
r i"    ,      ai  \      .            r " S.  r         , s     ..     . r.:   '

7`  j        r     i. f   r      -' 73      1         1''   a        •   l  f

y!) y     „ t`   )   :   ,   "       .     ,,- i
j  }     

rs t` s       '-

a _ f    
ti Ft-..., t  i` 1  - 1 ` s.

5    ' j r 
s(,

y,..  C.
s;..3 _ d_r_-..... 1

s!'v     F7h   .

f    .?

t    , ;
r   ,.`   a  

i f..`    
ProJect Site           

f

J,,.

l.     r  "-.  f\       , 1   (  .__..   
I ,;      r      :

t`       4 .    
20    :

y "      -   -"     r',   '   !
i r              ,,    

y."":'      v .  .    d A        y       '

J    ,.'_  z   ._    "      y      1    .:-      r j-'1 .

t—    i .{     

r      r. r __.   .       i '         I

G .  i.   , [ v`  ''''   ,, fa, • 1' f'.     i I
i.; ` 

j  `      :
i"`iY,-   

i 
a#..

M

r  
y
i /-a7

i 1
r  ,,,,„„  ¢ 

f  
ii     . .

t

as';    { `+

r t
y,". 

i I 
f

i r r.
F(   _       

C y'.•      y .;   °     y
L  i    ` .._..__     _ 

T         

F  ..
l   '  ''_ .,.{   p     '    rt.    .         , y'' !        s i'       `   f   ,       . ..-! I"'..      ,__     ! I . ; ! ?

i.EGF.ND

ii/  Ptojact Locatioa

e y. L nils

y hctcof[ cfluacc

R T"  

REGIONAI; LOCATION  -

Y C S ps South Latlirop Specific Flan
0.       .     Lathrop, Ca

in_ .. »    n.,.   p•. t \ ae••. r: vtu      i sr ar- rn e r

FE. iHC:>: icea
l'N1.: Cc̀.  .   

City ofLathrop SLSP 2 Gapital Facilities Fee Study

21



q GHMENT

GOODWIN COtVSULTING GROUP

CITY OF LATHROP

SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN (SLSP

CAPI'I'AL FACILITIES FEE STUDY

February 6, 2018

333 UNIVERSITY AVE, SUITE 160 • SACRAMENTO, CA 95825
PHorv E: ( 91 6) 561- 0890 • FAx: ( 91 6) 561- 0891

WWW. GOODWINCONSULTINGGROUP. NET
22



CIT' OF LATH1tOP

SOUTH I ATI ROP SPECIFIC PLAN (SLSP

CAPITAL FACILITIES FEE STUDY

TA LE OF CONTENTS

Section page

Executive Summary........................................................................................................... i

I. Introduction .........................................................................................................................1

II.      Land Uses............................................................................................................................. 4

III.     Fee Methodology.................................................................................................................6

IV.     Capital Facilities and Costs.................................................................................................. 9

V.      Transportation Fee............................................................................................................. 11

VI.     Water System Fee.............................................................................................................. 14

VII.    Storm Drainage Fee........................................................................................................... 17

VIII.  Fee Summary..................................................................................................................... 20

IX.     Nexus Findings..................................................................................................................20

X.      Fee Program Administration..............................................................................................23

Maps

Exhibit 1 — SLSP Project Site.......................................................................................................... 2

Exhibit 2— SLSP Land Use............................................................................................................. 5

Appendix

Appendix A—Capital Facilities Cost Allocations

Appendix B— Detailed Facilities Costs

23



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The South Lathrop Specific Plan area ( the " SLSP") is a 315 acre development in the southeast

y portion of the City.  The project is located south of State Route 120, north and west of the Union

Pacific Railroad, and east of the San Joaquin River.  The SLSP consists of mainly employment-
generating land uses.  Approximately 246 acres are zoned for Light Industrial and Warehouse
development and 10 acres are zoned for Commercial Office development.  The remaining 59
acres include open space, public and quasi-public land, the San Joaquin River, and roadways.

The City retained Goodwin Consulting Group to assist it in establishing a fee program for the

SLSP area through the adoption by the City Council of this SLSP Capital Facilities Fee Study
ee Study"). This Fee Study is compliant with the requirements set forth in the Mitigation Fee

Act, also known as AB 1600, and ensures that a rational nexus e sts between the SLSP Fees and

the cost or portion of the cost of capital facilities attributable to future development in the SLSP

area.

FACILITIES AND COSTS INCLUDED IN THE FEE PROGRAM

Various capital facilities will be required for the SLSP area.  Facilities and cost estimates have

been prepared by the City and its consultants and are presented in this Fee Study.  Table ES- 1

sununarizes these facilities and their costs.  The gross cost of the planned facilities contained in

this Fee Study is $ 70. 8 million.  Funding from other sources, totaling $56.2 million, reduces the

net amount that will be funded with SLSP Fee revenue to approximately$ 9. 1 million.

Table ES- 1— Facilities Costs

Total Funding SLSP

Estimated From Other CFD SLSP

Facility Type Cost
Developmentsl

nding Fees

Transportation 65, 805,000 52,744, 379 5, 552,405 7,508,216

Water 3, 320, 158 2,324, 158 0 996,000

StormDramage 1, 720,875 1, 146, 875 0 574, 000

Total 70, 846,033 56,215, 412 5, 552, 405       $ 9,078,216

1. Other developments may include Iathrop Gateway Specific Plan, McKinley Corridor, Crossroads, and others.

Source: MacKay& Somps;H2O Urban Solutions: Fehr and Peers

City ofLathrop SLSP i Capital Facilities Fee Study

24



TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES

Transportation facilities for SLSP include construction of interchanges at SR 120 and Yosemite

Avenue and at I-5 and Lathrop Road.    Transportation facilities also include roadway,
intersection, and railroad crossing improvements for Yosemite and McKinley Avenues, and
Airport Way.  The total cost of the facilities is $ 65. 8 million.  Based on its traffic model, the

City' s traffic consultant determined that SLSP' s share of the total cost is $ 13. 1 million.  The

remainder, $ 52. 7 million, is allocated to the Lathrop Gateway Specific Plan ( LGSP) area,

McKinley Corridor, Crossroads, and other Lathrop developments.

Of the $ 13. 1 million allocated to SLSP, the project developer plans to fmance approximately
5. 6 million through a future community facilities district bond issue.   The remaining SLSP

share of the cost, $7. 5 million, will be funded through SLSP Transportation Fees.

WATER SYSTEM FACILITI S

Water system facilities include a 1. 0 MG storage tank and booster pump station for Well 21.
The total cost of these improvements is approximately $ 3. 3 million.  The City staff determined
that 30%  of the total cost of the water system facilities is attributable to future SLSP

development.  As a result, SLSP' s fair share of the total cost is $ 1. 0 million and will be funded

through the SLSP Water System Fees.

STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES

Storm drainage facilities include construction of the South Lathrop Outfall.  The total cost of the
facility is $ 1. 7 million.  The City' s engineering consultant estimates that the total cost of the

facility should be equally split between three development areas -  SLSP, LGSP,  and the

McKinley Corridor development.  SLSP' s 33. 3% share of the total cost is $ 574,000 and will be

funded through SLSP Storm Drainage Fees.

City ofLathrop SLSP ii Capital Facilities Fee Study

25



FEE SCHEDULE .

The table below summarizes the fees calculated in this report.  A 3. 0% adininistration fee is

included to pay for the administrative duties associated with the fee program.

Table ES-2

Fee Summary

Storm City
Transportation Water Drainage.       Admin

Land Use.  Unit Fee Fee Fee Fee( 3.0%)       Total

per 1, 000 B1dg. Square Feet

CommercialOf3 ce KSF 15 631 988       $ 380 510 17,508

LightIndustrial_  KSF 4, 516 467       $ 129 153 5, 266

Warehouse KSF 466 133       $ 129 22 750

LATHROP CITYWIDE AND SAN JOAQUIN COUNTYWIDE FEES

The SLSP Fees calculated in this Fee Study, if adopted by the City Council, will be added to the
City' s Capital Facilities Fee ( CFF) program.  In addition to the SLSP Fees shown in this Fee

Study, the SLSP area will also be subject to other Lathrop citywide impact fees in the CFF
program.   One such citywide fee is the Municipal Service Facilities fee that funds various

municipal buildings and facilities.  City staff have reviewed the assumptions and the calculation
of the Municipal Service Facilities fee and have deternuned that the SLSP development will not

affect the calculation of the fee or change the existing fee rates for this citywide fee.

SLSP will also be subject to San Joaquin County fees, such as the San Joaquin County Regional
Transportation Impact Fee ( RTIF) and the County Capital Facilities Fee.  Additionally, pursuant
to the SLSP Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; SLSP project proponents shall
participate in the City' s agriculture mitigation program and the San Joaquin Multi-Species  .

Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan by paying the per=acre fees for the loss of important
farmland as well as to mitigate for habitat impacts to covered special status species.

FEE ADJUSTMENTS

The SLSP Fees may be adjusted in future years to reflect revised facility standards, receipt of
funding from alternative sources ( federal grants), revised costs, or changes in the land use plan.

In addition to such adjustments, the SLSP Fees will be inflated each. year by a predetermined
construction cost index selected by the City.

City ofLathrop SLSP iii Capital Facilities Fee Study

26



I. INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND

The South Lathrop Specific Plan area is a 315 acre development in the southeast portion of the

City.  Specifically, the project is located south of State Route 120, north and west of the Union
Pacific Railroad, and east of the San Joaquin River.  E ibit 1 on the following page identifies

the location of the project within the City.  The SLSP consists of mainly employment-generating
land uses.    Approximately 246.4 acres are zoned for Light Industrial and Warehouse

development and 10 acres are zoned Commercial Office.  The remaining 59 acres includes open
space, public and quasi-public lands, the San Joaquin River, and roadways.

FEES INCLUDED IN SLSP CAPITAL FACILITIES FEE STUDY

The SLSP Capital Facilities Fee Study includes fees that are specific to the land uses in SLSP

area. The fees in the Fee Study relate to the following categories:

Transportation Facilities

Water System Facilities

Storm Drainage Facilities

Administration Fee ( 3. 0% of other fee rates)

These fees will be referred to in this Fee Study as the" SLSP Fees". In addition to the SLSP Fees

listed above, the SLSP development will also be subject to certain City of Lathrop citywide CFF

fees and San Joaquin County countywide fees.

City ofLathrop SLSP 1 Capital Facilities Fee Study

27



xhibit 1— SL P Proiect Site

A_       y
t w 4a

4 l.
G       ;         

f     

4' 

yF..,_  . :..    ..
s...,...    ,..,_........."..,....,     ..._,   .      

r

r

i 

5    
r        

5  _,   _-,  \  '    1_    ._..._      j
i     \(

i

q       :   '  
r       `.

5
13.     i

x   , _;  ..   
s     p

t'-   I    :       i, w    , -      
f'       `,,  i

1       .   rr'  
t

j r. __  a o  `     _ p.,       w>

t,       j       i 1
w_..____..._... -       .

f.    1. _. a

e 0

A-       
3          I" --€.:y

f      t

f'  .. .:.._  . '  -  '     ': . 3' "_ '-   a.,. ew... e.....       ,             .

j           _ 
1    ;      

e ' r .  :
r    ,   i_ __

i    .;
y,. .   . ,..._  ,.....__.     . .  ,    i.    r

r              o
i

t.. i       t      t.

1 s

i j     .  .    s   

r
a

E   tl-' ' 3
r r r-'

sia' o:. 4         ` s a` o         ' vr
f t I

o  0`       i    >    
j   '

r'    
r  -    " E«      

f !       '-"` 9        `ra.  
nc      .. eeo..'   r    ._ .   •      s   ,      ` Lathrop    , .  

t       6;    /•      ,"+ 1''.      l     ,      i 9, t       .`:
s of .  1s

o• j 1       ae,       (-      T,       r
i      .  -f

1 ,      e i
o      I t.

a.  f
t 3

m     , d
q   Lathrop i'    • a: r_.    

0    
F 4            4     a   r           ",}:.%

r    .  -  ., r x   1 r    1    . P b
SC,       

217t8 `_

Qe
Y`  

i
rf'    

f -. }    

yS :
Y...  _  

I

i       ; i' .

r

y

l t

I

i       
O 3  (   _..    !_   i          S

I!   

ff/         

rk
s, J%/s'". z 120t       ,   

t f f.    }    
t       ,   f i

o`  t                       -    
f - "`-

0 w_._..L   +    
f   -     i j- r 5̀'_.

f P  :      . i  .       
a i 3

i R e',          Pro ect Site t
1:         

2QJ.    ,  a,,      s

tr,`       4
s,         ,...   r r  ' a ;     

rg G_..

f.   
i

l     - r'  S    .     __...  
I t r..            ±

y; f..},      r s; ,:  `    

3M--'   _+   
i f  ' 

l          

I F i

LEGIIJD

ri ii Pmject Lacation.`_      

Gyly Limiis
SphusofF fiucnce

TT
N D F T H          

GIONAL LOCATIOI d    

c Y[ sO Ps South Lathrop Specific Plan
E.       ,^       .. L     Lathrop, Ga

tn_  a!  in+„ -  , an,,:,   a•\ Sia\ peF xr rl ru n rrictraiar p: n an  cr s

FEili: e..... x:.e's

iut:E=; `
S

City ofLathrop SLSP 2 Capital Facilities Fee Study

28



MiTicaTioN FE AcT( AB 1600)

The Mitigation Fee Act, commonly known as Assembly Bill (AB) 1600, was enacted by the
State of California in 1987 and created Section 66000 et. seq. of the Government Code.  AB

1600 requires that all public agencies satisfy the following requirements when establishing,
increasing, or imposing a fee as a condition of approval for a development project:

1.       Identify the purpose of the fee
2.       Identify the use to which the fee will be put
3.       Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between:

A. The fee' s use and the type of development project on which the fee is

imposed

B.  The need for the public facility and the type of development project on
which the fee is imposed

C.  The amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility or portion of

the public facility attributable to the development on which the fee is
imposed

The purpose of this Fee Study is to demonstrate that the fees calculated herein comply with the
Mitigation Fee Act.    The assumptions,  methodologies,  facility standards,  costs,  and cost

allocation factors that were used to establish the nexus between the fees and the development on

which the fees will be levied are summarized in subsequent chapters of this report.

ORGANIZATION OF REPORT

The remainder of this report has been organized into the following chapters:

Chapter II Identifies the land uses, acres, and square footage assumptions

included in the Fee Study
Chapter III Provides an explanation of the fee methodology used to calculate

the fees in the this Fee Study
Chapter IV Summarizes the capital facilities and costs in the fee program

Chapters V-VII Provide the details of the fee calculations for transportation, water

system, and storm drainage fees

Chapter VIII Provides a summary of the SLSP Fees calculated in this Fee Study
Chapter IX Discusses the nexus findings for the SLSP Fees

Chapter X Addresses implementation of the fee program,   future fee

adjustments, and administrative duties required by the fee law

City ofLathrop SLSP 3 Capital Facilities Fee Study

29



II.      LAND USES

The SLSP area includes approximately 315 acres.   The majority of the acreage, about 246.4
acres, is planned for Limited Industrial land uses.  This land use category will allow for a large

range of development types, including warehouse/distribution, light industrial, manufacturing,

office, retail sales and services, R& D, recreation vehicle sales, and equipment and machinery

sales and repair services, to name just a few.  The Limited Industrial zoning category allows for
floor area ratios ( FAR) ranging from 0. 15 to 0.65.  The maximum estimated building square
footage for the Limited Industrial land in SLSP is 4,213, 918.

The SLSP also includes 10 acres of Commercial Office property situated close to the SR 120

corridor and will provide for local and regional serving office and commercial uses, including
financial institutions, adininistrative support centers, restaurants, and hoteUmotels.  Although the

0.30 FAR could allow for 130,000 square feet, the EIR anticipated that a more likely size would

be 75, 000 square feet of building space, and so that is the building space used in this Fee Study.

The Open Space land use designation includes about 31. 5 acres of San Joaquin River frontage

that extends to the centerline of the river.  This area includes trails that will connect to the City' s
trail system.  The Public/Quasi-Public Facilities land use consists of 11. 6 acres of land that is

planned for storm water and recycled water basins.  Lastly, 15. 5 acres are set aside for existing
and future roads.   Table 2- 1 summarizes the land uses, acres, and building square feet and
Exhibit 2 on the following page shows the location of the land uses is the SLSP area.

Table 2- 1— Land Use Summarv

Average

Land Use FAR Acres Sq• Ft•
Coxrmiercial0ffice 0. 30 10. 0 75,000

Light Industrial 0.39 63. 1 1, 079,759

Warehouse 0. 39 183. 3 3, 134, 159

Subtotal 256.4 4, 288,918

Open Space Acres

River/I.evee Park 21. 0

River 10. 5

Public/Quasi Public 11. 6

Existing and Future Major Roads 15. 5

Subtotal 58.6

Total 315.0

City ofLathrop SLSP 4 Capital Facilities Fee Study

30



Exhibit 2— SLSP Land Uses

Y.      f'   .:' amw„a„       ,. d
Y       ;.

j„.},+....,     

ii.     ,,. .......   ,._,,..._       ,
kd

1

Ir
kt f'    }^    li t̀   '%="  i    ''/    i...

Z'       ,
r;`     °-.,       / J f

r

i'{      _    

t:  
r',   .,

1;
jf

f, l y-` r   "'
s..

r

JC x.t      `    ' j'-'_*     l.      r'`

AD/ Q$     r_';,-'."

E BUSINF55PARK ti

s

R LATHROP GATEWAY

BUSINE55 PARK    .

h
STpTE ROUTE HIGHyy, qy '?

o
ea a.     F

S       C

F!

EXIfi!\ G f°
FYEfi3{',g it ..

Y'  c; c:   
ccr      zc us: t a+; s.       CO

5 u:;ss/••      ccsemur    rr a cwsxa:mr
y

t, t ac.ae.       .   .  r*,+ trr e..,.     .  .
iflD,.

N    ` 
i

m : r    F

y;-., .      ur.. 

c&. tfii 1'  ,.
a

Q. l       k. £; u 5  .   r;.,.:. ,...:

f-+ t i   ' 
rt •'.         4 UfAz

iG      

y

y

OAKw00D tAKES
4,,.

BROWN A9j, '''
i

s,•   
SUBDMSiON

SAND ING   •.-,

t`'',;   

r

a l

c, o

opeo so. ee:
RivplLtvee Pct

River

Pnblid Quui Pnblic F litie

St m Wda B. Wedwd)

p Y

I.evaaAaestRoed Teail

x.iuing E7anrical Liaw

LAND USE PLAN
South Lathrop Specific P(an

u.GA„    Lathrop, Ca

Ciry ofLathrop SLSP 5 Capital Facilities Fee Study

31



IdI.    FEEMETHODOLOGY

When impact fees are calculated, an analysis must be presented in enough detail to demonstrate

that a logical and thorough consideration was applied in the process of determining how the fees
relate to the impacts from new development.  Various fmdings pursuant to the impact fee statute

must be made to ensure that a reasonable relationship exists between the fee amount and the

impact caused by development on which the fee will be levied.  Following is a discussion of the
method used in this Fee Study to allocate facilities costs to development and determine the fees
in the fee program.

FEE METHODOLOGY

The plan-based fee methodology is used in this Fee Study.   This methodology is used for
facilities that must be designed based on future demand projections within a geographic location.

Typically, a formal plan such as a specific plan, facilities needs assessment, or master plan
identifies and supports the level of facilities required to serve the plan area.  This plan would

typically consider the existing facilities already in place and deterinine what additional facilities
would be necessary to accommodate new development.     For example,  the need for

transportation-related improvements depends specifically on the projected number of trips that
must be accommodated on specific roadways.   An analysis of existing facilities, geographic

constraints, and current levels of service must be completed in order to identify the future facility
needs.  This information is analyzed in conjunction with a projection of the amount and location

of future development in the plan area to deternune the adequacy of existing facilities and the
demand for new improvements that will be required.   Depending on the level of e}cisting
facilities, the plan-based fee methodology may allocate planned facilities costs to either future

development only or to future and existing development.  The steps to calculate a fee under the

plan-based fee methodology include the following:

Step 1 Identify existing facilities and estimate future demand for facilities at build out of
the plan area

Step 2 Deternune facilities needed to serve anticipated growth in the plan area

Step 3 Estimate the gross cost of facilities needed to serve the future development in the

plan area

City ofLathrop SLSP 6 Capital Facilities Fee Study

32



Step 4 Subtract the gross cost of any facilities included in the facilities plan that will cure

an existing deficiency in service or will serve other development areas

Step 5 Subtract revenues available from alternative funding sources, if any, to identify a
net facilities cost that will be allocated to future development.

Step 6 Select cost allocation factors ( e. g., trips generated, gallons per day, C-values) that

will be used to allocate facility costs on a proportional impact basis; apply cost
allocation factors to each of the land use categories based on their relative service

demand or impact on each type of facility

Step 7 Estimate the total impact from future development by multiplying the total
number of units/acres/square feet for each respective land use by its cost

allocation factor.  Sum the total cost allocation factors for each land use category

Step 8 Deternune the percentage distribution of the cost allocation factors for each land

use category by dividing the total of the cost allocation factors for each land use
category by the total of all cost allocation factors for all land use categories

Step 9 Multiply the percent distribution for each land use category, as determined in Step
8, by the total facilities cost to deternune the portion of the facility cost that is
allocated to each land use category

Step 10 Divide the facilities cost that is allocated to each land use category, as determined
in Step 9, by the number of units, in the case of SLSP Fees, per 1, 000 square feet

of building space, to detennine the facilities fees

COST ALLOCATION FACTORS

Cost allocation factors are used to allocate facilities costs to iiifferent land uses based on each

land use' s specific impact on that facility.   These factors establish the nexus in the Fee

Mitigation Act that requires that the amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility
aitributable to the development on which the fee is imposed is reasonably related.   Cost

allocation factors, if chosen correctly, will represent a reasonable and relatively proportionate
impact that different land uses will have on a facility.

City ofLathrop SLSP 7 Capital Facilities Fee Study

33



For example, trip generation rates are typically used as cost allocation factors for transportation

facilities because they accurately measure the impact of different types of development on a

transportation system. A fast food restaurant, for example, attracts many customers throughout a
normal day.  On the other hand, a coin operated laundry mat will attract much fewer customers

in a day than a fast food restaurant.  Therefore the trip generation rate of a fast food restaurant is
much higher than a laundry mat' s trip generation rate.  As a result, the fast food restaurant' s

transportation fee will be much higher than the laundry mat' s fee.  Table 3- 1 below shows the

cost allocation factors used in this Fee Study to allocate costs and calculate the SLSP Fees.

Table 3- 1— Cost Allocation Factors

Storm

Land Use Transportation Water Drainage

per KSF)       per Acre)  per Acre)

Adjusted

PMPeak Hr Trins GPD C-Value

Commercial0ffice 3. 36 1, 300 0. 90

Light Industrial 0.97 1., 400 0.70

Warehouse 0. 10 400 0:70

Source: SLSPDEIR; EKIEnvironment and Water; City ofLathrop

City ofLathrop SLSP 8 Capital Facilities Fee Study

34



IV.     CAPITAL FACILITIES AND COSTS

Table 4- 1 below sununarizes the facilities costs for transportation, water system, and storm

drainage facilities planned for SLSP.

Table 4- 1— Facilities Costs

Total Funding SLSP

Estimated From Other CFD SLSP

Facility Type Cost
Developmentsl

Funding Fees

Transportarion 65, 805,000 52,744,379 5, 552,405       $ 7, 508,216

Water 3, 320, 158 2,324, 158 0 996,000

StormDrainage 1, 720, 875 1, 146, 875          0 574,000

Total 70,846,033 56,215,412 5,552,405       $ 9, 078,216

1. Other develop nts may include Lathrop Cmteway Specific Plan, McKinley Comdor,Cmssroads, and otheis.

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES

Transportation facilities for SLSP include construction of interchanges at SR 120 and Yosemite

Avenue and at I-5 and Lathrop Road.    Transportation facilities also include roadway,     .
intersection, and railroad crossing improvements for Yosemite and McKinley Avenues, and
Airport Way. The total cost of the facilities is $ 65. 8 million, as shown in Table B- 1 in Appendix
B.  Based on its traffic model, the City' s traffic consultant determined that SLSP' s share of the
total cost is $ 13. 1 million.  The remainder, $ 52. 7 million, is allocated to the Lathrop Gateway

Specific Plan area, McKinley Corridor, Crossroads, and other Lathrop developments.

Of the $ 13. 1 million allocated to SLSP, the project developer plans to fmance approximately
5. 6 million through a future community facilities district bond issue.   The remaining SLSP

share of the cost, $7. 5 million, will be funded through SLSP Transportation Fees.

WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES

Water system facilities include a 1. 0 MG storage tank and booster pump station for Well 21.
The total cost of these improvements is approximately $ 3. 3 million, as shown in Table B-2 in

Appendix B.  The City' s water system consultant determined that 62% of the total cost of the

water system facilities would be attributable to future SLSP development if the industrial

properties built out as 100% light industrial.   However, the EIR anticipated that 75% of the

City ofLathrop 9 Capital Facilities Fee Study

35



industrial properties would be built as warehousing, which requires much less water.   This

analysis follows the EIR assumption that 75% of the industrial properties will be built as

warehousing, so the total anticipated impact on the need for a water tank is much less.  As a

result, SLSP' s fair share of the total cost is reduced to 30%, resulting in an allocated cost of$ 1. 0
million, which will be funded through SLSP Water Fees.

STORM DRAINAGE I'+ACILITIES

Storm drainage facilities include construction of the South Lathrop Outfall.  The total cost of the
facility is $ 1. 7 million, as shown in Table B- 3 in Appendix B. The City' s engineering consultant

determined that the total cost of the facility should be equally split between three development
areas - SLSP, LGSP, and the McKinley Corridor.   SLSP 33. 3% share of the total cost is

574,000 and will be funded through the SLSP Storm Drainage Fees.

City ofLathrop SLSP 10 Capital Facilities Fee Study

36



V.       TRANSPORTATION FEE

This section of the report identifies the facilities, costs, and the fee rates required to fund the

transportation facilities in the SLSP area.

FACILITIES AND COSTS

The transportation facilities for SLSP are identified in Table B-1 in Appendix B.  The facilities

include the SR120/Yosemite interchange ($ 25. 3 million); the I-5/ Lathrop Road interchange
20.0 million); road widening and improvements to five segments of Yosemite Avenue and one

segment each of McKinley Avenue and Airport Way;  construction/ improvements of four

intersections on Yosemite Avenue and two on McKinley Avenue; improvements to railroad

crossings on Yosemite and McKinley Avenues; and improvements to SR 120 ramps at Airport

Way.

The total cost of SLSP transportation facilities is approximately $65. 8 million.  The City' s traffic
consultant, Fehr and Peers, conducted a traffic analysis that determined SLSP' s fair share, based

on trip generation, is approximately 19. 8% of the total cost, or $ 13. 1 million.  The remaining

52. 7 million cost is allocated to LGSP, McKinley Corridor, the Crossroads development, and

other developments in Lathrop.

The developer of SLSP plans to fund approximately  $ 5. 6 million of the  $ 13. 1 million

transportation costs through a future community facilities district bond issue.'  The remaining
7. 5 million cost will be funded through the SLSP fee program.

Several intersections in Manteca were identified in the EIR as being' impacted by SLSP.  The

City has an agreement with Manteca that rather than charge one another' s developers for

impacts, the cities will consider the impacts to be equal and fund each' s own improvements.

However,  one problem with this solution is that Lathrop will end up with unfunded
improvements that would otherwise have been funded by Manteca developers.  In the spirit of

the Lathrop/Manteca agreement, Lathrop and the SLSP developer have agreed to collect the

impact costs for intersections in Manteca and spend those funds on Lathrop improvements to

avoid a gap in funding due to not receiving money from the Manteca developers.

COST ALLOCATION FACTORS

The $ 7.5 million in transportation facilities costs is allocated to the Commercial Office, Light,

City ofLathrop SLSP II Capital Facilities Fee Study

37



Industrial, and Warehouse land uses in SLSP. Table A- 1 in Appendix A shows this allocation is

based on the PM Peak Hour trip generation factors shown in Table 5- 1. These allocation factors,

that measure the amount of trips generated for a given land use,  establish a reasonable

relationship, or nexus, between the cost of the transportation facilities that is attributable to each

of the land uses and the amount of the Transportation Fees, as determined in this Fee Study.

Table 5- 1

Transportation Cost Allocation Factors

Land Use Unit Transportation

Adjusted

PM Peak Hr Trins

CommercialOffice KSF 3. 36

Light Industrial KSF 0. 97

Warehouse csF 0. 10

TRANSPORTATION FEE

Table A- 1 in Appendix A shows the calculation of Transportation Fee and Table 5- 2 below

summarizes the fee rates for the land use categories in SLSP.  The Transportation Fee rates in

Table 5- 2 are per 1, 000 square feet ofbuilding space.     

Table 5-2

TransAortation Fees

Transportation

Land Us e Unit Fe e

CommercialOffice K F 15, 631

Light Industrial KSF 4, 516

Warehouse KSF 466

City ofLathrop SLSP 12 Capital Facilities Fee Study

38



TRANSPORTATION FEE REVENUE ESTIMATE

The total estimated Transportation Fee revenue at build out of the SLSP area is shown in Table

5- 3.

Table 5- 3

Transportation Fee Revenue

Transportation Fee

Bldg SF Fee Ite enue

Land Us e Per KSF Per IfSF

Commercial0ffice 75, 000       $ 15, 631 1, 172,2 8

Light Industrial 1, 079,759 4,516 4, 876,635

Warehouse 3, 134, 159 466 1, 459,294

Total 4,288,918 7, 508,216

City ofLathrop SLSP 13 Capital Facilities Fee Study

39



VI.     WATER SYSTEM FEE

This section of the report identifies the facilities, costs, and the fee rates required to fund the

water system facilities in the SLSP area.

FACILITIES AND COSTS

The water system facilities for SLSP are identified in Table B- 2 in Appendix B.  The facilities

include a 1. 0 million gallon storage tank ($ 1. 2 million) and a booster pump station for Well 21
1. 3 million).  The total cost of the facilities including a 15% markup for contingency and a

16% markup for soft costs, is approximately$ 3. 3 million.

The City' s water system consultant determined that 62% of the total cost of the water system

facilities would be attributable to future SLSP development if the industrial properties built out

as 100% light industrial space.   However, the EIR anticipated that 75% of the industrial

properties would be built as warehousing, which requires much less water. This analysis follows
the EIR assumption that 75% of the industrial properties will be built as warehousing, so the total
anticipated impact on the need for a water tank is much less. As a result, SLSP' s fair share of the

total cost is reduced to 30%, resulting in an allocated cost of$ 1. 0 million, which will be funded
through SLSP Water Fees.   The remainder of the $ 3. 3 million cost will be funded by other

developments in the City.

COST ALLOCATION FACTORS   •

The $ 1. 0 million facilities cost is allocated to the Commercial Office, Light Industrial, and

Warehouse land uses in Table A-2 in Appendix A.  The cost allocation factors used to allocation

the facilities costs to the land use categories are based on average water usage factors from the

City' s Integrated Water Resources Master Plan. These water usage factors are shown in Table 6-

1 on the following page.  Water usage factors, that measure the amount of water used for a given

land use,  establish a reasonable relationship,  or nexus, between the cost of the facilities
attributable to each of the land uses and the amount of the Water Fees, as determined in this Fee

Study.

City ofLathrop SLSP 14 Capital Facilities Fee Study

40



Table 6- 1

Water Svstem Cost Allocation Factors

Land Us e Unit Wate r

GPD

CommercialOffice Acre 1, 300

Light Industrial Acre 1, 400

Warehous e Acre 400

WATER SYSTEM FEE

Table A-2 in Appendix A shows the calculation of Water System Fee and Table 6- 2 below

summarizes the fee rates for the land use categories in SLSP.  The Water System Fee rates in

Table 6- 2 are per 1, 000 square feet ofbuilding space.

Table 6-2

Water Svstem Fees

Water

Land Use      Unit Fee

CommercialOffice KSF 988

Light Industrial xsF 467

Warehouse KSF 133

City ofLathrop SLSP IS Capital Facilities Fee Study

41



WATER SYSTEM FEE REVENUE ESTIMATE

The total estimated Water System Fee revenue at build out of the SLSP area is shown in Table 6-

3.

Table 6-3

Water Svstem Fee Revenues

Water Fee

Bldg SF Fee Revenue

Land Use Per gSF Per gSF

Commercial0ffice 75, 000 988 74, 117

Light Industrial 1, 079,759 467 503,946

Warehouse 3, 134, 159 133 417,937

Total 4,288,918 996,000

City ofLathrop SLSP 16 Capital Facilities Fee Study

42



VII.   STORMDRAINAGE FEE

This section of the report identifies the facilities, costs, and the fee rates required to fund the

storm drainage facilities in the SLSP area.

FACILITIES AND COSTS

The South Lathrop Specific Plan states that storm runoff from the SLSP area is anticipated to
discharge to the San Joaquin River through a new outfall located near the southwest corner of the

SLSP area.  The proposed South Lathrop outfall facility will be a regional facility that will also

serve the LGSP and McKinley Corridor developments in addition to the SLSP area.

The storm drainage facilities for SLSP are identified in Table B- 3 in Appendix B.  The facilities

include construction of the outfall facility,   1, 200 feet of pipeline,  and other related

appurtenances. The total cost of facilities is appro mately $ 1. 7 million.   City staff and its

engineering consultants estimate that the total cost of the outfall facility should be allocated

equally to the three developments that will benefit from this facility, namely SLSP, LGSP, and

the McKinley Corridor.  Therefore, SLSP' s share of the total cost is $574,000 and will be funded
with SLSP Storm Drainage Fees.   The remaining $ 1. 1 million cost is allocated to future

development in LGSP and the McKinley Corridor.

COST ALLOCATION FACTORS

The  $ 574,000 storm drainage facilities cost is allocated to the Commercial Office,  Light

Industrial, and Warehouse land uses in SLSP.  The $ 574,000 cost is allocated in Table A-3 in

Appendix A to the land use categories based on the City' s C-value factors shown in Table 7- 1 on
the following page.  C- value factors, that measure the amount of water runoff for a given land

use, establish a reasonable relationship, or nexus, between the cost of the storm drainage
facilities that is attributable to each of the land uses and the amount of the Storm Drainage Fees,

as determined in this Fee Study.

City ofLathrop SLSP 17 Capital Facilities Fee Study

43



Table 7- 1

Storm Draina e Cost Alloca ion Faetors

Storm

I.,and Use Unit Drainage

C-Value

CommercialOffice Acre Oa9

Light Industrial Acre 0.7

Warehouse Ac e 0.7

STORM DRAINAGE F EES

Table A-3 in Appendix A shows the calculation of Storm Drainage Fee and Table 7- 2 below

summarizes the fee rates for the land use categories in SLSP.  The Storm Drainage Fee rates in

Table 7- 2 are per 1, 000 square feet ofbuilding space.

Table 7-2

Storm Drainage Fees

Storm

Drairiage

Land Us e Unit Fe e

CommercialOffice KSF 3 0

Light Industrial KSF 129

Warehouse K F 129

City ofLathrop SLSP 18 Capital Facilities Fee Study

44



STORM DRAINAGE FEE REVENUE ESTIMATE

The total estimated Stoim Drainage Fee revenue at build out of the SLSP area is shown below in

Table 7- 3.

Table 7-3

Storm Draina e ee Revenues

Stor n

Drainage Fee

Bldg SF Fee Revenue

Land Us e Per ICSF Per ICSF

Commercial0ffice 75, 000 380 28,466

Light Industrial 1, 079,759 129 139,786

Warehouse 3, 134, 159 129 405,748

Total 4, 288,918 574,000

City ofLathrop SLSP 19 Capital Facilities Fee Study

45



VIII.  FEE SUMMARY

The table below summarizes the fees calculated in this report. A 3. 0% administration fee is also

included to pay for the administrative duties associated with the fee program.

Table- 1— Fee Summary

Storm City
Transportation Water Drainage Admin

Land Use Unit Fee Fee Fee Fee( 3. 0%) Total

per 1,000 Bldg. Square Feet

Commereial0ffice KSF 15, 631 988       $ 380 510 17,508

LightIndustrial KSF 4, 516 467       $ 129 153 5, 266

Warehouse KSF 466 133       $ 129 22 750

LATHROP CITYWII9E ANID SAN JOAQUIN COUNT' WIDE FEES

The SLSP Fees calculated in this Fee Study, if adopted by the City Council, will be added to the

City' s Capital Facilities Fee program. In addition to the SLSP Fees shown in this Fee Study, the
SLSP area will also be subject to other Lathrop citywide impact fees in the CFF program.  One

such citywide fee is the Municipal Service Facilities fee that funds various municipal buildings

and facilities.  City staff have reviewed the assumptions anii the calculation of the Municipal

Service Facilities fee and have deternuned that the SLSP development will not affect the

calculation of the fee or change the existing fee rates for this citywide fee.

SLSP will also be subject to San Joaquin County fees, such as the San Joaquin County Regional
RTIF and the County Capital Facilities Fee.   Additionally, pursuant to the SLSP Mitigation

Monitoring and Reporting Program, SLSP project proponents shall participate in the City' s
agriculture mitigation program and the San Joaquin Multi-Species Habitat Conservation and

Open Space Plan by paying the per-acre fees for the loss of important farmland as well as to
mitigate for habitat impacts to covered special status species.

Ciry ofLathrop SLSP 20 Capital Facilities Fee Study

46



IX.  NEXUS FINDINGS

Development in the City will create a need for additional public facilities as well as expansion of

existing facilities to serve future residents and employees.  The SLSP CFF program will provide

funding for public facilities in accordance with the policies and goals set forth by the City.  As

required pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, the SLSP Fees calculated in this Fee Study meets
the nexus requirements of the law, as outlined.below.

NEXUS TEST

Purpose of the Fees

The purpose of the SLSP Fees is to provide funding for the infrastructure and facilities identified

in this Fee Study.

Use of Fee

SLSP Fee revenue will be used to fund future development' s fair share of the cost of

infrastructure and facilities that have been identified by the City as necessary to serve new
development in the SLSP area.

Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the public facility
and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed.

New non-residential development will generate additional demand for the infrastructure and

facilities identified in this Fee Study.  The facilities, infrastructure improvements, and capacity

enhancements included in this Fee Study will ensure that the City will maintain the desired level

of service standards that are identified for the facility categories included in this Fee Study.

Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee' s use and the type of
development project on which the fee is imposed.

Fee revenue collected from the SLSP area will fund the facilities included in this Fee Study.
These facilities will serve development in the SLSP area and the estimated fees are a fair-share

cost allocation based on the impact that future development will have on these facilities and

improvements.  Fee accounts for the SLSP area will be established to ensure that fee revenue is

applied to the infrastructure and facilities for which it is collected.

City ofLathrop SLSP 21 Capital Facilities Fee Study

47



Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the

cost of the public facility or portion of the public facility attributable to the development on
which the fee is imposed.

A reasonable relationship between' the amount of each SLSP Fee and the cost of the public

facility, or portion thereof, is established in this Fee Study through the use of cost allocation

factors to estimate the demand for a facility or, the impact that a land use will have on a facility.
For example, the cost allocation for the Transportation Fee is based on the number trips

generated for each specific larid use.  The trip generation rates, which differ between land use

categories, measure each land use' s impact on facilities and infrastructure. As a result, each land

use category or development type is allocated its fair share of the cost based on its impact, as

identified by its cost allocation factor.

By assigning the demand for infrastructure and facilities based on the cost allocation factors for

each land use and quantifying that demand in the calculation of the SLSP Fees, a reasonable

relationship is established between the amount of the fee and the cost of the facilities attributable       

to the different types of non-residential development in the SLSP area.

City ofLathrop SLSP 22 Capital Facilities Fee Study

48



X.  FEE PROGRAMADMINISTRATION

FEE IMPLEMENTATION

According to the California Government Code, prior to levying a new fee or increasing an

existing fee, a public agency must hold at least one open and public meeting.  At least 10 days

prior to this meeting, the agency must make data on facility costs and funding sources available
to the public.  Notice of the time and place of the meeting, and a general explanation of the
matter, are to be published in accordance with Section 6062a of the Government Code, which

states that publication of notice shall be posted over a 10- day period in a newspaper regularly
published once a week or more.  Two publications, with at least five days intervening between

the dates of the first and last publication, not counting such publication dates, are sufficient. The

Fee Study and fees established herein will be adopted through a City ordinance. and resolution.

Once the fee program is adopted by the Lathrop City Council, it shall become effective no

sooner than sixty days after the fmal legislative action.

FEE ADJUSTMENTS

The SLSP Fees will be adjusted in future years to reflect revised facility standards, receipt of
funding from alternative sources ( i.e., state or federal grants), revised costs, or changes in land

use.  In addition to such adjustments, each year the SLSP Fees will be adjusted by the change in

a construction cost index selected by the City over the prior twelve-month period.

ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES

The Government Code requires a public agency to report, every year and every fifth year, certain
financial information regarding their impact fees.  Within 180 days after the' last day of each

fiscal year the public agency must make the following information available for the past fiscal
year:       

a)      A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund

b)      The amount of fee revenue

c)      The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund
d)      The amount of fee revenue collected and interest earned

e)      An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and

the amount of expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage
of the cost of public improvement that was funded with fees

City ofLathrop SLSP 23 Capital Facilities Fee Study

49



An identification of an approximate date by which time construction on the

improvement will commence if the local agency detexrnines that sufficient funds

have been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public improvement
g)      A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or fund,

when it will be repaid and at what interest rate

h)      The amount of any refunds made once it is deteimined that sufficient monies have
been collected to fund all projects

The public agency must make this information available for public review and must also present

it at the next regularly scheduled public meeting not less than 15 days after this information is
made available to the public.  

FIFTH-YEAR ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES

For the fifth year following the first deposit into the fee account and every five years thereafter,
the public agency must make the following findings with respect to any remaining funds in the
fee accounts:

a)      Identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put
b)      Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which

it is charged

c)      Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete fmancing
incomplete improvements

d)      Designate the approximate dates on which funding is expected to be deposited
into the appropriate accounts or funds

As with the annual report, the five-year report must be made public within 180 days after the end

of the public agency' s fiscal year and must be reviewed at the next regularly scheduled public
meeting.  The public agency must make these findings; otherwise the law states that the City
must refund the fee revenue to the then current owners of the development proj ect.

City ofLathrop SLSP 24 Capital Facilities Fee Study

50



APP NDIXA

Capitacl Facilities Cost Allocations

51



Table A- 1

Transportation Facilities Cost Allocation

PM Percent Adjusted

Peak Adjustment PM Peak Total

Hour For Iuternal Trips Per New Percent Cost Transportation

Bldg SF Trip Rate Trips KSF Trips Allocation Allocation Fee

Cost:      $ 7,508,216/ 1

Land USe BldrSF PerKSF PerKSF PerKSF

CommercialOffice 75, 000 3. 73 10%  3. 36 252 15. 6%     $ 1, 172, 288     $ 15, 631

Light Industrial 1, 079, 759 0. 97 0%   0.97 1, 047 65. 0°/a     $ 4, 876, 635      $ 4,516

Warehouse 3, 134, 159 0. 10 0%   0. 10 313 19. 4%     $ 1, 459,294       $ 466

Total 4, 288,918 1, 613 100. 0%     $ 7, 508,216

1 Transportation fees are calculated based on the assumption that a future SLSP CFD will fund approximately$ 5. 6 million
of SLSP' s$ 13. 1 million share of the transportion facilities improvements.

Source: Fehr and Peers; DEIR- Sot lh Lat/ rop Specifrc Plan; Goodwin Constdting Gronp

52



Table A- 2

Water Facilities Cost Allocation

Avg
Gallons Water

Per Day Total Percent Cost System

Bldg SF Acres Per Acre Gallons Allocation Allocation Fee

Cost:     $ 996,000

Land Use
PerKSF

CommercialOffice 75, 000 10. 0 1300 13, 000 7.4% 74, 117 988

Light Industrial 1, 079,759 63. 1 1400 88, 391 50.6% 503, 946 467

Warehouse 3, 134, 159 183. 3 400 73, 305 42.0% 417,937 133
Total 4,288,918 256.4 174,697 100.0% 996,000

Source: SLSP; H20 Urban Solutions; EKI Environment and Water

53



Table A - 3

Storm Drainage Facilities Cost Allocation

Storm

C-Value Total Percent Cost Drainage

Bldg SF Acres Per Acre C-Value Allocation Allocation Fee

Cost:      $ 574, 000

Land Use Per KSF

Commercial Qffice 75, 000 10.0 0. 90 9. 00 5. 0% 28,466      $ 380

Light Industrial 1, 079,759 63. 1 0. 70 44.20 24.4%      $ 139,786      $ 129

Warehouse 3, 134, 159 183. 3 0. 70 128. 28 70.7%      $ 405, 748      $ 129

Total 4,288,918 256.4 181. 48 100. 0%      $ 574, 000

Source: SLSP; MacKay and Somps; City ofLathrop

54



APPENDIX B

Detaileal Facilities Costs

55



Table B- 1- Revised Dated October 24 2017

South Lathrop Capital Facilities Fee( CFF) Study

CostEstimare SLSG LGBPSP MC Crossroads OtherLathrop ThroughTrips
Improvement

Totalln[ erchange 38, 125 16, 394 16, 331 478 2, 334 69 2, 520

43. 00%     42. 84%     1. 25Yo 6. 12%       0. 18%      fi. fil%

Vhase 1 SR120/ Vosemite 46. 04%     45. 8]%     1. 34%      6. 56%       0. 19%

Phase 1 Improvement( 50% of SLSP  $ 4, 000, 000 5 1, 841,) 63. 80 $ 1, 834, 686. 14 5 53,] 00. 32 $ 262, 210. 36 $   7,639. 38

7hase 2 SR120/ vosemlte 46. 04%     45.87%     134%      6. 56%       0. 19%

Phase2lmprovement 100% of5L5P)  $ 2, 300, 000 $ 1, 059,014. 18 $ 1, 054, 944. 53 $ 30, B71. 69 $ 150,]] 0. 96 $   4,392. 64

Full Inrerchange

2  ( 100% ofreloca[ eaIlWBramps)     $ 19,000,000 $ 8, 748, 378. 04 $ 8, 714, 759. 1fi $ 255, 076. 53 $ 1, 245,499. 23 $   36, 28]. 04

Totallnterchange 54, 378 830 1, 045 151 516 37, 119 14, 717

1. 53%      1. 92%     0. 28%      0. 95Yo 68. 26%     27.06%

3 I- 5/ athrop Road 2. 09%      2.63%     038%      1. 30%      93. 59%
Fullln[ erchange

61% of$ 33, 000,000= 520, 000, 000)  $ 20,000, 000 $ 418, 54]. 19 $ 526, 966. 04 $ 76, 145. 33 $ 260,20524 $ 18, 718, 136. 20

23, 438 1, 09 16, 557 543 2, 390 1, 035 1, 205

i VosemiteAvenue- Segmen[ 1 7. 29%      70.64%     2. 32%     30. 20%       6. 61%      5. 14%

SR120loVosemiteCourt 7. 69%     ] 4.47%     2. 44%     10.75%       4. 65%

Improvemen[ Cos[ 100%) 1, 014, 000 $  77.942. 11 $ 755, 112- 69 $ 24. 7fi4. 52 5 109, 000. 38 $   47, 18029

10,809 1, 318 4, 187 646 2, 549 905 1, 205

5 Vosemi[ e Avenue- Segment 2 12. 19%      38. 74%     5. 98%     23. 58%       8. 37%     11. 14%

Vosemite Court to D' Arcy Parkway 13. 72%     43. 59%     6. 73%     26. SA%       9.42%

Improvemen[ Cost l00Y) 1, 449, 000 5 198,842A2 $ 631, 679. 21 $ 9], 459.94 $ 384, 559. 43 $  136, 459. 00

9, 235 1, 193 3, 962 689 1, 39fi 91 1, 205

6 YosemiteAvenue- Segment3 12. 92%     42. 9     7. 469L 15. 12%       A56%     13. 04%

D' ArcyParkwaytoMcKinleyAvenue 14. 86%     4934%     8. 58%     17. 38%       9.84%

Improvemen[ Cos[ 1000 1, 392, 000 $ 206,] 93. 60 $ 686, 769.69 $ 119,430.6] $ ] 41, 981. 45 $  13], 024. 59

15, 671 1, 054 7, 341 1, 258 1, 093 1, 678 3, 248

7 Vosemi[ e Avenue- Segment 6 6.] 3%     46. 84%     8. 03%      fi. 97%      10.70%     20. 72%

McKinley Avenue[ o UPRP Tracks 8. 48%     59. 09%    10. 13%      8. 80%      13. 50%

ImprovementCast( 30) 1, 180, 000 $  100, 110. 2] $ 697, 257. fi2 $ 119, 486. 46 $ 303, 814. 55 $  159, 331. 11

18, 102 18, 102

8 VosemiteAvenue- Segment5 100. 00%      0. 00°b 0. 00%      0.00%       0. 00%      O. 00o

SF 120 to SLSP Shee[ A 100. 00°h 0. 00%     0. 00%      0.00%       0.00%

Improvement Cost$ 530,000)

DeveloperConstructed S      -  5      -  $     -    

63,828 1, 709 36, 967 543 2, 390 1, 120 1, 120

9 Vosemite Avenue- Intersection 1 7. 29%     157. 64°h 2. 32%     10. 20%       3. I8%      5. 78%

YosemiteAvenue/ VosemiteCourt 4. 00%     86. 51%     1.] 7%      5. 60%       2. 62%

ImprovementCost( 1W%) 600,000 $  24,009. 2] $ 519,05827 $  ], 62846 $  33, 576. 45 $   15, 727. 55

20,044 2, 511 6, 149 1, 335 3, 945 1, 695 2,409

10 VosemiteAvenue- Intersection2 12. 530 40. 66%     6.66%     19. 68%       8. 46Y 12. 02%

VosemiteAvenue/ D' ArryParkway 14.24%     46. 21%     ]. 57%     22. 3]%       9. 61%

Improvemen[ Cost 100% 5 375, 000 $  53, 39524 $ 173, 286.66 5 28, 388. 15 $  83, 888. 5] $   36, 043. 38

24, 906 2, 247 11, 303 1, 947 2p89 2, 468 4,452

11 vosemiteAvenue- Intersection3 9. 02%     45. 38%     ]. 82%      9. 99%       9. 91%     17. 88%

YoSemiteAvenue/ MCKinleyAvenue 10. 99%     5526%     9. 52%      12. 17%      12. 07%

ImprovementCost 100% 675, 000 5 74, 152. 98 $ 373, 008. 95 $ 64, 252. 71 $  82, 139. 19 $   81, 446. 17

26, 380 26, 380

12 VosemiteAvenue- Inrerse[[ ionC 100. 00%      0. 0096 0. 0096 0. 0096 0.0096 0.0096

VosemiteAvenue/ SLSPStreetA 100. 00%      0. 00%     0. 00%      0. 00%       0. 00%

Improvemen[ Cost$ 3] 5,000)

DeveloperConstruc[ ed

15, 671 1p54 7, 341 1, 258 1, 093 1, 678 3, 248

13 VosemiteFvenue 4.00%     294]%     SAS%      4. 39%       6. 74%     13. 04%

At- Grade UPRR Crossing 8. 48%     59. 09%    10. 13%      8. 80%      13. 50%

ImprovementCost( 1 0°h) 5 600, 000 5 50, 903. 53 $  354, 537. 77 $ 60,] 55. 83 5 52, 787.06 S 81, 015. 82

11, 130 6       ], 899 1, 731 284 316 876

14 MCKinleyAvenue- Segmen[ 1 0.04%      71. 1090 15. 58%      2. 56%       2. 84%      7.88%

Yosemi[ e Avenue to UPRR Crossing 0.04%     77. 18%    16. 91%      2] 8%       3. 09%

ImprovementCost 100%) 1, 000, 000 $    390. 85 $ 771, 838. 97 $ 169, 142. 08 5 27, 750.64 $   30, 877. A7

11, 110 4 7, 899 1, 731 284 316 876

15 McKinleyAvenue 0.04%     71. 3096 15. 58%      2. 56%       2.86%      7. 88%

A[- Grade UVRR Crossing 0.09%     77. 18%    16. 91%      2.] 80 3.09%

ImprovemenlCost l00Yo) 600,000 $    234. 51 $ 463, 303. 38 $ 101, 685. 25 $  16, 650. 38 $   18, 526. 48

59, 156 20 90 80 124 32, 376 26,466

0. 03%      0. 15%     0. 14%      0. 21%      54.] 3%     44. J40

I6 LathropROad/ MCKinleyAvenue 0.06%      0. 28%     0. 26%      0. 38%      99. 04%

ImprovementCost( 300%) 500,000 $    305. 90 $   1, 376. 57 $  1, 223.62 $   1, 896. 60 $  495, 19]. 31

62, 38] 168 2, 529 5,850       ] 16 29, 683 23, 441

0. 27%      4. 05%     9. 38%      1. 15%      47. 58%     37. 57%
1]  Lou' ise Avenue/ MCKinley Hvenue 0. 43%      6. 49%    15.02%      1. 84%      Jfi.22%

ImprovementCost 100°.6) 600,000 5 2. SBH2O 5 38, 961. 64 $ 90.124. 79 5 11, 030. 6fi $  457, 294. 72

53, 035 699 1, 468 303 162 2, 763 47, 6d0

18'  AirportWay/ Daniels5[ ree[      1. 32%      2.]]%     0. 57%      0. 31%       5. 21%     89. 83%

Improvemen[ Cost 300%) 5 620, 000 5 8, 1] 1. 58 5 17, 160. 65 5 3, 539. 91 $   1, 893. 84 $   32, 304. 29 $ 556, 929. R

sz,6aa i,aaz z, iss asi iai a, oia aa,siz

19' AirportWay/ WBSR120kamps 1. 98%      4. 16%     0. 86%      02]%       7. 62%     85. 12%

Improvemen[ Cost 30%) 4,950,000 5 97, 969. 53 $ 205, 739. 89 $ 42. 440. 14 $  13, 256.91 S 377, 376. 80 $ 4, 213, 216. 73

49,904 979 2, 056 GZG 194 3, 836 G2, q15

20' Airport Way/ EB SR 120 Ramps 1. 96%      4. 12%     0. 85%      039%       7. 69%     84.99%

ImprovementCort 30%) S 4,950,000 $  97, 10745 $ 203,929.47 $ 42, 066. 68 $  19, 242.95 $  380, 463. 88 $ 4, 207, 189. 57

Foomote 1- Although mi[ igation funtls will be measured by the rost to mltigate the intersections listed above,[ he City may use those funds to Improve in[ erseRions in Lath

Please note that these locatlons tha[ are in the LGBPSP MMRP are no[ induded in Table 1: a) Harlan Fd/ lathrop 0.d; b) Sth St/ Lathrop Rd;
c I- 5/ Louise Ave interchange; and d) Howland Rd/ ouise Ave

These four( 4) locations wlll be atlded in a supplemental Table m be provided to[ he Ciry of Lathrop

SLSP tGePSP MC Crossroads OtherUthrap
Totalc with Phase 1 Imorovements

at SR 120/ Yosemi[ e Intetthan¢e f qq,505, 800 $  3, 253, 22B $  8, 254, 472 $ I 101, 035 $  1,705, 885 $  21, 212,041

731%     18. 55%     2. 48%      3. 83%      47. 66%

Totals wkh Phase 2lmorovemen[ S

at5R120lYOSemitelnteYManee   $ 46, 805,000 S 4, 312, 243 $  9, 3U9, 416 $ 1, 13], 913 $  1, 856, 656 $  21, 216,437

9.69%     2a. 92%     2. 55%      4. 17%      G7. 67%

TocalS with Ultimate Imorovements

at SR 120/ Yosem'rte 65. 605. 000 S 13, 060, 621 $ 18. 024. 175 $ 13H7: 989 $  3. 102. 155   21. 252,724

19.85%     27. 39%     2. 11%      A. 71%      32. 30%

56



Table B - 2

Water Facilities Cost

Total

Unit Estimated

We1121 Phase 2B Improvements Quantity Cost Cost

1 MG Storage Tank& Foundation 1 1, 200,000 1, 200,000

Booster Pump Station
Mechanical Improvements

Pump 4 20,000 80, 000

Motor 4 10,000 40,000

Cans 4 12,500 50,000

Piping arid Fittings 1 120,000 120,000

Valves 12 3, 000 36,000

Instrumentation 1 15, 000 15, 000

Seals 4 4,000 16,000

Pedestals 4 15, 000 60,000

Concrete Pad 1 30,000 30,000     .

Shade Structure 1 30,000 30,000

Electrical Improvements

Starters (VFD)  4 20,000 80,000

MCC 1 250,000 250,000

Modify Switchgear 1 150,000 150,000

Transformer 1 50,000 50, 000

Genset 1 250,000 250,000

Conductors and Conduits 1 30,000 30,000

Subtotal Construction Costs 2,487,000

Contingency 15. 0%   373, 050

Total Construction Costs 2,860,050

Soft Costs

Engineering, DDW Permitting 8. 0%   228, 804

Construction Management 8. 0%   228, 804

O& M Plan for DDW Pernutting 2,500

Total Soft Costs 460, 108

Total Project Costs 3,320 158

Source: MacKay& Somps; H20 Urban Solutions

57



Table B - 3

Storm Drainage Facilities Cost

South Lathrop Outfall Total

Unit Estimated

Facilities Description Unit Quantity Cost Cost

Site Clearing Each 1 10, 000 10,000

Excavation/BackfilUHauling/Final Grading CY 4,200 10 42, 000

Sheet Piles PCZ36 x 35 ft LF 140 1; 500 210,000

Dewatering Each 1 50,000 50,000

Silt Curtain LF 140 100 14,000

Concrete Pad and Thrust Blocks CY 20 800 16, 000

Storm Outfall Structure CY 75 1, 000  .       $ 75, 000

36' Butterfly Valve in Valve Box Each 6 28,000 168, 000

8" Vent Pipe Galvinized Steel Each 6 2, 000 12,000

36" Tideflex Check Valves Each 2 18, 000 36,000

36" Sch 30 Steel Pipe plus Fittings LF 1, 200 300 360,000

Steel Pipe Manifold Each 1 3, 000 3, 000

18' - 24" Rip Rap Material and Installation CY 900 300 270,000

10" Minus Rip Rap Material and Installation CY 150 200 30,000

Armoreflex Matt L-70 SF 1, 250 15 18, 750

Railings, Fence, and Bollards Each 1 4,000 4,000

Contractor Startup Lump Sum 5, 000

Subtotal Construction Costs 1, 323,750

Contingency 10. 0% 132,375

Total Construction Costs 1, 456,125

Soft Costs 20.0% 264,750

Total Project Costs 1 720 875

Source: MacKay& Somps

58



ITEM 4,4    -

ORDI9VA1lICE NO. 18- 9

Aill ORDIIVAIOICE OF THE CITY COUIVCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
AMENDING TITLE 10, CH PTER 10. 24, SECTION 10. 24.030 OF THE

LATHItOP MUIVICIPAL CODE TO 1 10DI Y 1 NO PAFtKING ZOIVE ON LATHROP
ItOAD BEC INNIIVG i4T THE lNESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY OF IMTERSTATE 5

AND PROCEEDIRIG APPROXIM ITEL1 8, 300' EAST ON BOTH SIDES OF
LATHI OP ROAD TO THE EASTERN CITY LIMITS

1A/ HEIBEAS, staff has identified a potential modification to the City' s designated
No Parking areas; and

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance amendment would meet the needs of the

traveling public and is consistent with the intended and planned use of Lathrop Road;
and

1NhIERE 4S, California Vehicle Code Section 22507 and Chapter 10. 24 of the

Lathrop Municipal Code authorize the City Council to create parking zones with
specific time limits in the City of Lathrop;

NOW,  THEREFOR,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHIZOP DOES
OIZDAIiV AS FOLLOVI/ S:

Section 1:

Section 10. 24. 030 is amended as follows:

Street Sicle Location

Lathrop Road Both Beginning at the centerline of Manthey Road then
westerly to the centerline of Golden Valley Parkway.

C  4,.,    t.,rl.. ., h..         I'       
y ....: r«- r- r- r« r

u-,,.I-,., o,.,. 1'    rl•..-,.,     ^ cnn ^

cn-rror vr s.r.77"Ql7'QTiT: vG r„fi'JCRTfE Ttl c+
I

7' V"Vt-liY

tlY T CI 17C7 L T

Lathrop Road Both Beginning at the west right-of-wa v of
In er°state 5, thence running easterly to the
eastern city lirnit_line, a distance of 8, 300 feet,
more or less

Section 2.  This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect
in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as
to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Ordinance No. 18- 389

59



Section 3.  -  Severabilitv.     If any section,  subsequent subdivision,  paragraph,

sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or invalidity
of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 4. - Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and
after the date of its passage.

Section 5. - Publication.   Within fifteen days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the

City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Ordinance, to be published in full accordance with
Section 36933 of the Government Code.

THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a meeting of the City Council of the
City of Lathrop on the 12t" 

day of February 2018, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED
at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on

12t'' day of March
2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:  '

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 18- 389

60



ITEM 4.5    ;

I

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       DECLARE CERTAIN VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE THEIR

DISPOSAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Declaring Certain Vehicles and
Equipment Surplus Property and Authorizing Their
Disposal

SUMMARY:

The City currently has one surplus vehicle, one flatbed trailer, and various furniture
and equipment which have either reached their useful life, have been replaced, or

the repair costs exceed their fair market value.  Most of the items are currently being
kept at the Corporation Yard taking up significant storage space. In order to clear out
some space, staff recommends these items to be auctioned, donated to a non- profit

organization, recycled with an approved agency, or discarded.

BACKGROUND:      

Pursuant to the City' s Surplus Policy, updated on December 1, 2014, by Resolution
14- 3848,  staff recommends that the items listed on Attachment " A" be declared

surplus property in accordance with this policy. All of these items have reached their
useful life, have been replaced, or the cost of repair exceeds their value. All of the
listed items are ready to be declared as surplus property.

According to City policy,  if the market value of the surplus items is greater than
5, 000, the Purchasing Officer shall present the listing of such assets to the City

Council for action regarding their declaration as surplus. If the items are valued at
less than $ 5, 000, City staff shall conduct a sale of the items. Per the policy the City
Council shall decide the disposition of unsellable items. It has been determined that
these items collectively could have a value greater than  $5, 000 and some of the

items may be unsellable.

Upon Council approval, vehicles will be sold at public auction by Nationwide Fleet
Services pursuant to an existing contract and the remaining items will be either be
donated to a non- profit organization, recycled with an approved agency, or discarded.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Pursuant to City policy, at least once a year each Department Head shall conduct a
review of inventory,  goods and supplies utilized by that department and shall
determine what items have become surplus.  City staff has gathered a list of surplus
items from all department's which are included in Attachment " A".   These surplus
assets have been reviewed and determined that their collective value could be greater

61



CITI( MA IAGER' S REPOI2T PAGE 2

MARGH 12, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL REGULAEt NIEETI IG

RESOLUTION DECL 4 FtING CEFtTAI I VEHICLE ND EQUIPNIENT SUItPLUS

PROPERTV AND AUTHORIZING THEIIt DISPOSAL

than $ 5, 000.  Also, once the surplus items are discarded, it will help each department
maintain storage space.

FISGAL IMP iCT:

Any net revenues from the sale of these items will be returned to the City' s general
fund.

ATTACli I I! ENTS:

A.  Surplus Inventory List
B.  Resolution declaring certain vehicles and equipm'ent surplus property and

authorizing their disposal

62



CITY MQ IVAGER' S ItEPORT PAGE 3

I IARCH 1, 20f8 CITY COUNCIL REC UL 4R MEETYIVG

RE90LUTIOIV DECLARING GERT/ IIV VEFlICI.ES A IVD EQIJIPMENT SURPLUS

PROPERTI AND AUTHORYZIfVG THEIR DISPOS 4L

APPROVe4LS:

O I
Tessie Nionjes Date

Management Analyst II

2 a I
Cari Jame Date

Director of in nce

2" 

Salvador IVavarrete Date

City Attorney

z• 3•`

S en Salvatore Date

City Manager

63



ATTACHMENT A

Surplus Inventory List
March 12, 2018

Surplus Type: fehicle/Other

Surplus Reason Codes: A-No longer needed B- Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to repair is higher

than value E- Damaged/ not working

Surplus

Reason

Code Description Year/Malce/ N9odel Vin/ Serial Number Quantity Dept.

B Vehicle 201 I/ Ford/ Crown Vic 2FABP7BV9BX1 19181 I LPS

Flatbed Trailer 200 I/ Dargo I D9BC I 829 I M414137 Pw

A U.S. Explosives/ Storage Box 2004 I LPS

Surplus Type: Equipment

Surplus Reason Codes: - No longer needed - Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to repair is higher

than value E- Damaged/ not working

Surplus

Reason

Code Description Year/Make/Model Vin/ Serial Number Quantity Dept

D 5 HP Compressor Baldor Motor/ CAT# M3218T I PW

D Hedgetrimmers Shindaiwa/ HT20- 31 I PW

D Chainsaw Stihl/ 029 I PW

D Soil compaction tool acker Jumping Jack/ BS60Y I PW

D VValk behind string trimmer riens/ ST622 I PW

D Walk behind string trimmer Gravely/ 9416104 I P

D Walk behind mower Snapper/ EH 18 I PW

D 2. 5HP air compressor Intersoll- Rand/ Rand 4000 I PW

Page 1 of 3

64



ATTACHMENT A

Surplus Inventory List
March 12, 2018

Surplus Type: Electronic

Surplus Reason Codes: A-No longer needed - Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to repair is higher

than value  - Damaged/ not working

Surp lus    
Reasbn       °     .  .  .  .  

Code Description           Year/Make%Nlodel          Vin I Seri'al Idumber Q uantity ` Dept

B Television 2004/ Sanyo I LPS

B Camcorder 1996/ Sony 236226 I LPS

B Camera 1996/ Olympus 1986335 I LPS

E Passport camera equipment Circa 2006/Sony 107839 I CM/ CC

Surplus Type: Furniture

Surplus Reason Codes: .- i lo longer needed - Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to repair is higher

than value E- Damaged/ not working

S,urplus
r      

iteason    y

Code             Description        Year/MakelModel         Vin/ Serial Number Quantity  Dept

A File cabinet— 2 drawers I ADMIN

A Folding chair rack- metal 2 PW

A Folding chairs - metal 25 PW

A Table - drafting I PW

A Hutch - cherry wood I PW

A Desk— L- shaped/ cherry wood I PW

A
Bookcase— 5 shelf/cherry

2 PW
wood

A
Bookcase— 2 shelf/cherry

I PW
wood

A Cherry wood two drawer PED Small filing cabinet 2 PW

A Small wooden cubbies 4 PW

Surplus Type: Furniture Continued-

Page 2 of 3

65



ATTACHMENT A

Surplus Inventory List
March 12, 2018

Surplus Reason Codes: A-No longer needed - Reached useful life C- Replaced D- Cost to r.epair is higher

than value  - Damaged/ not worl<ing

Surplus    r
w     .

Reason

C,ode    `   Description      Vear/M'alce/ Model      "    Vin./ Seria.l idumber ' Quaretity Dept

B Bookcase 7 CA

B File cabinet- wood I CA

B/ C Desk - faux wood Pre 2005 2 CM/ CC

B/ C Bookcase-4 shelves Pre 2005 5 CM/ CC

B/ C Bookcase- 2 shelves Pre 2005 I CM/ CC

B/ C Filing cabinet— 2 drawers Pre 2005 2 CM/ CC

A File cabinet— metal/ lateral 6 PW

A Chairs— rolling office 3 PW

B Chairs— conference room 2005 5 LPS

A Table— cherry wood/ round I PW

A Rolling metal — PED Small filing cabinet 10 PW

E Chair— task 2000 I LPS

B Desk unit 2 CA

Page 3 of 3

66



tE50LUTYON NO. 18-

a4 RESOLUTIOM OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATliROP
DECL/AItYNG CEI TAIiV \/ EHICLES 4ND EQUIPMENT SURPLU PitOPERTY AND

14UTHOFZIZIRlG THEIFZ DISPOSAL

WHEREA S, the City of Lathrop has a policy that allows for the disposal of
equipment and inventory with City Council approval; and

WHERE S, the City has surplus vehicles and equipment, which have reached
their useful life, are inoperable, or the cost of repairs exceed their value; and

WHEltE 1S, the City Council has reviewed the list of surplus items in which are
to be auctioned, donated to a non- profit organization, recycled, or discarded; and

N01A/, TFiEREFOR@,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council declares the
items, as listed in Attachment A", to be surplus property and authorizes the City
Manager to dispose of the surplus equipment and inventory.       

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March, 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 1 of 3

67



AT' ACFIM9EIVT a4

Surplus Type: Vehicle/Other

Desrt- S o¢ ri Yeae-/MaEce/ 1' 6oc 1      ,   / in i Se° ial Numb r  : Q antity'
Vehicle 01 I/ Ford/ Crown Vic 2FABP7BV9BX1 19181 I

Flatbed Trailer 2001/ Dargo I D9BC I 829 I M414137 I

U.S. Explosives/ Storage Box 2004

Surplus Type: Equipment

Clescr ptio-  .     '       ,     Xe r/iN kefMridel n f Se ia9 + I r iiber . :Qu ntitj+'
5 HP Compressor Baldor Motor/ CAT# M3218T I

Hedgetrimmers Shindaiwa/ HT20- 31

Chainsaw tihl/ 029

Soil compaction tool acker jumping jack/ BS60Y

Walk behind string trimmer riens/ ST622

Walk behind string trimmer Gravely/ 9416104

Walk behind mower Snapper/ EH 18

2. 5HP air compressor Intersoll- Rand/ Rand 4000

Surplus Type: Electronic

Descrrpt on.-. .     Year/Mal lMod l       ;    ar! eri.! Na, nriber Qu n4ity
Television 2004/ Sanyo

Camcorder 1996/ Sony 236226

Camera 1996/ Olympus 1986335 I

Passport camera equipment Circa 2006/ Sony 107839

Page 2 of 3

68



Surplus Type: Furniture

s , 

t'.esc'      .:  r tioi      lfearl' lalkelMad;ep      
r, r  ;     > p '     ,      V a f Sera I Our beir. Quant y;

File cabinet— 2 drawers I

Folding chair rack- metal 2

Folding chairs - metal 25

Table - drafting I

Hutch - cherry wood I

Desk— L- shaped/ cherry wood I

Bookcase— 5 shelf/cherry 2
wood

Bookcase— 2 shelf/cherry
wood

Cherry wood two drawer PED Small filing cabinet 2

Small wooden cubbies 4

Bookcase 7

File cabinet- wood I

Desk- faux wood Pre 2005 2

Bookcase-4 shelves Pre 2005 5

Bookcase- 2 shelves Pre 2005 I

Filing cabinet— 2 drawers Pre 2005 2

File cabinet— metal/ lateral 6

Chairs— rolling office 3

Chairs— conference room 005 5

Table— cherry wood/ round I

Rolling metal— PED mall filing cabinet I 0

Chair— task 000 I

Desk unit 2

Page 3 of 3

69



70



ITEM 4. 6

CITY MAIeIAGER' S REPOItT

MARCI-I 12, 2018, CITY COUfVCIL FSEGIJLAR MEETIMG

ITEM: APPIgO/ 4L OF FIRlAL M/ P AND SUBDIVYSION

IIWPRO/ EMENT i4GltEEMENT   ( SIA)   FOF   34

LOTS IN TRACT 3 30 VILLAGE  " H"  WITHIIV

E ST VILLAGE OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATIAN:       Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for

Tract 3830 Village  ' Fi"  vvithin East Village,

Totaling 34 Single Family Lots and a

Subdivision Improvement  . Agreerr ent with

River Islancls Development, LLC

SUIwMARY:

On June 1,  2015,  the City approved an amendment, to Vesting Tentative Map
VTM 3694), which included a Neighborhood Design Plan, Architectural Guidelines,

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) and Parks Master Plan for the East Village neighborhood

located west of the Community South River Bend ( CSRB) neighborhood.

The City approved the first final map for Village H on November 7, 2016 ( Tract 3829).
This proposed Final Map Tract 3830 is the second final map within the Village H area,
which will include ( 34) 48' x90' residential lots. Tract 3830 is the second phase for

Kiper Homes for Village H.   Kiper an existing River Islands builder,  currently

developing the 360 Lakeside neighborhood in the CSRB area ( Village G), as well as

Tract 3829 ( Beacon Bay). A Vicinity map, is included as Attachment B".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map 3830 and a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement   ( Attachment   C")   with River Islands

Development, LLC.      

BACKGItOUND:

The land for Tract 3830 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 approved

by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015 with updated conditions
of approval. Tract 3830,  as proposed by River Islands Development,  LLC  (" River

Islands")  as the subdivider,  is in compliance with the most current conditions of
approval.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off-site and on- site
improvements associated with the final map.  Improvements for Tract 3830 and the

balance of the Village H area are substantially complete; however, there are a few

items that are not yet finished. As a result, security ( performance bonds) were posted
with the approval of the Tract 3829 final map for all of Village H.

71



CYTY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MARCH 12, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR TRACT 3830, 34 SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS ( RIVER ISLANDS)

The SIA for Tract 3830 restates the obligations contained in the Tract 3829 SIA, since
the bonds posted with Tract 3829 remain valid and in full force and effect. The SIA
also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of Streets
and Public Improvements (" Off-site Agreement") that was first approved by the City
on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off-site Agreement is still valid for
certain improvements.   Tr.act 3830 will not trigger any additional off-site

improvements and the Off-site Agreement will apply to Tract 3830 as it has to all
previous final maps with no additional security for off-site. improvements.

Other Final Maps previously recorded within the East Village District have dedicated
public rights of way that provide access to the Tract 3830 area. This included the
extension of Marina Drive west of Somerston Parkway that was dedicated with the
final map for Tract 3829 which provides direct access to the neighborhood. Finally,
maintenance bonds associated with the public streets, utilities, landscaping and other
public improvements will be posted by River Islands as required by the City' s
subdivision ordinance after acceptance of the public improvements by the City.

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3829 as proposed by River
Islands Development, LLC (" River Islands"), as the subdivider, is in compliance with
the most current conditions of approval.

River Islands has paid all appropriate fees and completed some of the required public
improvements. Completion of off-site improvements that were required to serve the

CSRB area were guaranteed in the Off-Site Agreement approved by City Council on
September 30,  2013.  Performance and Labor/ Materials Bonds were provided to
guarantee completion of these improvements.  Additional guarantees for unfinished

work at the time of the final map approval. has been posted for the project as required
by the City' s su6division ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has substantially completed the street and utility improvements with
the entirety of Village H,  which includes associated tracts and will have the

improvements completed prior to the issuance of the first production home building
final permit in Tract 3830. Prior to acceptance of public improvements within Tracts
3829, 3830 and adjacent Tract 3903, River Islands shall provide a 10% maintenance

bond to guarantee the full improvements ( completed and uncompleted) for one year.
River Islands has provided the tract map, the tract improvement plans, all required
documents and all fees for Tract 3830, as required in VTM 3694 conditions of approva'I
including but not limited to;

72



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MARCH 12, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR TRACT 3830, 34 SINGLE

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS ( RIVER ISLANDS)

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.     Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.     Performance Bonds - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Miscellaneous Improvements, provide with Final Map Completed
3829

4.      Labor and Material Bonds - Uncompleted Landscaping
and Miscellaneous Improvements, provide with Final Completed

Ma 3829

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.     Street Light , Joint Trench, Plans Completed

7.     Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review_Committee

12.   Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.   Submitted Guarantee of Title Completed

14.   Escrow Instructions Completed

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check, Inspection fees Paid

3.       Record retention fee Paid

4.       Sierra CIu6 Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council.  The guarantee is in the

form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.       

73



CITI( MAIdAGER' S ItEPOR7'     Page 4

NAItCH 12, 201, CITIf COUNCIL I EGULAR MEETING

A SUBDI!/ ISION IfNPROVEMEIVT AGREER IENT FOR TR 4CT 3 30, 34 SI IGLE

F N9ILY RESIDEWTI/ L LOTS ( ItIVER ISLA IVDS)

Extensive off-site improvements to serve this Tract have already been completed,
including construction of levees,  participation in construction of a Wastewater

Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility)  and related storage ponds and

sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility infrastructure
to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are required to

serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off-site Agreement approved by the City
Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded,  River Islands must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions ( Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club
are made, under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development
fees, and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the
CFD' s for maintenance. River Islands is also providing funds necessary to defray any
staff time required to process their request.

TT 4C I- O M E IVTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3830 Village ' H" within East Village

District,  Totaling 34 Single Family Lots and Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.  Tract 3830 Village " H" Vicinity Map

C.  Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands ( Community South River Bend)  River Islands Development,  LLC, a

California Limited Liability Company, for Tract 3830 Village " H" within East

Village

D.  Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3830 Village ' H"

74



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

MARCH 12, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR TRACT 3830, 34 SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS ( RIVER ISLANDS)  

APPROVALS:

2 -2/
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

2?
Cari Ja e Date

Finance Di ctor

Z.- z6 g
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

a Zg• 8
St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

75



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3830 IN VILLAGE H", TOTALING 34

SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map ( VTM) No.  3694 with Conditions of Approval for a residential and commercial

development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) and the

River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3830, the proposed subdivision, is part of the East Village

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 34 lots covered by VTM
No. 3694, located on the west side of the San Joaquin River, north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS, in its review of all tracts within Village H, including Tract 3830, the
Stewart Tract Design Review Committee recommended approval of Tract 3830 on
October 24, 2016; and

WHEREAS, River Islands Development, LLC, has completed or has guaranteed

completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3830,  as identified on the

approved improvement plans,  and has completed or guaranteed completion of all

required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS,  a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and
River Islands Development,   LLC,   and provision of security by River Islands

Development, LLC, for unfinished and deferred improvemerits are required prior to

final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by River
Islands Development, LLC, and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the River Islands

Development, LLC, obligation to maintain all improvements and repair or correct any
defective work; and

WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

76



WHEREAS,  off-site improvements were guaranteed with the Dedication,

Inspection and Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements ( Off-site Agreement),

approved by City Council on September 30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of VTM
3694 required for approval of Final Map 3830 have been met,  including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and

Off-Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3830
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM No. 3694, is technically correct, and
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS,   River Islands Development,   LLC,   will satisfy the escrow

requirements to fund the Settlement Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for
Tract 3830; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not ,required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Co uncil of the City of
Lathrop that makes and accepts the following actions:

1.       That the Final Map for Tract 3830 Village " H" is hereby approved as submitted
as part of the public record as has been filed with the City Clerk.

2.       That the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute and file with
the City Clerk a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC, in substantially the form as attached to the March 12, 2018 staff
report.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this
day of March, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS O FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

77



a TT14CHME101T ••••

t'

w. a.-      .,   w  -- -   ,'
m..__._.

MARINA DRIVE

10 29 30

a 

11 28 31        

I      
9 I

T AC 3 2     r.:      
z      '13' 338

O'
14 25 34   {     

i `    7

w 15 24 35     I Ws

i6 23 3      I

Y

j 1      ,
17 22       37     I

O

18 21 W 38   !  ,

I'       
J f  

i.  .       .  
9 a 39

TRACT 3 30
1     GRESHAM STREET

w
w,.,  : . h E       a:.

oC

AKE      _;    TRACT 3903 Y
E       

s; Q    .  Q

EMERSON STREET m o
t'

il w

h       a o
cn

O

wc     
z

3         w I o
J

2        u

o

o    .TRACT 3 2
m

yj i

3.  .,;   v., .,     .;,<  . t   .       , .   i

ACADEMY DRIVE
r_.    f-___.v---:  .   _  .   -      

ADJACEIVT TRACTS TO
17     ' 8 19 2 J , r„  21 2     23         1' RACT 3830

1      MARCH 201

78



r
A7TACHMENT " C"

T--  -    -- --       

JI
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS (COMMUNITY SOUTH RIVER BEND) RIVER ISLANDS

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY FOR

TRACT 3830 VILLAGE "H", 34 RESIDENTIAL LOTS

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th
day of March, 2018, by and between

the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")

and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its September 30, 2013, meeting, the City Council approved an Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication of Easement for Roadway Purposes and approved an Agreement for Dedication,
Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements for certain backbone roads and

improvements, including Lakeside Drive that provides initial public right of way access to
Tract 3873, as well as other tracts within the Community at South River Bend neighborhood which
connects to the East Village neighborhood.

C.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CTTY's Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3830. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tracts

3830 and the adjacent tracts of 3829 and 3903 as part of the Village H area of the East Village

District of River Islands. The unfinished portion of improvements total $ 370,400 and both

performance and labor and materials ( payment) bonds as required by the Lathrop Subdivision
Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will remain posted as outlined in, this Tract 3830
Subdivision Improvement Agreement.    

D.       At its September 30, 2013, meeting, the City Council approved an Irrevocable Offer of
Dedication of Easement for Roadway Purposes and approved an Agreement for Dedication,  •
Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements for certain backbone roads and

improvements, including Lakeside Drive that provides indirect public right of way access to Tract
3830, along with other segments of right of way associated with tracts previously filed acljacent to
Tract 3830. Tract 3830 Final Map shall dedicate those roads not dedicated with previous tracts in
the East Village District and not covered by the Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Easement for
Roadway Purposes for streets serving as access to Tract 3873.

79



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 2

E.       SUDIVIDER along with other required infrastructure for Tracts 3829 and 3903.
Improvement plans and street light plans prepared by O' Dell Engineering, Inc., have already been
approved by City. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm drainage, street light and joint
trench improvements (hereinafter" Improvements") have been only partially constructed as part of
the required infrastructure for Tracts 3829, Tract 3830 and adjacent Tract 3903 and the security as
outlined in this Agreement is required to remain in place.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of CITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CTTY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows: 

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the East Village neighborhood,

to the limits identified on Exhibit A, including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above-referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the

CTTY' S Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the
California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the first dwelling unit constructed in Tract, 3830 that is
conveyed to a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 3830 associated with

the filing of Tract 3830 or prior to the completion and occupancy of the first production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 3903, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy shall be documented by
CTTY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY or its agents shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
farth in Paragraph 1 above, CTTY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDNIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

80



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 3

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements. in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As previously required by the Subdivision
Improvement Agreement for Tract 3829, prior to acceptance of the Improvements, SUBDIVIDER

shall deposit with the City Engineer a Maintenance Bond in the amount of$ 37, 040 equal to 10%
of the estimated cost of the Improvements for the entire area  ($ 370,400),  to insure

SUBDIVIDER' S repair and maintenance of the Improvements in accordance with the terms of

this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be released at the end of the one ( 1) year guarantee

period, provided there are no claims against it are then outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recital D were required to

provide access and required utilities to Tract 3830 and are associated with adjacent tracts as

otherwise described in this Agreement, as well as backbone roads associated with the Agreement

for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public Streets and Improvements referenced in Recital

D, the security required by the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public
Streets and Improvements shall remain in place until the backbone improvements associated with

that agreement are complete and accepted by CITY or as is further described by the conditions
below:

a. Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit D, is guaranteed by a performance bond. Full
improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed prior to release of security
previously posted by SUBDIVIDER.

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement or fails to repair, replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may but is not required to proceed to complete
and/ or repair, replace or reconstruct the Improvements; either by itself or by contract for such
service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein as is
necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete,  repair,  replace and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CTTY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials, repair and

maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER.

81



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 4

In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an action to compel performance of this
Agreement or to recover costs of completing such improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall pay
reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in
connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are partially complete, SUBDIVIDER posted Performance and
Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the deferred and unfinished improvements associated with

Tracts 3829, 3830 and 3903 as included and described in Exhibit E of this Agreement. The amount

of the performance bond previously posted is equal to 120% of the amount of unfinished and

deferred improvements as shown in Exhibit E ($ 370,400 X 120°Io =$ 444,480—performance bond

amount) as indicated in Recital C. The corresponding labor and materials bond posted was equal
to 50% of the performance bond amount($ 444,480 X 50°Io=$ 222,240) also as indicated in Recital

C.  Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on
Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein with a new certificate of insurance required for

Tract 3830.

10.      Any alterations made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part hereof. The above referenced sureties hereby
consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDNIDER
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CTTY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on or.about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
cominissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by or acting as agent for SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDNIDER' S contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall at its own cost and
expense defend any and all actions, suits or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CTTY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' S
performance or non-performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied or approved any

82



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop•for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 5

plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not and shall
not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold
harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CTTY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered or alleged to have been suffered by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph regardless of whether or not CTTY
has prepared, supplied or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors
are or shall be considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.   

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CTTY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts (" CFD") to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements which may require that acceptance of improvements. by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CTTY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CTTY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity. for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied, and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDNIDER sha11 not assign this Agreement without the priar written consent of CITY.     

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' S expense, obtain and maintain all necessary
pernuts and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction, SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

83



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 6

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3830.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the  ;
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last day. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following business day.

J Venue. In the event either party brings suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of such
action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin.

84



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 7

ATTACHMENT5:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 3830

EXHIBIT B ADJACENT TRACTS TO THE TRACT 3830 AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:   COHEN/PARADISE/STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   UTILITY CAPACITY GUARANTEES

IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this th day
of March, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Stephen J. Salvatore

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM      

BY:

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC,

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso, President

SUBDIVIDER"

85



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 8

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP - TIaACT 3830

86



TRACT 3830
OWNER'S STATEMENT RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

PROJECT SITE
THE UNDERSIGNED, OOES HEREBY STATE THAT THEY ARE THE OWNERS OF ALL THE IAN  VILLAGE H 5

ELINEATE AND EMBRACED WITHIN 7HE E%TERIOR BOUNDARY LINE OF THE HEREM EMBODIED R ER LAiHROP RD
FINAL MAP ENTRLED,' 7RACT 3830, RNER ISlANDS, PHASE 18, VILIAGE H", CIN OF LATHROP, A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

A

DF
ILINC OF TH STIFNALFMAPH N( THESOFCE OFDTHE COUNtt RECORDERTOFTSANPJOAO

NION
A SUBOINSION OF PARCELS 1 ANO 2 OF TRACT 3929( 42 M& P 77) c HFN

COUNIY, CALIFORNIA.   
CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt, CALIFORNIA R      

a LOUISE AVEFEBRUARY 2018 SqN
THE UNOERSIGNED OOES HEftEBY DEOICATE AN EASEMENT TO THE CIIY OF IATHROP FOR PUBLIC Q      %`

6i ti2/ iPoGHT-0E–WAY PURPOSES, THOSE PORPONS OF SND LAN S OESIGNATED ON SAIO MAP AS
yP ;      z

BROADWELL COl1RT AND KERRY COURT, AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP. z 
THE UNOERSIGNED OES HEREBY DE ICATE TO THE CIiY OF LATHROP A NON– E%CWSIVE E N G 1 N E E fZ 1 N G p

RD i

EASEMENT TOCEfHER WITH THE RIGHT TO CONSiRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAIN AIN,
POLES, WIRES, CABLES, PIPES, AND CONDUITS AND THEIR APPURTENANCES UPON, OVER AND AP9p

T 120

UTIl1N EASEMENT). 

OF LAIJD AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP ESIGNATED AS P. U. E.'( PUBLIC
W

f

r       P\`0.^
0   !-

P

THE UN ERSIGNED OOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE CIIY OF LATHROP, IN FEE, PARCELS A, B, D,  QP E
AND F, FOR OPEN SPACE PURPOSES, MCLUDING PU9LIC UTILITIES, AND APPURTENFNCES ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER S      a
THERETO, FOR THE BENEFR OF THE PUBLIC, AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP.  J

THE UNDERSIGNED OOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE CRY OF LATHROP, IN FEE, PARCEL C FOR A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLEfING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFlES ONLY THE OS
PARK PURPOSES, AND APPURTENANCES THEREfO, FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC, AS SHOWN I ENTItt OF THE IN IVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS
ON THIS FINAL MAP.      ATfACHED. AND NOT THE TRUTHFUWE55, ACCURACY, OR VALI IN OF THAT DOCUMENT.

S1

GRANT LWE RD
THE UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE CRY OF IATHROP, IN FEE, PARCEL E FOR

STA7E OF CALIFORNIA       5

U
OPEN SPACE PURPOSES, INCLUD NC PUBLIC UTILITIES AND SANITARY SEWER FACILITIES, AN  

COUNIY OF SAN JOApUINAPPURTENANCES THEREfO, FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC, AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL MAP.

THE UNOERSICNED OOES HEREBY RELINOUISH TO THE CIIY OF LATHROP ALL ABUTTERS R CHT OF
qNNOTARY PUBIIC, PERSONALLY APPFARED,

BEFORE ME,      

WHO

VICaNITYAMAP
ACCESS TO LOT 5 ALONG THE LOT LME AS INDICATED BY THE SYMBOL J////// AS SHOWN
ON THIS FINAL MAP.     PRDVED TO ME ON THE BA515 OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5) WHOSE NAME( 5)

IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWlEOGED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY
THE UNOEftSIGNED OOES HEREBY RESERVE PARCEL 1 FOR FIITURE DEVELOPMENT.       EXECUTEO THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR AUTHORRED CAPACITYQES), AN THAT BY HIS/ HER/ THEIR

SiGNANRE( S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON( 5), OR THE EMITY UPON BEH.4LF OF WHICH THE SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT
PERSON( S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.

7HI5 MAP CONFORMS TO VES7ING TENTATIVE MAP N0. 3694 APPROVEO BY THE PLANNING COMIAISSION.
OWNER: RIVER ISLANOS EVELOPMENT, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILItt COMPANY.     I CERTIFY UNDER PENALN OF PERJURY UNOER THE IAWS OF THE SiATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE

FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.      DATED THIS_ OAY OF p01_.

WITNESS MY HANO:

BY:NAME:   SUSAN ELL' OSSO DATE
SIGNATURE:ITS:    PRESIDENT
NAME( PRIM):

PRINCIPAL COUNN OF BUSINE55:      REBECCA SCHMIDT, COAIMUNITY OEVELOPMENT DIRECTOft

MY COMMISSION NUMBER:
CIiY OF LAiNROP

MY COMMISSION IXPIRES:   
ATED THIS DAY Of 2017.

OLD REPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY, AS TRUSTEE, UNDER THE DEED OF TRUST RECORDED OECEMBER CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT
22, 2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 160886, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNN.

I, GLENN GEBHARDT, HEREBY STATE THAT I AM THE CI7Y ENGINEER OF THE CIN OF LATHROP,
BY:  CAIJFORNIA AN THAT I HAVE EXAMINED THIS FlNAL MAP OF' YRACT 39J0, RIVER ISIANDS,

E PHASE 1B, VILLACE H", CfIY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA, ANO THAT THE SUB NISION SHOWN
TS:       ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)       

HEREON IS SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE VESTING TEMATIVE MAP N0.
3694, AND ANY APPROVE ALTERATIONS THEREOF. I FURTHEft STATE THAT 1H15 FINAL MAP

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFlCER COMPLEfING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFlES ONLY THE COMPLIES WITH ALl APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CIN OF LqTHROP, AND ANY
I ENTfIY OF THE IN IVIOUAL WHO SIGNED THE OOCl1MENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS AMEN MENTS THEREfO, APPUCABLE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THE VESTING TENiATNE

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT AITACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTNFUWESS, ACCURACY, OR VAL1DItt OF THAT DOCUMENT.     MAP

I, TERESA VARGAS, CITY CLERK AND CLERK OF THE CIN COUNCIL OF THE Cltt OF LATHROP,   ATED THIS     AY OF 201_.     eROFEss/pN
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 00 HEREBY STATE THAT THE HEREM EMBODIED MAP ENTITLED' TRACT

COUMY OF SLANOJOAOUIN     p4v
C'

y
3830, RNER ISLANDS, PHASE 18, VILLAGE H", Cltt OF IATHROP, CALIFORNIA, CONSISTMG OF
EIGHT( B) SHEETS, THIS STATEMENT WAS PRESEMED TD SAID CIN COUNCIL, AS PROVI ED BY ON 201 BEFORE ME,   No.} y681LAW, AT A REGULAR MEEfING THEREOF, HEL ON THE_ OAY OF A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,     WHO GLENN GEBHARDT, R. C. E 34681

9

201_, AND THAT SAID CIN COUNCIL DID THEREIIPON BY RESOLUTION N0.  
PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIOENCE TO BE THE PERSON( S) WHOSE NAME( 5)       CITY ENGINEER OF THE CIIY OF IATHROP, CALIFORNIA

RECORDATOEN, AND ACCEPTEDAONABEHALF OF THEPCIttEOF LAHROPAFOft PUBLIC USE, STHE SHE/ THEY F PIS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE 9 o A o
DEDICATION OF ALL PUBLIC UTILIN EASEMENTS, PARCELS A THROUGH F, AND THE E% ECUTED iHE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACITY( IES), AND THAT BY HIS/ HER/ THEIR
RELINQUISHMENT OF ACCESS RIGHTS TO LOT 5 ALONG THE LOT LME AS INDICATED 8Y THE SIGNATURE( 5) ON THE INSTRl1MEM THE PERSON( 5), OR THE ENTItt UPON BEHALF OF WHICH TME
SYMBOL///////, AND REJECTE THE OFFER OF DEOICATION OF ALl ROADWAYS AS SHOWN ON PERSON( S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMEN7.      

RECORDER'S STATEMENTSAI MAP UNT4 THEIR IMPROVEMENTS HAVE 9EEN COMPLEfE IN ACCOROANCE WRH CHAPTER 16,
TITLE 16. 16 OF THE CIIY OF IATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE.       I CERTIFY UNDER PENALIY OF PERJURY UNDER. THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE

FlLED THIS DAY OF 207_, AT__ M.FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRl1E AND CORRECT.      
IN' BOOK OF MPPS AN PlATS, AT PAGE AT THE REQUEST OF       I FURTHER STATE THAT ALL BONDS AS REOUIRED BY lAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WITHIN MAP HAVE
OLD REPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY.BEEN APPROVEO BY THE CIN COUNCIL OF LA7HROP AND FILED IN MY OFFlCE ITNE55 MY HAND:

FEE:$
SIGNATURE:

NAME( PftINT):
TERESA VARGAS

PRINCIPAL COUN7Y OF BUSWESS:
CITY CLERK AN CLERK OF THE Cltt COUNCIL OF THE CIiY OF IATHROP, COUMY OF SAN MY COMMISSION NUMBER:       gy_JOAOUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA MY COMMISSION E%PIRES   STEVE J. BE510LARIOES, ASSISTANT/ DEPUtt RECORDER

ASSESSOR– RECOROER– COUMY CLERK
SAN JOAOUIN COUN17, CALIFORNIA

p
SHEET 1 OF c

87



NOTES TRACT 3830
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

PER CRY OFRIAHTROPMMUNICIPAL CO E OF ORDINANCES. TITLE 15, CHAPTER 15. 4804, THE C17Y VILLAGE H
OF IATHROP PERMITS OPERATION OF PROPERLY CON UCTED ACRICULNRAL OPERATIONS WITHIN
THE CI17 LIMITS, INCLUOING THOSE THAT UTILIZE CHEMICAL FERTILIZERS AND PESTICI ES. YOU ARE A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING
HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE PROPER7Y YOU ARE PURCHASING MAY BE LOCATED CLOSE i0

A SUB IVISION OF PARCELS 1 AND 2 OF iRACT 3829( 42 M@P 71)
AGRICULTURAL LANDS AND OPERATIONS. YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO INCONVENIENCE OR

Cltt OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COl1NiY, CALIFORNIA
ISCOMFORT ARISING FROM THE LqWFI1L AND PROPER USE OF AGRICUITURAL CHEMICALS AND

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS FE8Rl1ARY 2018
PESTICIOES AND FROM OTHEft AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMRAlIONS,
WLTIVATION, PLOWING, SPRAYING, IRRIGATION, PRUNING, HARVESTINC, BURNING OF AGRICULTURAL

PI1RSIlANT TO SECPON fi6436 OF 7HE CALIFORNIA SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE SIGNANRES OF THE FOLLOINNC PARTIES
WASTE PRO IICTS, PROTECTION OF CROPS AND ANIMALS FROM EPREDATION, AN OTHER

HAYE BEEN 0611T1ED:
ACTNITIES WHICH MAY GENERATE 115T, SMOKE, NOISE, ODOR, RODEN7S ANO PE5T5. BE AWARE

RECWMED ISLANDS LANU COMPANY, RESERVAlION FOR OIL GAS, MMEftALS, AN OTHER HYIIROCARBON SUBSTANCESAL50, THAT iH15 PROPERTY MAY 6E LOCATED ADJACENT 70 AGRICULTURAL OPERATIONS OUTSIOE
LYING BELOW A EP1H OF 500 FEET, PER DOCUMENT NUMBER 20 01- 0 4 6177, S. J. C. R.

THE CIT7' S JURISDICTION. CONSEQUENTLY, DEPENDING ON THE LOCATION OF YOUR PROPERtt, IT
p, pUBLIC U LITY EASEM, ENT PER iRACT 3829( 42 M& P 71) M FAVOR OF 7HE CITY OF LATHROP, S. J. C. R.   

N G 1 N E E fZ 1 N G
MAY BE NECESSARY THAT YOU BE PREPARE TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVEMENCES OR DISCOMFORT
AS NORMAL AND NECESSARY ASPECT OF LIVING IN AN AGRICULTURALLY ACTIVE REGION.

2.  A SOILS REPORT ENTITLED" GEOTECHNICAL EXPLORATION, RNER ISLAN S PHASE 1, LATHROP,   
CALIFORNW", REFERENCED AS PROJECT N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 ANO ATED JULY 29, 2005, HAS BEEN
PREPARE FOR THIS PRQIECT BY ENGEO, INCORPORATED, JOSEF J. TOORE, G. E. N0. 2677, AND
IS ON FlLE WITH THE CITY OF LATHROP.

3.  ' TRACT 3830, RNER ISLANDS, PHASE 1B, VILLAGE H", CONTAINS: 34 RESI ENTIAL LOTS, AND 6
LEffERED PARCELS, CONTAINING 5. 91 ACRES, MOftE Oft LE55, MCLUOING ROA WAY$ THAT ARE
BEING OEDICATED BY TH6 FINAL MAP; AND PARCEL 1 CONiAINING 1. 84 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,
ALL AS SHOWN ON SHEETS 6 THROUCH 8 HEREIN.( PlEASE REFER TO THE AREA SUMMARY TABLE
BELOW):  I 3 Z

i w  - a2 on
TRACT 3830 AREA SUMMARY

G  v

TRAG7p362B3F78)    
PARCEL2 W¢  Im

34 RESIOENPAL L0T5, Z TRACT 3829( R13) O a  "'
PARCElS A 7HROUGH F, AND 5. 91 AC3 PARCEL B IRiil u i W

STREET OEDICATIONS    I  =  z 63'( R4) J
PARCEL 1; RESERVED FOR FUNRE 1. 84 AC3 3         EAST 296. 70'( B)       

v

DEVELOPMENT
EAST 467.95'( R13)( CALC)

TOTAL 7.75 ACf
M

R 7J

z  

55   __ 296. 70___ 93'( RS)       
ACADEMY DRIVE

f)      
8. 00'( RI1) 

f
EAST 317, 65(M- M)( R11)( ft13)       EAST 444, 70'( M- M)( R11)( R73)       EAST 429.00' 

EAST 280.00'( R11)    -  

o   (

M- M)( RS)
4.  BASED ON INFORMATION COMAWED IN THE PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT OROER NIIMBER

o      

ACADEMYDRIVE
1211043%X%- KS( VERSION%), DATED XX XX, 2018, PROVI ED BY OLD REPUBLIC TITLE n o
COMPANY.

Y   e
PARCEL A     

I   

wm
TFACT 3875    N TAAC7 3827 IA81

W
p 7RAC7 3627 IR9)     

a  

z,

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT IZ 3    W

I, LAWRENCE' GOSSEff, HEREBY SiATE THAT I HAVE IXAMINED THIS FlNAL MAP OF' TRACT 3830, RNER
ISLANDS, PHASE 1B, VILLAGE H', CIN OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA, AND THAT THE SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON m w DETAILA 4'

COMPLIES WITH ALL THE PftOVI510N5 OF CHAPTER 2 OF TNE CALIFORNIA SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, AS AMEN ED,   NOT TO SCALE
ANO THAT THIS FlNAL MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.

DATED THIS DAY OF p01_       

poQROFI55IpNq
s+    

f,

uWRENCE coSSeii, P. E. 3ise5 No. aiss5  '"       
LINEANDCUHVETABLESFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEETS2THROUGH40NLY

LWE TABLE LWE TABLE CURVE TAB E
y CIVi Qf 0( CP       lWE  IRECiION LENGiH UNE d OIRECPON LENCIH CIIRVE RAOIUS DELTA LENGTH

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
EAST o«. o      , z N< 5•oo•oo°w 35.36'       Ct 350.00' 38Y5' S1° 233J4'

L2 EAST 317. 65'      L13 N75' 09 15E 49. 73'       C2 73.00' 136' 70' 43" 173. 93'
THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIREC110N AND IS BASE UPON A FlELO SURVEY IN
CONFORMANCE WITH THE REOUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AN LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST L3 EAST 280.00'    C3 73.00'  9' 03' S8'  102. 01'
OF RNER ISLANDS EVELOPMENT, LLC, ON AUGUST 1, 2016. I HEREBY STATE ALL THE MONUMENTS ARE OF THE
CHAFACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED OR THAT THEY WILL BE SET IN THOSE POSIT ONS BEFORE L4 NORiH 195, 00'    C4 73.00  56' 26' 45'  71. 92'
DECEMBER 31, 2020, AND THAT THE MONUMENTS ARE, OR THAT THEY WILL BE. SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THIS
SURVEY i0 BE REfRACED, AND THAT THIS FlNAL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS 70 THE CONDITIONALIY APPROVED 5 NORTH 562. 00'    CS 87.00'  239522°  35. 31'
TENTATNE MAP.

L6 EAST 93.00'
DATED iH15 OAY OF p01_.  AN

y{
CRA 0SGL

U EAST 351J0.  

xo. nee j LB EAST 644.60'

D7L4N CRAWFOR, P. LS. NO 788 p 9 EAST 412.02'

r

9fOFCA f
P?

P

L10 EAST 675. 0

n Nasroo'oo' e az. aa'  

SHEET 2 OF 

88



REFERENCES

TRACT 3830R  RECORD OF SURVEY FIIED AUGUST 4. 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, PAGE 142, AS CORREC7E BY CERPFICAIE OF CORRECTION

R2)  GRANTODEED

RELOROEDOAPRILD
CU2015T ASMONR 20 55 04fi193, S. J. C. ft.(

35 SURVEYS 142)  BASIS OF BEARINGS
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 BiHE BEARING OF' EASY BEiWEEN FOUND MONUMEMS ALONG THE MONUMENT LME OF ACADEMY DRIV'c AS

R3)  7RACT 3704, FlLED DECEMBER 20, 2013, IN BOOK 42 OF IAAPS AND PLATS, PACE 4, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 4) SHOWN ON 7RACT 3791, FlLED IAAY 8, 2015, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 36, OFFlCIAL RECORDS VILLAGE H
R4)  7RACT 3796, FlLED FEBRUARY 27, 2015, IN BOOK 42 OF IAAPS AND PLA75, PAGE 3, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 70) OF THE COUNTV OF SAN JOAOUIN, WAS TANEN AS THE BASIS OF BEARWGS SHOWN aN 1HIS MAP( ZONE 3,
RS)  T2ACT 3791, FlLED MAY 8, 2015, IN BOON 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 36, S. J. C. R.( 42 M@P 76)     NA 83). ALL DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GROUND OISTANCES.

R6)  CRANT DEE RECOR ED MARCH 30, 2001, AS D, N. 20a1- 04fi177, S. J. C. R. 
A PORTION OF RANCH EL PESCA ERO, BEING

NOTES A SUBDIVISION OF PARCELS 1 AND 2 OF TRACT 3829( 42 MkP 71)
R7)  7RACT 3876, FlLED MARCH 31, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 56, S. J. GR.( 42 M& P 56)      CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNiY, CALIFORNIA

RB)  7RACT 3873, FlLE APRIL 15, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLA75, PAGE SB, S. J. C. R.( 42 IAhP 58)   SEE SHEET 2 FOR AODITIONAL NOlES, AND FOR THE 11NE TABLE AN CURVE TABLE OF COURSES SHOWN ON FEBRUARY 4018

Rg  TRACT 3827, FlLED MAY 24, 2016, IN BOON 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 61, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 61);    SNEETS 2 THROUGH 4 ONLY.

CERIIFICAiE OF CORRECTIONS RECOROED JUNE 2Q 2016, AS DOCUMENi NUMBER 2016- 073134, AND RECORDED
AUGUST 5, 2016, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 091263, S. J. C. R, EASEMENTS

R70) ACT 3B2B, FlLED AUGUST 24, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 65, S. J.C. R.( 42 M& P 65)
CER7IFICAiE OF CORRECTION RECOROED Al1GlI5T 31, 2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 102979, S. J. C. R.  O1 PUBLIC llTllltt EASEMENT PER TRACT 3829( 42 M& P 71), S. J. C. R.     N G 1 N E f{1 N G   

R11) 1RACT 3832, FlLED AUGUST 24, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLA75, PAGE 66, S. J.C. R.( 42 IA& P 66)   
N

R12) 7RACT 3834, FlLED OECEMBER 21, 2016, IN fi00N 42 OF MAPS AN PLATS, PAGE 72, S. J. C. R.( 42 MAP 74)      
RI3) 1RACT 3829, FlLED OECEMBER 21, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AN PLATS, PAGE 71, S. J.C. R.( 42 M& P 71)   

O       R19) TRACT 3895, FlLED JUNE 24 2017, N BOOK 42 OF MAPS AN PLA7S, PAGE 89, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 89)      PARCEL I I
0 10'  200'      4 0'

SCALE: 1'= 200'7RACT 3076 k71
rALIFIq LLc

pARCEL Iz IMPERIAL BIVE I LOT a
Tw" T 3a s' R7i

L9( M    e_     -  - -  D. N. 2075- 046191

BOUNDARY SHEETL10( M- M)( R14) R11)      R11)     L7( ft11)     

y,     
E45T 1173. 00'(! A- AI)( R3)( R4)

l=-     -- f--    1  -     --       ----     oe T`  MARINA RIVE
ARI A filV

YRACY 3d32 LOT E I

q
N

IR111 I
IIk31

ITRACT 3895 Q PARCEL E

IR14)      ;   IRII)   

I I I LEGENDz mo BALSAMCOIIRT
PARCELI

TflACT3B29( fi13)     PARCEL2 I SEE SHEET 4 I      O FOUND MONUMENT STAMPEO" Pl5 7788' PER( RJ)

A w 0. 51 AC2 Tf1ACT3829( R13)   
I           I      . n' FOIlNO MONUTAENT STAMPE° PLS 7788' PER( RS)

o I
Z4 A*     u'o FOIIN AIONUTAENT STAMPEO" PLS 7788' PER( R9)

BAryTA SCHOOL
3 4 RON PIPE W PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7789' TO BETRACT 3a95 PARCEL A

I I      D. N. 2011- 1262b8 I      • 
IR141 IRIII Q2        SET PER( R11, UNLESS O7HERW15E SHOWN

AMESBURYCAl1RT CRYSTAL LAKE 4 I I    }{ fOl1NU MONUMENT STAMPED° PLS 7788' PER( R13)

TRACT 3031
KE  a I? I    MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R4)

143 MhP

I o I N    
MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R3)

161
PARCEL E

PARCEL F IR131 f FOUND MONll1AENT STAlAPEO" PLS 7789' PER( R11)
IRIII

O I- I    1 NUMENT TO BE SET PER( ftl4J
N €

3. 00' WITNESS CORNER( W. C.), MEASl1RE0 ALONC LOT UNE,
HARTFOfi COURT

I
I z

I
I
z

m RA IAL LME OR PERPENDICIILAR TO STREET CENTERIJNE AS

iRACT 3031
NOIED, 3/ 4" x 24' IRON PIPE W/ PLASTIC PLUC' PLS 7708'

143 MhP I I gN{rA SCHOOL I
200.00'( R1)     MEASURE AN RECOftD OATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

16
SEE DETAIL A

D. N. 2a11- 12s257

I
ON SHEET 2 I I I I     (

p       DENOIES REiERENCE( ft1)-
SEE REFERENCE LIST ON THIS SHEE7

PARCEL B
M- M)       MONUMENT TO MONUMENi

tRt l l I I I      ( ftJ RA IAL BEARING

F
C1( M- M)( R11)    -   I I      (

T) 10TAL

R) ACADEMYDRIVE B) BOUNDARY

q BASIS OF BEARINGS
Jr-    -l--- l       O      EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER( SEE 1HIS SHEEn

Cj I
L2( M- M)( R11)       U( I- M)( R11)  EAST 429. 00'( M- M)( RS)     EAST 744.00'( M- IA)( RS)      O

L4( M- M)( R1Q  '
ACADEMVORIVE- l BOUNDARY

I w
7RACT 382a

l0T LINE OR RIGH7-0E- WAY LME

R o         

Q I CRYSTALDB
I

N

CEN7ERUNE

3 3 f     I     y
MONUTAENT LINE

V o iRACT 3827 Oz R91 I o I T DENOTES WITNESS C RNER ON 3 F00T OFFSET ALONC 1HE SIDE
CORNWALLCT CRANBROOKCT      I I I          A

6 o w
Q

PROPERTY LME PER R11-
PARCEL I

I w I M I
T C 3 9     

I
o R91 IRS)      7AACT 3706      

142 MkP 12)           
5/ 8' REBAR W1TH CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R13)

j iRACT 3875
I m       

I
V

142 MkP
a j 1001 7RAC 3873

s^      o I ieai_ J
y B R ANS ON CT H A R K E R CT B A L F O Ufl D R

e
I

I L,    
LAKESIDEDfiIVE

LpKE51DE0RNE i  SHEET 3 OF (
i  - ti

89



TRACT 3830 CRYSTAL LAKE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B
KE'>

VILLAGE H PAACFL r

TRACTp3832A1R111TRACT 3932 IFTII NORTH 96. 00'

NOR1H 288. 00'( T)( R13)  
A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCA FRO, BEING 3 O

A SIIB IV190N OF PARCELS 1 ANO 2 OF TRACT 1829( 42 M& P 71)  96.00'( B)    192. 00'    

p}CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOIIIN COl1Ntt, CALIFORNIA 7AAc'e1 4 PARCEL 1 o AFEBRIIARY 2018 IR731

7ppCT 3829( R13)   m
fi 7 B 8

0. 51 ACt 10' P. U. E.

N56' 48' 3YE(R)    C4       
R13) -

E N G 1 N E E i 1 N G
I36. B6'( B)       

COURTWRIGHT N66'44' 38" W R)    o..      1            
ol

NORTH 322.09'( T)    
185. 23' i' oo

ICOURT
x

oti

x
93. 17'_ n     _ 322. 09' si. a2' x0 30'  fi0'      120'       

I I NORTH 476. 58'( M- M) EASTMAN COURTSCALE: 1'= 60'

OZ-   I

N23752YW(R)j

m

i
BOUNDARY SHEET 1 B     , 9     , r     , 6     , s     +     , 3     ,     11     , o s

30. 00' 

I NOTES lo YFlACY 2828 IRi31
i

I       1. SEE SHEET J FOR LEGEND, REFERENCES, E0.5EMENT TABLE, AND BASIS OF BEARINGS.    
2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDI710NAL NOTES, AND FOR 7HE LME TABLE AND CURVE TABLES FOR

COURSES SHOWN ON SHEETS 2 THROUGH 4 ONLY.       
o

I    
20 21 2L̀ 23 24 26 26 27 2&     28

IM
PAHCOL 8

I

I" 
7flAC7 eB2B IR131 PARGEL E

F

w 7FAC7 3329 IR13)      W I

NORTH 507. 39'(! A- M)  _

x o LETO WAY  _ I
I52.00', 0 400.39'       ol 55. 00'   Q

x
NORTH 567.00'( M- M)   

ol
lo HENNESSEYWAY ol
M

NOftTH 400.39'       
w

ao.00'      3o.o0'       

Z,-.
Nasno'oo' w r+ as•oo•oo' e.__  

30.    
r Acr aa2 wia

35.36' 35.36'  3200

I
I I

o 32 8B 37 u6 JS 34 33 32 31 30        30•

o b       
m

W I o

53.00' 48. 00' 048.00'  
B

48. 00'  
B

48. 00'  B 48.00' 48. 00'  B 48.00'  B 48.00  B 54. 50'
I o      •      •      •      •      •      e      •      •

I I^  
m

NOftTH 505.00'( B)( T)       w     

I 30          
w

N45'00' 00" E I 

I
N45' 00' 00" W   0_00'      30_00'   

35.36'      o
35. 36'/      

lo N j o     
o ry M Z

IN

o 0

0 0

Q
55.00' I  207. 61'( M- M)  I

n

55. 00' 

n
o,.5

NORiH 317. 61'( i)

I BROADWELLSTREET

I NORTH 317. 61'    
I

43.  
I PARCEL 2

I TRACT 3829( R13)      i

za nct ao'
N45' OD' 00' E 32. 00'

I
27.00' 42. 43'  

N45' 00'00' W_   .-
40.00'42A3' 1'/     

NOR7H 1163. 00'       c

o
o     _     I wl

Im      SOMERSTONPARKWAY i°
el

I
57.OD' 

I
NORTH 1290A'( M- M)( RS)( R4)( RS)  I

Y._ J-_-__-_-_  L 70.00' _
Y 

I

SHEET 4 OF 

90



TRACT 3830
RIVER ISLANDS—PHASE 1 B

PAHCEL A PAFCEL C MARINA DRIVE PARCELA VILLAGE H

A POR ON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, 9EINC
10 2B 80      S

A SUB INSION OF PARCELS 1 AN 2 OF TRACT 3849( 42 AI@P 71)
PAp E R»   LYtt OF LATHROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNtt, CALIFORNIA

TI 28 31      4 FEBRUARY 2018

TAAC7 3028

B iz s   az 13 g

T( iACT 3828 8 ia 2s aa 12
N G 1 N E fZ 1 N G

I--

7 14 2fi 34 1     

O 18

5         15 24    }     36          

N
0 50  100'      200'

9
rnncT 3eze     ¢  PARCEL B

SCALE: t'= mo'

0 18 za         ss 9 w pp SHEET INDEX
Z

Y

Q         17 22 w 37 8          21

6
a W    , a Z,   3a          22

4 19 2D 3B 6 23

TAACTa3832A1fl111
GRESHAM STREET pARCEL F

z4

PAflCEL F IF711
25

LEGEND
CRYSTALLAKE W

LAKE 7)      PApCEL E W

TaAC7 3028 Q Q L0T LME

PARCEL C RIC+IT- OF- WAY 4NE

C°      26 aourvonav

SHEET LIMIT IJNE

EMERSON STREET 2 
a 4 LOi NUTABER

PAPLEL 9 26

O SHEET NUMBER

29 d

Z RES7RICIED ACCESS

O
e 30

TflAGT 3828
4       

W

Q
31

Q U3     =      
PAFCEL 3 w PARCEL 1 Q

J 3z

c7 raacr ae2e        w
z       W 33

PARCEL D

C
oc 34

1     .
O m

U

PApC'cL B Iqiil

ACADEMY DRIVE PARCEL E

o

Qa z? 7AACY 3827 IA61

2r OO pC

m SHEET 5 OF H

91



SEESHEET7 TRACT 3830
ao a z a s s 7 3 as i RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 B

I
7RAG7 362B IR13J VILLAGE H

I A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

I
A SU901NSI N OF PARCELS 1 ANO 2 OF iRACT 3829( 42 M& P 71)

CIIY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOl11N COUNtt, CALIFORNIA

LETO WAY
FEBRUARY 2018

Naem 567.00'( M- M)

w z

I
ENGINE I ING

I
I    

0 20'  40'      HO'
Q

I
SCALE: 1"= 40'

W

NOTES

I
29 2ii 27 26 25 24 23 22 2 1 20 I

1. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREiE

SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, AIONG PROIONCATION OF

I 7r^,ACT" 62D I j31
SIDE LOT LINES, OR AS NOTED.

2. 5/ 8° REBAR W11H CAP' PLS 7788° TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

I b CORNERS, UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOiEO.

mI PAF1GeL   
3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A ITIONAL NOlES.

4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E%ISTING EASEMENTS, BA515 OF BEARINGS, AND
fFiACT ZBZB REFERENCES.

I
j3     5. SEE SHEET 8 FOR LME AND CURVE TABLES.

30 00

I
jp i1 12 13 14 15 i6 17 13 io I     \ N2375' 22' W( R)  

LEGEND

I O T STANOARD CRY OF LATHROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED' PLS 7788'

I
o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASTIC PLUC' P S 7788'

MONUMENT TO BE SET PQt( R11)       .

j I f
x MONUAIENT TO BE SET PFR( R13)

I FOUND 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W/ PLASTIC PLUG" PLS 77BB" PER( R13),

i EASTMAN COURT nj      UNLESS OTHEF2R75E NOTEO

Z I NOR7H 476. 58'( M- M)   42.00'      MONUTAENT TO BE SEf PER( R3)

I 61. 32'
0

32209'   o 93. 17'     
t,       

SET 3. 00' N7TNE55 CORNER( W.C.), UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTEO, MEASURED

o N66' 44' 38' W( R)       ' o`     ALONG LOT LINE, RAOIAL LWE OR PERPENDICIILAR TO STREET CEN7ERLME

I
NORTH 722A9'( T) o       

AS NOTED. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE W PLASIIC PWG' PLS 77B8'

RJ j\
11 Yn 185.23'       NORTH 136. 86'( B) N83' 40' 40• W( R)

I
ti 200.00'( Rt) MEASURED AN ftEC RD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

C21
QC 48. 00'       48. 00'      40.86'    CiJ  •     C2( B)      ' 1 N56' 48' 3YE(R)

I
N6631' lYE(R) 10' P. UE. 

C12    <   __ C 5  R1)    DENOiES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE UST ON SHEEf 3

Zp
P R13 r N8577' 4}' W( R)     

I

M- M)   IAONUMENT TO MONUMENT

I m o o o m M- B)   MONUMENT TO BOUNDARY

I
d 8 7 s m

n, 32o sF.   a, azo s.F.

m

3 4 5 i       
T)     TOTa

4, 631 SF. 0 4,650 S. F. m 4, 474 S. F. / 
B)     BOUNDARY

I T ac7 282 J IRiv) 
r3'%3' W. C.   

I
P. U. E PUBLIC U71LI77 EASEMENT

I PAFiCEL E QD iez. 00' ae. 00'   o ae.00'   o w.e.    wnu easeueNT

I 7; tAC7 o9u r11IJ       '       NORTH 288. 00'( T)   96. 00'( B)          
N Sb9' i5E

3'%3' W.G

I LOT LINE
qg, 3,   e 48.00   p 48. 00'  e

I
NORTH 96. 00'     

RIGHT- OF- WAY LME

PAnCeL F
BOUNDARY

I
7RAC7 3832 IRijl

Eascu r uNE

MONUMENT LINEI
I

CEN1ERlWE

i i  RES7RIC7ED ACCESS

I PARCEL A

TRAGT 38 2 IRjj)     Q DEN IES WITNESS CORNER ON 3 FOOT OFFSET ALONG THE SIOE PROPERtt
I

LWE PER( R13), UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN

CRYSTAL LAKE
Q 5/ 8' REBAR W1TH CAP" PLS 7788 PFR( RI3)

I
1. 17' BftA55 OISK STAMPED° PLS 7788'{ N7NES5 CORNER ON 1. 0'

LAKE 7) OO pFFSET PER( RI3)

I
SHEET 6 OF H

92



i

I NOTES TRACT 3830
I I. 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPm° PlS 7788" TO BE SET ON CONCRETE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1 BSIDEWALK I. 00' INTO 7HE RIGHT-0E- WAY, ALONC PROLONCATIaN OF
sme or urues, ae as eo o. VILLAGE H

2. 5/ B" REBAR W1TH CAP" PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

I COftNERS, IINLESS OiHERW75E NOTED.       
A P RPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A IiIONAL NOTES.

I 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E% ISPNC EASEMENTS, BASIS OF BEARINGS, AN  A SU9 IHSION OF PARCELS 1 ANO 2 OF TRACT 3829( 42 IA& P 71)

REFEPENCES.  CITY OF LAiHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

5. SEE SNEET 8 FOR LINE ANU CURVE TABLES.    FEBRUARY 2018

I 6. SEE SHEET 6 FOR LECEND

I
I ENGIN EERING

NDRTH 1290.00'( M- M)( R3)( R4J( RS)
70. 00'     

I-       
1163. 00'      

I I 0 20'  40'       80'

SOMERSTON PARKWAY scn E: ,°= ao'

lo ol
el

Zom

PARCELB

I`     
5,760 S. F.  NOR H 1163.00'( T)

83.04'              480.00       79. 58'            r
I p NORTH 480. 00'   PAii L D

L
oo  

48.00'-- a-- 48. 00`-- 0-- 48. 00'----' 48. 00'--'   48A'--  - 48. 00-- o--- 4B.00"-'- 0-- 48. 00-- 0--'
48.00`-"-- 48. 00-

j'
JJJ;  48. 00'----' 48. 00'--   48.0"-

L 40. 00'-'• °     I 3'%3' W. C. Z3' W. E.      3' X3' W. C. J ' 3' XJ' W. C.    3' W.E.
30. 00' T 32. 00'  I

i o v iPARCELA g I
n. 3za s.v.       i

n

I 0 16      17 m 18 rn 19 m 20 21 22 23 24 25 m
f

PARCELC
f

m 25 27 29
m 4,784 S. F.     4, 785 SF.   4, 785 S. F.   4,785 S. F,    4, 785 S. F. m 4, 765 S. F.   4,785 S. F.   4, 785 S. F. m 4,785 SF.,   4, 785 S. F. i    8, 889 S. F.     " 

m       

I c"  I 5 I I

I
3' W. E. 

3 W. E.J
C6

10' P. U. E 3' W.E

c^,^     4, lel, on  ---- ------ ----- ---- ---      
I 3455

0   9
0  <

3. 30'      48.00'       48.00'       48.00'       48. 00'       48.00'       48. 0'       48. 00'       48.00'       48. 00'  79. 58'  48.00'       48. 00'       48. 00'

I
o

50 NORTH 36226'       NORTH 317. 61'( B)     m

BROADWELL STREET w
I         NORTH 479.58'( M- M) e NOR1H 2O7. 61'( M- M)  

I     `
V O 423. 58'( M- B)       55. 00'( M- B) 

n

55.00'( M- B)      

a        
KEFIRY COURT o w

I J o NORTH 423.58'()    
ys.      NI In

W

I
48.00'       48. 00'       48.OD'       48. 00'       48.00'       48. 00'       48. 00'       48.00'     33.00'   J3. O•

o--_- o_----
L} Jsopf

0

Q b L10' P. U. E.      2B I po

p
nl

30_00' J 30. 0'  > 5

Q o
uJ I

z o 0 0 PARCEL F
15     °'  14    "  13     '  12    °'   11

m

10    '   9     '   B     °'   7     "   6 337 S. F.   IQ

I
4,491 S. F.   4, 320 S. F.  4, 120 SF.  4,320 S. F.   4, 320 S. F.    4,320 S. F.  4, 320 S. F.    4, J20 S. F.   4,320 S. F.    4, 570 SF.    0 30. 00'

7D'

I LS 48. 00'       48. 00'       48. 00'      48. 00       48. 00    48.00'       48.00'       48. 00'       48. 00'       S3. 00     
rr

o

I
Q 54. 50  QB QB       QB       QB  NORTH 505.00'( B)( T)    Q Q       Q Q Q     N  f' 1nG l_     

N F ap''- 
W 7RAC7 3528 ( Ri û1

W  

f
g

I w w 5
C

I 80 31 02 33 34 3b 36 37 uH 38 z   

i 7AAG7 3E29 I ao.ao' .. Q
o   sb

W I-      JSJs e
I LETO WAY

I

gi
NOR7H 567.00'( IA- M)    

55.00'    ,    _

NaftTH 507.39'( M- M)

SEE SHEET 6

SHEET 7 OF S

93



TRACT 3830
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE iB

IVILLAGE H
NORM 1290.00'( IA- M)( R3)( R4)( RS)      I

A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAUFRO, 80NG I163.OU' 

A SUBOINSION OF PARCElS 1 AN 2 OF TRACT 3829( 42 M& P 71)
CI7Y OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY, CAl1FORNIA I

FEBRUARY 2019
o

I
SOMERSTON PARKWAY

j I
PARCEL D I

NORTH 1163, 00'( n
5,1845.F. MI

NGINE ERING INORTH 432. 0'       
43Z'     88.38'       

4800'-- p_-' 48.00'_- p  _ 48.00"__ p-_. 48. 00'-- p_-_ 49.00'_-_ -- 48. 00'-_ o-_'48. 00'_- p-_ 4H.00"__ -_ 48. 00'- 
i ygs0?AJ I0 20'  40'       80'   I 3' N3' W.C.    L gJ•

SCALE: 1"= 40'  n
3 W.E. 3'%3' W. C.  i F_ 27.00'

W         ^    a' w.e.- PARCEL E
0 Z       e a b I       10 806 S. F. I

NOTES w z,     s       z       ze m zs m so m 3i       az m a  m aa m rpn
f    

W CC   j 4, 785 S. F.     4,705 S. F.     4, 785 S. F.    4, 785 S. F.     4,785 S. F.    4, 785 S. F.     4, 785 S. F.    4, 785 S. F.    4,784 S. F. Cg 43. 00'

1. 1. 17' 8RA55 ISK STAMPm' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE          a     I

o

I   '
SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, AIONG PROLONCATION OF I  ,       I
SIOE LOi IINES, OR AS NOTED.     

r3 W' E'      
10 P. U. E.  

n
n I2

2. 5/ 8' REBAR lN7H CAP" PLS 7788' TO, BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT o. NpJ.     J  <

3. 

SEEN
HEEfU2LFOR AOIIIINVAL NOTES.    

48.00'       48. 00'       48.00'_     46. 00'       4B.00'       48.00'       48. 00'       48.00'      43. 06'  
P`,` 11

54\
5\

E R I
NORTH 702.07'  G Opp    

I4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E%ISPNG EASEIAENTS, BA9S OF BEARINGS, AND
ee eNces.   BROADWELLSTREET

Noarn 418.39'( M- M)  

O
5. SEE SHEET B FOR LWE ANO CURVE TABLES.      
6. SEE SHEET fi FOR LEGENU

55. 00'( M- B)       563. 39'( M- B)

BROADWELL COURT I W
a/.

pJ
o I    >I o   0 a[

CURVE TABLE NOR7H 363.39'      L9

CURVE RADIUS OELTA LENCTH o      I r

30. 00 

a5o
W

C1 87. 00 2375' 22°  35. 31' I    ¢
C2 73.00 56' 26' 45'  71. 92'

b
I Q

C3 50.00 3938' 11'  34. 59'    30'    W I
C4 50.00 2p6'35' S6' 180.29'   LME TABLE u'r    

I
CS 17.00 5072 00  14, 89'      

L1NE  IRECTION LENC7H o e

olo O =  PARCELI
C6 17.00 i6'02' O6'  4. 76'         

N45V0'00° E 7.07' 
a ^     1. 84 AC

IL2 NOftTH 5.00' C7 17.00 16' S4' 17'  SA2'       

ICB 17.00 4979' S0'  14. fi4.       
L3 NOR7H 6.58'     w

C9 50. 00 201' 14' O6 175. 61'      
4 N50' 21' 49' W 14. 93'       

I

I
LS NOR7H 15. 00'  C10 50.00 45'00' 00'  3917'       c4
L6 EAST t2. ao'

w 3000' 
C11 17.00 6674' O6°  19.65' v Y---,

U EAST iz. ao'
m

Js'•       
27.0

ici2 ezoo a•az' n'   zia' m s oo yo°,

LB N45' 00' 00" E 20.71' 0.r       o       
F

NORTH 400.39'     a b`'
C13 87.00 IB'33' OS'  28. 17'   

ol I NIC14 73.00 I6' S6' 02'  21. 58'       
L9 NORTH 12. 00' FC

o   ol
C15 73.00 39' 30' 43"  50. 34'         

EAST Y0. 00'     55. 00'  

M  _   

400.39'  
M   

5200'

CI6 73.00 136' 30 43' 173.93'
L11 EAST 12. 00'   NORiH 507.39'( M- M)

cn s. 00 2375'22'  35. 31'      
Z cnsr zo. ao' HENNESSEY WAY

C18 50.00 pb6' 14' O6' 214. 88'      
L13 N23' 4554° E 50. 00'  I

C19 17. 00 66' 14' O6°  19. 65'      
L14 EAST 20.00'     

Y'/{ G7 3828 IRi31 I
C20 50.00 246' 14' O6' 214. BB'      

L15 EAST 12.OD'   

I
C21 17. 00 T328' 43'  fi. 97'

C22 17. 00 42' 45' 23'  12. 69' 

C23 17. 00 6674' 06'  19. 65'    

SHEET S OF p

94



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 9

EXHI IT B

r DJAC NT TRACTS TO TRACT 3 30

95



i r`` 1
j

F fij''.
J

a"',:« s'- G'-'".,,.°. r%"a"^'" m" 7 , z rx"'...'. r:-''' k m=&' Y,.-- u"-.' G     - kr3",- a* rra" £ 3- t' t 3c"no>5- f""' x-"'." s-".,--
iwr'"  ":.

r.  .r-".;-'

MARINA DRIVE
e   =.   r  ;       ,.   

29 30    10

11 28 31       

I      
s:-=    s 32      i

T AC  3 2933—=  _ e Q i   

o
7 14 25 34     j  U       

Q
A

1
6

W 15 24 35       .                    

a`::. :   

r 16 23 3     i
s . g
F _^—  

4

17 22       37       (
C. 1   .  •      CO

18 21 W 38   -. f

G   J
C 5. d-~     e

i.. .

9 20 39

TRAC1"  3 30
u      :     _  ti      .

GRESHAM STREET
w

f*

z:  a ,: s,    ,",+ .' ai d" S=.,'`:           

LAKE 7     i  , 

a    
TRACT 3903 W       

Y

p

p
EMERSON STREET m      o

w
A 

C p

O
ra 5   ' V W

r:

k `_     

4          W
c` —     Z

M1 ;   

3         OO,
oC

tt

J

O E

o      
Q.TRACT 3 2 o

m
k,   

t

h

p„wv    C  # .-' a i s, u.. ;.      ......^. '  i `. a-
a ..  

u ! ,':' z . N k..' i'".   ..' ..' z..  24d.,        ...,.._

ACADEMY DRIVE
EXHI IT 

x   

A}.>.     

a,.,  

Y..
a.....-- m..   

r

w.'

w   # 1'.:.,,.

T.,.... ,-».

ADJACENT TRACTS TO
1

s           v    u,      '             TRACT 3830
1 MARCH12018

96



Subdivision Ixnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 10

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

l. Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to do
business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no less
than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and$ 2,000,000 in the

aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurers. All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be
attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a.  -     Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability
arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to
any loss."

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least
thirty (30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d.       The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially
available at reasonable rates.

97



Subdivision Improvement Agreement (River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 11

EXHIBIT D

COHEI 1/ PAIZADISE/STEWr RT REHABILITATI01 1 MAP

98



e

r:  

r               
w

r_._._    ;  
s, o-`"'     . Y v'- N.9 C,s-- `    '    (    

y

us„       .     £  
r^"'"`

a " i'-'     I"{  .. %   '        e S
S' a<    

z C.'

u

6"}    

m..; i-._._  .._  _._.    
r

e...       

r;   

I L

j 11

ap

9 w

c-. .         

F              

r

r``   

A

B- `.._.,+,   
t  ,#

5
t

F   '   _ "-      ._ 

7j}' g '>. "",:.

s

a

a_   z-, 3  .
i

Jv..

aa'

Y

F
t;     

z'IF
f      .

3,>.,    

i 3
y    

1

5  t.   :

g Si            
t      

1J lY ` m.., u-      

J S f AY C . ft OEVc

P       _   r inR.

a

1    ., A2,+      r s: 
s:',
r.'-       ,   

R,.     

Y&

aa3.>
jS  

k

L      (/- 0.

g
t,  :-.     

r
j

na     ..:  
f t      '       

I:_   <-_  l       o

i      •"' c>       _-          t    
r

k

s'      

a a          d
i       ,       .      7

F s. i N',
i'

f       '   T        i    
2     p    st

al%

k

4   .;

b
s3          -

t s. 

tce  . 

LEGEND

ROADWAYTO BE FULL REPAIRED, PAVED AND OPEN TO GENERAL PUBLIC
EXHIB I I D

ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBIT1 ROADWAY TO BE REPAIRED AS ALL-WEATHER EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS ONLY

iIf/ \—\tI RIVER ISLANDS
COMMUNINAT SOUTH RIVER BEND PROJECTAREA If  V

cirv oF arfteov Snv ionQu co Trv c eoavin6 I I I

a\ 5.1   oAte     :..,  .     

99



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 12

EXHIBIT E

UNFINISHED AND DEFERRED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

100



I   ' ll '
E N G 1 N E£ R 1 N G

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST February 9, 2016
RIVER ISLANDS - PHASE 1B Job No.: 25501- 56

TRACTS 3829& 3830

VILLAGE H( 112 UNITS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading ( 60' RightofWay)      256, 900 SF   $  0. 45  $  115, 605. 00

2 3" AC Paving ( H1, H3, J, J1 Street)    97, 100 SF  $  1. 50  $  145, 650. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving ( H, H2, J2 Street)      42, 500 SF   $  2. 25  $   95, 625.00

4 7" Aggregate Base( H9, H3, J, J Street)      97, 100 SF  $  1. 05  $  101, 955.00

5 8" Aggregate Base( H, H2, J2 Street) 42, 500 SF   $  1. 20  $   51, 000.00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with ae Cushion)   2, 310 LF   $ 13. 00  $   30, 030. 00

7 Roll Curb and Gutter ( With AB Cushion)       5, 920 LF   $ 13. 00  $   76, 960.00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 41, 800 SF   $ 4. 00  $  167, 200.00

9 Driveway Approach 112 EA  $       400.00  $   44, 800.00

10 Handicap Ramps 9 EA  $     1, 400.00  $   12, 600. 00

11 Signage& Striping 4, 120 LF   $ 5. 00  $   20, 600.00

12 Survey Monuments 12 EA  $       300. 00  $    3, 600.00

13 Remove Existing Street Barricade 2 EA  $       500.00  $    1, 000.00

Subtotal Street Work 866, 625. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( Type A Inlet)  2 EA  $     2, 400. 00  $    4,800. 00

15 Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type I Manhole ease)      16 EA  $     2, 800. 00  $   44,800.00

16 Catch Basins ( Type A Inlet over Type ll Manhole ease)      1 EA  $     3, 300. 00  $    3, 300.00

17 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 360 LF   $ 34. 00  $   46,240. 00

18 18" Storm Drain Pipe 520 LF   $ 46. 00  $   23, 920. 00

19 24" Storm Drain Pipe 610 LF   $ 80. 00  $   48,800.00

20 36" Storm Drain Pipe 165 LF   $       110. 00  $   18, 150. 00

21 Manholes( Type 1)   3 EA  $     2, 100. 00  $    6, 300.00

22 Connect To Existing 1 EA  $     1, 700. 00  $    1, 700.00

Subtotal Storm Drain 198, 010. 00

SANITARY SEWER

23 4" Laterals 114 EA  $       650. 00  $   74, 100.00

24 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 3,480 LF   $ 25. 00  $   87, 000. 00

25 Manholes 12 EA  $     2, 000. 00  $   24,000. 00

26 Connect To Existing 3 EA  $     1, 000. 00  $    3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 188, 100. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON. CA 9458 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • i-209. 5712466

T: 25501- River Islands\ Phase 56- 3829 8 3830\Word& Excel\ Estimates\ ESTIMATE-2016- 02- OS- Phase 1 B-Tract 3829& 3830-25501\ Improvements

101



i

E N G 1 N E E R 1 N G

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

27 8" Water Line ( including all appurtenances)      4, 120 LF   $ 30.00  $  123, 600. 00

28 Water Services 114 EA  $     2, 000. 00  $ 228, 000. 00

29 Fire Hydrants 10 EA  $     4, 000. 00  $   40, 000. 00

30 Water Plug& Stub 4 EA  $     1, 000. 00  $    4, 000. 00

31 Connect To Existing 2 EA  $     2, 500. 00  $    5, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 400, 600. 00

ELECTRICAL

32 Electroliers ( assumed every 150)   28 EA  $     5, 000.00  $  140, 000. 00

33 JointTrench 4, 120 LF   $       125. 00  $  515, 000. 00

Subtotal Electrical 655, 000. 00

MISCELLANEOUS

34 Parkway Landscape Strip 49, 100 SF   $  5. 00  $ 245, 500. 00

35 Neighborhood Park B ( Parcel N4)     87, 100 SF   $  7. 00  $ 609, 700. 00

36 Pocket Park( Parcel P9) 7, 800 SF  $  7. 00  $   54,600.00

37 Landscape (Parcel, 42a)   440 SF  $  5. 00  $    2, 200.00

38 Landscape (ParcelA25)   870 SF   $  5. 00  $    4, 350.00

39 Landscape (ParcelAaB)       36, 600 SF   $  5. 00  $  183, 000.00

40 Landscape (ParcelA52) 3, 050 SF   $  5. 00  $   15, 250.00

41 Landscape( ParcelA73)       11, 300 SF   $  5. 00  $   56, 500.00

42  andscape( ParcelA a) 9,600 SF   $  5. 00  $   48,000.00

43 Landscape (ParcelA75) 3, 500 SF   $  5. 00  $   17, 500. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 1, 236,600.00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST  $       3, 544,935.00

20% CONTINGENCY $  708,987.00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $       4,254,000. 00

6200 STONERiDGE M-ALL ROAD UITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 9452t3 • P: 925223.83-t0 • F209.57L2496

T: 25501- River Islands\ Phase 56- 3829& 3830\ Word 8 Excel\ Estimates\ ESTIMATE- 2016-02- 08- Phase 1 B- Tract 3829& 3830- 25501\ Improvements

102



IIII   , III i j' I' !  
ENGiNE fZ1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE October 17, 2016

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25501- 56

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 16

TRACTS 3829& 3830( 112 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drain, Water Testing& Raising Iron ( s5/ Completion)       1 LS   $     42, 400. 00  $ 42,400. 00

2 Joint Trench( o/ Completion)    1 LS   $   328, 000. 00  $       328, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       370,400. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents from Mozingo Construction& Moreno Trenching

for Tracts 3829 8 3830.

62 ST4NERIDGE N"ALL R4AD SUI- E 33. P_ EASAtdTON. GR 94588 • P: 925223.B3 10 • f:2 9. 571. 2d a^

T:\ 25501- River Islands\ Phase 56- 3829& 3830\ Word& Excel\ Estimates\ Bond Estimate 2016- 1047 Tracts 3829 8 3830 Bond Estimate.xls\ Impmvements

103



l i c           7 7"`

e% 2  c   a3  PAtr

l S    ' 9s'r l    l  

z
r

7 S'   '    —        3

s a

Ro osA.

Q

ttn:      Jnhn P; ck

PROJECT:       " ae,? 3h()
k: s p=:.:    

We are plrased to sul i3 it the follawing propost l to perfc rtz 4'oi'k oE the ahove referencecl project.
l'he f'ollc wing inforination vas used i: i preparing our propos l:

Flan sheets t- 18 prepared by O' C) Il, 4!(/ 2016

City af[. athrop and Contrtt Costa County Standard C F•awin s and Specifications

Propasa!•

v See atiached for included' Rems and prici tig.

Conditions & Scc nc:

Furnisf all labar, materials, toois, equipment, trans ort ftio i. and inciclentals necessary E'or the ite ns
listed on our 4 ro t sal ind turther defined as f'ollows:

ScqiieE ce ai' WorI:

o Proposal is based o z instaliin utilities after rem vals a zd rough 3rading operations have
bee t coE ipleted by otllers.

3•   (' iease note that ve will re: uire deyiiate tiule 1br rnaterials sttbmittals, procurerne t and
delivery prior to be innin tivork

o Se ver SysEem

SD. 26 bedded with site s ind nd hackflll Cl 4YllI1 IlElCIYI.      ,
Services to bc: stubbed to tfte lots, cican< ut b includet[

1' esting is inckidecf
Starm D ain

RCP bedded in sit sanc[ and backtilled with native
Cascli basi is vittiin the curbs Eo be set ta vitiiin 1. 0' of linisl, rade- e vill p.ra iife fi aa e

find rt tes tc be- set l c khtt-s
I' esting is iizc( uded

A' ater System ( f' otable ailcf Nan Potable}
PVC C900 [) fZ f=! for 10" nd srn illei

PVC C9(l I f2 25 for lG" Nnn Pot( le

Metcr idfers to be instailed in meter boxes. Meters by otf ers.
o'•  ' Cesting is included aiid vili equire ti 3oint of discharge Co be provided within close

proximity af a blo v off paint for thc water systeiii
DeEvateri eg   (( J rr prapnsa( itic lrrr/cs c osfs fur rlc Ev[ tferijtg for uur wark.  ll'e will reqt[ ire ti

disc/ turge poirr! fnr dewrileririg rlisclrar, e.  !' u spc c ia! trerrrtttte rt ur frlterirrg of t/te rlisclerir; e is

i ic.luriecL) Ur.cchrrrge perttrit if'reqtrirerl, tn be prc virterl hp t/ ier:c.

E icense No. 70 6? S- A, I iCt; 10000O3} 2
7? 1 Wakctield Cou+•t e Uakd le, Califo• ia 95; 61

hc ne:( 209} 848- 0160 e (' ax:( 24)) 8 8- OI C 1 • email: info?it in« zingocor structio».coiii

104



xclusions:

o Pet•mits/ i' ees

Surveying/Stakin
Compaction Testing
f-(- r.ardous Substance Reu oval
OverexcavtYtion, handling tinsuitat le material or vorkin;, witb Enaterial vith over optii im

oisEure canten!

Ofthat l of spoils

o    } fst C nteol Pian

SWPT' P andlnr WPCP( n ainEei a« ce by nthers)
Re 7ioval oF d b' is I-r m installed pipelin s atzd appifrtenances causect by athers ar due to
i jsufticienC SWP[' P measures

E osion Control

Traftic Control Plan

CoEistruction rea signs

Natafions:

Signatory with tlte Northern Calii'ornia Laborers' and( he Oper tin, En; ineers
Bandable, rlte upan reqiiesE

m N1Ci to € e paid mc>ntlily based on quantities ur percent complete.  We reserve the right to stop i

wark if not paici iii a tintely nlanner.
All Risk fnsurance/[ 3arthqu ke/' t i{ aE Wave fristu•anee to he a lc[ itioczal cost to contract if recju'sreci
One ri obilizatioii is incl ided for this projecE
C: onstrucYiooz water to be niade available at tf e sit at n cost tu MC1.
Quote v lid for 20 days

Mozingo Cansfructinn, Fnc.( Lic. No. 702Ci25- A}
Kyle Dobbias

Mozin;; o ConstrE c[ ion. Inc. •  Lice se Nt. 70262i- A

7S l Wakelie(d Cou: t 4 O if: d<ile, Calitornia 95361
Pl o e: ( 209) 8 48- OICO • F x: ('!))) 84ti-016f Q en ail: it f'o(c mozin acanstnEction. cotn

105



I() ZING•'l CU1 1STFtU", TI( N, INC. I. IC. No. 7 2625-A 6- May- l

7 1 Waketield Caurt

Oakdale. CA 95361

hone:  ( 209) 8 8- 0160  *  ax: ( 209) $ 48- 01 G I

BIll PROI' 4 Ala

I R̀AC'T 3829- 3830

tem es riptiom:     Qt3'_   Unit  ' Unzfi Pri e 7C' otal

L Sanita y Se ver
1 8" SS

3475 [_ F'         25, 00   $ Sb, 875. Q0

2 SSMH
12 EA            3, 000. 00   $ 36,000. 00

c.  
sc o. ao    s. 000. aa

Coi n. Tc e; c. SS 3 EA      $      1, SU0. 00   $  4, 500. 00

i Ue- W terii  
1 LS       $    l; 7>000. aa   $       i 37, 000. 00

iI Sturn Drain

1 36 RC1'    l G3 Lr•         85. 00    13, 855. 00

2 24° RCP
b37 C, E'       $  47. 00   ` U 29, 939. Q0

l8" RCP
5l6 C, F'       $  Q. 00   $ 20,640. 00

15" RCP
1332 I F       $  39. 00   $ St, 948_00

5 SDMH TYP: 1 3 A       $      3,> QO. QQ   $ 10, 5 Q. 00

6      " T'ype A Iniet/Type l IG GA       $      3, 500. 00   $ SFi, Q{) 0. 00

7 T'ype A In{ et/ Type II l A       $      , 000. 00   ` fi 4, Q00. 00

8      1' Y e A [ zlet
2 EA             3, 0OO. OQ     6, 000. 00

9 Conn. l'o ex SD 1 FA       $      2, 500.( Q   $  2, 500.00

l0 Pump Down Ila: e 7 I S       $      6, OOO. UO     b, 00Q. 00

11C Water

1 8" PVC
100 LF       $  20. 00   $ 82, 000.()

b GV
20 CA       $       1, 200. 00   $ 24. 00O. QU

10 EA      `      5, 000.00   $ SO, aoo. ao

4 1. 5° 1/ S
I 12 EA       $ 9SU. OU   $       106, 40(). 00

V
9 E,      $      ?. SOQ00   $ 22, 5UO. OQ

G f»- Line E3CJ
4 E      $      2, 600. 00   $ 10, 00. 00

7 End- t.. ine E30
4 t.A       $      3. 40Q. 00   ` I2,Q00. 00

g Water' Cie- In 2 A       $      , 000. 00   $  6, 00.(? U

w s
z ca       s o. oa      i, soo. 00

V/ S
2 i; A              1, OOO. QO     000. 00

GI A1 D 1'(,`' AL,     
839, 557.00

A LTt;RN A' i' E

1 W ter Sai lplitl Stations E EA            ?, 50.( lf1     2, 450. 00

Sct een ( E' i•ocess select sand
1 LS       $      , 750.00   $  5, 750. 00

4', S

106



T 3 q F n,L 4q,Zri r wo   r

Sr,}' ubtr7     / Z.-6 77 9 Co. tpc,n- rJ

7- vrJr 38u1  ccrrzr c o, I t' t
Z 0 Z

1, uartt> 
f  7. 

i 3

lMQrLa v   1r 4   7'" d-[-! lrm w 3S'29 D 3%/      ;   j
1

t s       (  ( 30(p       (nCY-     0 (- lo I 0

Trench & Backfill

36" x 63" Trench A 263 If 31. 50 8, 284. 50
36" x 63" Trench A1 480 If 31. 50 15, 120. 00
36" x 55" Trench A2 650 If 23.75 15,437. 50 i
30" x 55" Trench A3 369 If 23.75 8, 763. 75
24" x 58" Trench C1 44 If 20. 00 880.00
24" x 50" Trench C3 10 If 18. 50 185. 00
24" x 48" Trench K1 31 If 18. 25 565. 75
36" x 52" Trench M1 828 if 23. 50 19, 458.00
24" x 52" Trench M2- stub 458 If 18. 75 8, 587. 50
36" x 60" Trench M4 174 If 30. 75 5, 350. 50
12" x 30" Trench W1 56 If 11. 75 658. 00 j
12" x 22" Trench W4 289 If 11. 00 3, 179. 00
Beii Hole for Gas Tie- In 3 ea 1, 900. 00 5, 700. 00 i

92, 169. 50
Vauits/Splice Boxes (Excavate Oniy)      F
17" x 30" L. i. p.       Secondary Box( 18")   17 ea 170. 00 2, 890. 00
24" x 36" L. I. D.       Secondary Box( 18")    3 ea 200.00 600.00
3' x 5'     L. I. D.       Primary Box 1 ea 590. 00 590. d0
4' x 6' 6"   L. I. D.       Primary Bax 1 ea 765.00 765. 00
36" x 52" L. I. D.       Transformer Pad 6 ea 540. 00 3, 240.00
17" x 30" AT&T Telephone Box( 34"}    3 ea 220. 00 660. 00
24" x 36" AT&T Telephone Box( 42")    3 ea 285. 00 855. 00
24" x 36" Comcast CATV Box 14 ea 85. d0 1, 190. 00

1Q, 790. 00
Vaults/Splice Boxes (Suppiy & Install)       i
17" x 30" L. I. D.       Secondary Box( 18")   17 ea 315. 00 5, 355. 00
24" x 36" L. I. D.       Secondary Box( 18")    3 ea 515. 00 1, 545. 00
3' x 5'     L. I. D.       Primary Box 1 ea 3, 325. 00 3, 325. 00
4' x 6' 6"   L. f. D.       Primary Box 1 ea 6, 535. 00 6, 535. 00
36" x 52" L. I. D.       Transformer Pad 6 ea 875. 00 5, 250. 00
17" x 30" AT& T Telephone Box( 34")    3 ea 500.00 1, 500. 00
24" x 36" AT&T Telephone Box( 42")    3 ea 775. 00 2, 325. 00

Conduit
25, 835. 00

2° L. I. D.       Conduit 2, 381   ! f 220 5, 238. 20
3" L. I. D.       Conduit 3, 741 If 3. 10 11, 597. 10
4° L. L.       Conduit 5 If 3. 45 7. 25
4" AT&T Co duit 2, 150 If 3. 55 7, 632. 50

I

2" AT&T Conduit 5, 875 If 2. 20 12, 925. 00

37, 410. 05

i

i

I
Contract# 2016-254

107



i

i

Gas Svstem

2" Gas Main 1, 961 If 3. 25 6, 37325
1:   

I1" Gas Stub Service Only 53 ea 215. 00 11, 395. 00

1"  Excess Flow Vafve 29 ea 165. 00 4, 785. 00

22, 553. 25 I
Electric System

Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1502 Supp{y)  2 ea By Others By Others
Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1502 Install)   2 ea 385. OQ 770. 00

Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1503 Suppiy)  4 ea By Clthers By Others
Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1503 Install)   4 ea 385. Od 1, 540. 00

Primary Cable 1/ 0- 1W Suppiy)  1 Is 13, 740. 00 13, 740. 00

Primary Cable 1/ 0- 1W Install) 141'   ! f 3. 00 12, 342. 00
i

Secondary Cable 4/ 0- AT Supply}  1 Is 2, 285. 00 2, 285. 00

Secondary Cabie 4f0- AT Install} i b? j If 0. 85 869. 55

Secondary Cable 350-AT Supply)  1 Is 75. 00 75. 00

Secondary Cable 350-AT Install)  19 If 0. 85 f

Primary/ Secondary Splicing 1 Is 17, 630. 00 17, 630.00

49, 267. 70 i
Liqhting System

35W LED Decorative Electrolier 18 ea 6, 10. 00 109, 800. 00 j
1- 1/ 2"     Conduit w/ 2-# 8 Cu. Wire 40 If 5. 00 200. 00

1- 1/ 2"     Conduit w/ 3 -# 8 Cu. Wire 20 If 5. 50 110. 00 i   

1- 112"     Conduit w/ 2 -# 8 Cu. Wire E Grd 1, 263 If 5. 50 6, 946. 50

1- 1/ 2"     Conduit w/ 3-# 8 Cu. Wire & Grd. 112 If 6. 00 672. 00

3- 112 Splice Box 30 ea 135. 00 65 6

778. 5

TRACT 3829 TOTAL=  359, 804. 00
f.         

t  . 
w..     

C     ( o0 5 0 o-- 0

Trench & Backfill

36" x 63" Trench A 213 If 31. 50 6, 709. 50

36" x 63" Trench A1 335 If 31. 50 10, 552. 50

36" x 55" Trench A2 576 If 23. 75 13, 680. 00

36" x 55" Trench A3 484 If 23. 75 11, 495. 00

24" x 48" Trench K1 39 If 18. 25 711. 75

36" x 52" Trench M1 1, 234 If 23. 50 28, 999. 00

24" x 52" Trench M2- stub 509 If 18. 75 9, 543. 75

36" x 60" Trench M4 57 if 30. 75 1, 752. 75

12" x 38" Trench W 59 If 12. 25 722.75

12" x 30" Trench W1 71 If 11. 75 834. 25

12" x 22" Trench W4 307 If 11. 00 3, 377.00

Bell Nole for Gas Tie- In 1 ea 1, 900. 00 1, 900. 00

90, 278. 25

VaultslSplice Boxes ( Excavate OnIV) j
17" x 30° L. I. D.       Secondary Box ( 18")   19 ea 170. 00 3, 230. 00

Contract# 2016-254

108



i

i

24" x 36" L. I. D.       Secondary Box( 18"}    1 ea 200. 00 200.OQ

24" x 36° L. I, D,       5econdary Box ( 26")    9 ea 200. 00 20a.p0

4' x 6' 6"   L. I. D.       Primary Box 1 ea 765. 00 7fi5.00

38" x 52" L. I. D.       Transformer Pad 6 ea 540. 00 3, 240.00

17" x 30" AT&T Tefephone Box( 34")    7 ea 220. Ob 1, 540.00

24" x 36" AT&T Tefephone Box( 42")    1 ea 285. 00 285. 00

24" x 36" Comcast CATV Box 17 ea 85. 00 3, 445,00

10, 905.00

VaultslSplice Boxes lSupply & Install)    

17" x 30" L. I. D.       Secondary Box( 18")   19 ea 315. 00 5, 9$ 5, 00

24" x 36" L. I. D.       5econdary Box( 8")    1 ea 515. 00 515. 00 1
24" x 36" LI,D.       Secondary Box( 26"}    1 ea 655. 00 655. 0   

4' x 6'6"   L. I. D.       Primary Box 1 ea 6, 535. 00 6, 535. 00 5

36" x 52" L. I. D,       Transformer Pad 6 ea 675,00 5,250. 00

17" x 30" AT&T Telephone Box( 34")    7 ea 500. 00 3, 500. 00

24" x 36" AT&T Telephone Box( 42")    1 ea 775,00 775. 00

23, 215, OQ 1
Conduit

2" L.{. D.       Gonduit 1, 683 If 2. 20 3, 702.60

3" L. I. D.       Canduit 3, 364 If 3. 10 10,428.40

4" L. I. D.       Conduit 50 lf 3. 45 172. 50

4" AT& T Condu+t 1, 950 lf 3. 55 6, 922. 60

2" AT& T Conduit 6,425 If 2. 20 14, 135.00 i
38, 3& 1. 00

Gas System

2" Gas Main 2, 008 I      3. 25 6, 526.00

1" Gcs Stub Service Only 59 ea 295. OQ 12,685.OQ r

1" Excess Flow Valve 32 ea 165. 00 5, 280.00
i   

24,491. 40 1   !.

Electric Svstem

Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1502 Supply)  1 ea By dthers By Others
Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1502 Install}   1 ea 385. 00 385. 00

i   '

Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1503 Supply)  5 ea By Others By Others
Pad Mounted Transformer 26- 1503 Install)   5 ea 385. 00 1, 925. 00

3PrimaryCable 1l0- 1W Supply)  1 Is 6, 135. 00 6, 135.00

PrimaryCable 1! a- 1W Install)      1, 836 If 3, OQ 5,508.00

Secondary Cabfe 410- AT 5upply}  1 Is 2, 870, 00 2, 87a.00 j
Secondary Cabie 410- AT Install)      1, 287 If 0. 85 1, 093,95

Secondary Cabfe 35Q-AT 5upply)  1 Is 250.00 250. 00

Secondary Cable 350- AT lnstafl)  64 If 0. 85 54. 40

Primary/Secandary Splicing 1 Is 9, 880. 00 19, B8G. 00

38, 1 1. 35

Liqhtiny System x

i35W LED Decorative Electrolier 17 ea 6, 00. 00 103, 700, Q0
1- 112"     Conduit w/ 2 -# 8 Cu. Wire 35   ! f 5, 00 175. 00 j

i

Contract# 2U16- 254

I

109



1- 1J2"     Conduit w/ 3-# 8 Cu. Wire 20 If 5. 50 110. 00

1- 1/ 2"     Conduit w/ 2-# 8 Cu. Wire& Grc1.     1, 111 If 5. 50 6, 110. 5Q i

3- 1/ 2 Splice Box 28 ea 135, 00 3, 780.00

100A Metered Pedesfal ( lnstalf Only}     2 ea 2, 5 O. Od 000,      G

9' 18, 875, 50
i
f

TRACT 3830 TOTAL =  34'1, 227,10

Tract 3831 I ^  
t      tl1 Q- !>    

Trench & BackfiEl

36" x 63" Trench A 110 if 31. 50 3,465.0

36" x 63" Trench A1 127 If 31. 50 4, OQ0, 50

36" x 55" 7rench A2 640 If 23. 75 15, 200.00

36" x 55" Trench A3 175 If 23. 75 4, 156. 25

36" x 52" Trench M1 592 If 23.50 13, 912. 00

24" x 52" Trench M2- stub 276 If 18, 75 5, 975.00

3&" x 60" Trench M4 208 If 30. 75 6, 396. 00 1

12" x 22" Trench W4 259 If 11. 00 2, 849.00

Be€E Flole fnr Gas Tie- 1n 1 ea 2, 965.00 2, 965.00 i
58, 198.75

VauftslSplice Boxes( Excavate Only}     

17" x 30" L. I. D.       Secondary Box ( 18")    5 ea 170.00 850,00

24" x 36" L. I, D.       Secondary Box( 18")    4 ea 200. 00 800.00

24" x 36" L. I, D,       Secnndary Box (26")    2 ea 20p. 00 400.00

3' x 5'     L, I. D.       Primary Box 2 ea 590. 00 1, 180.00

4' x 6' 6"   L. I. D,       Primary Box 1 ea 765. 00 765, OQ

36" x 52" L. 1. D.       Transformer Pad 3 ea 540. OQ 1, 620, Op

17" x 30" AT&T Telephone Bax ( 34")    3 ea 22Q. 00 660.00

3' x 5'     AT&T 7elephone Sox 36")    1 ea 590. 00 590.00

24" x 36" Cvmcast CATV Box 11 ea 85. 00 935.00

VaultslSplice Boxes (Supplv & install}

7, 800.00 a
s

17" x 34" L, I. D.       Secondary Box ( 18")    5 ea 315.00 1, 575. 4Q

24" x 36" L. I. D.       Secondary Box( 18")    4 ea 595. 00 2, 660.OQ

24" x 36" L. I. D.       Secondary Box (26")    2 ea 655,00 1, 340. 00

3' x 5'     L. I. D.       Primary 8ox 2 ea 3, 325.Q0 6, 650, 00
4' x 6' 6"   L. I. D.       Prirnary Box 1 ea 6, 535,00 6, 535. 00

36" x 52" L. I. D,       Transformer Pad 3 ea 875.00 2, 625, 00

17" x 30" AT&7 Telephone Box ( 34")    3 ea 500.00 1, 500. 00

3' x 5'     AT&T Telephone Box ( 36°}    3 ea 2, 925.00 2, 925, 00

25, 180. 00
Conduit

2" L. I. D.       Conduit 2, Q07 If 2. 2Q q q. 40

3" Ll.D.       Conduit 2, 205 If 3. 10 6, 835. 5Q
4" L.. LD.       Cor.duit 458 If 3. 45 1, 580. 10

Contract# 2016-254

110



Subdivision Improvement Agreement (River Islands Development, LLC) with the City of Lathrop for
Final Map Tract 3830 Village H
Page 13

EXHIBIT " F"

UTILITY CAPACITY GUARANTEES

In accordance with the First Amendment to the 2003 Amended and Restated Development Agreement by
and Between the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC, (" DA"), SUBDIVIDER shall provide the following

guarantees for wastewater treatment and recycled water capacity to utilize an additional 70,000 gallons per
day of treatment capacity from the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility (" CTF") on an interim basis.

Pursuant to the Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Tract 3904 between the City and River Islands

Development, LLC, 120,000 ga] lons per day of treatment capacity from the Lathrop CTF was approved for
an interim time period under certain conditions. Requirements for the additional 120,000 gpd of capacity
to be utilized( along with the 60,000 gpd approved previously for a total of 180,000 gpd), as most recently

modified by the Tract 3904 SIA, the following conditions were to be satisfied prior to December 31, 2017:

1. Have fully constructed, inspected and dedicated to the City the following improvements:

Either the Paradise Road Sprayfield Expansion to accommodate 250,000 gpd of treatment

capacity OR the Southeast Stewart Tract Sprayfields to accommodate 250,000 gpd of treatment
capacity. As an option, a combination of these facilities may be constructed, but a total of
250,000 gpd of equivalent disposal capacity shall be provided in total.
Recycled Water Pipeline Extension to the Southeast Stewart Tract Storage Basin

Interim Recycled Water Pump Station ( at Southeast Stewart Tract Storage Basin Site)

2. City shall retain the existing Performance and Labor and Materials Bonds posted in 2015 to
guarantee construction of all improvements.  Such bonds shall be released upon dedication of all

relevant improvements.

3. Provide any outstanding funding for RWQCB permits and/ or authorizations to be completed by the
City to allow use of the 250,000 gpd in treatment and disposal.

4. Provide appropriate easements in favor of the City for the recycled water extension and procure

any required encroachment permits.

SUBDIVIDER completed the Southeast Stewart Tract Storage Basin, ( including and additional expansion
to provide future capacity), Southeast Stewart Tract Sprayfields, Interim Pump Station and Recycled Water
Pipeline Extension in February 2018, with all as- built plans provided to the City and Regional Water
Quality Control Board. Further, SUBDIVIDER provided executed deeds for relevant property and
easements for the Southeast Stewart Tract improvements for dedication to the City.

With satisfaction of the aforementioned conditions included in this Exhibit, SUBDIVIDER was allocated

and allowed to use the first 180,000 gpd of the 250,000 gpd constructed at the CTF with SUBDIVIDER

funding. On an interim basis, in satisfaction of the improvements described above, SUBDIVIDER shall be
allocated an additiona] 70,000 gpd of treatment capacity ( for a total of 250,000 gpd) until all 250,000 gpd
of treatment capacity is permanently allocated to the River Islands Project, expected in July 2018.

111



A7TACHMENT " D"

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

February 28, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3830; Escrow No. 1211043012

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company ("RID"), and the City of
Lathrop ("Cit') in connection with the above- referenced escrow ("Escrov'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after City has approved the map in writing. The closing
date for the Transaction is intended to occur by February 1, 2018, at the time designated
in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below (each a
C/osing'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by July 1, 2018, ORTC will return the

Final Map to City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1. One original Final Map for Tract 3830, executed and
acknowledged by City.

The document listed in Item 6. 1 above is referred to as the "Recordation Document."
The Recordation Document shall be recorded in the order referred to above.  The date
on which the Recordation Document is recorded in the Official Records is the
Recordation Date.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Document, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Settlement Statement"):  recordation costs, escrow fees, and other

1

112



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees, and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are set forth below:

a.       The amount of$ 17, 552.70, payable to City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop ( as amended " Sierra
Club AgreemenP'), constituting the amount of$ 2, 970.00 multiplied by 5. 91 acres (or
portion thereofl included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to City upon recordation of
the Final Map.  City' s wire instructions are set forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the "Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time(s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to ( a) Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso(c riverislands.com); ( b) Debbie Belmar

dbelmarCa riverislands.com); ( c) Stephen Salvatore (ssaivatore(c ci. lathrop.ca. us);
d) Salvador Navarrete (snavarrete(a ci. latnrop.ca. us; ( e) Cari James

ciames(c ci. lathrop.ca. us); and ( fl Glenn Gebhardt (aaebhardt(c ci. lathrop.ca. us), and

have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore
or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3. The Recordation Document and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you, and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, you have attached all legal
descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D.4 You are prepared to record the Recordation Document, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement, and complete
the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. S. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission (with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation
Document and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Document to be recorded.

2

113



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

E. 2.  Record the Final Map and the Recordation Document in the
Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

1676 N. California Blvd., Suite 420

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Attn: William C. Scott, Jr.

E. S.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov.org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6. Within five (5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier, to ( 1) Debbie
Belmar, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 West Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330.

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Document, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Document; and

B)   A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow

agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Susan Dell' Osso, President

River Islands Development, LLC

Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager
City of Lathrop

3

114



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS
RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and City is hereby acknowledged.
The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed in strict

accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and warrants

to RID and City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this Acknowledgement and
Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

115



116



j
ITEM 4.7   ;

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE AGREEMEIVT WITH WOODARD & CURRAN

FOR RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

AND MANAGEMENT,  CIP RW 16- 06 AND RELATED

BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMEIVDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving an Agreement with
Woodard & Curran for the Recycled Water Program

Administration and Management, CIP RW 16- 06 and

Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

River Islands desires to expand the use of recycled water for urban landscape areas.
Staff is requesting City Council approval of an agreement with Woodard & Curran

formerly RMC Water and Environment) for Program Administration and Management
services that are needed to support this project for the first year of program
implementation.  As part of the City's Master Reclamation Permit ( MRP) adopted by
the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, the Recycled Water Program
will need additional regulatory monitoring and reporting along with supervisor and
user training.    The cost of the agreement is not to exceed $ 50, 298, in addition to

the City' s administration fee in the amount of $ 7, 545 for a grand total of $ 57, 843,

which will be fully funded by River Islands.

BACKGROUND:

The Recycled Water Program Implementation CIP RW 16- 06 was created to set up a
utility to expand the use of recycled water for urban landscape. Modifications to the
recycled water system will need to be completed to allow for on- demand delivery of
recycled water to River Islands and other areas designated for using recycled water.

Initially, the recycled water program will be for the addition of urban landscape use
in River Islands, but in the future, the program would be expanded to the Mossdale,
Central Lathrop Specific Plan and potentially other development areas.   On August

21, 2017 City Council approved agreements with Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering,
EKI Environment & Water,  Inc.  and RMC Water and Environment to develop the
Recycled Water Program, and this work is substantially complete.  At the request of

staff, Woodward & Curran  ( formerly RMC Water and Environment) has provided a

proposal for Program Administration and Management services that are needed to

allow the addition of recycled water for urban landscape use in the River Islands

development area.

117



CITY MAMAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH WOODARD & CURRAN FOR RECYCLED WATER

P.ROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT, CIP RW 16- 06 AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting City Council approval of an agreement with Woodard & Curran

formerly RMC Water and Environment) for Program Administration and Management
services that are needed to allow the addition of recycled water for urban landscape
use in the River Islands development.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Economic Growth by providing recycled water and
associated wastewater disposal capacity needed to serve new development projects.

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost of Woodward & Curran' s agreement in the amount of $50, 298 and $ 7, 545

Administration fee for a grand total of $57, 843, will be fully funded by River Islands.
A budget amendment to the following accounts will be required in order to allocate
the funds in the project, the budget amendment is as follows:

Increase Revenue

1010- 5006- 341- 01- 01 7, 545. 00

2710- 8000- 372- 01- 00 50, 298. 00

Increase Transfer Out

2710- 9900- 990- 9010 50, 298. 00

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 RW 16- 06 50, 298. 00

Increase Appropriation

6090- 8000- 420- 01- 00 RW 16- 06 50, 298. 00

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving an Agreement with Woodard & Curran for the Recycled

Water Program Administration and Management, CIP RW 16- 06 and Related

Budget Amendment

B.       Agreement with Woodard & Curran for the Recycled Water Program

Administration and Management, CIP RW 16- 06

118



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL IZEGULAR MEETING

APPItOVE AGREEMENT UVITH WOODARD & CURRAN FOR RECYCLED WATEfa

PROGRAM ADMIIVISTRATION AND M 4IVAGEMIENT, CIP RW 16- 06 AIVD

RELATED BUDC; ET MENDNIENT

APPRO/ ALS:

r       --..       3  $` /

Greg son Date

Senior Civil .Engineer

3   / g
Cari Ja es

v

Date     '

Director o n nce

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D'! S
Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

119



RESOLUTION NO. 18 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH WOODARD & CURRAN FOR RECYCLED

WATER PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT, CIP RW 16- 06

AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, in May 2016, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control
Board ( CVRWQCB) adopted the Waste Discharge Requirements ( WDRs) and Master

Recycling Permit ( MRP) Order R5- 2016- 0028 for the City of Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility ( LCTF); and

WHEREAS, River Islands has expressed an interest in the use of recycled

water in urban landscape areas and has agreed to fund the initial costs for Recycled

Water Program Implementation; and

WHEREAS, the Recycled Water Program Implementation CIP RW 16- 06 was

created to set up a utility to expand the use of recycled water for urban landscape
areas; and

WHEREAS, an agreement with Woodard & Curran ( formerly RMC Water and
Environment) is needed for Program Administration and Management to support this

project for the first year of program implementation; and

WHEREAS, the cost of the agreement is not to exceed $ 50, 298, in addition to

the City's administration fee in the amount of $ 7, 545 for a total cost of $ 57, 843,

which will be fully funded by River Islands.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby an agreement with Woodard & Curran ( formerly RMC Water
and Environment) for Program Administration and Management services for a cost

not to exceed $ 50, 298; and

120



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the cost of Woodward  & Curran' s agreement in

the amount of $ 50, 298 and  $ 7, 545 Administration fee for a grand total of

57, 843, will be fully funded by River Islands.   A budget amendment to the

following accounts will be required in order to allocate th e funds in the project,
the budget amendment is approved as follows:

Increase Revenue

1010- 5006- 341- 01- 01 7, 545. 00

2710- 8000- 372- 01- 00 50, 298. 00

Increase Transfer Out

2710- 9900- 990- 9010 5,0, 298. 00

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 RW 16- 06 50, 298. 00

Increase Appropriation

6090- 8000- 420- 01- 00 RW 16- 06 50, 298. 00

121



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March 2018, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSEfVT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

122



ATTACHMENT B

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES
WITH WOODARD & CURRAN

TO PROVIDE RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND
MANAGEMENT FOR RIVER ISLANDS USE AREA FOR CIP RW 16- 06

RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this day 12th of March 2018 is by and
between Woodard & Curran ("CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California

municipal corporation ("CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT submitted a Scope of Work dated February 28, 2018
in the amount of  $ 50,298 to provide recycled water program administration and

management for River Islands use area; and

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Consulting Services in accordance
with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached
hereto as Exhibit" A" and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees
to diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its
profession and to CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 50,298, for the

Professional Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit "A". CONSULTANT shall be

paid any uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of
billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.  Compensation

for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete.

Page 1 of 12

123



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included
in Exhibit "A", unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra
work and payment terms has been executed by CITY's authorized representative
prior to the commencement of the work.

3)      Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Agreement is March 12, 2018, and it shall terminate no

later than June 30t", 2019.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.  As an

independent contractor, CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means
and methods to complete the scope of work described in Exhibit " A" to City's
satisfaction.  CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in
any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.   Except as

specifically authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate
services performed by more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT
submit any billing for an amount in excess of the rates or the maximum amount of
compensation provided in section ( 2) for either task or for the entire Agreement,

unless modified by a properly executed change order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all
significant developments arising during pertormance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor
the performance of this Agreement.

7)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services
pursuant to this Agreement.   If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, without requiring the City to process a reason or explanation
for its request.

Page 2 of 12

124



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

The services shall be performed by,  or under the direct supervision,  of

CONSULTANT's Authorized Representative:    David L.    Richardson,    PE.

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representative without the prior

written approval by the CITY.

8)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for
entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein
may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S
authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S authorized
representative.

9)      Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this
Agr,eement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers

and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted

and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT'S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT.   Said Statutory
Workers'   Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million

dollars.    In the alternative,  CONSULTANT may rely on a self-
insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

program of self- insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT,  if a program of self- insurance is provided,  shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from
work performed under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 12

125



I

CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEiVIENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
I the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one

million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.

If Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be
performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting therefore,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement,   including the use of owned and non-owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/ 88)

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/ 90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to

be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of
CONSULTANT;   products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT;   premises owned,   occupied or used by
CONSULTANl'.    The coverage shall contain no special

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)      The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary

insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)     Any failure, of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting

provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to
CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 4 of 12

126



i

i

CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

v)      Insurance is to be placed with California-admitted insurers

with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.
i

j vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.       

c)      Professional Liabilitv.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S own cost
and expense,   shall maintain for the period covered by this    
Agreement professional liability insurance for licensed professionals
performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy
aggregate covering the licensed professionals' errors and omissions,
as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed
150, 000 per claim.

ii)      Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must

be received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such
change shall be included in the coverage or added as an

endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of
interest clause.

iv)     The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverage' s are written on a claims made form:

1.       The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and
must be before the date of the Agreement.

2.       Insurance must be maintained and evidence of

insurance must be provided for at least five years after

completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as
commercially available at reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not

replaced with another claim made policy form with a
retroactive date that precedes the date of this

Agreement,  CONSULTANT must provide extended

i reporting coverage for a minimum of five years after
j completion of the Agreement or the work.  The CITY

shall have the right to exercise at the CONSULTANT'S

cost, any extended reporting provisions of the policy
should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

i coverage.

i

Page 5 of 12

i

127



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

4.       A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be
submitted to the CITY prior to the commencement of

any work under this Agreement.

d)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.    CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self-insured retentions and deductibles before beginriing
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.

e)      During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY's authorized representative,

CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self- insured
retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers.   The CITY's authorized representative may condition
approval of an increase in deductible or self- insured retention levels
upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim
administration,  and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all
respects to each of them.

f)       Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsections  (a),  ( b),  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

g)      In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

ii)      Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT
hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

Page 6 of 12

128



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to
other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

10)    Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT'S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, (b) CITY

relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful
and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed.    It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is

apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and

CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to

CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct
or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subconfractors,

or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for

any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers,  employees,  agents,  or volunteers.    It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such
damages or claims for damages.

11)    Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Page 7 of 12

129



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

12)    Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party.  In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall

be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of
termination; provided,  however, that the CITY may condition payment of such
compensation upon CONSULTANT' S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,
photographs,  computer software, video and audio tapes,  and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in
connection with this Agreement.

14)    Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal.  of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the
appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given

by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, (3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service
by facsimile transmission.

Page 8 of 12

130



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:     City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Main: ( 209) 941- 7430

Fax:   ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant:     Woodard & Curran

2175 North California Blvd.

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Phone: ( 925) 627-4100

Fax:     ( 925) 627-4101

16)    Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.  Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and
shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b)      Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be
governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c)      Definitions.    The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d)      Force Majeure.   Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on
account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a
superior governmental authority.

e)      Headings.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement

and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

Page 9 of 12

131



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

f)       Incorporation of Documents.     All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in
the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties

concerning the Project and Work, and there are no other prior oral or
written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h)      Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in
writing and signed by the parties.

i)       Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement

shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance

required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j)       Severability.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable,  the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

k)      Status of CONSULTANT.   In the exercise of rights and obligations

under this Agreement,  CONSULTANT acts as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY, and
CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

I)       Successors and Assigns.   The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors
and assigns of the parties.

m)     Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and
each of its provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time

in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last.

Page 10 of 12

132



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

n)      Venue.   In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o)      Recovery of Costs.   The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against

the non- prevailing party.

17)    Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be
obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

18)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 11 of 12

133



CITY OF LATHROP - CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

WOODARD & CURRAN

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

l 
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Senior Civil Engineer

Greg Gibson Date

Accepted By:
City Manager
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

CONSULTANT:   Woodard & Curran

2175 N. California Blvd.

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Fed ID

Business License

Signature Date

Print Name and Title)

Page 12 of 12

134



COMMITMENT& INTEGRITY 2175 N. California Blvd T 925.627.4100

DRIVE RESULTS           Walnut Creek, California 94596
EXHIBjT       "

www.woodardcurran.com A.

D

February 28, 2018

Greg Gibson, P. E.
Senior Civil Engineer

City of Lathrop, Department of Public Works
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject:    Proposal to Provide Recycled Water Program Administration and Management
for River Islands Use Area

Dear Greg,

The City of Lathrop ( City) is continuing its efforts to expand the use of recycled water to the
developing community of River Islands to beneficially reuse the high- quality water produced by
the City's Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Facility ( CTF). Following adoption of the CTF
Waste Discharge Requirements ( WDR) and Master Recycling Permit ( Order R5- 2016-0028)
Permit), River Islands and the City have expressed their desire to initiate landscape irrigation

with recycled water at several new sites over the next year. For this to happen, the City needs to
implement a Recycled Water Program that has the administrative elements in place to

methodically allow use of tertiary treated effluent in River Islands in compliance with the State of
California' s Title 22 California Code of Regulations.

Woodard & Curran ( formerly RMC Water and Environment) has worked with the City over the
past year to develop this Recycled Water Program by developing several key documents
including the Recycled Water User Guide,  User Agreement,  and Site Supervisor Training
Materials. Woodard & Curran has also updated relevant City documents, including the Recycled
Water Operations Plan and Ordinance.

Woodard & Curran is pleased to present the following scope of work to support the administration
and management of the City's Recycled Water Program for River Islands Use Areas for its first
year of implementation. Woodard & Curran anticipates that River Islands will desire to irrigate

several landscape sites within their single designated Use Area with recycled water over the next

year; thus, this scope of work supports the administration and management of the City's Recycled
Water Program for as many sites as- needed within their Use Area.

Scope of Work

Task 1: Monthly Activifies

Consultant will collect landscape irrigation monitoring reports from River Islands and aggregate
them into one report to be submitted to the Regional Board. Consultant will check that these

reports meet the requirements of the WDR and work with the User to correct them if they are non-
compliant. Only one report per Use Area is required, but data from different sites within the Use

135



WOODARD
CURRAN

Area may need to be compiled. This task also includes project management related activities
such as billing, progress reporting, and meetings related to monitoring reporting.

Assumptions:

While Consultant will gather monitoring reports from River Islands, the City will submit
them to the Regional Board along with the other monthly monitoring reports required in
the WDR regarding groundwater and CTF water quality.

Deliverables:

Checked and compiled landscape irrigation monthly monitoring reports (up to 12 reports
covering the first year of City' s Recycled Water Program)

Task 2: As-Needed New Site Activities

This task includes all activities related to new sites within the River Islands Use Area that will use

recycled water for landscape irrigation. The activities described herein will be completed to ensure

that these new sites within the River Islands Use Area comply with City, Regional Board, and
State recycled water requirements.  Since the size and number of the sizes will vary over time,
this task will be charged on a time and materials basis. Additional factors, such as grouping sites
or reviewing each site individually will impact the time and materials used with this task.

Consultant will review recycled water plans from River Islands to ensure that they conform to the
guidelines set forth in the Recycled Water User Guide,  City Ordinance,  City Design and
Construction Standards, Regional Board requirements, and State requirements. If the plans do

not conform to those guidelines, Consultant will work with River Islands to update the User's

plans, as appropriate.

Consultant will provide 1- hour Site Supervisor Training courses to new River Islands Site
Supervisors to educate them on the proper use and maintenance of onsite recycled water use

facilities as needed. River Islands may require only one Site Supervisor Training, more may be
needed if additional Site Supervisors are added following the initial training.

Consultant will prepare a User Report for the new River Islands Use Area that includes a signed
UserAgreement with River Islands, per Regional Board requirements. Consultant will submit User

Reports to the Regional Board on behalf of the City.

Consultant will conduct the site inspections of new recycled water sites, using the Construction
Checklist developed as part of the Recycled Water Program Development project. During site
inspections, flow adjustments are made, tagging is inspected, and coverage is checked to verify
that construction was performed correctly. The Consultant will generate a punch list of corrections
to be made by River Islands if necessary.

If desired by the City, Consultant will retain sub-consultant who is an American Water Works
Association Certified Cross Connection Control Specialist to provide cross connection testing
services. These tests take between 4 to 8 hours each, depending on the site. Cross connection
tests will be performed using the shut-off method, as described in the Recycled Water User Guide.
The sub-consultant will complete the Cross Connection Test Certification Form for each site

tested. The sub-consultant may perform up to two cross connection tests.

136



UVOODARD
CURRAN

In addition to the tasks outlined above, there may be other recycled water program administration
items that arise due to discussions with the Regional Board or changes to the Recycled Water      

Program. Consultant will provide as- needed support for the preparation of additional materials or

for additional meetings where identified and approved by the City.

Finally, this task includes the internal and external coordination and communication necessary to
assure the project is completed as planned, including communication with City staff on the status
of the project work,   attendance at meetings,   preparation of ineeting agendas and

minutes/summary preparation of monthly invoices and progress reports and preparation and
maintenance of schedule of deliverables ( as needed).

The estimated price for this task as indicated on Attachment A is provided as a not to exceed
amount for the first year of implementation. Costs beyond the initial year shall continue to be to

charged on a time and materials basis upon River Islands/City written approval.

Deliverables:

Monthly invoice and progress reports
Attendance at meetings or conference calls with City and River Islands, and corresponding
minutes and agendas

Discussions with Regional Board.

Feedback to River Islands, if site plans do not conform to Recycled Water Program

guidelines

Site Supervisor trainings

One User Reports for the River Islands Use Area and submission of this report to the

Regional Board on the City' s behalf
Site inspections

Completed Construction Checklists

Punch list of construction corrections to be made by River Islands ( if necessary)
Updates to Recycled Water Program documents

Cross connection tests completed Cross Connection Certification forms for each site
tested

Other deliverables, as identified

Assumptions:

While Consultant will review the site plans and provide feedback for River Islands and

recommendations to the City, the City is ultimately responsible for approving the site plans.
The cost of time and transportation for Consultant to travel to Lathrop to perform Site
Supervisor trainings and site inspections is included in our fee estimate.

The cost of time and transportation for sub- consultant to travel to Lathrop to pertorm cross-
connection tests is included in the budget.

Items desired by the City or River Islands not explicitly described here, but approved by
the City, will fall under this task.

137



lNOOD IRD
CURRAi

The not to exceed cost for the scope ofwork is $ 50, 298 as detailed on the attached fee estimate

The intial schedule is for one year, but the scope can be extended annually.  Any unused budget
ishall be applied to future work in the subsequent year.

Woodard & Curran is eager to continue the collaboration with you, your staff, your consulting
team, and River Islands to help move the City' s recycled water program forward. If you have any
questions about our proposal or would like additional information, please call me at ( 926) 627-

4138.

Sincerely,

U= l( G•% 7 4

David L. Richardson, PE

Principal and National Practice Leader, Recycled Water

Woodard & Curran

138



l44 AR
x. t1 t A l

64ttachment e4 — Fee Estimate

139



o 

URRAN Level of Effort

City of Lathrop
Recycled Water Program Administration and Management

r;   .. 

PIC PM PE PE SUB                     I

315 244 182 182 200

e I.-,.-.-  .._      i   ;. F

i§i         '..       ',".,.,;,,-,.-       ; F Y;n.-.. t..,,_.  Y ''_-..

Task 1: Monthly Activities 6 0 24 0 30       $ 6, 258       0 0 0 0

l      $

0       $ 6, 258

Task 2: As- Needed New Site Activities 10 60 60 60 190      $ 39, 630 16       $ 3, 200       $ 3, 360 1, 000     $ 1, 050    $ 44, 040

I 1 1!    1 fi6 t       /

140



ITEM 4.8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       CERTIFY AND APPROVE SEWER SYSTEM

MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

RECOMMENDATION:      Approve Resolution to Update the City
Lathrop Sewer System Management Plan and
Program of Implementation

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop, along with all public entities that own or operate sanitary
sewer systems in the State of California,  is required by the State Water
Resources Control Board  ( SWRCB)  Order No.  2006- 0003 to develop and
implement a Sewer System Management Plan ( SSMP).  The City of Lathrop' s
SSMP was prepared in 2009 and needs to be periodically updated to match
current conditions and for compliance with State regulations for sanitary
sewer systems.   On June 5, 2017, the City Council approved an agreement
with EKI Environment & Water, Inc. ( EKI) to update the City' s SSMP.  Staff is

requesting Council to both certify and approve the final SSMP and its

program of implementation  ( as described in the SSMP)  are in compliance

with the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements  ( GWDR),  and

authorize the City Manager to sign the certification for submission to the
SWRCB.

BACKGROUND:

On May 2, 2006, the State Water Resources Control Board ( SWRCB) adopted

Resolution 2006- 003,  which established GWDR for all publicly owned and
operated sanitary sewer systems within the State of California.   The GWDR

requires all federal, state, municipalities, counties, districts, and other public

entities that own or operate sanitary sewer systems greater than one mile in
length that collect and/ or convey untreated or partially treated wastewater to
a publicly owned treatment facility in California to electronically report
Sanitary Sewer Overflows  (SSOs) to a State database, and to develop and
implement a system- specific Sewer System Management Plan ( SSMP).

The City of Lathrop' s SSMP was prepared in 2009 and needs to be updated to
match current conditions and for compliance with State regulations for

sanitary sewer systems.    On June 5,  2017,  the City Council approved an
agreement with EKI Environment & Water,  Inc.  ( EKI) to update the City' s
SSMP.   Working with City staff, EKI has completed the update of the SSMP.
Per the State regulations, adoption and re- certification by Council is required
whenever significant updates to the SSMP are made.    Staff is requesting
Council to certify and approve the updated SSMP and program of

implementation are in compliance with the GWDR, and authorize the Director

of Public Works to sign the certification to the SWRCB.

141



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MARCH 12, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CERTIFY AND APPROVE SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City of Lathrop, along with all public entities that own or operate sanitary
sewer systems,  is required by the State Water Resources Control Board
SWRCB)  Order No.  2006- 003- DWQ to develop and implement a Sewer

System Management Plan   ( SSMP)   in accordance with implementation

schedules mandated by the State and Regional Water Boards.    StafF has

prepared a SSMP and requests Council approve and certify that both the
SSMP and program implementation are in compliance with the GWDR and
authorize the Director of Public Works to sign the certification to the SWRCB.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No additional fiscal impact at this time.   The cost to prepare and implement

the SSMP is budgeted in the Wastewater Fund 6010, Wastewater Recycling
Plant 1- Crossroads Fund 6050 and Wastewater Recycling Plant 1- MBR Fund
6080.      

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Certifying and Approving Update of the City of Lathrop Sewer
System Management Plan and Program of Implementation

t   . 5 . ... t , xat  (  " a Y•  .  ,._  <. .' t 8t, z   ,.,.' c r . ,; a, .' . .
Fa  sl

142



CITI( f IAINAGER' S REPORT PArC; E 3

M 4FtCl-I 12, 201, CITY COUIe1CIL F EGULAR MIEETING

CER'i"IFY /AIVD APPRO/ E SEV!lElt SI STET7 fd1 41VAC; EM IVT PLA!

4PPR0 lAL:

r       2  , r

Greg N son Date

Senior Civil Engineer

Cari Jame Date

Finance Di ec or

3  --!-- 8"
Salvador fVavarrete Date

City Attorney

z•t

St. l en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

143



RESOLUTION 18-

RESOLUTION TO CERTIFY AND APPROVE UPDATE TO LATHROP SEWER
SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN AND PROGRAM OF IMPLEMENTATION

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop, along with all" public entities that own or
operate sanitary sewer systems, is required by the State Water Resources Control
Board ( SWRCB) Order No. 2006- 0003, Statewide General Waste Discharge
Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems ( GWDR) to develop and implement a
Sewer System Management Plan ( SSMP) in accordance with implementation
schedules mandated by the State and Regional Water Boards; and

WHEREAS, The City of Lathrop' s SSMP was prepared in 2009 and needs to
be periodically updated to match current conditions and for compliance with State
regulations for sanitary sewer systems; and

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2017, the City Council approved an agreement with
EKI Environment & Water, Inc. ( EKI) to update the City' s SSMP, and working with
City staff, EKI has completed the update of the SSMP; and

WHEREAS,  the SWRCB Order requires both the SSMP and the Enrollee' s

program to implement the SSMP to be certified by the Enrollee' s governing board to
be in compliance with the requirements set forth in the GWDR,  and must be

presented to the Enrollee' s governing board for approval at a public meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby both approves and certifies that the update of the City of Lathrop
Sanitary Sewer Management Plan and the program to implement the SSMP, are in
compliance with the GWDR, and authorizes the Director of Public Works to sign the
certification to the SWRCB.

r" ''  . f) 4. i.>  ... f n'C? f .. aS, L 74r r3 f   P _: t'   , r , 
r ..  . ..       i ..t''.,'+ 4       .   -       .       .. r:. f(     ,':,:' 1,. t..;.

144



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March, 2018, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIIV:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

s" r.. , d   ;!. ,. 4. . .  i. .. ;, c' f,7 . a J.. i"` izs  W._.: Yi  .., `: C      ._.    "...   t, ° G_

145



146



1
ITEM 4.9   

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST ASSOCIATED

WITH CIP PS 18- 02

RECOMMENDATION:       Approve a Resolution Authorizing Staff to

Install Speed Humps on Pine Valley Drive

Between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill

Street Associated with CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic

Calming Measures

SUMMARY:

Residents submitted a request for consideration of traffic calming measures on Pine
Valley Drive between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street; see attached diagram.
Staff reviewed the request and processed it in accordance with the adopted Traffic

Calming Program.    Along with the implementation of Level 1 measures,  staff

coordinated with Lathrop Police Services  ( LPS)  and the Lathrop Manteca Fire

Department ( LMFD).

Residents submitted a petition for the installation of speed humps,  a Level 3

measure.    Prior to the installation of a Level 2 or Level 3 measure,  the Traffic

Calming Program requires that an item be submitted to City Council for approval.

Sufficient funds have been included in the adopted FY 17- 19 Budget in CIP PS 18-

02 Traffic Calming Measures for the installation of speed humps.  Staff recommends

City Council approve the installation of speed humps on Pine Valley Drive between
Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street.

BACKGROUND:

City Council adopted a Traffic Calming Program to address local neighborhood
traffic concerns.   The Traffic Calming Program is intended to mitigate the concerns
in a systematic and efficient manner and help prevent unintended consequences,
such as redirecting traffic to other areas.   The Traffic Calming Program provides a
broad range of possible solutions to neighborhood traffic concerns.   The program

incorporates many effective ideas and traffic calming measures that have proven to
be successful in other communities throughout the region.

Pine Valley Drive is a residential street with a speed limit of 25 miles per hour
mph)   and is located in the Valley Haven Unit No.   1 subdivision near the

intersection of Lathrop Road and
5th Street.   In the fall of 2017, staff received a

request for consideration of traffic calming measures on Pine Valley Drive between
Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street to mitigate excessive speeding.

147



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

In accordance with the Traffic Calming Program,  staff coordinated with LPS to

implement Level 1 traffic calming options.  These options included increased police

enforcement and the deployment of a speed radar trailer.   After a period of 60

calendar days, the Level 1 measures have proven unsatisfactory in resolving the
residents' concern; as a result, Level 2 and Level 3 measures are being considered.

Level 2 measures include striping narrow lane, optical speed bars, painted chicanes,
painted lateral shift,   flashing crosswalks and stop signs.      Due to roadway
geometrics and the need for on street parking, staff has determined that Level 2

measures are not applicable.

Residents submitted a petition for the installation of speed humps on Pine Valley
Drive,  a Level 3 measure.    The petition contained the signatures for 70%  the

properties that face directly on Pine Valley Drive between Prairie Dunes Drive and
Oakhill Street; the Traffic Calming Program requires a minimum of 50%.

Letters were sent to the properties that face directly on Pine Valley Drive between
Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street informing them of this Council meeting at
which the speed humps will be considered.  In addition, staff notified LPS and LMFD

of the request to install speed humps and no objections were raised.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending that speed humps be installed on Pine Valley Drive between
Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street associated with CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming
Measures.   Staff received a petition containing signatures of at least 50% of the

properties that face directly on the block under consideration.   No objections were

raised by LPS or LMFD.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Public Safetv by implementing the adopted Traffic
Calming Program.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Authorizing Staff to Install Speed Humps on Pine Valley Drive
between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street Associated with CIP PS 18- 02

Traffic Calming Measures

B.  Speed Hump Installation Exhibit

148



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TRAFFIC CALMING REQUEST ASSOCIATED WITH CIP PS 18- 02

APPROVALS:

2-Z$ I$

Michael King Date

Senior Civil Engineer

2-Z-

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3 1•$
Ste J. Salvatore Date

C' y Manager

149



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING STAFF TO INSTALL SPEED HUMPS ON PINE VALLEY DRIVE

BETWEEN PRAIRIE DUNES DRIVE AND OAKHILL STREET ASSOCIATED

WITH CIP PS 18- 02 TRAFFIC CALING MEASURES

WHEREAS, residents have submitted a request for consideration of traffic to

install speed humps on Pine Valley Drive between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill
Street; and

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the request and processed it in accordance

with the adopted TrafFic Calming Program; and

WHEREAS,  stafF has coordinated with Lathrop Police Services and the

Lathrop Manteca Fire Department and no objections ,were raised by emergency
responders; and

WHEREAS, residents have submitted a petition for the installation of speed

humps, a Level 3 measure, and the petition contained 70% of the properties that

face directly on Pine Valley Drive between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street;
and

WHEREAS,  prior to the installation of a Level 2 or Level 3 measure,  the

Traffic Calming Program requires that an item be submitted to City Council for
review and approval; and

WHEREAS, letters were sent to the residents on Pine Valley Drive between
Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street informing residence of this Council meeting
at which the modifications will be considered; and

WHEREAS,  staff is recommending that speed humps be installed on Pine
Valley Drive between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are included in the. adopted FY 17- 19 Budget in

CIP PS 18- 02 Traffic Calming Measures for the installation of speed humps;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby authorizes staff to install speed humps on Pine Valley Drive
between Prairie Dunes Drive and Oakhill Street;

150



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:      

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

151



ATTACHMENT B

iP        "

s  . `           +  
k       

2  `;a'
4   ",         1`ii;,,      . i  #   

i    

irY a i   `,   zr ,  Y S  ;    g, l s.       ;, s w   ,    .     . ,,     .

x  

si¢     
q x        

3
i

k d '        y  "  `, .    3$  '°`.
et'`' Y     «

09     .          `"       
q   [.- i,°.

4.*    "      ; iq   $   . eS
P "' 4,+ep      ; , h9  , 4.  ,;„`' g • 

r

yp..»,  
a.  

r  . Y'     R `+
t"    .' +`,*, M".:      

E
f'     RV

s      '           #  l   ° r 

we  ,     
y  _°      3#e     i

y   ;`
a "  '

s` n:

t , Y' z.;: ,,    ° `' '+  '
t

t

fE    

fi '      .,,.' J°      ' .' P`"  
4 `'.   ""' 

sr' 
i`;  '       ^''     ', t

a, s. 
i- ,

q r
k p p s,

745i 3±,;
y,     `

t,+     }„     '  ^

eGr   .   .
y Xw 1u...     ,,,""

y  ' 
k' t d: m.  '

t'       
w"   

t  .,,
v   ,'    '

3."""'' I  F' a   4 
c.

j*   ; 
se     '.   '  

a.4w,,'   +,+

i:;    

ns+
y ..,,,,

a',' y:'#' `",    $
t." s'd̀i   '  *^'# h- ,,., ww.   '  1 Z     t, p:.

m

k, tg? . 3 a'"   ;.. f ,   `.   i
r,;.

a   
w_Y.,.,    + '+

tl` -.

j.

M+

M ' ;"..'"
y; a ,.,,'    

G  ,   ,

cdn

Y

75 "        - ro    „ b  ,+^.    -      .     
x 3 -.  1 N kr

a            ag a   —.`  ; y

lc ' y    a,.'°"    

j y  

y   `" J   € ..:°` `"  
k. `  

r.`"^'
p      , ' 1 t

x

E        

f•l   „ 4, w 

a           +    '"

t
p   ,.

yi,
e

R      

1'," $'"   .,`

n    ^ '  

4        k
k     £ "?^   

1y'      "   a              '#'       +„
X?'   ,  ' r, A

x  `
T y i  4n . °'

h    
a,       

4 ^ ."     } "`   ,       ` y,    t         ., T
r     "!       g ir     $

y '+'',     : 5   *` v   r    te:'; y`.q " g?' e,,     
i ic ': 

xt
A   -  «

aM ,     ".

w? 1' a i,+              #'  
i

g t
Stil!

f,     ti , u+ P t I s. i    
y..       

e     

ir,
p v'#  "     

k       , i  '  S,:    ew
k',"

F        '  •   = a w sy'}
b ,

x
x'  as              ` y,..  ,, ,.,.,,, 

f , d °

4'    
m    

d 4 , a be

F    „

g

a ^'
G

q Y      "'   '
r ,,

y  , r,. , r
o

W;, 

U'   ^  
iy,,,;

n"   

aF . .

s„.°   rt 
l     a 1

k,     "' 
3 tl.;

g_ 
v  •:      i" d„' i'.q.a e e'      ..'

S t' a

9„     ti`    '$ S,.w  ' .     .  

a       +

Yi  '
a ,,      

h,:

k.

r     ..:     : i'§,      ^ 4'' ",  ,:   ti «'     .         
M r.' n r

r    '

e.      e  ''. . ,,,"" 

Y      *''".,  

t,<

1, '"` f ,       . .    `.
a;'''      '    ;.  

J 
i

Vr u'` e     * '"`  B ' $,.^' y#}" :?  ...
s"   + .   a 1F k'.  ' y      

r  '

p     

j'. j     ,' Y     f; .,       1'  l:':'*k    .    
x.,.  

y,,,
E '' .   1' 1  "'`•  " i    ;

r
yy"  _    ,"   y°!

r' q1 s

y,
r

q     
0   ."' z,    d Y.'      z 1     , ir K . r

p:. tz  ' i'  '       . ..<°        
s     '..'" t' t̂ b "`            .

i.

g r,   `°     :    *  #'      x       `, 
t<'       " 

M' .   °     } 
a,  ' ,           .    '            . i       .      

m j", a"" ;,' n z:

w

f Y r      "; .,   A11         A°  
d4  ',^, r a .   bs tw.ti"',"r.  , z

a     „.  -  

u._.;      ' }

r    °    .

r ^       
7 : l ?     '^'z

gs x  €             "   
c E    "

fi' t.  ,       
fi'  

1 " 9

t" 71v s

tf c .       

s      t  m-n  [ Mralr, l,_      E a'   '' f, p_        S     a p

Proposed speed hump location   

Existing speed hump locations    

152



ITEM 4. 10
CITY MANACER' S REPORT .   

N1 4RCii 9.2, 2018 CITY COUMCIL REGl1LAl MEETING

ITEM:  APPROi/ E THE LONGITl1DIIVAL PIPELIRIE

e4GREEWIENT WITFi IJNION PACIFIC It YLROA D

UPRRj ASSOCYATED WITIi THE RIVEIZ

ISLANDS EAST SIDE SEWER FORCE MAIN

PROJECT AND l      REL ED BUDGET

AMEIVDMEi IT

RECOMMENDATION:       dopt a Resolution Approving the Agreement
with UPRR for the River Islancls East Side

Sewer Force Main Project and a Related

uelget Amendment

SU M fwAl l(:

Staff is requesting City Council approve a Longitudinal Pipeline Agreement

Agreement) with Union Pacific Railroad  ( UPRR) The Agreement between the City
and UPRR will allow River Islands access to UPRR' s right of way to construct three
pipelines from Harlan Road to the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF).

Staff recommends City Council approve the Agreement with UPRR to allow River
Islands Contractors access to UPRR' s right of way to construct three pipelines, two
pipelines for sanitary sewer and one pipeline for recycled water for the River, Islands
East Side Sewer Force Main Project.   The Agreement has a , one- time fee in the

amount of $ 750, 000 fully funded by the River Islands Development with no cost to
the City.

ACKGROUND:

Currently, River Islands sewer force main are directed to the Mossdale Sewer Pump
Station.    The River Islands East Side Sewer Force Main Project will allow River

Islands to connect directly to the LCTF for both sanitary sewer flow and recycled
water.   Once the pipelines are complete and accepted by the City, the River Islands
sewer force main line to the Mossdale Pump Station will be disconnected.   The

Agreement secures an easement and sets forth the City' s and UPRR' s rights and
duties throughout the project and after construction is complete.

RECAMMENDATYOM:  

Approve the Longitudinal Pipeline Agreement with Union Pacific Railroad ( UPRR) for

construction of the River Islands east side sewer force main project within UPRR' s
right of way.

153



CITV MARlAGE12' REPORT Page 2

I IIARCFI 12, 201, CITY COUIVCIL REC; ULAR NIEETIIo1G

LOiVGITUDIIVAL PIPELINE AGREEMEfdT 1A/ ITH UI lIOfV P14CIFIC

RAILROAD ( IJPRft) ASSOCIA7`ED V1/ I7'{i THE RI!/ ER ISLARlDS EAST

SIDE SEIIVER FORCE M IN PRO] ECT AIVD A RELAT D Bl1DC9ET

e4MEiVDMENY

FISCAL II IP CT

The Agreement has a one- time fee to be paid in the amount of $ 750, 000 to allow

access to the UPRR right of way the fee is fully funded by the River Islands
Development with no cost to the City.      

The following budget amendment is needed:

Increase Appropriations

4150- 8999- 371- 9100 750, 000

4150- 8999- 420- 0100- 190133 750, 000

Q TTAC Fi M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Longitudinal Pipeline Agreement with Union Pacific Railroad

B.  Union Pacific Railroad Longitudinal Pipeline Agreement

154



CITY MQ NAGER' S REPORT Page 3

Mi4RCH 12, 201, CITY COUIVCIL REGULAR NIEETING

Al1THORIZE THE CITY MANAGEI3 l'O APPFSO\ OE TI-IE FIIVAL

COIVST'I UCTION 4ND MAINTENANCE # GIZEEMIENT 1NITFi UNIOIV

PACIFIC R ILIt0 4D ( llPRR), e4SSOCI TED WITH TWE RIVER ISLAIVDS

E 5T SIDE SEWEFS FORCE MAIIV PI O) ECT

aPPItOVALS:

2-  
Ken Reed Date

Construction Manager

3///
Cari James Date

Director of i ance

7 -lg
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

155



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

APPROVE A LONGINTUDINAL PIPELINE AGREEMENT WITH UNION PACIFIC

RAILROAD FOR RIVER ISLANDS EAST SIDE SEWER FORCE MAIN PROJECT

AND A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, River Islands sewer force main pipelines are currently directed to
the Mossdale Sewer Pump Station and the River Islands East Side Sewer Force Main
Project will allow River Islands to connect directly to the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility ( LCTF) for both sanitary sewer flow and recycled water; and

WHEREAS, our Agreement is needed to allow River Islands access to UPRR' s

right of way to construct the three pipelines, two pipelines for sanitary sewer and one
pipeline for recycled water for the River Islands East Side Sewer Force Main Project;
and

WHEREAS, construction of the two sanitary sewer lines and the recycled water
line will allow the River Islands Development direct access to the LCTF and upon

completion, the River Islands sewer force main line to the Mossdale Pump Station will
be disconnected; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement one- time fee in the amount of $750, 000 is fully
funded by the River Islands Development with no cost to the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the Longitudinal Pipeline Agreement with Union Pacific
Railroad and the following budget amendment:

Increase Appropriations

4150- 8999- 371- 9100 750, 000

4150- 8999- 420=0100- 190133 750, 000

156



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

157



i. G d D
d    M1,

Folder No. 3071- 96

LONGITUDINAL PIPELINE AGREEMENT

Mile Post: 90.40 to 91. 25, Tracy Subdivision
Location: Lathrop, San Joaquin County, California

This LONGITUDINAL PIPELINE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of

the day of 201_ (" Effective Date"), by and between UNION PACIFIC
RAILROAD COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, to be addressed at 1400 Douglas Street, MS 1690,

Omaha, Nebraska 68179 (" Licensor"), CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation, to be

addressed at 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California 95330(" Licensee").

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED

BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS:

Article 1. LICENSOR GRANTS RIGHT.

A.       In consideration of the license fee to be paid by Licensee set forth below and in
further consideration of the covenants and agreements to be performed by Licensee, Licensor hereby
grants to Licensee the right to construct and thereafter, during the term hereof, maintain and operate
one( 1) underground, longitudinal pipeline twelve inch( 12") in width and approximately Three Thousand
Five Hundred and Five Feet ( 3, 505') in length, one ( 1) underground, longitudinal pipeline eighteen inch

18") in width and approximately Three Thousand Five Hundred and Teen Feet ( 3, 510') in length, for

transporting and conveying sanitary sewer only, and one ( 1) underground, longitudinal pipeline sixteen
inch ( 16") in width and approximately Four Thousand Two Hundred and Ninety-Six Feet ( 4,296')
in length, for transporting and conveying recycled water only, including any appurtenances required for
the operation of said pipeline ( collectively,  " Licensee' s Facilities") across Licensor' s real property,
trackage, or other facilities located in Lathrop, San Joaquin County, State of California(" Railroad
Property"). The specific specifications and limited purpose for Licensee's Facilities on, along, across and
under Railroad Property are described in the approved engineering plan set dated August 15, 2017
and shown on the Prints dated January 12, 2018, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, Exhibit A-2, Exhibit
A-3, Exhibit A-4, Exhibit A-5 and made a part hereof.

B. Licensee represents and warrants that Licensee's Facilities will  ( i)  be used for

transporting and conveying recycled water and sanitary sewer only, and ( ii) not be used to convey any
other substance,  any fiber optic cable,  or for any other use,  whether such use is currently
technologically possible, or whether such use may come into existence during the life of this Agreement.

C.       Licensee acknowledges that if it or its contractor provides Licensor with digital imagery
depicting Licensee's Facilities (" Digital Imagery"), Licensee authorizes Licensor to use the Digital

Imagery in preparing Exhibit A. Licensee represents and warrants that through a license or otherwise, it
has the right to use the Digital Imagery and to permit Licensor to use the Digital Imagery in said manner.

Article 2. TERM.

This Agreement shall.take effect as of the Effective Date first herein written and shall continue in

full force and effect until terminated as provided in the " TERMINATION; REMOVAL OF LICENSEE' S
FACILITIES" Section of Exhibit B.

158



r es[ 3.       LICE E' E.  

Upon exec tion of this Aga-eement, Licensee shall pay to Licensor a one-tirne iicense fee af
Seven E- lundred and Fifty Thousand L>ollars($ 750,OQ0.00).    

Ar' sc 4.       Al2t@' 1 15'' a' 9' dDLiN HARG.

U.pon execution and delivery of this Agrecment, the Licensee shall pay to Ftaiiroad an additional,
s ne- time adminastrafive handlFng change oPOne Thousancf and if y Five D llars($ 1, 055. 00} for clericai,

admanistr tive and handling e pense in connection.witl processie g this Agre rrr ent.

r rt'scl 5.       LHC N' Ol@ i.I Pt' I'- Il N,' d'. ,

Licensee represents and varrants that atl work on Licensee's Facilities perfarmed by Licensee or
its contractors will strictly cosa ply vith all terms and conditions set forth herein, including tl e General
Terrns and Canditions, attached hereto as E chB ait and re ade a part hereof.

A tf.       I' WO iS PE13F'4:       I3Y C' Il'    ' CD 3.

If a contcactor is hired by Liceresee to perfornra any w rk on Licensee'.s Facilities, then Licensee
shali require its contractor to execute Licensar' s then-cunent form of Contraciar' s Right of Entry
Agreement(" Cf pE"). l. icensee acknowledges that:( i) the C ZOE attached hereto as Ea aibaQ and made

a part hereof is the most current farm available as ofthe Effective C3ate; and( ii) the terms and conditions

of the C 20E are subject to ehange by L'ecensor, such changes to be made at Lieensor's sole discretion.
Licensee shall require its contractors and subcontractors to execute the CROE before any contraeEors or
subcontractors are aliowed onto Railroad Property pursuant Licensee's notificatian requirements set forth
in the" NOTICE F CQ 1tv ENCEMENT OF WORK; EMERGENCIES" 5ection of' sl t.

rksc6e 7.       PdSU      .

A.      During the term of this Agreement, Lieensee sha11 fully comply or cause sts contractor( s)
to fs lly co nply with the ansurance requirements described 'an hi 6t C, attached hereto and made a part
hereof.  , icensee shali send copies of all insurance documentafion ( e. g., certificates, endorsernents, etc.}
to Licensor at the address listed in the" NOTICES" Sectian of this. Agreement.

B.       lf Licensee is subject to statute( s) limiting its insurance liability and/ or lirniting its ability
to obtain insurance in compliar ce with Exhibit C of this, 4greement, those staWtes shall ap} ly.

Art c e 8.       A''' Q I+1 YS' F' 5. EX EiV E.. IID COS'H' S.

If litigation or other court action or similar adjudicatory proceeding is undertal:en by Licensee or
Licensor to enfarce its rights under this Agreement, all fees, c sts, and exp nses, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, of the prevailin Party in such aetion, suit, or
proceeding shall be reimbursed or paid by the Pai-ty against wh se interest the judgment or decision is
cendered. The provisions ofthis Article shall survive the termination ofthis Agreement.

r' tie t 9.       AI d OF' 1tEA.

The vaiver by Licensor o€' the breach of any condition, covenant or agreement-herein contained

159



to be kept, observed and performed by Licensee shall in no way impair the right of Licensor to avail itself
of any remedy for any subsequent breach thereof.

Article 10.      ASSIGNMENT.

A.       Licensee shall not assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, or any rights herein
granted, without the written consent of Licensor, which must be requested in writing by Licensee. Any
assignment or attempted transfer of this Agreement or any of the rights herein granted, whether voluntary,
by operation of law, or otherwise, without Licensor' s written consent, will be absolutely void and may
result in Licensor's termination of this Agreement pursuant to the " TERMINATION; REMOVAL OF

LICENSEE'S FACILITIES" Section of Exhibit B.

B.       Upon Licensor's written consent to any assignment, this Agreement will be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties thereto, successors, heirs, and assigns, executors, and administrators.

Article 11.      SEVERABILITY.

Any provision of this Agreement which is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid or unenforceable shall be invalid or unenforceable only to the extent of such determination, which
shall not invalidate or otherwise render ineffective any other provision of this Agreement.

Article 12.      AGREEMENT TO SUPERSEDE

This Agreement shall cancel and supersede the Original Agreement dated April 1, 2007 and

identified as Audit No. 245947 and shall take effect as of the Effective Date first herein written.  The

Original Agreement shall terminate and the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern the use,

maintenance and repair of the underground tweleve ( 12) inch sanitary sewer pipeline, underground
eighteen( 18) inch sanitary sewer pipeline, and underground sixteen( 16) inch water pipeline.

Article 13.      NOTICES.

Except Licensee's commencement of work notice( s) required under Exhibit B, all other notices

required by this Agreement must be in writing, and ( i) personally served upon the business address listed
below (" Notice Address"), ( ii) sent overnight via express delivery by a nationally recognized overnight
delivery service such as Federal Express Corporation or United Parcel Service to the Notice Address, or
iii) by certified mail, return receipt requested to the Notice Address.  Overnight express delivery notices

will be deemed to be given upon receipt. Certified mail notices will be deemed to be given three( 3) days

after deposit with the United States Postal Service.

If to Licensor:    Union Pacific Railroad Company
Attn: Real Estate Utilities( Folder No. 3071- 96)

1400 Douglas Street, MS 1690

Omaha, Nebraska 68179

If to Licensee:    City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive,

Lathrop, California 95330

160



1N W(TNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the
Effective Date.      

UNY83I i PACIFIC 1LROAID C(. I I' t lY l,       CI'T C OF' L. A'Ti P,

a I)eladvs re eorporafi n a CalAi'oe n6a I unicinal sorporation

By: Tony K. Love By:
Title: Vice President-- Real Estate Title:

161



EXHIBIT A

Construction plans prepared by O' Dell Engineering to construct the two sewer
pipelines and one recycled water pipeline within the UPRR right of way.

162



P1 4CE ARR01Y 1NDICATlNO_ NORTH FOti1N DR- Q,A 9- Q
DlRk. TION RELATIVE TO CR0551NC         AEV 5 15 98

Q
vwuw.uprr.com

v:      ,  ENC SEI ° NUN-FL.A;1' IN BLE .  

PI]PELINE C SING
NOTEO ALL AVhILABLE OIMENSlONS. MU57 ; 9E

NO SCALE FILLED IN JO PROCESS TH15 APALICATION.

O T
r

T  .        .     

Rfl' S

F  - Fr.I - ,.  .„».,     ... FL FY.  

i,       
SEE_NOTE 3 6}  S E 5 

s t, FT
w

ro A Y1 l11@           g s u.,      
y

xc. c eF CNOSSiNO

w

i TO Ei7f dtTfa l,_t1fA Sf R.  16RM) 
i 1B[ q FTAR{! f RR i011Np

1"'  1 1   t I "     7

fi VT,              Df R L ftl  .. ,      
SfE NOIE f  Si[ NOfC f      •  

y'+~,        tiotuaxc to+o TKwc raw sar ox uxr cwosstna  .    ¢;,
e h CfoSSeS 1.  norfti . .yt rr.

Zl'"•.      
Ft o hE ma qGv e trttcK .   

H91F 1H85 OIYLNSION WfOU flE0 1N Alt CISES.
Af LOCATIO.yS ROi{ K No stetioMs, allTAIiCE      ( r a. surrd per rullty Af GJ}  
70 A E6AL SU$ Y6Y L 8E t6 WCOUfRtO)

b eR' L.w r BASlMlt t
FT.  f+: FT.   + i+---- " f7.    

1

l sr E. cnsiNa wnc.
s: Hei:

r r I THICKNESS CHAAT
i

uu aq+oc I rH{ cXt ss ces HoiePiPF 1

E sias- se s- ov p :•`- ie      °
5 s sa• a s- oveR i e•- za•      f

1. 6 t Fult. 1 t.  137Y 7/ 16• OYER 22- aa
Ff.   t: o rr. wf.) s.,, ir     eu. slNo       • 5000 I/ 2' OYER 26 31

St4 C S NO 1] F[. ul .    562E 9/ IB' dVEN !+ d 2       CAlIHO PIP ( Su Nol)     
6260" b/ 8' OVEfl 2'.- B'

r..r——-    -
r...—____—. .    \      

OYER A• LUSi BE
tuwlta Irt APPRaVEb 6Y R. N. C4. .       

I
NOTU iN15 CNAAF { Sp{, Y      I i0R 51100iR STEEL CAS[ NO

i i.       PIP S KIYK MIHI N Y 0
STpEHDTH OF 35 Q00 t.

1'     7 D a-- li i1..^-      
a rs.      ,._

FT.       yt.S
t Q. a FT.    ---.,

Fr.  FONIULA TO F14UAE CASIHG
LENOTH MI1N ANGLE ai
CROSSlH OTBFR TNAN 4M

FT.   
8 .NOi[ 3 1 CASIH6 LENGiN l IiCN 1ti SIlRLO' ILOIp PIPEItNG)     1       
g! N11 k MA1ltpltFL 019fWC[ S 10 OL I ASIALD AT RIGIf IiHOLlS MOY4 0 fILLCR. 5 IG 4t+Jl E/ S7 P( i    

2) C461N0 i0 LtTUD,.s( TOlQ, TNL1 0 71GC[ AT RfCNT IICLES iFE 411GTW. Of 20 70 fT, on o rt.,  . . R. Wo(al;    y      8wo enoxa uwir or iutieom n cxt-a- At 11' k[ CLS3Mr IO IlIOYIOi M40r[ A LEli01H. 0U1lIOf'0I TMCI. o

u N. o sr.1 41NIMW OF 50' ippl' HL Elq Oi AN1f MIIIlOJiO UIQOi t.Of A IN tU.YL t OR fRW 11fr S fp11M8 AlIU. . 
Oi[ 7SIOIi1L RCM[ drEq ATIfi Wfl t MKf[ Nf DIAIN4 i1ri1ALLAT16N 1 MILI191D SIGNtIS Ilt tN, TM[ Y1CfM111 Ci tWSf lq. 

sE uor u e xca oeueis tHnuor 6AC4t1lLS oi lR100ES t Oi NORO C10fSINOS OYqM[ M I OIICiS( OIYE RWO/ 1A Ri. 011 CIRY[ IITS.
C bIMO IID[ al{wl[ N I L WSf L t![ 0 A YINIWI OF 2 F[[ Mlp 1HC[ t1SiIM0 ItEW OPi[ C C li. AMY C GYATIOR 11[ OUINtO IiNIN
4 Ei[ OG 111[ [ tliT! O f ILt OIi C CASI[   

A) IS PIPELINE CR055( NG YfIYHIN DEDICATED STREET 7 YES       0;   EXHIBXT  A 1
B1 1F. YES MAME ( FF. SiAEET

t t y*   i0) DISTRIBt1T10N UNE OR TflAN5A1155[ ON LINE
c caRRI R PIPe :      UN[ ON PAC[ FiC RAtI. RQAO CO3COi kt4DITY Ta BE CONVE EO B C CL O 1+ AT K

OPERATINC PRE55URE°.. P51 t    y, fQLK.   ,  J`.
11ALL THICKNE55  •'-  D1AA{ETER= MATERIAl_  i

El, CASINQ PlPE t      `      . K
OfAMETER 30   AtATER1Al

M p --  E 5 D a 6a*
YIALL THICKNE55 0,  eo 54EEL   

MDTE CCASfNG MUST HAVE. 2" CLEARANCE 9ETIYEEH GREA' iEST ENCASED 4 pii  CROSSING. AT       `OUTSIDE DIAMETEB OF CARRIER P1PE. AND INTERIOR DtMIfiTER OF
CAS 1 NG P! PE. 1YH li FIIAN[ SH 1 N4 O IMEHS I ONS  G f YE OUTS 1 DE OF o 4hra»    Sa.. .. c. y. 1.,      CA
CAHRlER PIPE ANO [ NSIDE OF CASING P{ PE.      t eaeu trn tcwi inrr -  

rFI AI NOD F INSTALLINa. CASINC P1PE UNOER 7RACKIS1i C7, t,f,  A,DRY BOAE ANO JACK i WET BOtiE. HOT PER 117tE0) _   y„--   yruHNe j ozHea
RR FILE N0.: 3o7/- 9 , DA7   ' I a- ao 83} RILI, CONSTRUCiION 6E BY. AN. OUTSIDE, COMTflACTQFCt,.., Y S=, Hp  

N4
JACKiVCPl'FSWH EASURED AT R1GHTrANGLES TOCTAACK OFiI   , AND     ,  Y  p H t M. 0

t APPLiCAHT HAS CONTACTEO I- BRO- 336 9193 x ae s etis u P. LWU{jG{ TIONS
U,  P. CW, IUN 1 TIaN EPARTI ENr, AND HA DETERIAINED F IBER

T f+ atEo iH ov wet
OPTIC CABLE OOES      b0E5 NOT. •  EXIST fN YICINIYY oF

i° a staxt ua
x nax a n rr arric aac.YIORR TO 8E PERFOAAtED .  T I CKE7: N0.=   oos'v 3 D k o o N-   pp, K.„

163



Pl ' CE bRROW I ND 1 CAi l NO, NOATN FORbA DR- OA04- 8
D1R. TI N RELATIVE TO Cq05SINC ti=  REV.  5- 15- 98

t 
o

VYWW. U IrC.00 1'{  ,

a'   ENC.A.SED. .N N-'k'LAMNYt B. E
v 

FII ELINE CR SSING
x'   NOTE:. AI.L AVAILABL DIMENSIONS MUST BE

NO SCALE F1LLE0 [ N 70 PROCF.SS TR[ S APPLICATION,       

C M

r yQ
B9' fiM

a`
Cj'

ti      FT.    
PT.

s« r ia a e s? see taie 3 e s PT.

roly:
1 y1L             g  r

c cc caaisixo    ro nde tr cK
1 ARif R. 0.   A I 7111tR fREML i i4R.. TO'MXI

1 1      .  a

oateplec` rtxeo ooeter'       St3 1i 6F a    ei 
1 s e xot¢ s) , ac narc, s . .      

y4'`'
ti Ios i N C AtoKa irtilcK iR04[ clta4 CI+¢ ufos lNoi     " P'  he C fo ibe5 ! 7s'! n rf   

FT.

g' y   s._`  .OfT.      n iher+ta,K/.r1 Frack r.
NOTCt 1H1S OIMLIfS10M A[ OUGIIo IN ALL C4SCS.

A1 LOCAttOAS I101 tl31N0 S[ Ciiqls, 0 ST NCC      Ct easkr d pPr' T)
fo A lta L SUnYtr LIHE is Rf0U111W

NA' b NA 1 T     .  

r.   ------{ a o FT.   +—---- . r.

inx, ocsT i STNICRNESSNCHART
Su Ne1    

L N11RIM D1A ETER p
sueo Aa           Tii CKNESS CASIk4 PIPE

l124• 5%16• CVfR 2'- e
3760` 3/ S'  OYER 10"- 22'Fr.  

S16' 7/ 16' OYER 22'- 26'6i[ YIN. 1
iT.   { ro rr. ux) I FT.     sc4' as[ xo       •

5000 1/ 2 DYER 2e•] 4•
s626• 9/ 16 OYER 34'- t"SUL' WS Na CAltNC I 4ss Rof.)     ]

s u1r l
5250• 616'  OVEfl 42- 4:      ;

OYER 0' 4L15T BE
e. Ral t atac APPROYEO 61' R. R. C0.

e    /      j fRE
SND11N STEEL

CASIH6Y
1

i PIPES 11 T fl IIINILl11l TIELO

I
STREH0 11 OF S aDO PSI.

Z p 14 I.      

I
r     

IY 3_ FT N FOMRAJI TO FICURE CASIHo.
1

I+'------ FT.

I LENOTH t) fH ANGIE OF.QS3 r•  CqOSSINO OTHEFI TNAN 9W
r.    B

901LS 1 CAStHO LENOiN 1 fUA[ 0 ItEqO p pfLtN4)     
11 lll. MDRItOMfAI DISS/ XCC9 TO! L It1.7!! 1[ 0 AT ION MOILb fA0Y4 0 TIIAtIt.     SC C( GJ 7RL N{UI j( S N
21 CIISIMO i0[ IItOC A[ Tpio iN[ l W. Tl14{ i R ONT N01. tf IHL' 011[ YGt p/ p 20 l.r CR JO It.    '. /, dFL_i   .   

k
0

Q ICtpD LI411 0 M1lIk0 0 IIIENf Of-11AT If IILCf37YH' 10/ 110YIOC MIO GI LI'M01H OUTSIOE 0/ T14CR.      7      ! K
IA H. IST.1' LIN11W O SO' flldl 1HC ih0 Oi AN1f RA{ 1R0a0 Ri90i i.Oi IWr CILrUIf 0! 1 iil0u IWY S IfCHllq RG4

IpIL 1)
1 SIGWL tlMlLNt f Yi WS C iSCNT p1A1NQ ! NSlAL4lildl t MILRORO SIGl/L5/ fit lH INL YICINIIt Oi tROSSINO,

jl A I.pIA{ LC IIf[ 9 OO iCTS IKiLIp[ c BiCifll S Oi lAIOOLSj l.OC 1 11 CqC1f NOS 6 dytANtID r1 JCTS f OIV[ R01D NWEI 011 t14Y[ 5.
1 C fINO A10 CM111[ q 1 L LlST E[ 1LAC[ 0 A YlXIW1 Oi! K[ T l[LO/ 1NL ERl6T1N0 fle(Jt OP1 C GRC. FNt[ 1fCAYATIOH 11[ 0{I II O f1iNIN

I f OF iF EIIl11fA IIE 0! t G t

A) IS PIPELINE CR055ING WlTNIN DEpICATBO STHEE' ?     YESi. NOf EgCHIBIT   "A 2"
B 1 I F. YES HAME OF STREET a ii„ i„

01 D STRI9UTION L1NE dR TRANSMi55lON LIHE , i
CI CARRIER PIPE :  UN I ON PAC I F I C RA 1 LROAD C0.

CO EIWOlTY TO B5 CONYEYEO S@vJaAP_
OPERAT I NC PHESSUHE       PS I 1 u!. rruck v,op Tra c, Su6.
NALL THICKHESS I; D AMETER_ '

Z    ; MATERIAL    — ZP   –
ry

iYmZyl iF----

EI CASINa PIPE : Q' p-
WALL THICKNE55°•' K'

p 

OfAMETER Z•  luIATERIAL s' tG         • P aD E. S.       ` af t

NOTE i CA51 NG MU57 NAVE 2" CLEARANCE BETWEEN GREATEST ENCASED PiQet       ..  CROSS I NG AT
OU751DE DIAMETER OF CARREER P1PE AND 1NTEAIDR DIMIETER OF
CA51H0 PIPE. 1YHEN FURNlSHtN(3 OIfAEHSIONSi OIVE OUTSIDE OF 4o N.r.o Sw„ S.w,,L,      CA
CARAIER pIPE AND INSIDE Of CASING P1PE.      O 01f vo xt nr. t

Fl MEfH_QF IHSTALLINC CASING P1PB UNDER TRACKISI:      
L7 y    

b,DRY BORE ANO JACK WET BORE HOT PEH 1lTtEQ1     
SUNNE ; oTHER

RR F 1 LE Np. 307/- 96 DA7 E +" a8
01 1Y1L1 COMSTf1UCTI0N DE BY AN QUT5IOE CONTRACTOR7 YE5,— Pl0;      
k} D15TANCE FRODA CENTER i. IHE OF iliACK TO NEAR FACE QF BOR M AHD g H . H 4JaCKIHC PIiS WHEH MEaSUREO AT RIOHT ANGLES 7u fRACK
i1 APPL1CAkT HA5 CONTACTEb 1- 800- 336- 9193

7D' ° j iN t xc oNs, u . toiw le t1oNs

U. P. CaMUUHICA7I0N DEAARTMEHT  ANO HA oE7ERI INED FtBER
r r ee eo T o to lx Aovu  

OPT1C CABLE DOES f D0 5 NOY EXiST 1H Y[ CIHiTY OF
t M^' T° o[ 1e+ INe exletwet tiw

WORK TO BE PE ORMED .  7iCKET H0.   ; oSreaoy••  
10C xoai iioa- ius  

164



PLh £ ARRQW INOiCATIN; NORTH FORM pR Oqa4- a

DiRECTIOH RELATfVE 70 CROSSINO       fiEV, 5= 15- 98
www,uprr.aom

0"?,      ENC.. SED NON- FL1 1' I IA.BLE

FI ELINE CR 55ZATG
NafE:  ALL _AVAILA9L oiMEN5taN5 MU57 9E

N0 SCALE FlLLEO IH TO PR4CES5 THIS APPLICATION.
Y Og 6hi8NPr?

aa s. anr.

q     . . .  .      .       .   .   . 

Fi. FT. 
00

v~     ISCEDfEF3 S)  ISE£ E• 3 ! I   Fi._

U     1        :    y.     
TO "

f i{ li( P      ,       S4       S} QY..      HOLE 6F tliOSS[ N}  •   a to d' Tr ck
INEA11[ ST R. R. fONNf ti 11i} tPACR 1 Mi R[! 10' N}  .

y  , 

i' oEscn c x r)       6cst i c ri p v 

y.'  -      SFE H01[ L)       
p /! 11 f   - 

SEfl NOJ[, 5t    
py    `  

y~; IOISTANCE AlOtt7 iN Of F6iUY[ ClI6N 41HB 1H055lINI     . 1 5 vSS « 3." f fi  , FT.    

y   fr     . ` .      o f a ; H<"1?t •l' ck.,.,•
NOI[ s 1H1S DINL'HSfOH RLOUfR[ 0 IN 4lL' dSES.   1

11T LOC; TIONS NOT US1H0 S[ CTIOHS O: T   . C n,..aas ar pQ wl1 JTO w Lfc{ L SURYEY LtNC f5 WtCtll[ D

NR' L Rilf  `  ..,    . .   .  .   .       

fT.   ---— p+ Fr.   + T.   .  . . ,.

I eaa    sr. c stNa rra
utx. oisr su+r ca. TNlCKN655' CHART
Sa koh 7

i11NIUW Ot TER OF
weauo[    THICKNESS CASIN6 PIPE

I 2 I2•
31Z6" 8/ 16' QYER 12'- ls'
3750• . 3/•  OYCR' I6•- 22'      i

6 FuiN.) I
1.f      Ss000' II2 OVER28'- 4'      ft. " (20 fT.' Y Y.) SS4L SIN4

S[ L NS MO    .  CAOIq6 IP ( s s Nala '   1 fi• st1t  .  6iY6' 9/ ii QdLfl ] 4•- Y
6250` 6/ e•  OYER 2'- 19'      

OV R 4B' u1 ST 8E
cual[ p Ptvc..     ,       APPA YED B1l R H. W i

NOTEI TNIs C1WIT IS ONLY II 1 FOR SAIGOTH STEEL CASIND
PIPES 11tTH 4tNiYUY YIELD

I
STAENOTH OF 75, 000 P51.

t a is rr.•--+     

ir,      6, FT  -----+     e--- FT.    

I
FOAWUI. A TO FIGUNE CASING

qH.3 vr.  IENGTH 1111H IIHGLE OF.
CIi0S51N0 tlTHEN THAN 40

14+o FL
o

N0[ S i CASIHO lEN7tH 11 Y[ tSUll[ 0 lLOHO LCltit, 
see t tt'ia l+i xtPr t ,m s N.  .,ii  on= t o sl Ncce ro at ut rtta ar nia+r wa u aa e a in cR.'   

ees ra ro Errc o ee aa tet t a riuec r ntont uier.es txe c c su or ao. : o r.  o s so t„ auo a am u ir or uuRom o r-- ar r xcccs ur m reonoa+ navta ctNaie ou s ac a ruea o  /  Q  S-'      
u i. ot i.il YINIIW Oi'! 0' fROY Ilif Clq 0i IkM Aa1W01 mRIpOG L 0 MR L1LYUi OR itsOY YiM St{ d1 N0/ RiI.  

MCTC t1! Sta4tll IU ptSLMf I[ WS i R S[ Nf OIFtIX6 tMS? ALUi101t II p fiRpaO 51WYL5/ IIL IN iAL YtC1N11f 0/ CAQS71N0.
Ol ALLOf K[ i1L[ 6 00,1[ C S INCUq,il MCp1LLi Oi pqI00E4 l 0 6040 CAOSfIN4S OYqIN[ AD YI OIICIf IOIYC R040 IIAYCI OII CYLViRTi.     
fl CASINO AMQ lIRIIIfR/ I E YIST C l C[ 0 A YtN{ DW Oi= iCLT 6ttp 1N[ LIIISTIM6 IIS[A O TIC lip,L: iH'f, pt4 A lON I![ WIR[ 0 ITNtH

0 IE T Or p! PIl 6 fl Ori    C T R

A)  15 PIPELINB CROSSINO WiiHlN OEQICATED 57R ET ?     YESf_ l NUj E HIBFT  " A' 3      
B  tF YES  NAME OF STREET-     tra utue+e vtc oK+       
U1 OISTRIBUTIDN LIHE OFt TRAN51NI5510N LIHE
c canAlER ptP a UNION PAC[ FIC RAlLROAD C0. 

COMMOOITY TO BE CONVEYED      ! w G      '   I
OPERAT I NG PRESSURE.,_ P5!+      Y1lf• TYL1(IC OOQ .TR'r J̀ S{ G•     
WAI. L THICKNE55. 4,'; OIAM TER..  t8   AIATEREAL `?-  _     s,  

E1 CASI!! G AIPE :      Q(}.     y O  ' a86af ttM. p 9'D• '    E. s.   .
WAIL THICKNE55 '%   D} AMETEFi       = lulATERIAL.. t p

NOTE tCASING MUST HAYE 2' CLEAttANCE BEYWEEN GAEATEST ENCASEO  ,;' ip h• CROSSING AT
OUTSIDE D[ AMETER af CARRIER PIPE AND 1N7ERkOR DIAMETER OF
CA51H0 P1PE. WHEN FUpHISNtNG DIMENSIOHS CIVE OUTSIDE Of La-A..rn,o sa. ti  .      CA
CARRIER P1PE AND 1NS10E' OF CASIkG PIPE.  au+  nrn coutt, i csn, u i

FI MEYHQO OF ( NSTALLINC CA51NG P1PE UNDER 7RACKIS1i
QAV BDFiE AND JACK 1 WET BORB iJOT pERMITTED) ;       un n

ruMNE  oTHeR RR : FILE N0. 3o7t• 96° = DATE       ,:   0} Wll! CONSTRUCI'( ON BE 8Y AN OUTSIOE CON7RAC70R7 YE5=— N0 I
H1 DISTANCE fROAI CENTER LIRE OF TFiACK TO NEAR FACE O BORIM AND A N I N 0JACKING PITS WNEN MEA5URED A7. RIOHT ANGLES TO TRACK
li APPk1CANT.. HAS CQNTACTEO I- 800- 336- 9193

D' '',  '      a uae sioxs, u r, eoNwie r a s
U. " P. COM iUNICpTION OEPARTMENT  AHd HA OETERIAINE6 FI9ER r ea coxtecttc IN oruicc

OPT 1 C CA9LE,_ DflES ;      pp g , 1Q} i EX I ST IN Y l C t N t TY OF
To orrc+ i cxroru+ac ro

Zo. o3o} ov
toe Tlat or letn ortic euar.

1NORK fp BE, PEtiFOR IED .  T( CKET. NO.-  maa i r oo- K-9i»

i

165



EXHIBIT  y

z

r

e  

y

g,   .     t

a,      :
w.   _.... e =    „ 4,  

L r

a'   'r       =        g
r   

z     ..     
z ,,      ;

m'     r       .-;.:    :•..:    

n      r     s_       . 

ir: L    . .,
a„,.

m
s s  r       

a:             

W

r . . . .-   
w ,- . 

x

P'

e t .  . . . .  

r . . . f i   
d k:", 4

4

i   ,    `"      
Y         

9
a

x,,     '`:` `',
m, 

y `

r+" ...,«,:.-
K: J ra,.:

s      """,'     `.      '',   

ee             ,,,,,  a      
r      ,      i

F"'
N   "``",.,       `'.        F'r      `-`

yc'.' s-:""   ,: K`, e.'
F A.?" s  ' ,

m. ,

5 

e_  , r..; .:.       ._  wxa""    _,,. m P    t'x:,`-"  
qr '

a-. . ax.      .,       
j`.   P-:    ;-

ar; ,.-          F  .   

w^

4'rw 

g ``  r'-'` 

M++, ...-'

w»ro"" u,     ar.   r           

w`'r.' l+T d`   

f#  s '  ' m+*

r
rw

A'+`    ,       -       ,.' 
r

a}- x 1b' 
T e       

t
x

A-    -   k'     

k u..,      
t .      

k1,+•  t id lK u-t , itÂ. t     __._._..       
i9 

t,,. a  ;.    r     ;, 
Av      >.    a vrtEo a Cif . F 14R d _ Gr Patav
7   S ° 7    '

yv   .  
stt.a ric u-r r woP   acu x uain u

p

p
y#

v,v          .  
n   

a..     

h0: a"             : .       St. 0 M u. p     .     ...... 
w a to. o to . ]. 2s- fRatr SUtl

a4

E     $  ,}
t

rt.'   Y W       , w        f-      y
Viwm 4 Wrylpk        

t'

L'    
s t1 Y• 09 S

na   ,  j u   ',` iw-' y www.aw As' 4L  . rpp'
a   s

r g   _ 
M 1 I-} ,,,  aa,. 

v      ' c c °" "
u. w       ...,......       

wuea xeeivicit[ sii znm
w       I'. 1i.: avfVR: 1 ilf

t

s.,,..    '., . w_  -:-.   ..,.
a 2.      - .,.. .....,.  ._ '. a : m F1 6 rfitE' S it- ettw f i•

166



4 n .

t;`'_   ;     y 4
e.

a r.      

r  p,,,.          E

A

l?,     rc,. . s,'      ¢:

i        
iY

r

ii
i;   n l

d i       

g y
r

p+     r 1 4   ;       
r'   .,£°" '    

r

i:` i

a,,,,     

n    ,

i tr'.  t   

d  
F:

e.  

Mul:

a

yrv`e,:, s, as.,
t r   

n. 

d   

4n  ":

a' v?;   S Z,'`"'` rr   '•

k a ss w*  
t,  

A, r 2',  ,;, i  '   ,       

V            

a..  a$

r 
s           s rd,;       '       ,      ° " rw   

g   "  a          

a       ?                    

r;r[ ri r y Ef 
4'    I A rt     r:`      x y{,   t m p: fl"e, s¢+ t. r

i ,
tt

5 ,.  

tt i.
a t !     

U'•   r s';" t,:`^   i „° - 
m

sz

k t S r         ;„{ s  

N
1a          "

a, gw,a,"". 1,%i    «,''     
Ji;   

i
r       a E

9 Tx f' S3
R

Jt     i iP       . t.

3ia g.
i`' b'  4`' x F` 

i nCurt

a  '       
a,, 

pi  t i      .;.
s

r

Y2 pk  bq ` C;

t g

i, v

r=°
r'

a         i z  ' '
ka x  ' ,   

M          x         

s

G   ?

5   

1..    °   yy, kI,
e°

P r. 5f
r,°kN g,       i     . d, y1+A  

t .  ri E rlt t Y    $  
2

6    5    ,    k

q,..£ x'`     ^
l   '

i Psl>
N,

i o.. v
r   ';       

y,,     A. ,., _  ,.   :      
4e.   

rey4

r

e

s   
4u        ",, Cg(  tjs r '  -

u v.'   rr,„ '?`'° "'       _       ,'      

r       
a

i  _ r r...

yJ'++ k-`..      2;" a.           
i

C

a ¢    i      
t a

u.} i' k +   ri a a,       w'„ u R

LEAEMD    
NOTE:  BEFpRE YOU BEGIN aNY wORK.  SEE
AGREEMENT FdR FIBER OPTIC PROVISIONS.

EXHIBIT  " A- 5"
i6' 1YATER UNE tA- It   = 4296't  --   

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY
12' SEWER P PE tA- 21     = sQS°±   .......   --— — . LATNR{} P.  SAN JOAOU[ N COUNTY.  CA

18' SEWER PIPE tA- 3)  = : i l'   .......   - --- -  M. P.  90. 40 Tp M. P.  91 . 25  - TRACY SUB

UPRRCO. R/ N OUTLWED

SP CA V- i09  / 3

CADD 02311 b.€ 7GN
SCALE:  t " = 50'

FlI.ENAME OFFICE OF REAL ESTATE

SCAN Q23Si76_ CAV10903. TIF
OMAHA.  NEBRASKA OATE:  1/ 12/ 2018

f1 ENAME AJM F1LE:  3071- 96

167



EXgiI'

Et' i S. A. dY I I' 5

ect n flo       . I$'' A'°' iD LJ(    I1 A3'fi 1' Il36' Y". G    '''.

A.      Tt e foregoing grant is subject and subordinate to tl e priar and continuing right and
obligatian of. ice sor to use nd naintain its entire property inc0uding 4he right and po ver af Licerasor to
construct, maintaon, repair, renew, use, opes ate, change, modify or refocate railro d tracks, signal,
comrnunication, fiber optics, or other wirelines, pipefines and other faciiitpes upon, along or across any or
all parts of its property, a11 or any of whic may be freeiy done at any time or times by Licensor withaut
liability to Licensee or to any other party for compensation or dama es.

ti.      T6ie foregaing grant is also subject to all outstanding superior rights ( ir cluding thase in
favor af licensees and lessees of Railroad's [' roperty) and the right of Lacensar to renew and extend the
same, and is Anade tivithout covenant of title ar for quiet njoy raent. It shall be Licensee's sole obfigation
o ob ain such additiona3 pern aission, license and grants necessary on account of any such existing rights.

Se d'so 2.       1 E t IVG R lUI Et E' T; E    ° a'S.

A.      Licerosee's Facilities will be designed,  construcEed,  operafed,  maintained,  repaired,

renewed, modified, reconstructed, removed, or abandoned in place on Raibroad Property by Licensee or
its cantractor to Lices sor's satisfaction and in strict conformity vith: ( i) Licensor' s curres t engineering
standards and specificatsons, including those for shorin and cribbir g ta protect Licensor's railroad
operations and facilities {" UP Specifications"), except for variances approved in advance in writing by
Licensor' s Assistant Vice President  ngineering. —  Design or its authorized  epresentative

UP Engineering Representative"); ( ii) such ather additional safety standards as Licensor, in its sol
discretion,  elects to require,  including,  wishout 6i8nitatiori,  American 6tailway Engineering and
lbfaintenanc- of-Way Association (" ARE 9A"} standards nd guidelines ( caltectively, " UP Additiona)
Requirements"; and ( iii) all applicable laws, rules, as d regulations, inciuding any applicable Federal
Railroad Administration and Federal Energy Regulatory C mmission regulations and enactments
cailectively, " Laws"},  lf there is any conflic¢ begween UP pecificafions, d.JP Additmonal Requirements,

and I..a vs, the r aost restrictive will apply.

B.       Licensee shall keep the soil over Licensee's Facilities thoraughly campaeted, and
maintain the grade over and around Licensee's FaciliGes even with the surface of the adjacent ground.

C.       If needed, Licensee shall secure,. at I. icensee's sole cost and expense, any and all
necessary permits required to psrform any work on Licensee's FaciBities.

es¢iaa 3.       N' g' I C9F CO t CE 1' I' 4l'• t' i d2G i iC S.

A.    Licensee and ii contractars are strictly prat ibited from commencing any work associated
with Licensee's Facilities without Licensor's evritten approval that the e+ ork wil! be in strict compliance
dvi€h the " ENGIi tEER1NG RE UIREtv1ENTS; PERMlTS" 5ection of this E h bit 3. Upon Licensor's
approval, Licens e shail contact bath of Licerosor's field representatives set forti below(" Licensor's Field

t presentatives") at least ten( 10) days before commen ement of any work on Licensee's Facilities.

168



AlIY.. A, e A tci€a Y. SH,, 3mshua . .
tviANAGER OF TRP.C6C MAINTENANCE IANAGER( JF SICNAI. MAY tTENANC
209/ 546- 7333 916/ 296-805I

faperez ct up.com jegish@up.cam
33 E.$ Street 72b Everglade 4venue

Stoc ton, f 95207 C9mvis, CA 93619

L'scensse shall noi comrnence any work uneiL• ( E) Li ensor has determined whether flagging or oiher
speciai protective or safety measures (" Safety eas res") are required for perfor nance of the wor.
pursuank to the " FLAGGiA1'," Section of this xhik t and provided Licensee written authorization to
cosnmence vork; and ( 2) Licensee has cot plieti dvith the "' R4TECTlf,] ( 3' IBER OPTIC CA 3LE.
5`lSTE 1S" Section afthis habi.

f, at any.` tame, an emergency arises involving Licensee's Facilities, Licensee or i2s
contractor shall immediate(y contact Licensar's Response [ v9anagement Communica#ions Center at
888} 77- 7267.

ecaa t 4.       ., r GCylV.

A.      F'ollowing Licensee' s notice to Licensor's Field Re resentatives required under the
1 OTICE F COMMENCE[ ENT OF WORK; EMERGEN IES" Section of Qhis xhibit, L. icensor

shall inforbn Licensee if Safety ieasures are required for perfflrmance of the work by. Lieensee ar its
sontractar an Railroad's Property. IfSafety Nleasures are required, no work of any kind may be
performed by Licensee or its contractor( s} until arrangements for the Safety Measures have been made
and scheduled. f no Safety Nieasures are required, Licensor vil1 give Licensee written autharization to
commence work.

B.       If any Safety Measures are performed or provided by Licensor, inc0uding but not IiEnited
to f3 gging, Licensor shall bil! [. icensee far such enpenses incurred by 9 icensor, unless Licensor and a
federal, state, or local gavernmental entity have agreed that Licensor is to bill such expenses ta the
federal, state, or lacal governmental entity. Additiona[ information regardin the submission of such

expenses by Licensor and p yment thereof by Licensee can be found in t9 e " LICENSEE' S PAYMENT
F EXPENSES" Section of this Exhebit . 1f Licensar performs any Safety Measures, Licensee agrees

that Licensee is noe relieved ofany of responsibilities or liabiligies set forth in this Agreement.

C.       For fla ing, the rate of pay per hour For each flagger vill be the prevaiiing hourly rate in
effect for an eight-hour day for the class of Fla men used during re ularly ssi ned hours anci overtime in
accordance with Labor Agreements and Schedules in effect at the time the vork is perFormed. In addition

to the cost of such labor, a composite charge for vacation, hofiday, heafth and welfare, suppfemental
sickness, Railroad Retirement and anemployment compensation, suppleonentaE pension,  Employees
Liability and Property Damage, and Adrninistration will be included, camputed on actual payroll. ' fhe
composite charge will be the prevailing c rnposite charge in effect ai the time the tivork is performed. One
and one-halftimes the currenthourEy rate is paid or overtime, Saturdays and Sundays, and two and one-
half times current houriy rate for hoiidays: Wage rates are subject to change, at any time, by law or by
agreemea t bettiveen Licensor and its employees, and enay be retroactive as a result of negotiations or a
ruling of an autharizgd governmental agency. Additional charges on ] abor are also subject to ch nge. If
the tivag rate or additional charges are changed, Licensee( or the governmental entity, as applicable) shall
pay on Yhe basis of the new rates and char es,

i.      Reimbursement to Licensor vill be required covering ihe full eight hour day during
which any flagger is furnished, unless the flagger can be ssigned to other railroad vork during a portion

169



af such day, in which event reimbu semer t vill nat be required ffor the portion of fh day during which
the flagger is engaged in other railroad wor0:. Reimbursement will also be required fc r any day not
actually tiuor: ed by the flabgers ' oliowirag q e fla ers' assi ment to evork on the prc ject ar tivhich

Licensor is required to pay .the flag ers and which could not reasanably be avoided by Licensor by
assignment of such fla ers to other work, even thaugh Licensee may c ot be working during such time.
W aen it becomes necessary far . icensor to bulletira and assign an em loyee to a fla ing positian in
compliance with uniar cullective bargairaing agreements, Licensee must provide Licensor a minimuan of
five( 5) days notice prio to the cess tian of the need for a flagger. If ve{ 5) days notice of cessation is
not given, Licensee wil{ still be requir d to pay flagging charges for che days the flagger was scheduled,
even though flagging is no longer required for that period. An additionai ten( 10} days notice must tt en be
g ven Qo Licensar if fla gin services are needed again afier saoch ive day cessation no2i e has been given
to Licensor.

S stion.       5A''' Y.

A.      Safety oF personnel, property, rail operations and the public is of paramoa nk importance
in the prosecutian of any wark on ailroad's Property performed by Licensee ar its contractar, and takes
precedence over any work on Lices see's F ciiities to be performed Licensee or its contractors. . icensee

shall be responsible for initiating, maontaining and supervising all safety operatians and programs in
connection wiEh any wor: on Licensee's aci}ities. Licensar and ies contractor shall, at a minimum

camply, with Grantoi's titien curr-enk safety standards located a t0ie bela v veb address'(" i.icensor's Safety
Standards") tv ensure uniformity with the safety standards follawed by Licens r's awn forces. As a part
ofLicensee's safety responsibili4ies, Licensee shall notify Licensar if it determines Ehat any of Licenso' s
Safery Sta dards are contrary to good safety practices. Licensee amd iEs contractor shall furnish copies of
Licertsor's 5afery Standards ta each of its employees before they enter Railrr>ad"s Praperty.

httn::« r.ur.u m, c: lnuhlic ii'u» rrPr; u li r,td+cu: icstl, u ndf nuti• cd« s: krpdf un :; unnlicr Salet n: u. ndfl

B.       Grantee s9 al! keep the jab site on Railroad's Properiy free f'rom safety and health hazarcis
and ensure thai their eenployees are competent and adequ tely trained in all safety and health aspects of
the wark.

C. .    Licensee repr senis and warrants that all parts of Licensee's Facilities within and outside

of the limits af Itailroad's Property wil! not interfere whatsoever with the conskant, continuous; and
uninterrupted use of the tracks, property, and facilities of Licensor, and nothing shall be done or siiffered
to be done by Licens e at any time th t would in any manraer impair the safety thereof.

D.       Licensor' s operations and vork pert'ormed by Licensor' s p rsonnel r ray cause delays in
Licensee's or its contractar's worh on Licensee's F CEIltt S. Licensee accepts this risk and agrees that

Licensor shall have no liability to Licensee or any other person or entity for any such delays. Licensee
must coordinate any worl: on Rai[ road`s Praperty by Licensee or any third party with Licensor's Field
R.epresentatives in strict compliance with the  " NOTiCE OF COMM NCEMENT O  WORK;

EMERGENCIES" Section of this xh bi8 .    

E.       Licensor s iall have the right, i£ it so gl cts, Ya provide any support it deems necessary for
the safety of Licensor's aperations and tracl: age during Licensee's or its contraclor's construction,
mainkenance, repair, rene ual, modification, relocatian, reconstruction, or remoVal of Licensee's Facelities.

4n the event Licensar provides such support, Licensor shal invaice Licensee, and Licensee shall pay
Licensor as set farth in the'" LICENSEE'S PAYIVSEA T 4 F E PENSES" Section of this xhib 8.

170



Section 6.       PR T' Y' I01 1 OF FI 3]EYt TIC ABL,E S' S' Et0'IS.  

Fiber optic cable systems may be buried on Railroad's Property. Protectian of the fiber optic.cable
systems is of extrerr e importance since any break could disrupt service to users resuliing in business
interruption and loss of revenue and prafits. ] n addition to the notifications required under the " NOTICE

Or COMMENCC1v[ENT OF WORK; EMERGENCIES" Section of this Exhibit B, Licensee shall

telephone Licensor during normal business hours ( 7:00 a.m. to 9: 00 p.m, Central 7' ime, Monday through
Friday, except for holidays} At 1- 800-335-9193 ( also a 24-hour, 7- day number for emergency cails) to
determine if fiber optic cable is buried any vhere on Railroad's Property to be used by Licensee. [ f it is,

Licensee shall telephone the Eelecommunications company( ies) involved, and arrange for a cable locaEor,
maE: e arrangements for relocation or other protection of the fiber optic cable, all at Licensee' s expense,

and will not commence any work an tailroad's Property until a1! such protection or relocation has been
compleeed.

Scction 7.       LICENSEE"S AAl'NI IT O XAENSES.

A.      Licensee shall bear the entire cost and expense of the design, construction, maintenance,

modification, reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision, relocation, or remova9 of Licensee's Facilities.

B.       Licensee sf al! ful{y pay for all materials joined, affixed to and labor performed on
Railroad's Property in connection with the construction, maintenance, modification, reconstruction, repair,
renewal, revision, relocation, or removal of Licensee's Facilities, and shall not permit or suff'er any
mechanic' s or materialman' s lien of any kind or nature to be enforced against tl e praperty ' or any work
done or materials furnis ed thereon at the instance or request or on behaif of Licensee. Licensee shall

promptly pay or discharge all taxes, charges, and assessments levied upon, in respect to, or on accouni oF
Licensee's Facilities, to prevent the same From becoming a charge or lien upon any property oF Licensor,
and so that the taxes, charges, and assessments levied upon or in respect to such groperty shall not be
inereased because of the location,  conswction,  or maintenance of Licensee's Facilities or any
improvement, appliance, or fixture conngcted there vith placed upon such property, or on account of
Licensee' s interest therein. Where such tax, charge, or assessment may not be separately made or assessed
to Licensee but shall be included in the assessment of the property of Licensor, then Licensee shall pay to
Licensar an equitable proportion of such ta: es determined by the value oi' Licensee' s property upon
property of Licensor as compared with the entire value of such property.

C.       As set farth in the" FLAGGING" Section of this lExhibiQ , Licensor shall have the right,

if it so etects, to provide Any SaFety l ieasures Licensor deems necessary for the safety of Licensor' s
operations and trackage during Licensee's or its contracior's construction, maintenance, modification,
reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision, relocation, or removal of Licensee's Facilities, including, but not
limited to supervision, inspection, and flagging services.  In the event. Licensor provides such SaFety
Measures,  Licensor shalt submit an' itemized invoice to Licensee's notice recipient listed in the
NOT[CES" Article of this Agreement.  Licensee shall pay to I. icensor the total amount Iisted on such

invoice within thirty( 30) cfays of Licensee's receipt of such invoice.

Scc ion.       1!' IC Dd' IC rTIONS' I' 1L, IC PI EE' S Ft CILI' i'IE.

A.      This grant is subject to Licensor's safe and efficient operation of its railroad, and

continued use and improvement of Railroad's Property ( collectively, " Railroad's Use").  Accordingiy,
Licensee shall, aE its sole cost and expense, modify, reconstruct, repair, renew, revise, relocate, or remove
individuaily, " Modification", or col[ ectiVely, " Modifications") all or any portion of Licensee's Facilities

as Licensor anay designate or identify, in its sole discretion, in the furtherance of Raiiroad's Use.

171



Upon any Modifcation of all or any portioro of Licensee's Facilities to another location
on Raifroad' s Property, Licensor and l icensee shall execute a Supplementa[ Agreeme t to this Pipefine
Cras in Agreemer t to dacument t8 e Modification{ s) to Licensee's Faci9ities on Itailroad's E' roperty. If
the It dificaticrns resulk in Licensee's Fac9{ ities Qnoving off of R ilroad's I' roperty, this Agreement will
terminate upon Licensee' s cornpietion o' such Modification{ s) and all requiremencs contained wii in the
TERN[INATI.CDI; REMt7V1 L 47' LICENSEE' S FACII. ITIES" Section of this h bit . Any such

Niodification{s) off' of Railroad's Property will not release Licensee from any liability or other obligation
of Licensee arising prior to and upon completian of any such Ir odifcations to ihe L. icensee's Facilities.

c2 n 9.       ''    TI I F IL tOA' PR' E' I'Y.

ln the event Licensee, in any mnanner moves or disturbs any property oF Licensar in connection
with the construction, maintenance, modification, xeconstruction, repaar, ren tival, revisian, relocation, ar

removal af Licensee' s Facitities, then, Licensee shall, as saon as possible and at Licensee' s sale cost and
expense, restore Licensor' s property to the same condition as he same were before such property was
moved or disturbed.

ee or 1.     9 I' PtY' g'.

A.      Defnitians. As used in this Section:

1.       " Licensor" includes Licensor, its affliates, ii anci their officers, directors, agents

and e ployees, and oiher railroad companies using Railroad's Property t or near
the loc tion of Licensee' s installation and 4heir officers, directors, gents, and

employees.

2.       " Licensge"  includes Licensee and its agents,  contractors,  subcor ractors,

sub-subcontractors; employees, offlcers, arad directors, or any other persan or
entity acting on its behalf or undee its control.

3.       " Lass" includes claims, suits, taAes, loss, damages ( including punitive damages,
statutory damabes,  and exemplary damages),  casts,  charges,  assessments,

judgments, settlements, kiens, demands, actions, causes of action, fines, penalties,

interest, and expe ses of any nature, including court costs, reasona6le attorneys'
fees and expenses, investigation costs, and appeal eYpenses.

B.       Licensee shall release, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Licensor from and against
any and all Loss, even if groundless, fraudulent, or false, that directly or indirectly arises out of or is
related to 3. icansee' s construction, maintenance, modification, reconstruction, repair, renewat, revision,

relocation, rerreoval, presence, use, or operation of Licensee's Facilities, including, but not lisnited to, any
actuat or alleged:

l.       Bodiiy harm or personal injury( including any emotionaP injury or disease) to, or
tt e deatll mf, any person( s}, inciuding, but not limited to, Licensee, Licensor, any
telecomm anications company,  or the agents,  c ntractors,  subcontractors,

sub-subcontractors, or employees of the faregoing

2.       Damage to or th disturbance, loss, movement, or destruction of Itailroad's

Property, including loss of use and dirninution in v lue, including, but not limited
to, any telecommunications system( s) or fiber opt6c cable{s) on ar near Railroad's
Praperty, any property of Licensee or Licensor, ar any proper y in the care,

172



custmdy, or cont o! of Licensee or Licensor;

3.       Removal of person(s) fram Railroad's Property;

4.      Any delays or interference with track ar Railroad' s Us caused by Licensee's
acti ity( ies) on Railroad's Property, including without limitation the constructian,
maintenance, modification, reconstructio r, repair, renewal, revision, relocatioro,

ar remaval of Licensee's Facilities os any part ther of, any activities, labor,
materials, equipinent, or machinery in conjunctian therewith ;

5.       Right(s} or interes( s) granted pursuar t to this Agreement, including but not
limited to cisims relaced to Licensor's titie to the Railroad Proper y;

6.       Cantcnts escaping from Licensee's Faciiities, including withou4 limitation any
actual or alle ed pollution, contamination, breach, or enviranmentai Loss;

7.       I. icensee' s breach of this Agreement, or failure to comply with its provisions,
including, but not limited to, any violation ar breach by Licensee of any
representations and varr nties Licensee has made in this Agreer ent; arod

8.       Violation by Licensee of any law,   statute,   ordinance,   governmen9al

administrative order,  ruEe,  or regulation,  including withaut limitaEion all
applicable Federal Railroad, 4dministration regulaiians.

The foregoing obligations shall apply if the Loss aceually or allegedly arises from, relates to,
res alts from, or is caused by, in whole ar in part, any act, activity, errc r, or omission of Licensee with
respect to os under this Agreement. " 1" he foregoing bligations shall apply evert to Losses caused by,
arising from, relating to, or resulting from; in whole or in part, the actual or alleged misconduct, fault,     
liability, or negligence of L, icensor, and such actual ar alleged misconduct, fault, liability, or negligence of
L. icensor shall not iimit, diminish, or preclude Licensee' s ob(igations to Licensor in any respect.

C.      THE FOREGOiNG OB[, IGATIOI iS SHALL APPLY TO T!-IE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMIT'FED BY LAW FOR THE BENEFI' T OF . I+CEI I50i, EXCEPT_WHERE TNE L( SS lS
CAUSED BY Tl-9E SOLE, ACTIVE, AND IRECT AIEGl. IGENCE, GROSS NEGLIGENCE, OR
WILLFFUP. CONDUCT(} F L[CEIVSOR AS DETERMINED iN A F( h1AL dUDGMENT BY A COURT
OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION.

S cti n 1.     ' T 2 31 1A' d' ION: REI C9 IA9 Q E L N` S rLCId.,I'' lE.

A.       If Licensee daes not use the ri ht herein granted on Licensee's Facilities for one( 1) year,

or if Licensee continues in default in the performance oF any provision af this Agreement for a period of
thirty ( 30) days after tvritten notice from Licensor to Lacensee speci ying such de' ault, Licensor may, at
its sole discretion, tenninate this Agreement by w itten natice ta Licensee at the address listed in the
NOTICES" Article of this Agreement. This Agreement will noi terminaTe until Licensee complies with  -

Paragraphs " C" arid" D" ofthis Section faund below.      

1n addition Yo the provisions of Paragraph " A" abave, this Agreersient rnay be terminaYed
by written notice given by either party, wichout cause, upon thirty { 3d} days written notice to the
s on- terminating party at the address listed' en the" N TICES", Artide of this Agreerr er. This Agreement
tivi91 not termenate unti6 C, icensee complies with Paragraphs" C'° and°' D" of this Section faund beiow.

173



C.       Prior,to the eflective date ofany termination descri! in this Section, Licensee shall. submit an

apPlication to I:icenso' s anline Utility Con cts System at  } attps:ffw vr,v.u r.com/re i luc aJ#/hon e for
Licensee's rer oval, or if app9icable, abandonment in place of Licecase' s Facilities located on ailroad

Proper y ("# emoval/ Aba donment Work"}. Upon the UP' Engineering Representative's approval af
Licer see's application for the RemovaUAbandonment U/ork, Licerisor and L'icensee si al9 execute
a separate c nsent doc smenf thaf will govern"Licensee's performance af the Removal,jAbandanment

Work frcim those portions of,  f ailroad Properiy nat occupied by rasdkied and/or trac: age
Cor+sent Docutnent"}. Licensor sha9l then restore the impacted Railraad Pruperty to the same or

reasanably similar conditian as it was prior to Licensee's inst llati n of Licensee's Faci4ities. For purpases
of this Section, L'scensee's 4i) performance of ti e RemovallAbandoe ment WorE:, and ( ii) res oration vork

will hereinafter be col1ectively re erred to as the" Restoeatian Work".

D.      Following Licensee' s completi n of the Restoration Work,  Licensee shall provide
a wriften certifecation letter to L'acensor at the address iisted in che" N TIC S" Article af this Agreem nt
which certifiss that the Restoration Work has been completed in accordance vith the Consent Dacument.

Licensee shall reporc ta governmenial authorities, as required by law, and notify Licensor immediately if
any environmental contamination is discovea ed during Licensee's pes' oronance of the Restaration Work:
Uporo discs very, the Licensee shall initiate any and all reanoval, remadial and restoration actions that are
necessary€ Q restore the properiy to ics originai, uncontaminated condifiarro. [. icensee shall provide vritten
certificata n ta` L.icensor at the address listed in the " Ni TIC S"  ArticDe of this Agreement that

environmental contamination has been remediated and the property has be n restored in accordance vith
Licensor's requirements. 4Jpon Licensor's receipt of Licensee's estorati n completion certifications, this
A reerrrent will tern inate.

E.       In the event that Licensee fails to cornplet$ any of t6 e Restoration Worl:, Licensor may;
buE is not obiigated, to perforrra the Restoration Wor:. Any such wor actually performed by Licensor will.
be at the cost and expense of Licensee. ln tl e event that Licensor perf'orms any of the Restoration Work,

icensee shall release Licensor from any and a11 oss ( defined in the " IAIDEMNITY" Section of this
xh'sbi} arising out of or related to Licensor's performance of the Restoration Work.

F.       Termination of this Agreemes t for any reason wiEl not affeci any of rights or obligations
aF the parties vhich may have accrued, or liabilities or Loss ( defined in the ° INDEMNITY" Section of
this E hibit, accrued or otherwise, whicl may have arisen prior tn such iermination.

174



EXHg' I' C .

I 1 CE    . T    MEI' Y' S

In accardance wich Artic9e C ofthis Agreeonent, Licensee shall( 1) procure and mair tain at its s te
cost and expense, or( 2) require its coc traciors and subcontractars to procure nd maintain, at their sole

cost nd expense, the' otiowin insu nce caverage:

A.      Coerara es-e ml aaer l I. i ba itv sura s. ommerci l general liability ( CGI.) with

a limit o not less than 2,000,000 each occurrence and an ag re ate limit o not less than $ 4,OU0, 400.
CGL insurance mtast be vritten or [ 5 accurrence form CC 00 O 1 12 04{ ar a substitute form providing
equivalent coverage).

The policy musE also coatain the following e dorse nent, WHICH iv1U T BE STATEL?ON THE
CERTI' 1CATE OF INSUI ANCE: 

o Cantr ctuaf Liability Railroads fS form CCe 24 ] 7 l0 O1 ( or a substituEe faem providing
equivalent coverage) showing " Union E' acife Raifroad Company Property"  as tf e

Designated Job Site.

I3.      n sanc s _. u brnaa sil  ver e  s ce.  usiness  uto c vera e vvritten on

SO forr CA 00 Ol 10 Ol ( or a substitute form providing equivalent liabifity caverage) wath a limit of not
ess $ 2,OtJ0,000 for each accident, and coverage musk include liabili4y arising aut of any auto ( including

o vned, hired, and non=owned autos).

he policy must contain the ' ollowing endorsemer ts, WH[ H I UST BE STATED ON THE
CERTIFICATE OF [NSURANCE:

Coverage For Certain Operations ln Connectios With Railroads" 1SQ Form CA 20 70 l0

O1 { or a substitute form peoviding equivalent coverage) sho ving'" Union F acific Raiiroad
Cornpany Praperty" as the Designated Job S'ste.

C.      l s' o k rs' Cors aer# i n anci ma 9 v rs' azbi itv I sur nce. Cov rage must include
but not be limited to:

Licensee' s statutory Eiabiiity urider the vori: ers' compensativn la vs of the state( s)
a f'ected by this Agreement.

Empioyers' Liability ( Part B} with i'smits of at least $ 500,000 each accident, $ 500,000

disease policy Iimit$ SQ0, 000 each employee.

If Licensee is self-insured, evidence of state appraval and excess workers' compensation coverage

must bc provided. Coverage must include liability arising ouY oF the 9. 1. S. Longsh remen's and I arbor
Workers' Act, the Jones Act, and the C uter Continenta! Shelf Land Act, if applicabie.

D.       Enviro mentaal . g 6iiid I asur se.  Environmental Legal Liability Insurance ( ELL)
applicable to badily injury, groperty damage, includia g loss of use of damaged p aperty or of property
that has not been physically injured ar destroyed, cleanup costs, and defense, including costs and
expenses incurred in the invesiigation, defense, or settlement af claims, or compliance with statute, all in

175



connection evith any Ioss arising from the insured' s performan e under this Agreemenf. Except dvith
respect to the iimits of onsurance, and any rights oa° duties speci cally assigned to the rst named insured,
this insuraa ce must apply as if each named insured were th only named insured; and separately to ti e
additional insured against vE i h claim is m de or suit is braught. Coverage shall be rr air taaned in an
amoui i of at leasi$ 2,4 O, OaO per loss, vith a anr ual a regate f at l ast$ 4, Q00,000.

Licensee warranis that any retroactive date applicable to ELL insurar ce coverage under ehe
policy is t11e sanie as or precedes the Ef ective Date of this Agreeme at, and that continuaus coverage wiil
be tnaintained for a. peri d af five ( 5} years be innin firom ihe eime the work under this Agreerrrent is
completed or if coverage is caricelled for any reason the po{icies extended discovery period, if any, will
6e exerciscd for the rna.Ysmum tira e allawed.

C.       d3Aii- ad Pro3e ti e .. e et4, asur esc. Gicensee must maintain " ttailroad Protective

Liability" insurance written on IS occurrence form CG 00 35 12 04 ( or a substitute form roviding
equava9ent coverage) on behalf of Licensor only as named insured,' wiih a limit o' not less than

2, OOO,Q00 per occurr nce and an a regate af S,OOO, OOQ. The defnition af" JO LOCATION" and

WORK" on the declaration page of the policy shall refer to this Agreement and sha,l! describe all WORK
or OPERAT[ I S performed under this Agreement. A binder statin the policy is in place must be
submitted to Licensor befare the work may be commenced and until the original poiicy is fonvarded to
Licensor.

F.       flJa bae a mr Exce s Insur. If Licens e utilizes um6re!! or excess policies, and

Yhese polscies must'° follow form" and afford no less c verage 4han the primary policy.

Q th s- R aaa- em nts

G.      All policy( ies) required above ( except business aut mobile, workers' compensation and
employers' liability) must incl de Licensor as " Additional lns red" u5ing 1S4 Additivnal insured
Endo ement G 2Q 26 ( ar substitute form( s) providin equivalent caverage). The coverage provided to

Licensor as additional insured shafl not be liireited by Licensee' s liability under the indemnity provisions
of 8his Agreement. BOTH L10E1 lSQR AND, L[ CEI lSEE EXPECT TE- AT LICENS R WILL BE

PROVIDED WC('H THE BROADEST POSSIBLE Cd VERA E AVA[LA LE BY OPERATIORI OF

LAW UNDER ISO ADDITI NAL 1NSU E PORM CG 20 26,

H.      Punitive damages exclusion, if ny, must be deleted ( and the deletion indicated on the
certifcate of ansurance}, unless ( a) insurance coverage may not lawfully be obtained #'or any puniEive
damages that may arise under this Agreement, or( b) all punitive damages are prohibited by all states in
which this Agreement will b performed.

i. Licensee tivaives all rights of recovery,  and its insurers a9so waive a11 rights of
subrogation oi' damages against Licensar and its agents, officers, directors and err ployees for damages

covered by the workers' compensation and e ployers' liability or commercial uanbrella ar excess liability
obtained by Licensee required in this Agreemeni, where permitted by law. This waiver must be stated on
the certificate oFinsurance.

J.       All insurance policies rraust be written by a reputa6le insurance company acceptable to
Licensor or writ a curren Best's [ nsurance Guide Rating of A- and Class III or bett r, and authorized to
do business in the state(s) in which the work is to be perfarmed.

176



K.      The fact that ins« rance is obkained by L'scensee tivill not be deemed to release or diminish
th liability o' Licensee, including, without limitation, liability ander the inderr nity provisions of this
Agreemeni. Da n ges recoverable by, icensor from Lice see or any third party will not be limited by the
amount of the r quired insuraroce coverage.

177



II IT'   

rot er i o. 3071- 96

T'' S I T"+ Iv'' Y A     +      l''

I' HIS AGRE 3ENT is mad and entered inta as oFehe by a d between
UNI I PACi iC RAILROAD CO YPANY,   a Delaware corpor ati n,   (" Railroad")   and

a .

carporation   (" ontractor"),   to be

addressed at

12' g'A.,S:

The Cor tractor has been hired by I'' ' 1LA' H 2" to instaIl one ( 1) undergrounci,

longitudina! pipelir e twelve inch ( 12") in width and approximately Three Th usand ive I-Iundred and

Five Feet( 3, 05'} in length, mne ( 1) und rground, long'studirasi pipeline eighteera inch ( 18") in width and

epproximately Three Thousand Five Hurodred and Teen Feet ( 3, 510') in length, ' ar transporting and

conveying sanitary sewer on1y, and one( t) underground, lo igitudina! pipeline sixteen inch( 16") in width

and approximately Faur Thousand Ttivo HundPed and Ni ty- Six Feet( 4, 246') iro len ih, for trarasporting
and conveying wa4er oniy, including any appurtenances required for the c peration of said pipeline
collectively, " Licensee's Facifities"}( ehe" work"), with all or poriion o' such vork to be_performed an

pr perty f Railroad at Mile Post 90.40 to 91. 25, on th Tracy SuBdivision at o near Lathrop, San
Joaquin County, Ca[ ifornia pursuant eo an agreement beri een Railroad and I' OF T O' dated

Effective Date) at such location as shown a the prints marked  ,
Exh bit A-, Exh ba4 A-, E hibit r'-3, ahi it- aad E habit A-5 attadied here o and hereby made
a par# hereof.

R ilroad is willing to permit Contractor to perform the work described above at the location
describe above subjecc to tltie terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.

A kt t i:

NOW, THEFtEFORE, it is mutuaily agreed. by. and between the Railroad and Contractor, as
follows:

Artic9e. EFIN T6 N 01F C i t' I' C'Il' i.

or purposes of this Agreement, ail references in this Agreement to the antractor shall include

Contractor' contractors, subcontractors, of icers, agents and erraployees, artid others aeting under its or
their authority.

E1 tic.      II'Q' G 1 dT Ibo ') i 5 a

Rail oac hereby rants to Contractor the right, during the term hereinafter skated and upan and
subject €o each and ali o' 4he terms, provisions and conditions herein contained, to enter upon and have

ingre to d egress from the properry described in the Recitafs for he purpose of perfarming any wark
descrit d in ehe itecitals above. The right herein granted to Contractor is li ited to those portions af

Railroad' s prop t ly specifically described hesein, ar as desegnaEed by the € a lroad Representative named

178



in Art cle td, and is strictly limited to the scope of work identified to the Railroad, as determined by the,   `
ailroad in its sole discretion, and for no oth r purpose.

Art9 I.     ' Al D t3i I'' 4 3 C'' t1 E N X I I' S. I o

The terms and conditions contained n Exhab t and C, attached hereto, are hereby made a part
of this A reement.

r r a 9e I.     3., II.,   EXP 1S   ''      F   ffi'   CON' II' YU Tt R•   tA L. R A

S NTAT

A.      Contractor shall bear any and all costs and expenses associated with any vorl per' ormed
by Contractor, or any costs or expenses incurred by Raifroad refating to,ehis Agreement.

B.       Contractor shall coordinate al@ of its work with the following Railroad representative or
his or her duly authorized represes tative( th" Rai( raad Repr sentative"):

llII..,r,' srn rea 9'. G SH, J s a E.

MANAGER OF TRACK MAINTEAlARl E MANAGER F S1GNAl, MAINTENANCE
209/ 54b-7333 416/ 29b- OS l

faperez r"Lc7up.com jegish cr up.com
833 E, 8 Street 726 Cverglade Avenue

Stockton, CA 95207 Clovis, CA 93619

C.       Contrackor, at its awn expense, shall adequately p lice and supervise all work to be
performed by ontractor and sha11 ensure that such wark is perfbrmed in a safe manner as set forth an
Sec€ion 7 oF Exhitrid .  The responsibility of Contractor for safe conduct and adequate policing and
supervision of Contractor's work shall not be lessened or othenvise affected hy Railroad's approvai of
plans and specifcations involving the wor., or by Railroad's callaboration in perf'ormance of any wor, or

by ihe presence' at the work sice aFa Railroad Representative, or by compliance by Contractor vith any
requests or recornrnendations made hy Railroad Representative.

Ae tacie l.       'd' E     :' T    rdATI.

A.      The grant of right herein. made to Contractor shall commence an the date af this
Agreement, and continue i'or one { I) year beginning  unless sooner terminated as herein
provided, or at such time as Contra tor has completed its work on Railroad's praperty, whichever is
earlier. Contractor agrees to notify the Railroad 9tepresentative in writBng when it has completed its work
on Railroad's property,

B.      This Agreement may be terminated by either party on een( 10) days written notice to the
ather party.

Ar4acle.     C t'' IF CA'' E' I S. 1 A1v E.

A.       Before corn reencing any vork, Concractor vill provide Railroad with the insurance
binders, policies, certi# cates and/ or endorsemenis set forth in x agb t of this Agreement.

All insuranee carrespondence, binders, policies, certificates and/or endorsements shall be
sentto:

179



Folder No: 3071- 9fa  ,.

Union Pacific Ftaitroad Campany
1400 Douglas 5treet STQP I690
Omaha, debraska 68 i 79- 1690

Arte 9e.     C I F°. 1Ii.

t, itigatiora arising ut of or connecied with this t greement may be instituted and rnaintainec@ in
the courts of the States of Nebraska and Califamia oniy, and the parties consent to jurisdiction over their
person and ver-dhe 5ubject matEer of any such litigatiot, in those courts, and consent to service of process
issued by such caurts.

r rticl` Y.   I,' CON'1''$' S bD' I. Y E.

f t fhe request of R.ailroad, Contractor shall remave From Railroad's property any erraployee of
Contractor who fails to canforrn to the enstructeons of the Railroad Representative in connection with the

vork on Railroad's property, nd any right of Coa fractor shall be suspended until such remaval has
occurred.  C ntractor shall indemnify R ilroad against any claims arising trom the removal of any such
empioy e from Railroad' s property.

t rtasle.     AB I i' 1'g'.

Upon the execution and de} ivery of this Agreement, Contractoa shatl pay to Railroad One
Thousand Daliars {$ 1, 000.00) as reimburse nent for clerical, administrative and handling expenses in
connection wi#f the processing sf t9 is Agreement.

Ar ie e X.       C 8 3N.

No addi4ionai vehicular crossings ( includin temporary haul roads) or pedestrian crossings over
Railraad's trackage shall be installed or used by Contractor without the prior written permission of
Railroad.

Article XI.      ? L SiVE.

Exp9osives ar other hoghly flammable substances shall not be stored on Rai[ road's pcoperky
without the prior writ en approval af Raiiroad.

180



6R] VJITNESS Wk EREi F, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in dup] icate as
of the date first herein vritten.

TJ i i 1' A IFIC L    '

y•
Rea9 Estate Contrr ctorl iame)

Sy

Narne:

Tide:

Teleg hone:
Email•

181



182



r
ITEM 4. 11    '

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN DETENTION

BASIN IMPROVEMENTS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements
Completed by Richland Communities for The

Expansion of the Crossroads Storm Drain Detention

Basin

SUMMARY:      

As a condition of their Development Agreement ( DA) and the Crossroads Storm Drain
Master Plan, Richland Communities ( Richland) is required to construct a storm drain
detention basin sufficient to service the entire Crossroads Industrial Park.    Initially,
the basin was constructed to service the first phase of the development. With the

remaining lots building out recently, there has been a need to expand the basin to
service the remaining parcel in the Industrial Park.

Richland Communities performed the expansion of the Basin and the improvements
have been inspected by City Staff and found to be complete.  Staff is recommending
Council accept the improvements for public use and release the bond funds set aside
to guarantee this construction.

BACKGROUND:        

The Crossroads Industrial Park and initial phase of storm drainage infrastructure was

originally built by Kearny Ventures in the mid- 1990s.    In 2001 the project was    •

purchased by Crossroads Crea Investors LLC under an amended development
agreement.  This agreement was assigned to Richland in 2003, and was extended in

March 2017 in order to allow additional time to complete public infrastructure

including the expansion of the storm drain detention basin that was required by the
Crossroads Storm Drain Master Plan in order to provide the ultimate storm drainage

capacity to serve full build- out of the project.

Staff is requesting that City Council adopt a resolution accepting the improvements
from Richland for the Crossroads Storm Drain Detention Pond.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Richland has completed the expansion of the Crossroads Storm Drain Detention Pond

according to contract plans and specifications approved by the City of Lathrop Public
Works Department. City Council' s acceptance of these improvements will trigger the
reimbursement to Richland from the Series B Bond funds that were held until the
work was completed. 

183



CITY MAIV/ GER' S REPORT Pi4GE 2

MAF CIi 12, 201 CITI( CO11101CIL REGUL R MEETIIVG

ACCEPT CROSSFtOADS S70RM DIZAIfV DETEiVTIOM BASYN FROM 12ICHLAND

COUNCIL GOALS ADi4AIVCED BY THIS e4GENDA ITEM:

This item furthers Council' s Goals of:

e Public Safetv by maintaining a safe operating Storm drain system within City
utilities for the public.

Promoting Community Values by maintaining a community resource.

FISCQ L IMPACT:

The Developer, Richland built and funded the construction of the Crossroads Storm

Drain Detention Basin, the City of Lathrop will reimburse Richland for Construction
costs from the Series B Bond funds.

ATTA C H M E IVTS:

A.  Resolution Accepting Improvements Completed by Richland

B.  GASB Report

184



CITY M 1NQ GER' S REPORT P GE 3

IW fZCW 12, 201 CITI( COUIVCIL REGULAR NIEETING

a CCEPT CIZOSSROADS STORM DR IN D" i'ENTIO101 # SIN FROM RICHLe4ND

APPI O lALS:

r

bl 
Ken Reed Date

ProjeCts Manager

f   /
Cari Jam    `      Date

Director of ' nance

3   — g

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

8

S en J. Salvatore Date

ity Manager

185



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP BY
ACCEPTIWG IMPROVEMENTS COMPLETED BY RICHLAND FOR THE

EXPANSION OF THE CROSSROADS STORM DRAIN DETENTION BASIN

WHEREAS,  Crossroads Industrial Park and initial phase storm drainage

infrastructure was originally built by Kearny Ventures in the mid- 1990s; and

WHEREAS, in 2001 the project was purchased by Crossroads Crea Investors
LLC under an amended development agreement and was assigned to Richland in

2003, and was extended in March 2017; and

WHEREAS, the work has been completed per the plans and specifications,

inspected by City staff and meets the satisfaction of the Department of Public
Works; and

WHEREAS,  Richland has satisfactorily completed the expansion of the

Crossroads Storm Drain Detention Basin that was required by the Crossroads Storm
Drain Master Plan and the conditions of their development agreement for the
Crossroads project; and

WHEREAS,  stafF is recommending Council accept the improvements for
public use and release the bond funds held by the City to guarantee this

construction;

NOW,   THEREFORE,   BE IT RESOLVED,   Richland has completed the

expansion of the Crossroads Storm Drain Detention Pond according to contract
plans and specifications approved by the City of Lathrop Public Works Department.
City Council' s acceptance of these improvements will trigger the reimbursement to
Richland from the Series B Bond funds that were held until the work was

completed.

186



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to,wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

187



e=',,,"

1f, iP`- p' p    
Vf3 !. l U

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Richland Date:3- 12-2018

Tract No.:      Crossroads Detention Basin

Item Unit Qty Unit Price Total Price

Roadway Pavement SF

Roadway Pavement Lane Miles

Sidewalk SF

Curb& Gutter LF

Regulatory Signs EA

Traffic Signals EA

Street Lights EA

Landscape Medians SF

Hardscape Medians SF

Roadway Landscape SF

Fire Hydrant EA

6 Inch Potable Water Pipeline LF

8 Inch Potable Water Pipeline LF

Inch Potable Water Pipeline LF

Inch Potable Water Pipeline LF

Inch Potable Water Pipeline LF

Inch Potable Water Pipeline LF

6 Inch Valve EA

8 Inch Valve EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

6 Inch Recycled Water Pipeline LF

Inch Recycled Water Pipeline LF

Inch Recycled Water Pipeline LF

Inch Recycled Water Pipeline LF

Inch Recycled Water Pipeline LF

Inch Recycled Water Pipeline LF

6 Inch Valve EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

Inch Valve (  EA

SD Manhole EA

SD Catch Basins EA

SD Field Inlets EA 4     $  3,200.00      $  12,800.00

12 Inch SD Pipe LF 230     $      32.00      $   7,360.00

188



15 Inch SD Pipe LF

18 Inch SD Pipe LF 229     $      40.00      $   9, 160. 00

21 Inch SD Pipe LF 151      $      44.00      $   6, 644.00

24 Inch SD Pipe LF

27 Inch SD Pipe LF

30 Inch SD Pipe LF

33 Inch SD Pipe LF

36 Inch SD Pipe LF

6 Inch SD Pipe ( Sub- Drain)      LF 2068     $      24.00      $  49,632. 00

Inch SD Pipe LF

Inch SD Pipe LF

SS Manholes EA

6 Inch SS Pipe LF

8 Inch SS Pipe LF

Inch SS Pipe LF

Inch SS Pipe LF

Inch SS Pipe LF

Inch SS Pipe LF

Inch SS Pipe LF

SD Pump Station EA

No. of Pumps HP

SD Detenton/ Retention Basin Expansion Acres 6. 306     $ 58,000.00      $ 365,748.00

SS Lift/ Pump Station EA

No. of Pumps HP

Recycled Water Storage Basin Acres

Chain Link Fence Height/LF 950     $      16. 00      $  15,200.00

Bike Path Width/ LF

Totals 466,544.00

Note: Do not include sewer laterals or irrigation piping. Include
storm drain pipe stub outs to property line only.

189



190



ITEM 4. 12 I

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: ACCEPTANCE OF RECYCLED WATER STORAGE

POND,  SPRAYFIELDS,   PIPELINE AND PUMP

STATION FOR THE RIVER ISLANDS AT

LATHROP PRO.IECT WITHIN THE SOUTHEAST

STEWART TRACT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Accepting the Recycled

Water Storage Pond,   Sprayfields,   Pipeline,

Pump Station Improvements within Southeast
Stewart Tract, Easement Deed

SUMMARY:

On May 4, 2015, the City Council approved a Subdivision Improvement Agreement
SIA)  for Tract 3791 that included a provision to guarantee construction and

implementation of a storage pond, pipeline extension, sprayfields and pump station
Recycled Water Improvements") within the Southeast Stewart Tract. A map of the

storage pond,  pipeline extension,  sprayfields and pump station  ( Recycled Water

Improvements") within the Southeast Stewart improvements has been provided in

Attachment B.

The Developer River Islands Development,  LLC (" River Islands")  has substantially
completed construction of the following improvements necessary for the disposal of
recycled water generated at the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility  ( LCTF).

Therefore, staff is recommending Council accept the improvements for public use and
release the performance bonds associated with the improvements:

1.  Recycled Water Storage Pond

2.  Recycled Water Pipeline Extension

3.  Recycled Water Disposal Fields (" Sprayfields")

4.  Interim Recycled Water Pump Station

BACKGROUND:

River Islands has been constructing the facilities within the Southeast Stewart Tract
sub- planning area of the West Lathrop Specific Plan; at a cost of $4, 560, 680. These

improvements are necessary in order for an existing, already built treatment capacity
of 250, 000 gallons per day ( gpd) day to be utilized. On May 4, 2015, the City Council
approved a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) for Tract 3791 that included

a provision to guarantee construction and implementation of a storage pond, pipeline

extension, sprayfields and pump station (" Recycled Water Improvements") within the

Southeast Stewart Tract..

191



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECYCLED WATER STORAGE POND,

SPRAYFIELDS,    PIPELINE,    PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN

SOUTHEAST STEWART TRACT, EASEMENT DEED

Although River Islands only purchased 200, 000 gallons per day ( gpd) of wastewater

in the last expansion of the City' s LCTF, the other developer involved in the expansion
failed to construct the disposal facilities for their 50, 000 gpd of treatment.   For this
reason, River Islands was forced to construct facilities sized to dispose of 250, 000
gpd in order to revise the State Regional Water Quality Control disposal permit and
acquire access to their treatment capacity.

These Capacity Guarantees were allowed in accordance with the First Amendment to
the 2003 Amended and Restated Development Agreement.  The Capacity Guarantees
allowed existing capacity within the City' s recycled water system to be utilized by
River Islands on an interim basis (" float capacity").

The float Capacity Guarantees were updated in the SIA for several tracts and for
several reasons,  including the option to construct the sprayfields northwest of
Interstate 5 instead of along Paradise Road, due to the high water in the Winter of

2016/ 17, which delayed construction of the sprayfields, and due to the need for a lot
line adjustment between property owners within the Southeast Stewart Tract area,
along with a General Plan interpretation for the commensurate land uses associated
with these parcels. The most recent update with Tract 3912 extended the deadline
to May 14, 2018.

River Islands was required to post  $ 4, 560, 680 in performance and labor and
materials bonds for the Recycled Water Improvements in 2015. With acceptance of
the Recycled Water Improvements,  and with the exception of the bonds for the
Recycled Water Pump Station, these bonds can be released.  The pump station is an
interim design without the full structure and longevity of a permanent pump station.
This is because there is still some question about the ultimate size of the adjacent
pond and adjacent sprayfields at built- out.   For this reason, the performance bond
no. SU 112463 in the amount of $ 1, 247, 000 for the pump station will be retained
until the permanent pump station is constructed.  However, the interim pump station
is being accepted as a public facility,  and so the one- year maintenance bond is
required.

Also, with the finalization of the lot line adjustment and resulting deeds between
property owners in the Southeast Stewart Tract planning area, dedication of the land
and easements necessary for the City to control and operate the Recycled Water
Improvements were completed. Grant Deeds for the storage pond, pump station and
sprayfields and an Easement Deed for the new pipeline are included as " Attachment
D" to this report.

The City has fully inspected the improvements and finds that they are substantially
complete. The City has received the maintenance bonds, lien releases, GASB reports
and record drawings for the completed improvements.

192



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECYCLED WATER STORAGE POND,

SPRAYFIELDS,    PIPELINE,    PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN

SOUTHEAST STEWART TRACT, EASEMENT DEED

River Islands has also posted maintenance bonds as summarized above, to guarantee
replacement and repair of the improvements as a result of defective materials or

defective workmanship for a period of one year from the date of Council acceptance.
Staff recommends Council accept the following:

1.  Recycled Water Storage Pond will be accepted by the City per attached
Resolution once the final punch list items have been completed.   A one- year

maintenance bond,  no.  SU 1124670- A in the amount of $ 75, 240 has been
received, and the performance and labor & materials bond no. SU 1124670 in
the amount of $2, 324, 280 can be released.

2.  Recycled Water Pipeline Extension will be accepted by the City per attached
Resolution once the final punch list items have been completed. A one- year
maintenance bond no.  SU 1124672- A in the amount of $ 75, 240 has been
received, and the performance and labor & materials bond no. SU 1124672 in
the amount of $752, 400 can be released.

3.  Recycled Water Disposal Fields ( Sprayfields" will be accepted by the City per
attached Resolution once the final punch list items have been completed. A

one- year maintenance bond no. SU 1124671- A in the amount of $23, 700 has
been received,  and the performance and labor  &  materials bonds no.  SU

1124671 in the amount of $237, 000 can be released.

4.  Interim Recycled Water Pump Station will be accepted by the City per attached
Resolution once the final punch list items have been completed.   A one- year

maintenance bond no. 0681506 in the amount of $42, 000 has been received,
and the performance and labor &  materials bond no.  SU 1124673 in the
amount of $1, 247, 000 will not be released.

RECOMMENDATION:    

Staff recommends City Council accept the Recycled Water Storage Pond,  Recycled
Water Pipeline Extension, Recycled Water Disposal Fields (" Sprayfields") and Interim

Recycled Water Pump Station and release the following bonds:

Bond No. SU 1124670 in the amount of $2, 324, 280

Bond No. SU 1124672 in the amount of $   752, 400
Bond No. SU 1124671 in the amount of $   237, 000

193



CITY MANAGER' S IZEPORT Page 4

NIARCH 12, 201 CITY COIJNCIL REGUL 41 MEETING

I E50LUTION ACCEPTINC;    THE ItECI(CLED W1/ ATEI    STO GE POIVD,

SP 1rFIELDS,    PIPELIiVE,    PUMP STATIOlV IMPItOVEMEl01TS VIiITHIN

SOUTFIEAST STEWAItT TRACT, EASEfMENT DEED

The Interim Recycled Water Pump Station is an interim design without the full
structure and longevity of a permanent pump station.  This is because there is still

some question about the ultimate size of the pond and adjacent sprayfields at built-
out.   For this reason, the performance bond for the interim pump station, bond no.

SU 1124673 in the amount of $ 1, 247, 000 will be retained until the pump stations is
constructed.

FISCAL IMP/ CT:

Long term maintenance of the Recycled Water Storage Pond and the Recycled Water
Pipeline Extension will be funded through the MBR Sewer Fund 6080. The long term
maintenance for the Recycled Water Disposal Fields " Sprayfields" and the Interim

Recycled Water Pump Station will be maintained by Reclamation District 2062. There
will be no fiscal impact related to this item during this budget cycle ( fiscal year ending
2018- 19).  Maintenance costs related to the improvements will be covered by the
one- year maintenance bonds during the current budget cycle.

TTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Accepting the Recycled Water Storage Pond,   Sprayfields,

Pipeline, Pump Station Improvements within Southeast Stewart Tract and
Easement Deed

B.  Location Map

C.  GASB 34 Reports

D.  Dedication and Easement Deeds

194



CITY M NA GER' S REPORT Page 5

FEBRUARI( 12, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGULAI MEETIIVG

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECI(CLED 1A/ ATEIS    TOR/AGE POND,

SPRAYFIELDS,    PIPELINE,    PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN

SOUTHEAST STEWART TI ACT, @ASEMENT DEED

PPf O\/ ALS:

3  - , -201 
Ken eed Date

Projects & Programs Manager

3- 1-/
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

Cari James Date

Director of  ' na ce

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

7' 1
Steph       . Salvatore Date

City Manager

195



RESOLUTION NO.  18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ACCEPTING THE RECYCLED WATER STORAGE POND, SPRAYFIELDS,

PIPELINE, PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN SOUTHEAST STEWART ,

TRACT AND EASEMENT DEED

WHEREAS,  On May 4,  2015,  the City Council approved a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement ( SIA) for Tract 3791 that included a provision to guarantee

construction and implementation of a storage pond, pipeline extension, sprayfields

and pump station (` Recycled Water Improvements") within the Southeast Stewart

Tract; and

WHEREAS, River Islands was required to post $4, 560, 680 in performance and

labor and materials bonds for the Recycled Water Improvements in 2015; and

WHEREAS, Recycled Water Storage Pond will be accepted by the City once
the final punch list items have been completed a one- year maintenance bond no. SU
1124670- A in the amount of $75, 240 has been received, and the performance and

labor & materials bond no. SU 1124670 in the amount of$ 2, 324, 280 can be released;
and

WHEREAS,  Recycled Water Pipeline Extension will be accepted by the City
once the final punch list items have been completed, a one- year maintenance bond
no. SU 1124672-A in the amount of$ 75, 240 has been received, and the performance

and labor & materials bond no.  SU 1124672 in the amount of $ 752, 400 can be

released; and

WHEREAS, Recycled Water Disposal Fields ( Sprayfields") will be accepted by
the City once the final punch list items have been completed, a one- year maintenance
bond no.  SU 1124671- A in the amount of $ 23, 700 has been received,  and the

performance and labor & materials bond no. SU 1124671 in the amount of $237, 000

can be released; and

WHEREAS, Interim Recycled Water Pump Station will be accepted by the City
once the final punch list items have been completed, a one- year maintenance bond

no. 0681506 in the amount of $42, 000 has been received, and the performance and

labor & materials bond no.  SU 1124673 in the amount of $ 1, 247, 000 will not be

released; and

WHEREAS, the Interim Recycled Water Pump Station is an interim design
without the full structure and longevity of a permanent pump station,  this is because

there is still some question about the ultimate size of the pond and adjacent

sprayfields at built-out therefore the performance and labor & materials bond no.

SU 1124673 in the amount of $1, 247, 000 will not be released; and

196



WHEREAS, the City wishes to accept the Recycled Water Improvements at
this time and place them into service, by notifying the Central Valley Regional Water
Quality Board (' RWQCB") upon the acceptance of the Recycled Water Improvements

by City and providing all necessary documentation to the RWQCB of the City' s intent
to utilize said improvements as soon as possible to expand the City' s permit to allow
treatment and disposal of an additional 250, 000 gpd to increase the LCTF capacity to
1 million gallons per day;

N01iU, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop,
hereby accepts the Recycled Water Storage Pond, Recycled Water Pipeline Extension,
Recycled Water Disposal Fields (" Sprayfields") and releases the following bonds:

Bond No. SU 1124670 in the amount of $2, 324, 280

Bond No. SU 1124672 in the amount of $   752, 400

Bond No. SU 1124671 in the amount of $   237, 000

197



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th day of March
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

fVOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

Tl'EST: APP1 0\/ ED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

198



u; viF T
W    '

DEDICATION TO CITY OF LATHROP( W/ RIGHT OF REVERTER)  
I I Po,,

RETAINED BY RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC
I

C/ L 30 RECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT
1     _      

r  b,    ;

O
9

Nao E i aM tO

vT' C PEA SSw aR to     
M    ' E   '    

M
i

h6:

a

Y  ^  ' , i'    
2s ...... ..  

x xsinrt tM

4

4 Q      /`    rr roo' vcv z e an w'  
re JIv/

eg ti i//       fv_   
y        cr to ui oasmo wwcn rw vf a vnovosa a i

A

f     fj zse, w a( uo n s+o-s uro     woc m,k usoicNr

jII A Hor io scn ey_ r  // as c an i, o, wo zsau ia     1   j      \
i r+     wacer ro cwsrwc imauna+aia+   I LOT 1 Il i' rEn z e oa a( Ho r oTM sx n;-

N9 I OR 110 MD 2NY ON 10 4
S

6CA
N( HO WA EpfYD

g  IY J 121. 798AG±    
w ssw an i a um znw ox o     

a   ( I      RECYCLED WAhR
i STa2AGE POND

16     

I  ji rr b' or» ei ae a-.       

na a,vrcn. e eewc nc
jt .       

j      ..,» rc sr a vrm e io              yC w
LOT LME DELEiED

i    ;'  nc us e.wu a a,weuse ar     

I '- 0 veoaoseo o' roe RECYCLED WATERv

o     i 1  I aeiwnon vw[ ur+[.  SPRAYFIELDS

Rg i 
i   -

a E r ro sow uo su         
cc[ ss uscuErir NEW LOT LINE       

9g  1 I
i  1

mwwsco aa m co. vw si av ie  `   P
u     i NEW LOT L1NE

i i i  
t am. swc+nor nowon    II (     I. IQT IINE I

I   i 1 .. ssf.rnim?'+Em To nan warr r TM   ( ' DELEiED
raac na rm¢ xac um v r rm  '       

1  1 ' cnemrc rae urc 1       ssei art w( rm wnm sPcanm7

i i  1  `` 1 .      FND 2NY OR 110 MN 4MY df1 t0)  I
N

VII 1 
I\       J

a    ', V___   ---/.-''     o,• a•„ o o__     ————        

1yy    s
5

g} J      t _     ..     IftRlf MY!% F41NE E 4lIQli PFR

IF
S     - a"    ———      ———  T——.—

y————

IS     M' w 3! 1 OR K( HO MDiM SPEtlMD)   I
7 f I '   AI&.ECT R! AM EAY11ENi FOR N1] SN qi I10 NID ISIY[ F 10)
4     '       I orwHna cuaPogs N mc oasmrc

A nmwna aw[vMe  veoroseo w woc

r'/  

I 
1 1 I LdtuM p1W NW OILJN PPE PEA     \ 

PT' i' PFR
EA4'Yl i PEA 25oa t

mOR)   
RECYC!£ D WALER RPEIINE

y '   , i ' I ' .
NEW LOT LINE

mi an u( ra wron sxancn)   (   `
ne aa c

s

Iw
awTMaiio u

cJ     
I   ccEss uscucNr IMiD 2 1G 110 AM I! W OR 10)

35W OR tOl ECT 10 AN E] OSlIMG piAIN

I I I dTCN PEX 1501 dt 1Y( NO MIOIN

0  ,    il     I EXISi1NG LOT q)µ D 9°"' o s

i I    w rK^"    I NEW LOT LINE LINE TO REMAIN
g I}     rnowr+ or¢ vd» su EXISTiNG LOT UNE TO REMAIN   

1
a R    '' ,  t

w a, rT w• ro r)      i LOT 2
I 3

LOT LJNE I
I Ifn ensEuwi ro ssao

C
il     N`" z°°°" at°.       I

101. 715 AC±    DELETED

rkm

s I utw r[x vei w( rw vµmm
II      r o LOT 3

zex w azo- ru n e ab+c nc        I r •

u vnc x sr ar r rsc¢ r, ro

f.    
81. 750 AC  I

V

s

r' ;...
S  '     1NE EAST BiWN Oi PAPAq3 tlli

PT' E PEA LSl1 tll N I L `  
1 1       

0.EA3lIdT 10 SERNn WD YN       
Id KQ55 GOI YW OR N4 jn       

POMFJi CO. PEA SI Q J16( MPR VI iE I 51 21N f1( 1NNOM)      
MOE NML EASEYDIxirTASEY

oc nori: iro wom anm).+ n   

1   ,    
nein wisr Mn oosnw Pac u c

u-     
enson r ro svo

I
kA 3001- 19] Et  I

f

y
J

r ..-__ --            t 1C2S5 G] FJIIXIACCf55 EA3l1ENT PFA

sse a+. a uw uw-..         Pv+ zx a+w

sV`       on no ua zsw on im     uu zsw w no
ri

e--- .   

i..._

s      --- M; N7H` l .R i-   s          

cr' M' PEA 1'S i OR 110

s z, o,       
a .., E,,      lN7rR5T 7r         kz.

l0' ACCE4 PQt 9ii OP     
BY CXAS MODONS D IID YMCH IDE]

xz sr xoi+ ao( uwqox)     (
r1pPR x. incnnw- Ho roTM waw+)     

AN ARY, 2. 2o,     RECYCLED WATER INFRASTRUCTURE
RIVER ISLANDS/ CITY OF LATHROP

o zoo'    aoo eoo LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT- RESULTING LOT 1
N G 1 N E{ Z 1 N G

scn  i'= eoo'      CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA Modesto Palo Alto Pleasamon

199



d6A i 6 CG a°    ;,

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPT,4NCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date: 2/ 5/ 2018

Tract No.:     River Islands- Recycled Water Interim Pump Station

Item Unit gty Unit Price Total

Concrete Ramp and Cart Pad LS 1  $     3, 500.00  $     3, 500.00

Driveway and Apron SF 2, 000  $  3. 00  $     6, 000.00

8" HDPE LF 190  $ 40.00  $     7, 600. 00

Submersible Pump CP06 EA 2  $    10, 000.00  $    20, 000.00

12" Fabricated HDPE Discharge Manifold EA 1  $     2, 000.00  $     2, 000.00

1Z" Butterfly Valve EA 1  $     2, 500.00  $     2, 500.00

8" Butterfly Valve EA 3  $     7, 000.00  $    21, 000.00

8" Check Valve EA 3  $     7, 000.00  $    21, 000.00

6" Butterfly Valve EA 1  $     6, 000.00  $     6, 000. 00

2" Air Relief Valve LS 1  $     2, 000.00  $     2, 000. 00

1" Air Relief Valve LS 3  $      1, 000.00  $     3, 000. 00

Main SES EA 1  $    15, 000.00  $    15, 000. 00

Motor Control Center EA 1  $    30, 000. 00  $    30,000. 00

Stainless Disconnects/ J- Boxes EA 3  $       750.00  $     2, 250. 00

Misc Station Conduit/ Wire LS 1  $     5, 000.00  $     5, 000. 00

Total $   146, 850.00

lofl

200



CITY OF Li4THROP

PROJECTi4CCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:   Date: 11/ 22/2016

Tract No.:      River Islands- Manthey Road Recycled Water Line

Item Unit           Unit Price Amount

16" PVC Recycled Water Pipe LF 8, 332      $ 50. 00      $  416,600. 00

16" Valves EA 25      $     3, 500.00      $    87,500. 00

4" Tap with Gate Valve EA 1      $       250. 00      $       250. 00

16" Stub with 2" Tap & Gate Valve EA 5      $       500. 00      $     2, 500.00

Air Relief Valves EA 3      $     2,000.00      $     6, 000.00

6" AB Access Road SF 114,640      $  1. 00      $   114,640.00

Total      $   627,490. 00

201



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:   Date: 2/ 5/ 2018

Tract No.: River Islands- Recycled Water Storage Pond Expansion

Item Unit       Unit Price Amount

Site Preparation AC 15     $    2, 600.00     $     39, 000.00

Earthwork( Assumed 40% Shrinkage)       CY 74,200     $ 2. 50     $    185,500.00

3" AB Access Roads SF 41, 325     $ 0. 60     $     24,795. 00

Erosion Control AC 15     $   2,500. 00     $     37, 500.00

HDPE Textured Berm Liner w/ Anchor Trench- 40 Mil SF 112,860     $ 0.45     $     50,787.00

HDPE Smooth Bottom Liner w/out Anchor Trench- 40 Mil SF 353,685     $ 0.45     $    159, 158.25

Linear Installation SF 466,545     $ 0. 25     $    116,636.25

Fencing LF 2,220     $      25.00     $     55,500.00

Hydroseeding SF 101, 170     $ 0. 20     $     20,234.00

Total     $    689, 100.00

202



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GAS 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:   Date: 2/ 24/2017

Tract No.: River Islands- Interim Recycled Water Storage Pond - 55-MG ( Phase 1 B)

Item Unit       Unit Price Amount

Site Preparation AC 19     $   2, 000. 00     $     38, 000.00

Earthwork( Assumed 30% Shrinkage)       CY 99, 180     $ 3. 00     $    297,540.00

6" AB Access Roads SF 62, 715     $ 1. 65     $    103, 479.75

Erosion Control AC 19     $   4,000. 00     $     76, 000.00

HDPE Textured Berm Liner w/ Anchor Trench- 40 Mil SF 149, 620     $ 1. 85     $    276, 797. 00

HDPE Smooth Bottom Liner w/out Anchor Trench- 40 Mil SF 402, 085     $ 1. 25     $    502,606.25

Emergency Stairs or HDPE Ladders EA 25     $   2, 000. 00     $     50, 000. 00

Fencing LF 3, 300         20    $     66, 000. 00

Hydroseeding SF 138, 885 0. 15    $     20, 832. 75

Total     $  1, 431, 255.75

203



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:    Date: 2/ 5/ 2018

Tract No.:       River Islands- Recycled Water Sprayfields- A35

Item Unit           Unit Price Amount

12" PVC Pipe with Flood Riser Valves LF 3, 026      $ 60.00      $   181, 560.00

12" Recycled Water Supply Pipeline LF 955      $ 40.00      $    38,200. 00

12" Gate Valve EA 5 ,    $     2, 500.00      $    12, 500.00

12" Double Check Valve EA 2      $     2, 500.00      $     5, 000.00

Pressure Reducing Valve EA 1      $     2, 000.00      $     2, 000.00

Valve Vault EA 1      $     5, 000.00      $     5, 000.00

Recycled Water Caution Signs EA 32      $       250.00      $     8, 000.00

36" ADS Pipe LF 800      $       200.00      $   160, 000. 00

Total      $   412, 260. 00

204



a: o c J. d J  

REGC)RDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECC7RDED MA[L TO AND

MA1L TAX STATEMENTS TO:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Space Above This Line for Recorder' s Use Qnly)

Documentary Transfer TaY$ O. dO

DEED FOR EASEMENTS

This Deed for Easements {" I2c d") dated as of 2018 is made and entered into

by and benveen RICHARD D. HEDRICK, an individual, PA[JLA YROZ, an individual, ROBERT L.
HEDRICK as Trustee of the Rabert L. Hedrick Revocab[e Living Trust, and RUDY DELL' OSSO as
TrusEee of the Rudy De11' Osso Revocable Trust( coltectively, "Grantor") and the C1TY OF LATHROP,
a municipal corporation (" Grantce").

12ECITALS

A.       Grantor is the owner of certain reai property situated in the Ciry of C.athrop, San 3oaquin
County, California ( hereafter referred to as the " Easement Area"), more particularly described in
Exhibit A attached to this Deed and hereby incorporated by reference.     

B.       Grantee is the operator ofcertain public utilities which serve the EaSement Area and

other real property situated in the City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County, California and may therefore
be the beneficiary of an easement in gross. Grantee intends to construct, install, operate and maintain
reclaimed water public utilities( collectively, the" Intprovements") over, under and across Ehe asement

Area.

C.       Grantee desires io aequire certain rights in the Easement Area.

NOW, TH REFORE, for good and sufficient consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is
hereby acknowledged, Grontor and Grantee agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1.       Grant of Easernent. Grantor grants to Grantee an easement over the Easement Area,
subject to the terms of this Deed.

2.       Descriation of Easement. The easement ranted in this Deed is an easement for the
construction, installation, operation and maintenance of the Impravements over,under and across tbe    
Easement Area.  Grantee sha{I use the easements granted hereunder, and shall conduct all activities
within the Easement Area in accordance with applicable law and all recorded cov nants, conditions
and restrictions affecting the Easement Area which are of record at the commencement of the Term of
this easement as specified in paragraph b belaw.

3.       Secondarv Easements. The easement granted in this Deed includes the following
incidental rights: the right to ingress and egress over the Easement Area at all times and to perform such
activities on the Easerstent Area as are reasonably necessary for the construction, instailation, operation

205



and maintenance of the Improvements. In eYercising these rights, Grantee must use reasonable care and
may not unreasonably increase the burden on the Easement Area or make any material changes to the
Easement Area other than as necessary to construct, install, operate and maintain the Improvements as
contemplated herein.

4.       Graat e Covenants. Grantee agrees to use the Easemen# Area anly in a manner
consistent with the terms and conditions hereof. in the event that Grantor gives Grantee written notice

that Grantee's use of the Easement Area violates the terms and conditions of this Deed, Grantee shall

promptly take such steps as are necessary to cure such violation. Grantee shali not make any chan es to
the Easement Area that are inconsistent with the purposes of this easernent a5 herein described, without

the prior written consent af Grantor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed. Any above- grade lmprovements to the Easement Area shall be subject to the prior written
approval af the Grantar, which approval shall nat be unreasonably withheld, conditioned ar delayed.
Grantee shall repair and maintain the [ mprovements at no cost to Grantor. Grantee shall restore the

surface of the Easement Area followin any construction, installation, or maintenance of the
Improvements to as good or better a condition as existed prior to that construction, installation or
maintenance.

5.       Indem nitv. Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Grantor, and Grantor's
employees and a ents, harmtess from and a ainst all fines, suits, losses, costs, expenses, liabilities,
claims, demands, actions, damages"and judgments, includin; reasonable and actual attorneys' fees and

costs of suit( callectively, "Claims") arising from Grantee' s construction orother work in the Easement
Area.

6.       Ttrm.  The easement rights ranted in this Deed shall commence on the date this Deed

is recorded in the official records of San Joaquin County and shal) terminate upon the earlier of
i) recordation in those o cial records afa written agreement to terminate e. ecuted by the Grantee or
ii) if and when terminated by Grantor pursuant to Grantor' s power of termination in accordance with

California Civil Code Sectian 885. 0lQ e1. seq., but only in the event that Grantee abandons the Easement
Area, which means that Grantee has removed any and all Improvements such as reclaimed water
pipelines, equipment, and other ancillary facilities and othenvise na longer uses the Easement Area For
reclaimed water public utility purposes.

7.       Noaexclusive Easement. The easement granEed in ihis Deed is nonexclusive. Grantor

retains the ri ht to make any use of the Easement Area, including the ri ht to grant concurrent easements
in the Easement Area to third parties that do not interfere with Grantee's free use and enjoyment ofthe
easement.

8.       Deed Nanassi nable. This Deed shall not be assigned other than by Grantee and in that
case only for public utility purposes. Any other purported assi nment of this Deed orof any interest in this
Deed shall be void and of no effect.

9.       Entire A reement. This Deed constitutes the entire agreement between Grantor and

Grantee relating to the above easement. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiatians, or representations
with respect to the use of the Easement Area for public utility purposes that are not expressly set forth in
this Deed are of no force and effect. Except as provided in paragraph b above, any amendment to this
Deed shall be of no force and effect unless it is in writin and signed by Grantor and Grantee.

10.      Binding Effect. TF is Deed shall be bindittg an and sha[ 1 inure to the benefit of the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of Grantor and Grantee.

REMAINDER OF-PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANKj

206



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have executed this Deed as of 2018.

CRANTOR: GRANTEE:

Rudy Dell' Osso Revocable Trust CITY F LATHROP

R Y LL'  SSO, Trustee o By:
the Ru Dell' Osso Revocable Trust Name: Stephen 1. Salvatore
Dated:      '       2018 Its:   City Manager

Dated: 201 S

Robert L. Hedrick Revocable Trust

J ., 
ATTEST:

ROBEI T L. HEDRICK, Tr stee af By:
the Robert L. Hedrick Revocable Trust Name: Teresa Var as, City Clerk
Dated:'   , 2018 Dated: Ol8

Municipal Seal)

APPROVED f1S TO FORM:

Richard D. Hedrick, indi}ridually
Dated•   v 2. J • , 2018 By:

Name: Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney
Dated:   2018

Paula A.   roz,   dividually
Dated:   , Z-- Q--/', ? 018

207



CALIF RNI . LaP 9R 5 CKN WL D ME T CIVEL CCDDE§ 198g

A notary public or oth r officer completing th3s cert cate verifias only the identity oi ihe individual who signed the
docurr nt to which this cert(iicaie is ettachsd, and not the trutMulness, accuracy, or validit I of that documem.

State of California

County of San Joaquin

February 15, 2018 before me, 
Kathleen Willows, Notary PublicOn

Date Here lnsert Name and Title of tlte O(ficer

personally appeared       udy Dell' Ossa
Name(s) of Signer(s)

wrho proved to me on the basis of sati factory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/ are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/ they executed the same in
his/ her/ their authorized capacity(ies), and that by Frislher/ theirsignature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the p son(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

KATNLEEN WILLOlNS WfTNESS my hand and official seal.
Notary Public• Calilornla

z•'     San Joaquln County z
Commission# 2153746   ;      v)[Yf

My Camm, Expires Jun 16, 2020
i9natur_,( S

Signafut of Notary Public

Place Notary Sea! At ove
OPTlO1VAL

Theugh this section is optional, compJeting thfs information can deter alteration ot fhe documenf or
fraudulent reattachment of thrs form to an unintended document.

Description f 4ttacheai Docum nt

Title or Type of Document:     Document Date:

Number of Pages:   _ Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Ca ci4y{ s) C9aaened by Signe( s}
Signer's Name: Signer' s IVame:

Corparate O cer — Title(s):     C7 Corporate Off'icer — Title(s):

D Partner — ! Limitecf   General Partner — CI Limi#ed O General

Individua! Attomey in Fact Cl Individual p Attorney in Fact
Truste   Guardian or Conservator Trustee Guardian or Conservator

ther. 0 Other:
Signer Is Representing:      Signer Is Representing:

c2014 National PVotary Association • www.NationalNoEary.org 1- 800-US NOTARY( 1- 800-876-8827)   Item# 5807

208



CIII. IFORNIA ALL-PllRPOSE ACICNOIAfLEDGMENT CIVE CODE§ 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies on{y the (dentity oi the indivtdual who signed the
documem to which ihis cert icate fs attache, and not the ttuthfulness, accu acy, or validity af thak document.

State of Califomia

County of San Joaquin

Februarv 9 2018 Kathleen Willows, Notary Public
4n before me,   

Date Here lnsert Name and 7rfle of the Officer

personally appeared
Robert L. Medrick

Name(s) af Signer(s}

who proved to me on tfie basis of satisfactory evidence #o be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/shelthey executed #he same in
his/ her/ their autharized capacity{ies), and that by his/ her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the en#ity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed tfie instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

KATHLEEN WIlLOWS

Notery Publlc- Californfa WITNESS my hand and official seal.
i        Sm Joaquln County           K

Cammisafon+ 2153746
JM Camm. Ex Ires Jun t6, 2020+     Sign2ture

Signa#ure of Notary Pubtic

Place Natary Se+ Above
vprronrac

Though fhis secfion is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent r attachmenf of thls fr rm to an uninfended document.

Description of At#ached Documen#

Title or Type af Document:.    Document Date:      

Number of Pages:     5igner(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies} Cfaimed k y Signer(s)
Signer's Name: Signer' s Name:

p Corporate Officer — Title(s):     C! Corporate Officer — Title(s):

Q Partner — C] Limited   General O Partner — Limited O General

p Individual Attorney in Fact Individuai O Attorney in Fact
O T ustee Guardian or Conservator Trustee O Guardian or Conservator
CI Other Cl Other:
Signer Is Representing:      Signer ls Representing:

22 14 National Notary Association• wvrw.NationalNotary.org• 1- 800- US NOTARY{ 1- 8Q0- 876-6827   Item # 5907

209



C/1LIF IRNIA ALL-PtlRPOSE ACKNOVlIL DGMENT ClVIL CODE§ 1189

A notary public or other o cer completing this cert cate veriFies only the Identily of ths individual who s gned the
document to which this certificate Is atlached, and r ot ihe truthfulness, accuracy, w validity of that dxumer t.

State of Califomia

County of 5an Jnaquin

On February 6, 2018 before me, Debbie E. Belmar, a IVotary Public,
Date

personally appeared Richard D. Hendrick, who proved# o me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
to be the person( s) whose name(s) is/ are subscribed to the within lnstrument and acknowledged

to me that heJshe/ they executed the same in his/ her/ their authorized capacitysies, and that by
his/ her/ their signature{s) on the ins#rument the person( s), or the entity upon behalf of which the
person(s) acted, execu#ed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY F PERJURY under the laws

of the State of Galifornia that the foregoing aragraph
DEBBIEE. 6ELMAR is trueand correct.

Na aty Puhllc Calltarnia    
San loaquln tounSy

CommissionN2206447 WRNESS my hand and official seal.
My Comm, ExpBeslut 30, 2421

Signature 6' C% m

Srgnature of Notary PubGc

PJace Nofary Se Above
OPT1C?NAL

Though this sect;an is optron f, comp/eting#his r formatlon can deter ftera6on of the document ar
fraudulent reattachment of fhis farm ta an unrntended document

Description of Attached Dacumen#

Title or Type of Document:     Document Date:

Number of pages: ________.. Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capaciiy(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer' s Name: Signer's Name:

Corporate O cer — Title(s):     Q Corporate Officer — Title(s):

Partner — Limited O General Partner -  Limited O General
Individual O Attorney in Fact Indiviclual Attorney in Fact

Q Trustee Guardian or Conservator Tri,stee Guardian or Conservator
C7 ther: C3 Other.
Signer Is Representing:      Signef Is Representing: 

2014 Mstional Natary Association • www.NationatWatary.org• 7- 6U0- US NOTARY( 1- 800=876- 6827)   Item# 5907

210



v

CAL[FGRN[1 ALL- PURPd7 SE ACKNOWLfiDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189

A notary public or other oifi er completing this cert cate verities only ihe identity of the Individual uvho signad the
document to which this certificate Is attacEted, and not ihe trutMuiness, accuracy, or validiiy of thaf documer.

5tats of California

County of San Joaquin

On t Z before me,  

D e        Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer

personally appeared
Name of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) islare
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ she/ they executed the same in
his/ her/ their authorized capacity(i s}, and that by his/ her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entify upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument

I cert;fy under PEhiALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

KATHLEEN WILLOWS RNESS my hand and offiCia) seal.
Notary Public • Callfornia

z '     San Jaaquln Cou ly z
Si natureCommtsslon# 2153746         9

N1 Camm. Ex Ires Jun 16, 2Q20     ,       Sfgnature of Notavy Public

r

Place Nofary Seal A, ove
OPTI NAL

Though this section is option f, comple ng this infarmation can deter alterabotl of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this fnrm to art unintended document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:       Docasrnent Date:

Number of Pages: _ __. .__ _ Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity{ies) Claimed by Signer s)
Signer's Name:       Signer's Name:

Corparate Officer — Title(s):     Corporate Officer — Title(s):

O Partner —  Limited   General Partner — Limited   General

p lndividual O Attdrney in Fact O lndividual p Attorney in Fact
Trustee O Guardian or Conseroator O Trustee Guardi n or Conservator

Cl Other: O Other:
Signer Is Representing:     Signer Is Representing:

42014 National Notary Assaciation www.NatianalNotary.org• 1- 800-US NOTARY( 1- St 0-87fi- 6827}  ltem# 5907

211



A KN0IWLEDGIVIENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the
identity of the individuaI who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not tlie truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of CaIifornia

County of

On before me,     

insert name ofnotary)
Notary Public, persanally appeared
who proved ta me on the basis of satisfactary evidence to be the person( s) whose name{ s) is/ are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/ they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity{ ies), and that by his er/their signature( s) on the instruinent the
person( s}, or the entity upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERI RY under the laws of tne State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature Seal)

212



ACKr100 VLEYDG1ME1o1' T

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the
identity of the individual avho signeci the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of tIaat document.

State of California

County of

On before me,

insert name of notary)
hdotary Public, personally appeared
aho proved to me on the basis oFsatisfactory evidence to be the person( s} whose name{ s) islare

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/sheithey executed the same in
his/ her/their authorized capacity( ies), anci that by his/her/ their signature{ s) on the instrument the
person( s}, or the entiry upan belialf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENAL,TY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of Californ9a that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and o cial seal.

Signature Seal}

213



AClKP10WL,EI)2 1dIET1''

A notary public or other o cer completing this certificate verifies only the
identity of the individual who signed the dacument to which tl is certi cate is
attached, and not the iruthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of

On before me,       

insert name of notary)
Notary Public, personally appeared
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument aad acknowledged to me that helshe/ they executed the same in
his/ her/their anthorized capaciry( ies), and that by his/ her their signature(s) on tl e instrument the
persor( s), or the entity upon behalf of tvhich the person{ s) acted, executed the instrvment.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of'the Statc of California that the
fore uing paragraph is true and correct.

VdITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature 5eal)

214



EXgiISIT. 4

LEGAL DESCItIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA

See Attached)

215



SEPTEMBER 7, 2016

EXHIBIT

LEGAL D SCRIPTI N

RECYCLED WATER LINE AND ACCESS EASEMENT

ACROSS DELL'OSSO ET AI. PROPER'IY

RIVER ISLANDS

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ALL THAT REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF lATHROP, COUfVTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTlON OF PARCEL THREE, AS SAIb PARCEL THREE 15 DESCRIBEb IN THE fVOTiCE
OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMEfVT NUMBER 07-62, RECORDE Al1GUST 6, 2087, AS DOCUMENT
NUMBER 2007- 140788, SAN JOAQUIfV COUNTY RECORDS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLI.OWS:

COMMENCING AT 7HE MOST EASTERN CORNER OF PARCEL ONE, AS SAID PARCEL ONE IS
DESCRIBED IN THE NOTICE QF LOT LIfVE ADJUSTMENT NUMBER 07-62, REC RDED AUGUST 6,
2007, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2007-140788, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS, SAID CQRNER
ALSO BEING ON THE{ VORTHWES7ERN I. iNE OF MANTHEY ROAD, AS SAID MANTHEY ROAD IS
SHOWN ON THE RECORD OF SURVEY ILED AUGUST 4, 2004,! N BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, AT
PAGE 142, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTI( RECORDS;

THENCE; ALONG THE LINE COMMON TO SAID NORTHWESTERN LIIVE OF MANTHEY ROAD AN
THE SOU7HEASTERN LINE OF PARCEL TWO, AS SAID PARCEL TWO IS DESCRIBED 1N THE
NOTICE OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NUMBER Q7- fi2, RECORDED AUGUST 6, 2007, AS
DOCUMENT NUMBER 20U7- 44Q788, SAN JOAQUIN COUN7Y RECORQS, NORTH 47°56'00" EAST
10.00 FEE7';

THENCE, LEAVING SAID COMMON LINE, NORTH 49° 50'30" WEST 33,30 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 48°32'2' i" EAS7 357.98 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 48° 12'04" EAST Sifi.24 FEEI' TO A PQ1NT BEING ON THE NORTFiEASTERN LINE
OF SAID PARCEL TWO{ DOCUM IVT NUMBER 2007- 140788), SAID POfNT ALSO BE(NG THE POINT
OF BEG[ NNING;

THENCE, FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERN LI[VE, NORTH
40°46'10" WEST 15.04 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID NOR7FfEASTERN LINE, NORTH 48°12'04" EAST 196.56 FEET, SAID LINE
BEING REFERRED HEREINAFTER AS LINE' A'

i'MENCE, NORTH 47°53'03" EASi' 572.07 FEET, SAID LINE BEING REFERRED HEREINAFTER AS
LINE' B'

THENCE, NORTH 47° 52'06" EAST 310.87 FEE7, SAID LINE BEING REFERRED WEREINAF'i'ER AS
LINE' C';

7HENCE, NORTFI 42°02'00" WES7 98.96 FEET;

TFiENCE, NORTH 47"46'03" EAST 71. 73 FEET TO A POINT BEING ON THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE
QF 7RACT 32 AS SHOWN ON SAID RECORD OF SURVEY( 35 SURVEYS 142);

PAGE 1 OF 2
s sna Ec,- w oeuosso

216



EXHIBI'f SEPTEMBER 7, 2016
LEGA! DESCRIPTION

RECYCLED WATER LINE AND ACCESS EASEMEN'

ACROSS DELL'OSSO ET AL PROPERTY

RIVER ISLANI3S- PHASE 16

THENCE, AL(aNG THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF SAID TRACT 32, THE FOLLOWING THREE( 3)
COIJRSES:

1 j AI.ONG THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY, WAVING A RADIUS
OF 90.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTW 74°28'08"
EAST, THROUGH A CEIVTRAL ANGLE OF 57°33'52" p AN ARC DISTANCE OF 90.42 FEET;

2)  SOUTH 42°02'00" EAST 35.54 FEET, AND

3)  SOUTH '{ 3°58'49" EAST 20.03 FEET 70 A POINT BEiNG 30 FEET OFFSET

50UTHEASTERLY, MEASURED AT A RIGHT ANGLE, FRC)M AFORESAID LINE` C';

THENCE, LEAVING SAID SOUTWEASTERN E. INE, ALONG SAlD 38 FOOT OFFSEI' LINE, SOUTH
47°52'06" WEST 331. 40 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A LINE BEING 30 FEET OFFSET SOUTHEASTERLY, MEASUREp AT A RIGHT
ANGLE, FROM AFORESAID LINE' B', SOUTH 47°53'03" WEST 572.16 FEET;

THENCE, ALOfVG A LINE BEIiVG 30 FEET OFFSET SOUTHEASTERI. Y, MEASURED AT A RIGHT
ANGLE, FROM AFORESAID LINE` A', SOUl'H 48 12'04" WEST 197. 18 FEET TO THE
NORTHEASTERN LINE OF SAIQ PARCEL NUO( DOCUMENT NUMBER 2007-140788);

THENCE, ALONG SAlD NORTHEAS7ERN LINE, NORTH 40°46' 10" WEST 15:Q0 FEET TO SAID
P INT OF BEGINNING.      

CONTAINING 0.85 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

ATTACHED HERETQ IS A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS BASEO QN REC RD DATA AS Sh10WN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORQ
OF SURVEY FILED AUGUST, 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, PAGE 142, 5AN JOAQUIN
CUUNTY REGORDS. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE CALIFORNIA COORDINAT SYSTEM,     
CCS83, ZONE 3, NAD 83. ALL DISTANCES AND DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE GROUIVD DIS ANCES.

ENb OF bESCRIPTION

i 1 13/ l(o OJP K TT
N

S

PAU L KITI'RE D DATE 4, 2P       
PROFESSfONAL LAND SURVEYOR f^

CALIFORNIA NO. 5790 No. 5790 p
o-     

rF CA1. F\

PAGE20F2
25500 LEG-RWL DELLOSSO

217



cs'(r)    
c   A      

s

998?"
l'a? sE.2o84S°(

r(i

s(
2

eRooxs, T AL
DN 2013- 082780 fpRAFAAMWORLD, t,lc

DELL'OSSO, Ei' AL N
ON 26D7- idq789 PAAC L 7}MD

PAACEL ONE
DN 2007-144798 DN 2007- 140805 s3?

6f
DM 2607-140788

LLA- U7- 62 DN 2009- 078866 13?.

2J.Ll.A- 07- 62

7AAGT 32 Q aRCELTHREE r 7AAC7 32   

i'i AC7 43 1 35 6URVEY6 142}     
DN2U07- 140788   ` 35 6URVEYB 142      r     

t3b 6URVEY6 142 f
7-62 5     

4

oQ'

z RWL EASEMENT
J Q,

P0C
POB

SEE DETAIL 2
SHEET 2 MANTHEY ROAD INTERSTATE 5 SEE DETAIL 1

SHEET 2

M05SdALE ROAD

LEGEND o K+rrNfO,

sG
CENTERUNE

G' QP

RWL EASEMENT a   / 579 o
EXISTIIVG LOT LINE

9 j i31t6    *RWL RECYCLED WATER LINE s.

RADIAI. BEARING TFo pL Fo

1)       RECORD DATA PER 35 SURVEYS 142

RECORD DATA PER 1HE NOT1C
NOTES

2       OF L4T UNE ADJUSTMENT
2)   EAEMENTS OF RECORO RE N

TD
SH01NN

TABLES

RECORDED AUGUST 6, 2007 AS
DOC N0. 20Q7- 140788

0 300'   ' 600'      12Q0'

sca E:  = sc'      PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGA! DESCRIPTION
DRAWA! BY: PK RECYCLED WATER LWE EASEMENT

FILE: 25500 PLAT- RKl E91i- OF1L osso.awc DELL'OSSQ, ET AL PRQPERTY
E N G 1 N E fZ 1 N G

DATE: 04/ 07/ lfi sHEEr; 1 OF 3 CITY OF lATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 75506- ItlVER IAANOS YHASE fA` Ot1C1yU TS RfAL ESui' F RSIWpqID\ 7SSOp pUt- RWL E9 1T- OEL. asso.owc

218



L1NE TABLE CURV TABIE

UNE DIREC110N LENGni CURVE RADiUS QELTA LENGTH

L1 N18'06' 34' W 1Q0.00'  ( t}      C1 90.00 90'00'00"   141. 37'  ( 1)

i2 N21' 16' 16" W 306. i3'  ( 2)     C2 90.Q0 32'26' 08'  1332.35'

L3 N4136'01' W 9222'  ( 2)     C3 90.00 57 33'52'    90.42'

4 N68' 12' 04' E 345.59'  ( 2)     C4 7688. 11 T42 29   1434.28'

L5 N48'02' 04" E 151. 76'  ( 2)     C5 7fiB8,11 19' 22'34'   2599.94'  ( f)

L6 N41' 57' S6" W Z83.95'  ( 2)     C6 7763. 11 2'49' 45'    383.33'

L7 N47'S8' 00' E 53.04'  ( 1)

L8 N42'02 00' W 35.54'  ( 1}

L9 N13' 58'49" W 34.04  )

L1U N4746'03" E 71. 73'

U1 N5131' 13" E 230.83'  ( 1)

L12 N47'56'QO' E 164.31'

L13 N74'14' 38" E 135.41  ( i)

L14 N2d'56' 19" W 75.00'  ( RXt)

L7
G

L1 D G,`
1

in r v 7478'UB" W R

PARGEL 7W0           
DELL'OSSO, ET AL

pARCELTHREE I
DN 2DD7- 140788  DN 2007-140605 DN 2ao7- tao e8 o

z. A- o7- s2      DN 2009-078806 w•a- sz 3a'    o
o

7AACT 32 S        
36 & URV Y6 142      

z
z)  

15,flp' N48' 12' 04' E N47' S3' 03' E 572.07'       N47' 52'06": 310_87^
r J rj

PQB 196. 56'.+    "_---^——

g RWL EASE AENT o'

0. 85 ACt ti'N
816. 24'

f
15.00' _   N48' 12' 04' E       _    ————   

r

n 187•18'
r

N47'S3' 03"E 57216'  N47'52'06' E 331. 40'       pC     '

n
i'

778.69' 980.72    
NAO' 2 40 E 115.12()

N48'02'00' E 1759.41'( T)( ij
MANTHEY FiOAD

ti

DETAll. 1 a
NT5

SCAlE: N A PLAT TO ACCONIPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION
DRA'NN BY: PK RECYCLED WAi'ER LINE EASEMENT

FILE: zssao Pur- am Esur- oo.L flsso.or   DELL'OSSO, ET AL PROPERTY
N G 1 N E R 1 N G

DATE: aa/ o/ s SHEET 2 OF 3 CITY OF LATHROP SAN J4A 111N COUN'f'Y CAUFQRNIA

T;\ 75500- R1LER 13AN05 PHASE fA\ ONC fLATS\ RYtL E54t FMitri0Rt0\ 4 500 PUi-RNt ESNi- flELL' OSS. OWC

219



BRooKs, E7 AL
DELL'OSSO, ET ALr 2o13- oe27e      

QN 2007• 140805
M PARGEL 7 0

DN.2409•078808ON 2D(} 7- 14 788
N LLA- 07- SZ PARCELTHREE

THAC7' 32 a DNLLA 07-62

SEE DETAIl. 3
6URV YS 142    

THlS SHEET Z
15. 40'     12' 04"E 196.58'

1' 21° E 357.98' __ _  N4812'04' E 816.24' P B R'
o.espcMEIdT

21 
N6 82r'    N48'12' 04' E 197.18'

4£  `   12   '       
778.69' N 980,72'

POG

L'      

MANTHEY ROAD
N48'02' 00' E 1759.41'(( 1)

DETAIL
NTS

eaaoKs, ET AL

3b7AAGT
43

OpARCEL 7W0     {   

7FiAC7 32 1
6JAVEY6 142} 35 & lJRVEYS 142

FARMWOALb, LLG
b 2d07- 407&8

DN 2047- 146799 r Ll.A- O7- 62

ri

PARCEL ON    

DN 2007-140788 N48'32' 21" E 357.98( T}
LLA- 67- 62

C,    
i

a e i

ys rl? i` Q`,
2 I

ri

J
16. 96'  10.00' 964.31 111

N47' 6' aa' E s. z({ t)

MANTHEY ROAD

DETAIL 3
N15

ti

sca E:  a PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPT94N
RAWN BY: PK RECYCLED WATER L1NE EASEMENT

FILE: 25560 PlAT- RWL ESk9T- QEL1. ossa.o c DELL OSSO, ET AL PROPERTY
N G 1 N E i 1 N G

DaTE: as/ a/ s SHEET. 3 OF 3 CETY OF IATHROP SAN JOA UItJ COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T;\ 25500- RIVER I$ AN6'.'i PNASE IA 4N9'i PLATS\ HWL ESYT FARNIY'0liLb` 7S5pp PtAT- RY9L ESk1T- OELL Q554.U1YG

220



CERTIFICt TE OF ACCEPTANCE

GOVE iMENT COI) SECTIC}N Z7281

Attached)

221



RECORDiNG REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO AND
MAII.;TAX STATEIVIENTS TO:

City Clerk
City af Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Space Abave This Line For Recarder' s Use Only)

Documentary TransferTax$  0.00   '

DEED FOR EASEMENTS 3

This Deed for Easernents (" Deed") dated as of  t t        2018 is made and entered into

by and betwe n JUDY A. BROOKS, as Tntstee of the Frederic L. and 3udy A. Broaks Family
Survivor' s Trust under agreement dated October 2, 1985 and as Trustes of the Fredericic L. and Judy A.
Brooks Femily Bypass Trust under agreement dated October 2, 1985,(" Grantor") and the CITY OF      .

LATHROP, a municipal corporadon {" Grantee"}.    

RECITALS

A.      Grantor is the owc er of certain real property situated in the City ofLathrop, San doaquin
County, Califomia ( hereafter referred to as the " Easement Are"), more particnlarty described in
Exhibit A attached to this Deed and heteby' incotporated by refarence.

B.`     Grantee is the aperator ofcertain public utiiities which scrve the Eatement.Area and

other real property situated in the City of Lath p, San. ioaquin County, California and may therefore
be the beneficiary of an easement in gross. Grantee intends to construct, inskall, operate and maintaitt
reclaimed water public utilities( coljectively, the" Improvements") over, uncfer and across the Easement
Area.

C.      Grantee desiras to acquire certain rights in the Easement Area.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and sufficient consideration, the receipt and adequacy ofwhich is
hereby acknowtedged, Grentor and Grantee agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1,       Grent o[ Eesemea Grantor grants to Grantee an casement over the Easemant Area,    .

subject to the tercns of this Deed.

2.       DescriutiQn ofEasement. Thc easement granted in this Deed i"s an easem nt for the

constructian, installation, operation and maintenance of the Improvements over,under and acrnss the
Easement Area.  Grantee shall use the easements granted hereunder and shall conduct all activities

within the Easement Area in accordance with applicable law and all recorded covenants, conditions

and resirictions affecting the Essement Area whiah are, of record at the commeneement of the Term of
this easement as specifisd in paragraph 6 below.

3.       SecondArv Easemeats. The easement granted in this Deed includes the following
incidental rights: the right to ingress and egress over the Essement Area at all times and to perform such
activities on the Easement Area as are reasonably necessary for the construation, installation, operation

222



and maintenance of the Improvements. In exercising these rights, Grantee must use reasonable csre and
may naE unreesonably increasc the burden on the Easement Area or make any material cfiangas to the
Easement Area other than as necessary to canstruct, install, operate end maintain the Improvements as
contemp[ated herein.

4.       Gr at e Covenants. Grantee agrees to use the Easement Area only in a manner
consistent with the terms and conditions hereof. In the event that Grantor gives Grantee written notice
that Grantee's use ofihe Easement Area violaEes the terms and conditiuns of this Dced, Grantee shell

promptly take such steps as are necessary to cure such violarion. Grantee shall not make any changes to
tha Easement Area that are inconsistent with the purposes of this easement as herein described, without

the prior writ#en consent of Grantor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withhald, conditioned or
delayed. Any above-grade Improyements to the Easement Area shall be subject to the prior writ#en
approval of the Grantor, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
Grantee shall repair and maintain the lmprovements at no cost to Grantor. Grantee shall restore the

surface of the Easement Area following anyconstruction, installation, or maintenance of the
Improvements to as good ar better a condition as existed prior to that copstruction, installation or
maintenanee.

5.       Indemnitv. Grantee agrees to indemnify, defand and hold Grantor, and Grantor's
employecs and agents, harmless from and agairtst all fines, suits, losses, costs, expenses, liabilities,

claims, demands, actions, damages and judgments, inoluding reasonable and actual attorneys' fees and
costs o suit( collectively," Cisi s") arising from Grentee's construction orother work in the Easement
Area.

6.       Term.  The eacement rights granted in this Deed shall cammence on the date this Deed

is recorded in the official records of San Joaquin County and shall terminate upon the earlier of
i) recordation in those officiai records ofa written agreement to terminate executed by the Grantee or
ii} if and when terminated by Grantar pursaant to Grasitor' s power of termination in accordance with

Caiifomia Civil Cade Section 885. 010 et. seq., in the event that Grantee abandons the Easement Area,
which means that Grantee has removed any and all mprovements such as reclaimed water pipelines,
equipment, and other ancillary facilities asid otherwise no longer uses the Easement Area for reclaimed
water public utility purposes,

7.       Nonexclusive Easement. The easernent granted in this Deed is nonexclasive. Grantor

r tains the right to make any use of the Easement Area, inclvding the right to grant concurrent easements
in the Easement Area to third parties that da not interfere with Grantee's free use and enjoyment of the
easement,

8.       Deed Nanassianable. This Desd shall not be assigned other than by Grantee and in that
case only for public utility purposes. Any other purparted assignment of this Deed orof any interest in this
Deed shall be void and of no effect.

9,       Eatire Agreement. This Decd constitutes the entire agteement between Grantor and

Gran#ce relating to the above easemen Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations
with respect to the use of the Easement Area for public utility purposes that ere not eacpressly set forFh in
this Deed are ofno force and effect. Except as provided in paragraph 6 abovB, any amendment to this
Deed shall be af no force snd effect unless it is in writing and signed by Grantor and Grantee.

l4.     Bioding Effect. This Deed shall be bindin on and shall inure to the benefit of the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of Grantor and Grantee. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

223



IN WI'I'NESS WHERE F, Grantor and Grantee have execuked this Deed as of 2018.

TOR:  GRANTEE:

CITY OF LATHROP

OOKS, as Trustee of the Frederick

and y A. Brooks amily Survivor' s Trust By:
under agreeme t dated October 2, 1985 Name: Stephen J. Salvatore

Dated:,s  '      .:..   • 2018 Its:   City Manager
Dated: 2018

ATT'EST:

A    OOKS, as Trustee of the Frederick

and J y A. Brooks Family Bypass Trust By:
under agreement dated 4ctober 2, ] 985 Name: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Dated:. ; 2018 Dated; 2018

Municipal Seal)

APPROVED AS TO ORM:

By:
Namc: Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney
Dated:  2018

224



CALIFORNIA ALL PURI'USE t CKNOWLEDGMEN'I'

A notary public or other ofiicer completing this certificate verifics only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,

accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California
ss

County af San Mateo

On February l7 , 2018, before me, John F. Farbstein, Notary Public, personally

appeared NDY A. BROOKS, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to

be the person{ whose name) is/ ar.e subscribed Eo the within instrument and

acknowiedged to me that kels, he executed the same in. l is/h,er authorized

capacity s) and that by his/her/t-heir signature) on the instrument the personks}, ar the

entity upon behalf of which the person'} acted, executed the iristrument.

I certify under PENALTY F PERJURY under the laws of the State of California

that the fore oing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS m hand and official seal.    
JOHN F. FARBSTEIN

y Commission 2113913

a - d Notary Public• California z ,

San Matao County      
My Comm. Expire5 Jun 29, 2019

J F. Farbstein, Notary Public Seal) 

My commission expires on: June 29, 2019

Notary Name: John F. Farbstein Notary Phone: 650-353- 4503
Notary Commission Number: 2113913 County af Business: San Mateo

225



E% I IT A

Y.EG. LL ID]ESCYtT" I'IIO1 T UF EASEMET A A

See Attached)

226



JANUARY 28, 2018

EXHIBR

LEGAL DE3CRIp'I' lON

RECYCLED WATER LINE AND ACCESS EASEMENT

ACROSS BROOKS PROPERTY

RIVER ISLANDS

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ALL TFlAT REAk. PROPERTY StTUATE! N THE CITY OF LATHR P, COUNTI( OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCREBED AS FOLLOWS:

B ING A P RT10N OF LOT 3, AS SA1D LOT 3 IS DESCRIBED lN THE NOTICE OF LOT LINE
ADJUSTMENT NUMBER 17-38, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 1 2017, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2017-
101074, SAN JOAQUiN COUN7Y RECORDS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRiBED AS FOLLOWS:  

EASEMENT 1:

BEING A STRIP OF LAND THIRTY{ 30.00) FEET WIDE, THE CENTERLINE OF WHICH IS DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:      

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY TERMINUS OF COURSE L9, AS SAID COURSE IS
SHOWN OfV SHEET 2 OF THE PLAT FOR SAID LOT 3 OF THE LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT( LLA-17-36),
SAID C4URSE SHOWN AS NORTH 47°56'00" EAST 191, 2T FEET, SA{D POINT OF
COMMENCEMENT AI.SO BElNG ON THE NORTHWESTERN LINE OF MANTHEY ROAD, AS SAID
MAM'HEY ROAD IS SHOWN ON THE RECORD OF SURVEY FILED AUGUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35
OF SURVEYS AT PAGE 142, SAN JOAQUIN C UNTY RECORDS;       

HENCE, ALONG THE LINE COMMON TO SAfD NORTHWESfERN LINE OF MANTHEY ROAD ANO
THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF SAID L4T 3{ LLA17-36?,NORTM 47°56'QO" EAST 28.96 FEET TO
THE P INT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE, FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, LEAVING SAID COMMON LINE, NORTH 41° Sd'30"
WEST 33.3d FEET TO A POINT HEREINAFTER REF RRED TO AS POINT' A';  .

THENCE, NORTH 41° 50'30" WEST 2002.45 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG THE ARC OF A NONTANGENT' CURVE TO TH LEFT. HAVING A RADIUS OF
7,888. 11 FEET. FROM WHICM THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BE4RS SOUTH 18°39'24" EAS'T,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°24'41", AN ARC DISTANCE F 322.73 FEET TO THE
SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 3{ LLA-17-36), AND THERE TERMINATING.

THE SIDELINES OF SAID STRIP SHALL BE LENGTHENED OR SHORTENED TO 1' ERMINATE
SOU7HE4STERLY ON THE SOUTIiEASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 3( UA-17-36), AND TO
TERMINATE SOUTHWESTERLY ON THE S UTHWESTERN lIN OF SAIO LOT 3{ LLA- 17-36).

EASEMENT 2:      

BE1NG A STRIP OF LAND TFitRTY( 30.d0) FEET WIDE, THE CENTERLINE OF WHICH IS DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE AFORESAID PC11NT` A;

PAGE 1 {} F 2
2ff500d.El3 RWL BROOKS

227



EXH1617 JANUARY 26, 2018

LEGAL bESCRIPTit?N j
RECYCLED WA ER LINE AND ACCESS EASEMENT
ACROSS BROOKS PROPER7Y

RIVER 1SLANDS- PHASE 18 i

THENCE, FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, NORTH 48°32' 21" EAST 357.98 FEEi; i

THENCE, NOR7H 48° 12'04" EAST 816.2 4 FEET TO 7HE NORTHEASTERiV LINE OF AFORESAID I

LOT 3( DpCUMEN7 NUMBER 2017- 101074}, AND 7HERE TERMINATtNG.     
t

EXCEPTI lG THEREFROM, THAT PORTION OF EASEMEIyT 2 WITHIN SAID EASEMENT 1 i
DESCRIBED ABOV.      i
THE SiD LIfVES C7F SAID S7RfF' SHALL BL LENGi' H NEO OR SHORT NED TO 7ERMINATE
NORThSEASTERLY ON THE NORTHEASTERN L. INE UF SAID LOT 3( QOCUM NT NUMBER 2017-
101074).   r

EASEMENT 1 AND 2 CONTAINING 2.42 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.       

ATTACHED HERETU IS A PLAT TO AGCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFEREIVCE MADE A PART HER OF.

THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTI N IS BASED ON RECORD DATA AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORD
OF SURVEY FILED AUGUST, 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 F SURVEYS, FAGE i42, SAN J AQUIN

COUN7Y RECORDS. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE CALIFORfVIA COORDINATE SYSTEM,
CCS83, ZONE 3, NAD 83. ALL DISTANCES AND DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE GROUND DISTANCES.

END O DESCRIPTIOfV

p,1 LANO
o¢, rr sG

f l!      R

PAUL KITTRED E DATE K No. 5790 0

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

CALIFORNIA NO. 5790

F F C AL1F\  

1

PAGE 2 O 2
25500-LEG-RWL_ BROOKS

a

i

228



r j

T SEE DETAIL 1
UP,q,q SHEET 2

N I 8'39' 24"  R

I. ax 1
N21' 7' 28' w R

DNLLAi17-

867d
4 N

26•F
I

7RACT 42
I 1) g9$?      i

35 SURVEY6 ib2   3
i

I
BROOKS, ET AL

Z       ;

r,    
DN 2017- iQ1079

r

l.pT 2
L     a_    PApO L 71Y0

DN 2017- 10iR74
N 20D7- 14D768

DELL' D55D ET AL
LLA- i7-36 r 3 

1 LLA- Q7- 62
DN 2047- i44808

FAAMWORLD,LLC o LOT3
g

7RACT 32
DN 2oa8- 0788U6

DN Z0 7- ibo7BB DM20t7•101074       38 6lJAVEY6 irr2 3 PARGEL 7NREE
PARCEL oNE LLA•17•36 I DN 2007- 140188

DN 2DD7- 14D7B8 LLA- 07- 62
LLA- 07- 62

i EASEI ENT 1

r 7pAG7 43 1 z CENiERLINE 30'   
35 6UAVEY6 id2      RWL EASEMENT

EASEMEiJ1' 2

CENTERUNE 30'

POB RWL EASEMIENT

MANTHEY ROAD E—- 

INTERSTA7E 5 SEE DETAIL 2
SHEET 3

MOSSDALE ROAD

LEGEND o K,TrN
SG i

CENTERUNE 30' RWL EASEMENT QP t^ "p      

EXISTING L T UNE No. 57  o
RWL RECYCLED WATER LINE I g     *      

s

qj'       

NO3ES
F' cA F°   

1)   REFER TO SHEE' 2 FOR UNE AND CURVE TABLES

2)   EASEMENTS OF RECORD ARE NOT SHONM
a soa'     soo'      200'    i

SCALE: 1• = soo      PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRlPTION
DRAWN BY: PK RECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT

F LE; zssoa Pur- x+x sur- oousorc BROOKS PROPERTY N G 1 N E E R 1 N G i
DATE: OS/ 23/ 18 ' SHEET; 1 OF 3 CI1Y QF LATHFiOP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFQRNlA

I•.\75500- RI4ER IYNI05 R1ASE tA\ DNC PUTS tMt 6YS FARYItOqtp\ 7S'AO PLAI- FNL E911- 6fl00(iOriG

229



ur T     cuRve Tae 

uNE w cnoN   cn cxx v   rt wius oa.0   cTM

U N5131' 13'E 230.83  Ci 1Q3Q.OD 33'20'17"   599.32   

l2 N47'S6' 00' E 191. 27'  C2 7688.11 0'11' 09'   133Z35'

L3 N67'58' 34' f 211. 82'  C3 7763.14 249'45'   383.33'

L4 N74'14'38' E 135.41'  C4 7666.11 2'24'41'   322.73'      

I-5 N47'23'14' E 13Q.43'  C5 7G88.11 19'22'34'  2599.94'       

L6 N46' 12'58"E 501.14'

7 N20Ys6' 19' W 75.00'  ( R)

L8 N48 2'21' E 367.98'

UpRR
V

r z nr28•  R

N

LaT 1 N21' 04'05'  R
DN 20i7- iDiUyA O

LLA-17- 88  . 

7RAc7 A2 M       .
3b BlJRV YB i42}        

LOT 3
z DN 2017-t01074

Ll.A-17-36

EASEMENT 1

CENTERLlNE 30'   

DETAIL 1
RWL EASEIr44ENT

NT5

SCALE N A Pl.AT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION
DRAWN BY: PK fiECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMEMT'       
FlLE: ao Pur-. auT- eAoacsowo 6ROC3K5 PROPERTY   ' E N G 1 N E fZ 1 N G
un; at/ 2s/ ta SHEEL• 2 Of 3 Cf Y OF IATHROP SAN JOAQUIW COUf Y CALIFORNIA

r: sTm-ra rrr ns p i prarpua r.m r, v rawn tssoo euT- tt t r- arooi¢ mu

230



BROOKS, ET AL

DN 2017-101079

EASEt ENT 1
LOT 3 Aacr az

CENIERUNE 30       
DN 2017-1U1074    ,       a s v Ys 19z

p
LLA-17-3fi

RWL EASEMENT      o n
PARC L 7W0 p o 0

nN 2an7- i4a7as N N

I       a-ar-ez
EASEh ENT 2 z z

I g CENTERUNE 30'     
N RWL EASEMENT

i m

LB N48' 12'04' E 816.24'          o    -
oo

1 z    zpOC

1

t a g

N48'DZ 00` E 778.89'

MANTHEY ROAp       :     

SEE pETAIt 3       
s sHE' 

DETAl. 2
N

EASEI EN7 i
CENTERLiNE 30'   

BROOKS, Ef Al RWL EASEMENT AARoEL 7W0

DN 2017- 101079 nN 2no7- amee
LLA- o7- s2      

LOT 3

DN2417-101074  .  7AAcr a2 1
LLA-17-36

36 BURVEYB 142

l      POINT A

N POB EASEMENT 2

EASEMENT 2

fASfMENa81
Z    

CENTERl1NE 30'
RWL EASEblENT

zs.ss     

POC MANTHEY ROAD

DETAIL 3
N15

ti

Q
SCAiE: 1 _ o     PLAT T4 ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION
DRAwN 9Y; PK R CYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT
FlLE: zssm aur- t+ mir-e aacsara BROOKS PROPERTY N G 1 N E fi 1 N G
DATE: Dt/ 23/ 1B sNEET, 3 oF 3 CfTY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

r. usoo- mu as arus u rs mr u u oo aur-rn u r- eaoacsowa

231



CERTIFICATE QF ACCEPTANCE

GOVER IlVIE1 1' I' COI3E SECTIOloI 27281

Attached)      

w.,

232



Y

r?;'? `

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO AND

MAIL TA?C STATEMENTS TO:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

L. athrop, CA 9533d

Space Above This Line for Recorder' s Use Only)

Documentary Transfer Tax Q. 00

DEED FOR EASEMENTS

This Deed for Easements (" Deect") dated as of 2018 is made and entered into

by and behveen RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,(" Gran or") and the CITY OF LATHROP,
a municipal corporation (" Grantee"},

RECITALS

A.       Grantor is the owner of certain real property situated in the City of I. athrop, San Joaquin
County, California ( hereafter referred to as the " Easement Area"), more particularly described in
Exhibit A attached Eo this Deed and hereby incorporated by reference. 

B.       Grantee is the operator ofcertain public utilities which serve the Easement Area and

other rea) properiy situated in the City of Lathrop, San Joaquin County, California and may thereFore
be the beneficiary of an easement in gross. Grantee intends to construct, install, operate and maintain
reclaimed water public utilities{ collectively, the" Improvements") over, under and across the Easement

Area.

C.       Grantee desires to acquire certain ri hts in the Easement Area.

NOW, THERE ORE, for good and sufficient consideration, the receipt and adeyuacy of which is
hereby acknowledged, Grantor and Grantee agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1.       Grant of Easement. Grantor rants to Grantee an easement over the Easement Area,
subject to the terms of this Deed.

2.       Descriation of Easement. The easement ranted in this Deed is an easement For the
constructian, installation, operation and maintenance of the Improvements over,under and across the
Easement Area.  Grantee shaIl use the easements ranted hereunder and shall conduct all activities

within the Easement Area in accardance with applicable law and all recorded covenants, conditions

and restrictions affecting the Easement Area wfiich are of record at the commencement of the Term of
this easement as specified in paragraph 6 below.

3.       Secandarv Easements. 1' he easement granted in this Deed includes the followin

incidental rights: the right to ingress and egress over the Easement Area at aU times and to perform such
activities on the Easement Area as are reasonably necessary for the construction, installation, operation
and maintenance of the Impravements. ln sxercising these rights, Grantee must use reasonable care and
may not unreasonably increase the burden on the Easement Area or make any material chan es to the

233



Easement Area other than as necessary to construct, install, operate and maintain the Improvements as
contemplated herein.

4.       Grantee Covenants. Grantee a rees to use the Easement Area only in a manner
consistent with the terms and conditions hereof. 1n the event that Grantor gives Grantee written notice
that Grantee's use of the Easement Area violates the terms and conditions of this Deed, Grantee shall

promptly take such steps as are necessary to cure such violatian. Grantee shal[ not mal: e any chan es to
the Easement Area that are inconsistent with the purposes of this easement as herein described, without

the prior written consent of Grantor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed. Any abo e- grade Improvements to the Easement Area shall be subject to the prior written
approval of the Grantar, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditianed or delayed.
Grantee shall repair and maintain the Improvements at no cost Eo Grantor. Grantee shall restore the

surface of the Easement Area following anycanstructian, installation, or maintenance of the
Improvements to as good or better a condition as existed prior to that construction, installation or
maintenance.

5.       Indemnitv. Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Grantor, and Grantor's
employees and agents, harmless from and against all fines, suits, (osses, costs, expense5, liabilities,
claims, demands, actions, damages and judgments, including reasonable and actual attorneys' fees and
costs of suit( collectively, " Cl ims") arisin from Grantee's canstruction orother work in the Easement
Area.      

6.       Term.  The easement rights ranted in this Deed shall commence on the date this Deed

is recarded in the official records of San Joaquin County and shall terminate upon ihe earlier of
i) recordation in those offici l records ofa written agreement to terminate executed by the Grantee.or
ii) if and when terminated by Grantor pursuant to Grantor' s power of termination in accordance with

Califarnia Civi! Code Section 885. 10 et. seg., but only in the event that Grantee abandons the Easement
Area, which means that Grantee has removed any and al! Improvements such as reclaimed water
pipelines, equipment, and other ancillary facilities and otherwise no longer uses the Easement Area for
reclaimed water public utility purposes.

7.       Nonexclusi e Easement. The easement granted in this Deed is nonexclusive. Grantor

retains the right to make any use of the Easement Area, including the right to grant concurrent easements
in the Easement Area to third parties that do not interfere with Grantee's free use and enjoyment ofthe
easement.

8.       Deed Nonassignable. This Deed shall not be assi ned other than byGrantee and in that

case only for public utility purposes. Any other purported assignment of this Deed orof any interest in this
Deed shall be void and ofno effect.

9.       Entire Asreem nt. This Deed constitutes the entire agreement between Grantor and
Grantee relating to the above easement. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, ar representations
with respect to the use of the Easement Area for public utiliry purposes that are not expressly set forth in
this Deed are of no foree and effect. Except as provided in paragraph 6 above, any amendment to this
Deed shall be of no force and effect unless it is in writing and signed by Grantor and Grantee.

0.      Binding Effect. This Deed shal) be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the
heirs, executors, administratars, successors, and assigns of Grantor and Grantee.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY B. ANK]

234



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have executed this Deed as of 2Q18.

GRANTOR;    GRANTEE:

CITY OF LATHROP

SUSAN DEL  ' OSSO, President

River Islands Devel pmen LLC By:
Dated:   201$    Name:  Stephen J. Salvatore

Its:   City Ivtanager
Dated: 20]$

ATTEST:

By:
Name: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk
Dated: 2018

Municipal Seal)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Name:  5alvador Navarrete, City Attorney
Dated:   2018

235



CALIFaRNIA ALL-PUR&OSE ACKNOWL D4MENT CiVIL C DE§ 1189

A notary publfc or other o icer compleiing this certificate veriFles only the identity of the fndividual who signed the
document to which thfs certificate is aiteched, and not the truthfutness. acc racy, or val€dfty bf that documem.

State of California

County of San Joaquin      

O February; 2018 before me, Debbie E. Belmar, a Notary Public,
Dffie

personally appeared Susan Dell' Osso, who proved to me on# he basis of satisfactory evidence to
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/ are subscribed to the within instrument and acknnwledged to
me that he/ she/ they executed the same in hi5/ her/ their autharized capacity( ies), and that by

his/ her/ their signature s) on the instcument the person(sj, orthe entity upan behalf of which the
person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PEI ALIY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph

DEBBIE E. BELMAR
is true and correct.

W"       

aca y, r c- CaNlornla        
WRNESS my hand and official seal.3 .

Y},

SanloaquinCounry
Commission N 2t 9047

My Comm: Expires lu! 3Q, 2025
I     

Signature L_,P.?       1 2 1it..

STgnature of Notary Public

Place Nofary Seal Above
OPTIONAI.

Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alferation of fhe document or
fraudulent r attachment of thfs form to an unirrtended document.

Description of Attached Document
Title or Type of Document:     Document Date:
Number of Pages:     Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacit( ies) CEaimed by Signer(s)
Signer's Name: Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer — Title(s):     Corporate Officer — TiNe(s):
Pa Ener — Limited O General O Partner — Limited 0 General
lnaiviclual p Attorney in Fact p Individual O Attorney in FacE
Trustee Guardian or Conservator Trustee Guardian or Conservator
Other. .      Other.

Signer Is Representing:      Signer Is Hepresenting:

CSa2014 National Notary Association• www,NatianalNotary.or• 1- 800-US NOTARY( 1- 800-876-6827)   ltem 5907

236



C CNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other afficer completing this certificata verifies only tiie
identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, ancf not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of

On befare me,     

insert name of notary)
Notary Public, personally appeared_
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person{ s} whose name( s) islare
subscribad to the witliin instrument and acknowledged to me that helshefthey executed the same in
his/ her/their authorized capacity( ies), and that by his/ herltheir signature( s) on tl e instrument the
persan( s), br the entiry upon behal€ of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OE PERJURY under the Iaws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

W[ TNE5S my hand and official seal.

Signature Seal)

237



AC T V Il..EI G ERi'T

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the
identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or alidiry of that document.

State ofCalifornia

County of

On before me,     

insert narne of notary)
Notary Public, personally appeared
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) vhose name{s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acf: nowled, ed to me that lie/ she/ they executed the same in
his/ herltheir authorized capacity( ies), and that by his/ her/their si nature( s} on the instrument the
person( s}, or the entity upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.    

I certify under PENALTY OF PEFtJURY under the Ia vs of the State of California that the
oregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature Seal)

238



ACKI TOWLEDGMENT

A notary puhlic or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the
identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State ofCalifornia

County of

On before me,     

insert name of notary)
Notary Public, personally appeared

x

wha proved ta me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose name( s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowled ed to me that he/ she/ they executed the same in
his/ her/their authorized capacity( ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person( s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person{ s} acted, executed the instrument.

i certify under PCNALTY 4F PERJL RY under the laws of the State ofCalifornia that the
fore oin paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and afficial seal.

Signature Seal)

239



E CHIBdT A

I EGAL DESCItHP'TIOI OF EASEMENT AREA

See Attached)

240



JANUARY 2fi, 2018

EXHIBIT

LEGAI. RESCRIPTION

RECYCLED WATER I. INE AND ACCESS EASEMENT

ACROSS RIVER ISLANDS DEV, LLC, PROPERTY

RIVER lSLANDS

IATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ALL 7HAT REAL FROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CI7Y OF 1 1THROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUI l,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DE5CRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEIiVG A PORTION QF LOT 1, AS SAID LOT 1 tS DESCRIBEp IN THE NOTICE OF LOT LINE
ADJUSTMENT NUMBER 17- 36, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 1, 2Q17, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2017-
101074, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRiSED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A STRIP OF LAND THIRTY( 30.00) FEET WIDE, THE CENTERLINE OF WHICH IS DESCRIBED
AS OLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTWWESTERLY TERMINUS OF COURSE L9, AS SAID COURSE IS
SHOWN ON SHEET 2 OF TNE PLA7 FOR L T 3 OF' FHE LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT{ LLA-17- 36), SAID
COURSE L9 BEING SHOWN AS" N47° 56'00"E 191. 27 FEET", SAID POfNT OF COMMENCEMENT
ALSO BEING N THE NORTMNESTERN LIIVE OF MANTHEY ROAD, AS SAID MAfVTH Y ROAD IS
SHOWN ON THE RECORD OF SURVEY FILED AUGUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, AT
PAGE 142, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS;

THENCE, ALOfVG THE L{NE COMMOIV TO SAID NOR7HWESTERiV LINE OF MANTHEY ROAD AND
THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 3, NOR7H 47°58'00" EAST 26.96 FEET;

THEfVCE, LEAVING SAID COMM N E. INE, NORI'H 41° 54'30" WEST 2,035.75 FEET;

THENCE, ALOfVG TNE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF
7,668.11 FEET, FROM WHICW 7HE CENTER OF SAID CURVE B ARS SOUTM 18°39'24" EAST,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 2°24'41", AN ARC DlSTANCE OF 322.73 FEET TO' fHE
SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 3( LLA-17-36), SAIO POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;

THENCE, FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTINUING ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO
THE LEFT, BEING 20 FEET OFFSET SOUTHFASTERLY, MEASURED A7 RiGHT ANGLES, FROM
THE NORTHWESTERN LINE OF TRACTS 32, 42 AND 31, RESPECTIVELY, AS SAID TRACTS ARE
SHOWN ON SAID RECORD OF SURVEY( 35 SURVEYS 142), WAVING A RADIUS OF 7,868, 11 FEET,
FROM WH1CH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 21° 04'OS" FAST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19° 14'48", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 2, 575.85 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A LINE TANGENT TO SAID CURVE, BEING 20 FEET OFFSET SOUTWEASTERLY,
MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES, FROM THE NORTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID TRACT 31, SOIiTH

49 41' 07" WEST 893. 17 FEET, AND THERE TERMINATING.

THE SIDELINES OF SAID STRIP SHALL BE LENGTHENED OR SHORTENED NORTHEASTERLY TO
TERMINATE AT THE NORTHEASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 1 ( LLA-17-36} AS SHOWN ON THE
ATTACHED PLAT.    

PAGE 1 OF 2
zssoo• Rw Rio

241



1

EXHIB(T JANUARY 26, 2018
LEGAL DESCRlPTION
RECYCLED WATER LINE AND ACCESS EASEMENT
ACROSS RIVER ISLANDS DEV., LLC, PROPERTY

RIVER 1SLANDS- PHASE 1B

CONTAI[VING A IVET AREA OF 2. 11 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, NOT lNCLUDING THAT PORTION OF
SAID RECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT WtTHIN FU7URE PARCEL 1 TO BE CONI/EYEQ TO THE i
CITY OF LATMROP BY SEPARATE DOCUMENT,

THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS BASED QfV RECORD DATA AS SHOWN ON THA7 CERTAIN RECORD
F SURVEY FIl.ED AUGUST, 4, 2004, IN B( OK 35 OF SURVEYS, PAGE 142, SAfV JOAQUIN

COUiVTY RECORDS. 6EARINGS ARE BASED ON TNE CALIFORNIA COORDINATE SYSTEM,
CCS83, ZONE 3, NAD 83. ALL QISTANCES ANO DIMENSIaNS SHOWN ARE GROUNb DISTANCES.

ATTACHED HERETO IS A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END OF D SCRIPTION

r:   -  0 K FT, ` SGj rjff
Q L

PAUL KITTRED DATE c     cn

PROFESSIONAL tAND SURVEYOR No. 5790 O
CALIFORNIA N0. 5790

rFOF CAL F`

Q

PAGE20F2
sssaa- ca w Rio

242



CENTERLJNE 30' WIDE RECYCLED
WATER LINE EASEMENT

SEE SHE 2

ti
SEE SHEET 2 O

UPRR
LOT 1

ON 201T- 1D1074 PROPOSED

lI.A- 17= 36 PARCfL 1

TAACi' 3i TRAGT d2 T  

35 6URVEY6 7A2}       35 8! lRVEYS 142}  dN j31B74      

BAOdK6, E7 AL

I    N Z017- f41U79
U

LbT 2 PARCEL DNE

bNa
007-id4768 ,DN 2417- 1Di07b DN 2007- 1447B8

Q LLA 17- 36 LLA- 07- 62 Ll.A- O7- 62

DN 2 O R1901788    { 35

6l1RVEY63
142}    3B 6l1RVEYB 142.

N4AMTMEY ROAD INTERSTATE 5 ~

M05SDALE ROAd

LEGEND

CENTER JNE 3D' RWL EASEMEN'

EXISTING LOT LINE

CL CEN7ERLINE

RWL RECYCLED WATER UNE

NOTES

i}   EASEMENTS 4F RECORD ARE NOT SFiOWN O
P- ANO

2)   PROP SE PARCEL 1 f0 BE CaNVEYED TO THE QP„
KiTT SG

4CIIY QF LATHRQP BY SEPARATE OOCUMENT

a  No. 5790 O
a

k     zL 1 g     t
r

2
rF ofi cA. F°

OVERA. L MAP o'      Soo'    toao'    zaoa'

SCALE: 1• = , aoo    PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION
DHAWN BY: PK RECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT

I E; 25506 PLAT—RWL E4Ji- R D. DMC RIV£ R ISLANDS DEVELOPMEM' PROPERTY N G 1 N E f 1 N G
DATE: 01/ 24/ 18 SHEE7: 1 OF 3 CITY OF LAi'HROP SAN JOAQUIN COUN7Y CALIFORNIA

T:\ aSSpU- GMER q NpS pHAg IA\ DNC PLIIS RM E91T fARYMpH1p 25Spp pLAT- RfIL f511T- RQDWG

243



ti

o
NOT TO SCALE

pR     
SEE DETAIL 1

t    
SNEET 3

o

CENTERUNE 30'    

PROPOSED LOT 1 RWL EASEMENT

PARCEL f DN 2017- 101074
LLA- 17- 36 c2

POB

3b 8ll lVEY6 142  3b SlJRYEY82142  LOT 1
aN 2ot— o 0 4

u.a—»—ss
m

z

I -0
7 z

DN 2D17- iD1074
LOi' 3

31

LLA- iT-$6
DN 26i7- iDjD74   

FARMWoRLb, LLG LLA- 17- 36      i

DN 20d7- a4476B a

FARCEL ONE
ZI

DN 20d7- 140788 7HAC7 32 ILLA- 07r62 35 SUAVEY6 142}

TRAC7 43 I

35 & URV Y6 142

SEE DETAIL 2 PQC
MANTHEY ROAD SHE 7 3   —

NTERSTATE•5

t OTES

1)   REFER TO SHEET 1 FOR LEGEWD

2)   REFER TO SHEET 3 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES
3)   EASEI ENTS OF RECORD ARE NOT SHOWN

SCALE: NTS       ' PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION_
DRAwN eY: PK RECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT
FlLE: ssoo PUT- R++ r- eio.orrc R6VER iSL4NDS DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY N G 7 N E+ 1 N G
DAiE 0/ 24/ ts SHEET; 2 OF 3 C[TY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

15600- RNFA 4$ ANOS PHASE IA OMG flAiS\ RT ESYt NtINy7tt0\] SSpp pIAF- RM. E9Ai- qp.pwG

244



uNE rna   cu v rae. E

UNE QIRECTION LENGTH CURVE RADIUS DELTA lENGiH

L1 N67'S8'34' E 211. 82' C1 7G8& 11 19' 22'34`  2599.94'

L2 N4736' 00"E 191. 27'       ' C2 7668.11 2'24'41'   32273' 

L3 N49' 41' 07' E 893.17' C3 7668.11 19' 14'48"  2575.85'

L4 N41' 50'30' W 906.32'

L5 N41' S0'30' W 884.93'

s Na o o•w 2i.ss UP9,q

T`      
ry       `   Nz rorze•w(R)

POB c?

N21' 04'05' W( R) 

LOT i LD7 3
DN 2017- 1Q1074 DN 20 7- i0j074

LLR- S 7- 36 l.U1- i7-36

D TAIL 1
s

ti

0

BROOK6. ET ALV

L07' 3
DN 2417- ifl107B

ptd 2D17 1D1D7A o I PARGEL 7Wb
LLA-' 17- 35 CJN 2007- f40788

l. LA- dl-82

7RAC7 82

z 3b 6UAVEYB 1A2}

OC ILt   26.96'

MANTHEY ROAD

DETAIL 2
NTS

scA E: " A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION
dRAWN BY: PK RECYCLED WATER LINE EASEMENT
Il E: xssoo Pur- ext aur-a o. owc RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT PROPERIY N G 1 N E E fi 1 N G

OATE: QO/ 24/ 18 SHEET; 3 OF 3 GITY QF LATHROP SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

r.lusoo--a n ar, xos u owc sw,x aur r xaawussoo rur ex ts+T- eo:owc

245



r

246



i I

ITEM 5. 1 i

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE TO

TRANSFER THE SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND RICHLAND' S

INTERE5T IN THE PHASE 2 EXPANSION OF THE

LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY       ,

FUNDING AGREEMENT TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND,

LLC

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing;
2.  Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance to

Assign and Transfer the South Lathrop
Development Agreement and transfer the

Consolidated Treatment Facility Funding
Agreement to South Lathrop Land, LLC

SUMMARY:

The South Lathrop Specific Plan ( SLSP) is a 315- acre planning area located south of
State Route 120, north and west of the Union Pacific Railroad, and east of the San

Joaquin River in Lathrop.  Over the past five years, the City has approved and adopted
a series of entitlements for the light industrial master planned development in SLSP,

including a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan, Annexation, Vesting Parcel Map,
Site Plan Review,  Environmental Impact Report,  Development Agreement and a

Funding Agreement for the City' s consolidated wastewater facility.     Most of the

entitlements run with the land.  However, the Development Agreement and Funding ;
Agreement are instruments that are specifically between the City and the land
owner/ developer,  Richland Developers,  Inc.  ( Richland):    These two agreements

require an assignment by the City to transfer Richland' s rights and responsibilities to
a new land owner.

Crow Holdings Industrial is a nationwide builder of industrial projects, with expertise

in class_A- warehouse,  distribution and manufacturing facilities.    Crow Holdings

Industrial, under the business entity named South Lathrop Land, LLC, purchased all.
of Richland' s land holdings and entitlements in SLSP so that it may take on the role
of the master developer and build the infrastructure and improvements in the specific

plan.  Staff recommends the City Council assign the previously adopted Development
Agreement and the Funding Agreement to the new real property owner,  South

Lathrop Land, LLC.  All other terms and conditions in the agreements will remain the

same.

247



CIl'Y IH RIAGER' S REPOIaT

N1ARCh9 12, 018 I EGU AR CITY COURICIL MEETI IG

LSP D/4 AIvID FUNDING AGREEMENT RANSFEI   PAGE 2

BAC ICG RO U IV D:

The action before the City Council is to consider an Ordinance to transfer Richland' s
interest and obligations in the SLSP Development Agreement, adopted on August 3,

2015  (" Development Agreement")  and the Funding Agreement for the Phase 2
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility,  dated November 21,  2016  (" Funding
Agreement"), to the new land owner, South Lathrop, LLC.

The Development Agreement and Funding Agreement assignments do not impact any
of the terms, land use, or environmental impacts.  It involves a change of ownership
and a new responsible party.    The assignment and transfer of the agreements

requires City Council approval.

The proposed ordinance is attached as Attachment A.  The Development Agreement

Assignment and Funding Agreement Transfer are included as Attachments B and C
respectively.

ENVIROfVi IEfVTA L REVIE101:

Potential environmental impacts of the South Lathrop Specific Plan Development
Agreement and Funding Agreement have been addressed by the Certified SLSP
Environmental Impact Report, ( SCH# 2103012064), and no further environmental

review is required pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15162- 15163.

l ECOMMENDA7IOi l:

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and conduct a first reading of an
Ordinance to transfer the South Lathrop Specific Plan   ( SLSP)   Development     

Agreement,  adopted on August 3,  2015,  and Richland' s interest in the Phase 2

Expansion of the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Funding Agreement, dated
November 21, 2016, frorn the existing agreement holder, Richland Developers, Inc.
to South Lathrop Land, LLC.

FISCAL IMPACT:

All application processing fees and costs are paid by the project applicant and there
is no fiscal impact to the City of Lathrop.  A fiscal impact study is currently underway
for the SLSP project.  The terms of the Development Agreement ensure that the City
will be kept ' whole" in terms of fiscal impacts as a result of this Project.

248



CITY Ml N 4GER' S FZEPOF T

M/ I CH 1, 201 I EGULAI CITY COUNCIL MEETING

SLSP DA AND FUIVDING AGREEb1ENT TIZANSFIER PAGE 3

4TTAC Fi M E fVTS:

A.  Ordinance approving the SLSP Development Agreement Assignment and
the Funding Agreement Transfer.

B.  Development Agreement Assignment from Richland Developers, Inc. to

South Lathrop Land, LLC
C.  Funding Agreement Transfer from Richland Developers, Inc. to South

Lathrop Land, LLC

249



CITI( M IaIAC ER' S I EPOIZT

I IARCH 1, 201 REGULAR CITY COIJNCIL MEETING

SLSP DA ND FUNDING ACaREIEMEIVT Tl NSFER PAGE 4

AP P RO!/ AlLS:

3 
Rebecca Schmidt, AICP Date

Community Development Director

ari Jam Date

Finance i ector

Gvv,       v 1 S

i  Glen ebhardt Date

City Engineer

l

Salvador Navarrete Date

City torney

d

U

Stephen J alvatore Date

City Mana r

250



ORDINANCE NO. 18-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TO TRANSFER THE SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND RICHLAND' S INTEREST IN THE PHASE 2

EXPANSION OF THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY

FUNDING AGREEMENT TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC

WHEREAS, Article 2. 5 of Chapter 4 of Division 1 of Title 7 ( commencing with
Section 65864) of the Government Code of the State of California  ( the " Statute")

authorizes a city to enter into a development agreement with any entity having a
legal or equitable interest in real property for the development of the property as
provided in said Statute; and

WHEREAS,  on August 3,  2015,  the City of Lathrop  (' City")  and Richland

Developer's Inc.  (` Richland") entered into a development agreement pertaining to
the South Lathrop Specific Plan (" SLSP Development Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, Richland is also a party to the Design and Construction Funding
Agreement Related to the Phase 2 Expansion of the Existing Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility by and between the City of Lathrop, River Islands Development,

LLC,   Richland Developer' s,   Inc.,   Saybrook CLSP,   LLC,   and Lathrop Mossdale

Investors,  LP,  dated November 21,  2016  ( the  " Consolidated Treatment facility
Phase 2 Funding Agreement"); and

WHEREAS,  South Lathrop Land,  LLC  ( South Lathrop Land")  purchased

Richland' s property in SLSP on or about March 2, 2018; and

WHEREAS, Richland, as seller and assignor, and South Lathrop Land,  LLC,

as buyer and assignee request the City' s approval of the assignment of the
Development Agreement and transfer of the Funding agreement;  and

WHEREAS, the City desires to transfer the SLSP Development Agreement
and Richland' s interest in the Funding Agreement from the existing agreement
holder, Richland, to South Lathrop Land, LLC;  and

WHEREAS, the City Council' s hearing on this matter has been published in
accordance with the Government Code and Lathrop Municipal Code as required by
law.

Ordinance No. 18-    Page 1 of 3

251



NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

The City Council finds that the proposed transfer and assignment of the SLSP
Development Agreement and the Consolidated Treatment facility Phase 2 Funding
Agreement are consistent with the South Lathrop Specific Plan and the Lathrop
General Plan.

Section 2.

This ordinance is not intencled to and shall not be construed or given efFect in a

manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory
duty of care toward persons and property within or without the City so as to
provide a basis of civil liability. for damages except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3.

If any section,  subsequent subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,  clause or phrase of

this ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid
such a decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
ordinance,  and the City Council declares that it would have passed each section,
subsection, subdivision, paragraph, or sentence.

Section 4.

This ordinance shall take effect 30 days from. its adoption.

Section 5.

The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this ordinance and shall publish a
summary thereof and post a certified copy of the full ordinance in the office of the
City Clerk at least five days prior to the adoption of the proposed ordinance;  and

within fifteen days after adoption, the City Clerk shall publish a summary .of the
ordinance with the names of the members of the City of Lathrop City Council voting
for and. against the same. 

Section 6.       

The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said Transfer of Development
Agreement and Funding Agreement for and on behalf of the City once this
ordinance takes effect.

Ordinarice No. 18-   Page 2 of 3

252



THIS ORDIN 4NCE was regularly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the 12th

day of March 2018,  and was PASSED

AND ADOP7ED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on
the day of 2018, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTESTa APPItOVED e4S TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 18-    Page 3 of 3

253



Attachment B     ,

RECOR ING REQUESTED Y:

WHENRECORDED 1VIAIL TQ AND

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO:

Space Above Line For Recorder' s Use On1y)

TRANSFER AGREEMENT RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT ACREEMENT

This Transfer Agreement Relating To Development Agreement (" Transfer Agreennent") is
made this :, i. day of _,';r=,.;-,-, 2018, by SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC, a Delaware limited
Iiability company {" Assignee"), and RICHLAND DEVEL,OPER' S INC., a Delaware corporation (" Assignor")

with reference to the following recitals.

RECITALS

A.       S ibstantially concurrentIy with the recordation of this Transfer Agreement, Assignor
has conveyed to Assignee that certain real property described in Exhibit " A" attached hereto and incorporated
herein( the" Property").    

B.       Assignor, as " Sellec" and Assignee, as ` Bu er" entered into that certain Agreement of
Purchase and Sale of Option and Escrow Instructions, dated as of;-.r...::; ;.;4 , 2018 pursuant Yo vahich Assignor

has agreed to transfer and assign an option to purchase the Property to Assignee, and Assignee will substantially
concurrently obtain fee title( the" Purehase Agreentent"). Escrow. is expected to close on March ::...,2018.

C.       Assi nor is a party to that certain Annexation Agreement and Separate Development
Agreement by and between The City of Lathrop {" City") and Richland Developers, Inc. relating to The South
Lathrop Specific Plan dated August 3, 2015, which was recorded on September 2, 2015 as Tnstrument No. 2015-
106926( the" Development Agreement").

D.       Assignor and Assignee ackaowledge that the Ancillary Properties referenced in the
Development Agreement were never annexed into the City, were personal to Assignor, and have been sold by
Assi or.

E.       Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Assignor desixes to assign aad Assignee desires to
assut ne all ofAssignor' s rights, duties and obligations under the Development Agreement.

AGREEMENT

254



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties herein, and for

good and valuable consideration, the receipt of snfficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as
foliows:

l.       Incorporation of Recitals.  `I'he Recitals of fact set forth above are true an.d conect and

ara i.ncorporated into this Agreement in their entirety by this reference.

2.       Assi nment to ant Assumption bv Assignee.   Effective as of the date that Assignee

acquires fee title to the Property, Assignor hereby setis, transfers and assigns to. Assignee, and Assigtee hereby
expressly and unconditionally assumes aIl the rights, duties and obligations of Assignor under the Development
Agreement, including, without limitation, all of the general righ#s, duties and obligations of Assignor under the
Developnient Agreement for the developtnent of the Property, as well as all rights of Assignor indicated in the
Developrnent Agreemen.t as personal to Assignor. Assignee agrees to observe and fully perfortn all of Assignor's
obligations under the Development Agreement, and to be subject to all tha terms and conditions thereof, it being
the express ivtantion of both Assignor and. Assignee that, upon execution of this Trans£er Agreement, Assignee
shall become substituted fox Assignor as " Richland" in the Develop tnent Agreement.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Transfer Agreement shalI not apply to, and. Assignor shall retain, any and all rights in and to, any
refiinds, reimb«rsemenfis or credits of any kind or character applicable to work perfotxraed or sums paid pz-ior to
the effective date of this Transfer Agreement.

3.       Release of Assi rior.   Pursuant to Section 13. 02,2 of the Development A reement,

Assrgnor sk a11 be free from any and all liabilities accruing on or after the date hereaf vith respect to the
Development Agreement.  No breach or default under this Transfer Agreement or the Developtnent Agreement
by Assignee shal] be attributed to Assi mor. For purposes of this Transfer Agreement, the" Release Frovisions"
shall be all Ri lits and Obligations of Assignor under the Development A eement that arise from and after the
date that Assignee acquires fee title to the Property.

4.       Assi nee' s Acknowled ent. Assignee hereby agrees and acknowledges that Assignee
has had ful opportunity to read and review the Development Agreetnent and is familiar with the rights and
obligations under the Development Agreement.

S.       Notices.  Pursuant to Section 15. 09 of the Development Agreement, from and after the
date hereof, notices for Richland shal] be addressed as follows:

If to RDI:

South Lathrop, LLC
527 W 7th Street, Suite 308

Los Angeles, CA 90014

Attn: Philip J. Prassas
Email: p x• a s sLL'.C" 1111.CIlISLT' i I. Gl IYl

With a copy to:
Barack Ferrazzano Kirschbaum& Nagelberg LLP
200 West Madison Street, Suite 3900

Chicago, IlIinois 60606

Attn: Mark J. Beaubien

Facsimile: (312) 984-3150

Email: nzark. beauhien;a} f cn. com

6,       Tenmination. This Transfer Agreement shal] be of no force and effect unless Assignee
acquires fee title to the Property on or before June 1, 2018.

7.       Govez z. in Law.  This Transfer Agreement is made and entezed into in the State of
California an.d shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
California. Venue shall be in San Joaquin County.

Page 2

255



8.       Binding Effect This Transfer Agreement shall apply to, bind, and inure to benefit of
Assignor and Assibee, and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

9.       Couizterparts.  This Transfer Agreement may be exec rted in one or more counterparts,
each ofwhich shall Ue an original, but ali of which shall together constitute one instrument.

IIV WITNESS WHE1tEOF, this Transfer Agreement has been executed as of the date first

above written.

ASSIGNOR

RICHLAND DEVELOPBRS, iNC.,

a Dela vare corporation

By:     ,

Name: a TOLl I

l 5 $
Title:

ASSYGNEE

SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L.L.C., a Delaware limited

liability company

By: CHI West I 09 South Lathrop Land, L.P.,
a Dela vare limited partnership,
its managing member

By: CHI LTH GP, L.L.C., a Delawace limited
liability company, its gen partner

r. __f ^'
f_._`   .,,

B      ; w,..      y    
Nama:   4"; :.   i .; E., sf•.>

Title:    ``

Page 3

256



CITY' S CONSENT TO ASSIGN

Pursuant to Section13. 02. 2 of the Development Agreement, the City of Lathrop hereby consents to the
Transfer Agreement and acknowledges that AssignorlR.ichland, having satisfied the conditions to the retease set
forth in Section 13. 02.2 of the Development Agreement, shall be released from its obligations under the
Development A eement.

CITY OF LATHROP,

a California municipal law corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

Dated:

ATTEST:

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Dated:

Fage 4

257



CAL.I OFtP iA ,A. L,• 1 i( 9S A tPIO/ L 7f;M Y' CdVIL CODE§ ' 989
r---^-r-,     s- e. s-,. v- s,, r--r=.,  ,.-,   r- c,    r Y—    ^ f: 1"..   PM1C)^ C\."` C 1.— . nl:ss:,.. t. 3̀..L̀' a=.' s. c..'Ce^      V3x&'.5:.-. i^_ F,.:'X`'._ ks' tia._:_c:t:;S''^,____ ._:.,_. r;-t`. i_>

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California
j'

County of l" Clt.      

On   i, 1 1. s . before me,      G  ,   °..

Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer

personally appeared I    f, r   + ' Id i,

Name(s) of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person sj' whose name j is/,a
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/ her/ their authorized capacity ieS), and that by his/ her/ their signatureJaj' on the instrument the person(s;
or the entity upon behalf of which the person('' acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

At ISON AOAMS
ETNESS my hand and official seal.CommEssion# 2i43555

L-  Noiary Publlc- CalNornla       
z 4range County

M Comm. Explres Peb 21, 2020 Signature
V

ignature of Notary Public

P/ace Notary Seal Above
OPTIONAL

Though this section is opfional, complet ng this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulenf reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Aftached Document

Title or Type of Document:     Document Date:
Number of Pages:     Signer(s) Other Than iVamed Above:

Capacity(ies} Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer's Name:       Signer's Name:

Corporate Officer — Title(s);     Corporate Officer — Title(s):
Partner— Limited   General Partner — Limited   General
Individual Attorney in Fact D Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian or Conservator Trustee Guardian or Conservator
Other:       Other:

Signer Is Representing:     Signer is Representing:

c'" G i.;. ._' wu_'.r"` r Y.._.:
n:":; ez:-'` z. i'i'ro" 0 4_' z;.' 0` 5..'' i:3ar'=.`- r'?

02414 National Notary Association  www.NationalNotary.org • 1- 800- US NOTARY( 1- 800- 876- 6827)   Item# 5907

258



t! l. I OEt@VeA AL.- PIARP E ACFin80UULEDts' IEFBIP CIVIL CODE 978J

r' ta:_,c,ht;?> a vs_;+ c!     -  ,, ;. w-L_ a s;»  r-    . . .   .       _  _       . 
ak'   _ ..: f'à: a'_..o... t,   . ti.

r  + f: r.. .  4_ :  -.   .  ...- ..     r s-a rn 3 c' Y.._ n' J..`.:` 4'a.r; a'_! ita 54+`-'?5`: 5' i-a'-."'is;-  '".'`.*` r    "' F Ck•- 1

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfuiness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of

fln  -- ...   I     before me,  a      ` J"~+

Date H re lnsert Name and Title of the Offic r

personafly appeared

r 

C'   Ei.

Name( J of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basls of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s3' whose name{, j is/ a,r subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ s/ th y executed the same in his/ h r/ t eir
authorized capacity(i}, and that by his/ lyer/ t ir signature on the instrumen[ the person(, or the entity
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
PAMELAALONGI laws of the State of Cali€ornia that the foregoing

NotaryPubllc- Cat(fornia
z paragraph is true and correct.Z OrangeCounty       >

Commission# 2230200
My Comm. Expires Mar2, zozz WITNESS my hand and ofFicial seal.

i--''"„     ___.__   

i

Signature   

Place Notary sea! and/or Sramp Above Signature of IVofary Pu61ic
OPTlOI AL

Complefrng this informafion can deter afterotion of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of, ttached ocument

Title or Type of Document:     ' f–P., E-,.    a',--

DocumentDate: NumberofPages:

Signer s) Other Than Named Above:

Gapacity( les) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer's Name:  Signer's Name;

Corporate Officer– Tifle(s);  Corporate Officer– 7itie(s):

Partner– o Limited  General Q Partner–  Limited  General

Indlvidual CI Attorney in Fact CI Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian of Conservator     Trustee Guardian of ConseNator
Other:  Other:

Signer is Representing: 5igner is Representing:

a s r.; t xas x= i s:?i 2; e1+.: 5= b:,''.',.,--: C: u:; SR.-, s+;. a' 15 M ia.,. .,.. ..;.. .. i§3._::_- i.;.   .      e

02017 National Notary Association

259



4ttachment C

RCCORD IG QUEST I) BY:

W N RECORDED MAIL TO AND

MAIL, TAX STA7CEM[ENTS TO:

Space Above Line For Recorder' s Use Only)

TRANSFEIt AGREEMENT RELATING TO DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION FUNDING

AGREEMENT OR THE PHASE 2 EXPANSION 4F THE LA'i'I ROP CONSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY

This Transfer Agreement Relating To Design and Construction Fundina Agreement for the
Phase 2 Expansion of the Existing Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Agreement  (" Transfer

Agreement"} is made tl is t, i Y day of March, 2018, by SOUTH LATHROI' LAN-D, L.L.C., a Delarvare limited
liability company {" Assignee"), and RICHLIIND DEVELOPER' S LNC,, a Delaware corporation (" Assignor")

with reference to the following recital s.

ItCCITALS

A.       Substantially concurrently with the recordation, o£ this Transfer Agreement, Assignor
has conveyed to Assignee that certain real property described in Exhibit " A" attached hereto and incorporated
herein( the" Property").

B. Assignor, as " SeIler" and Assignee, as ` Buyer" entered into that certain Agreement of
Purchase at d Sale of Option and Escro v Tbstructions, dated as of February 28, 20l 8 pursuant to which Assi or

has abeed to transfer and assign an option to purchase the Property to Assigztee, and Assignee will substantially
concurrently obtain fee title( the" Purchase Agreement"). Escrow is expected to close on March 2, 2018.

C.       Assignor is a party to that eertain Desib and Construcfion Funding Abeement Related
to the Phase 2 Expamsion of the Existing Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility by and between the City of
Lathrop (" City"}, River Islands Development, LLC, R.ichland Developers, Inc., Saybrook CLSP, LLC, and

Lathrop Mossdale Tnvestars, LP, dated Navember 21, 2016( the"' unding Agreement").

D.       Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Assigaor desires to assign and Assignee desires to

assume all of Assignor' s rights, duties and obligations under the Punding Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties herein, and for

good and valuable consideration, the receipt of sufficiency of which is hereby acicnowledged, the parties agree as
follows:

260



1.       lncorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals o££ act set forth above are true and correct and

are incorporated into thi.s Agreement in their entirety by this reference.

2.       Assi unent to and Assumption b ignee.  Effective as of the date that Assignee

acquires fee title# o the Property, Assignor hereby sells, transfers and assigns to Assignee, and Assignee hereby
expressly and unconditionally assumes all the rights, duties and obligations of Assignor under tlze Fuziding
Agreement, .including, without limitation, all of the general rights, duties and obIigations of Assi nor imder the
Funding Ageement for the development of the Property. Assignee agrees to observe and fully perform all of
Assignor's obligations under the Funding Agreement, and to be subject to all the ternas and conditions thereof, it
being the express intention of both Assignor and Assignee that, upon execution of this Transfer Agreement,
Assignee shall become substituted for Assignor as " RDI" under the Funding Agreernent.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Transfar Agreement shall not apply to, and Assignor shall retain, any and ail rights in and to, any
refunds, reimbursements or credits of any kind or character applicable to work performed or sums paid prior to
the effective date of this Transfer Agreement.

3.       Release of Assi rio_r.  Pursuant to Section 2i. of the Funding Agreement, Assignor shall
be free from any aad all liabilities accruing on or after the date hereof with respect to tha Fundin Agreement.
No breach or default under this Transfer Agreernent or the unding Agreement by Assignee shall be attributed to
Assignor. For purposes of this Transfer Agreement, the" Release Provisions" shall be ali Rights and Obligations

of Assignor under the Funding Agreement that arise from and after the date that Assignee acquires fee title to the
Property.     

4.       Assi nee' s Acknowled - ent. Assi mea hereby agrees and acknowIedges that Assignee
has had fiill opportunity to. read and review the Funding Agreement and is £ amiliar with the rights and
obligations under the Funding Agreement.

5.       Notices.   Pursuant to Section 19 of the Funding Agreement, from and after the date
hereof,notices for Richland shall be addressed as follows:

If to RDL•       
r

South Lathrop Land, L.L.C,.
527 W 7th Street, Suite 308

Los Angeles, C.A 90014

Attn: Philip J. Prassas
Email: pprassas(c` hindustrial.com

With a copy to:
Barack Ferrazzac o Karschbaum& Nagelberg LLP
200 West Madison Street, Suite 3900

Chicago, Illinois 606 6

Attn: Marlc J. Beaubien

Facsimile: ( 312) 984-3150

Email: mark.beaubien(cr, bflcn.eom

6,       Termination. This Transfer Agreement shal.l be of no force and effect unless Assignee

acquires fee title to the Property on or before June 1, 2Q18.

7.       Governing Law.  This Transfer Agreement is made and entered info in the State of

California and shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Califort ia.
Venue shall be in San Joaquin County.

8,       Binding Effeck This Transfer Agreement shall apply to, bind, and inure to benefit of
Assignor arid Assignee, and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

9.       Counterparts.  This Transfer Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,  .
each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one instrument.

261



IN' VVl'' NESS WH REO', this Transfer Agreement has been executed as of the date first

above written,

ASSIGNOR

RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, JNC.,

Delaware corporation

r', I`   \,/`"_.".'.,.,
By:   (``. 

l__

Name:       O ll. e YOtb Il

1 T 51 rit

Title:

ASSIGNEE

SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L.L.C., a Delaware

limited liahility company

By:       CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership,
its manabing member

By: CHI LTH GP, L.L.C., a Delativare
limited liability company, its
genexal partner

r :      ,.._

B      `'+.  /   . ..- J:`   j.
pi„.,    .:..:Y'   . ....,     ..  4 ..    _;,,--.,,_,......___.

w....,.._....

w.i. t::..-..._.

Title:   ;''

262



CI'I"'i'CONSE1dtT TO: SSIGN

Pursuant to Section 21 of the Funding Agreement, the City of Lathrop hereby approves of the
assio ment and asstimption set forth in this Transfer Agreement and agrees and acknowledges that Assignor,
having satisfted the conditions to the release of a transferring party under the Funding Agreement as set Forth in
Section 2I of the Funding Agreement, sha11 be released from its obligations under the Funding Agreement.

CITY OF LATI ROP,

a muni.cipal corporation of the State of California

By:

Name:

Title:

Dated:

AT' EST:

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador V. Navarrete, City Aftorney

Dated:

263



Cd 9. 1 RN1A A!.'L- PIdRP SE I9 C CN4DUkfl,EDGM i° Cl 1L CODE§ i989
i:c-:. u C.+,r.-uSa7S<:.'.'g'Q,.-f+.ct;.cu} L,,-'s4'? S'r,.;. uYyG(2-— v=,-tr— ti—    s v=. . e•r= i: ê`

r-.,.—  '       yS.k:., a. 4=5.;. t is.:: c:`+:, ^{ v:.: ri-S-.ì Ss_"t'}'SiS

A notary public or other officer completing this cartificate verifies only# he identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validiry of that document.

State of California j

Caunty of t

On    , L  l.t 1      before me,   4" b"l   '{  1T[,  ° t.

Date Here/ nsert Name and Title of the Officer

personally appeared
1 . _ 1.

Name(s) of Signer(s)

who proved ta me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name( j'"is/
subscribed to the within instrumen and acknowledged to me that h she/they executed the same in
his/ her/their authorized capacity{'   , and that by his/her/their signature  ) on the instrument the persor}',
or the enfiity upon behalf of which the perso) acted, executed the instrument.

I certiiy under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of Cali#ornia that the foregoing paragraph

ALLiSON A AMS is true and correCt.

Commisslon 2143555   &       WI7NESS my hand and official seai.a°-  Notary Pubfic- Calitornia nz
s  °      

Orange County
My Comm. Explres Feb 21, 2020

Signature

S gnature o Notary Public

Place Notary Seal Above
OPTIONAL

Though this section is optional, completing this informatiotr can deter alteration of fhe document or
fraudulent reaftachment of this form to an unintended document

Description of Aftached Document

Title or Type of pocument:     Document Qate:

Number of Pages:     Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer's Name:       Signer's Name:

Corporate Officer -- Tit(e(s}:     Corporate Officer — Title(s):
Partner —  Limited   General Partner — Limited   General
Indivicival Attorney in Fact Individual Attorney in Fact    .
Trustee Guardian or Conservator Trustee Guardian or Consenrator
Other:       D Other:

Signer Is Representing:     Signer Is Representing:

s_'G'_ -?:- ;. .'-'; a' 4%=.` G'' y z' 3'' 4--- 4=ati.. i' t'' a;° L" x?% v o v'

02014 Natianal No#ary Association • www.NationalNotary.org  1- 800-US NOTARY( 1- 800-87fi- 6827)   Item# 5907

264



CALIF RtdiA ALL-# t1RPO E A, @ NOlAILEpC H 1 9T CIVIL CODE§ 1' t 9

r'' se- c; a ' ' -  ,,.- -.  , i' a4+ z 3". . -- z;-z.. A:' S3.: r  .. ;%;,.,'   .       3w:n m±, a'','," 5€.<":<"„ zr.,.;' a 3+, m`;. g3. t     ' F_,s:;, , nts'    
s' 1-*i: 4 E' i" 4-  . r.      

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of fhe individual who signed the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of C,

On  ' C, f' P i        before me.     v-,       t
q       

r' a'_  ,'

Date  -_       
r

Here lnsert Name and Tlile of fha O frcer
0

personally appeared 1 q

Name of Signer(,-

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactary evidence to be the person( whose name(} is/ ar subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowEedged to me that he/ st/ they executed the same in his/ h r/ thg r
authorized capacity( i), and that by his/ I- r/ t a'eir signature(` on the Instrument the person(, or the entity
upon behalf of which the person} acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
PAMEIA AEONGI laws of the State of California that the foregoing

r otarypublic- CaUfomia
z ara ra h is true and correct,N"' 

OrangeCounty       }       
p g p

commission z2aozao
W TNES   _  and and official seal.My Comm. Expires Mar 2, 2D2       

a a 2     "':-^  """`"    ---.Signature

Place Notary Sea! and/or Stamp Above Slgnature of Notary PubliC
OP'y' IOPIAL

Completing thls information can deter alteration of fhe document or
fraudulenf reattachmeni of this form to an unintended document,

escription of Attached ocument

Title or Type of Document:   8Fina e-    ;. a'"

Document Date: fVumber of Pages;

Signer{sj Other Than Named Above:

Capaci ty(ies) Claimed by Signer(s
Signer's Name:  Signer's Name;

Corporate Officer— Title(s):  Corporate Offcer Title(s):
7 Partner—  Limited  General C Partner—  Limited  General

Individual Attorney in Fact Individual Attorney in Fact
o Trustee Guardian of Canservator o Trustee Guardian of Conservator

Other:  ther;

Signer is Representing: Signer Is Representing:

n"c t4 a= rr- 3.' n,..` a ti d i. S:, a"y, is t'
rri'-,^

K,; t-`:,'„^, s s;: 1" Y""-? C'a_',-,`" ti%M i..'.

02017 National Notary Association

265



266



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING   ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO

CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE AMENDING

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE 13. 09 TITLE 13

PUBLIC SERVICES",       CHAPTER 13. 09

RECYCLED WATER SERVICE SYSTEM"

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Consider the Following:

1.       Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.       Introduction and First Reading of an

Ordinance Amendment to Title 13 Public

Services"    Chapter 13. 09,    ' Recycled

Water Service System"

SUMMARY:

Staff recommends Council hold a public hearing and introduce an ordinance to amend
LMC 13. 09 Recycled Water Service System in accordance with the City of Lathrop' s
recycled water program. The application of recycled water within the City has been
limited to agricultural areas to date:  However,  there are a number of public

landscapes that have been included in the City' s permits with the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) that can be irrigated with recycled

water under certain conditions. The amendment of the attached ordinance is the first

step necessary to allow the use of recycled water from the City' s Consolidated
Treatment Facility ( CTF) on public landscapes, including public parks.

BACKGROUND:

On April 21, 2016 the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB)

executed the permit for the City of Lathrop to operate the expanded Consolidated
Treatment Facility  ( CTF),  with a capacity of 1. 0 Million Gallons per Day  ( MGD).

Although the planned facility and off-site recycled water improvements had

anticipated irrigation of parks and public landscaped areas, to date recycled water

has only been applied to agricultural use areas that are farmed for fodder crops.

In August 2017,  an agreement was approved with EKI,  PACE and RMC for the

Recycled Water Program Implementation, CIP RW 16- 06 in order to set up a utility
to expand the use of recycled water for urban landscape irrigation.  Updates to LMC

13. 09 Recycled Water Service System are needed for consistency with the City' s
recycled water program that includes a recycled water user agreement,  Site

Supervisor training, and establishes rules and regulations that are required by the
State to be implemented for the safe use of recycled water.  All of these actions are

nearing completion and can be implemented under direction of the City Manager once
the attached ordinance takes effect after adoption. The City Council, after hearing all
public testimony, written and oral at its public hearing, may move to introduce the
ordinance at tonight's meeting. Adoption of the ordinance would take place at the

267



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ORDINANCE AMENDING LMC 13. 09 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE SYSTEM

The use of recycled water on public landscapes would be allowed after all reports,

training and rules and regulations regarding recycled water irrigation are approved
and placed in to use by the City Manager.

ANALYSIS:

Amendments to LMC 13. 09 Recycled Water Service System are necessary to update
the City' s recycled water ordinance to be consistent with recycled water program that
is being developed to expand recycled water use for urban landscape irrigation.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This item furthers Council' s goals of Promote Community Values to recycle water and
conserve precious drinking water supplies together as a community.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with the introduction or adoption of the

ordinance amending LMC 13. 09.  Since the first development area that will have

eligible public landscaping and parks ready for the use of recycled water is River
Islands,  the costs for the initial program implementation of the recycled water

program is to be paid by River Islands.  In the future,  rates and fees may be
established by the City Council by ordinance and amended as necessary from time to
time to fund the recycled water program costs. It should be noted also, that the use

of recycled water on public landscapes on River Islands will be subject to a

subsequent Recycled Water User Agreement between the City and Island

Reclamation District 2062  (" RD 2062"),  which will be the entity that will receive
recycled water from the City and administer and monitor its use within its service
area within River Islands.

RECOMMENDATION:

Introduce the attached ordinance to amend LMC 13. 09 Recycled Water Service

System.

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.       Ordinance to Amend LMC 13. 09 Recycled Water Service System

268



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ORDINANCE AMENDING LMC 13. 09 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE SYSTEM

APPROVALS:

L' i    2// 8

Greg Gibs Date

Senior Civil Engineer

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

l

3    I    
Cari Jame ,      Date

Finance Di ctor

2` zf  
Salvador V. Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3! Ii

Ste Salvatore Date

y Manager

e

269



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 13. 09

RECYCLED WATER SERVICE SYSTEM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF

LATHROP' S RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM

WHEREAS,  on April 21,  2016,  the Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board ( CVRWQCB") executed the permit for the City of Lathrop to operate
the expanded Consolidated Treatment Facility with a capacity of 1. 0 MGD; and

WHEREAS in August 2017,   the City approved agreements with EKI

Environment & Water, Inc.,  RMC Water and Environment, Inc.,  and PACE, Inc. to

prepare the City of Lathrop' s Recycled Water Program to define the process by which
Users may obtain and use recycled water; and

WHEREAS, amendments to LMC 13. 09 Recycled Water Service System are

necessary to update the recycled water system regulations to be consistent with the
Recycled Water Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Note:  additions are shown below in underline font,  deletions are shown in

strikeout font.

LMC 13. 09. 010 Water recycling policy.

It is the policy of the City of Lathrop that recycled water determined to be
available pursuant to Section 13550 of the Water Code, as may be amended
from time to time, shall be used for nonpotable uses within the designated

Recycled Water Use Areas set forth within the City' s jurisdiction "

Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09. 020 Definitions.

Agricultural purposes" include the growing of field and nursery crops,
row crops, trees, and vines; and the feeding of fowl and livestock.

Artificial lake" means a human- made lake, pond, lagoon, or other body
of water that is used wholly or partly for landscape, scenic, or non- contact
recreational purposes.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

270



Commercial landscape irrigation" means any building for office or
commercial uses with water requirements which include, but are not limited

to, landscape irrigation and decorative fountains.

Construction water" means water used for dust control during

construction.

Consumer" means any person/ entity who uses recycled water supplied

by the City.

Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

Cross- connection" means any physical connection between any part of a

water system used or intended to su ply water for drinking purposes and

any source or system containing water or substance that is not or cannot be

aqqroved for human consumption. This includes direct piping between the

two systems, regardless of the presence of valves, backflow prevention

devices, or other a purtenances.

CVRWQCB" shall mean Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control

Board.      

B-I DDW" shall mean California State

Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water.

Governmental agency" means an agency which exercises authority and
performs functions of a political unit responsible for the direction and

supervision of public business and affairs.

Greenbelt areas" means an area including, but not limited to, golf

courses, cemeteries, parks, open space and landscaping.
Industrial process water" is water used by any industrial facility with

process water requirements which include, but are not limited to, rinsing,

washing, cooling and circulation, or construction, including any facility
regulated by the industrial waste discharge ordinance of the City.

Onsite recycled water supervisor" means the designated party operating
recycled water facilities on behalf of the owner.

Owner" means that person or entity identified by the tax rolls of the
county as the holder of the legal title to the property.

Potable water" shall mean water which conforms to the federal, state

and local standards for human consumption. " Professional" means following

a profession for gain or livelihood.

271



Public Works Director" means the duly appointed manager of the
recycled water system of the City or designee.

Recycled water" shall mean water which, as a result of treatment of

wastewater, is suitable for a direct beneficial use or controlled use that

would not otherwise occur. ( See Water Code Section 13050( n).) Recycled

water shall be treated and disinfected by the City to comply with tertiarx
treated recycled water requirements established by the State of California
Code of Reaulations, Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3.

Recycled water distribution and dual plumbed system" means a piping

system intended for the delivery of recycled water only and which is
separate from any potable water distribution system.

Residential irrigation" means residential or multi- family front or backyard
irrigation dual plumbed within the development area.

Rules and Reaulations" means the City of Lathrop Rules and Regulations
for Use of Recycled Water as approved by the CVRWQCB. The Rules and
Regulations may be amended from time to time.

Service Area" means the City of Lathrop utilities service area.

Utility bill" means the monthly statement issued by the City which
reflects the costs of services rendered on behalf of customers during the
preceding thirty ( 30) day period.

User Agreement" means an agreement issued to the User by the City as
required by State DDW and the CVRWQCB that defines the conditions of
recycled water service and permits the use of recycled water by the User.

Waste discharge" means water deposited, released, or discharged into a

sewer system from any commercial, industrial, or residential source which

contains levels of any substance which may cause substantial harm to any
water treatment or reclamation facility or which may prevent any use of
reclaimed water authorized by law, provided levels exceed those found in

water delivered to the source of the waste discharge by the City of Lathrop.
Ord. 04- 241 § 1),

WDR" means the Waste Discharge Requirements and Master Recycling
Permit issued to the City from the CVRWQCB.

LMC 13. 09. 030 Water recycling master plan.

A.  The City shall periodically update the Recycled Water Master Plan
RWMP) and reevaluate the potential for recycled water use within the

service area. The RWMP generally designates those areas within which
recycled water service has been determined to be reasonably

272



available.

LMC 13. 09. 040 Supplemental water to the use of recycled water.

At the discretion of the City, potable water or another appropriate source of
non- potable water may be used to supplement the recycled water
distribution system when sufficient recycled water sources are not available.

All off-site and on- site distribution facilities shall be constructed and

inspected to be suitable for recycled water use regardless of the type of

water provided to the distribution system. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09. 050 Recycled water use.

A.  State Regulations. The use of recycled water is strictly
controlled by DDW and

the fCVRWQCB.

The documents governing the City recycled water system are Title 17
and Title 22, California Code of Regulations, e

and the WDR "" r}^~ ^^'^*^^

issued to the City by the CVRWQCB.
B.  Authorized Uses of Recycled Water. In the City service areas, uses of

recycled water may include, but are not limited to, aaricultural
irrigation commercial landscape irrigation, residential ^ ^^'-; 

F m;'

e- landscape irrigation, and greenbelts irrigation;

C.  Recycled Water User Agreement and

Application Fee All sites using recycled water
are required to have a

e e- Recycled Water User Agreement which describes the use,

method of supervision, specific requirements, -and other pertinent

information. Per the City' s current WDR issued by the CVRWQCB, the
Recycled Water User Agreement must be executed at least 60 days

prior to the start of recycled water service.  o--- s

u  ^- For          more information regarding the

273



Recycled Water User Agreement      refer e ^ n

the Recycled

Water User Guide provided by the City. The Recycled Water User
Aareement A qlication Fee shall be established from time to time bX
the City Council by ordinance.

LMC 13. 09. 060 Management of recycled water system.

The management, control, and care of the recycled water system of the City
shall be vested in the Public Works Director.

A.  City Operated Facilities. Operation of all City owned facilities, including
pipelines, reservoirs, pumping stations, valves, connections, treatment

facilities, other appurtenances, and property up to and including the
City' s meter, shall be under the exclusive management and control of
the City or its authorized representatives.

B.  On- Site Customer Owned Facilities. The operation and surveillance of

on- site facilities are the responsibility of the on- site supervisor
desianated by the owner

On- site facilities shall be provided by the
applicant, owner, or customer at their sole expense. The applicant,

owner, or customer shall retain ownership of all such facilities. On- site
facilities shall conform to the City' s recycled water system standards
and applicable City rules and regulations. Plans shall be prepared and
submitted to the City for approval prior to commencing construction.
Prior to commencement of service, the system shall be inspected and

approved in accordance with the City' s standards and t; L " o,=

Recycled Water User Agreement. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09. 070 Recycled water services to consumers —Meters.

A.   Water from the recycled water system shall be delivered to the

consumers thereof both inside and outside the corporate limits of the

City in accordance with the terms of this chapter. The £-i} t consumers

will furnish the capital costs to establish the lateral connection to
the City' s +t main water recycled line- e e

The consumers shall furnish and install all piping on the
owner' s premises, including a shut- off valve, to the City' s connection.
In case of inetered services, it must be a type approved by the Public
Works Director, and include a meter box and steel cover, and must be

installed and paid for by the owner/ consumer. A valve must be
installed on the outlet side of all meters. Such meters must be

274



maintained by the _owner/ consumer, at his or her cost, to assure
proper working conditions. Accuracy is subject to review by the City.
All piping, meters, and valves must conform to the City' s design and
construction standards. Metered connections to public agencies shall be

governed by a Recycled Water User Agreement, which may deviate
from the City's design and construction standards at the discretion of
the Public Works Director, but at all times such connections shall meet

the minimum standards of prescribed bv the State of California' s Title

17 and 22 of its Code or Regulations.

r- F imm n r F 1- h ri- I
1""CTl' TTC TTTTTTf  •       S G TTCRTI' F Z Qr

r. r r rl

7"' GJ'CQT CT

B.  The connection fees and schedule of recycled water rates adopted by
the City will be charged against all installed meters unless a written
request for discontinuance of service is made by the owner of the
premises to the Public Works Director.

C.  Access by the City to service connections of recycled water meters
must be provided at all times. A City inspector or other authorized
employee of the City shall be admitted at all reasonable hours to all
parts of any premises supplied with recycled water, except to the
interior of the dwellings, but including the meter box, to see that the
regulations contained in this chapter are observed.      "

r i i-I

i

I n+} in vr Ci i r rv r    CI II I I n+} i-I r - l  • C-   ' i-I '
T' LQ'CCQITT/ CGTGf S       TT-CrfL Pl.J STQ'C' TT7

J 
r rl r h cdyy} ri ir - r/ e -+ r r rr r i-n.

JlJull l J

275



LMC 13. 09. 080 Recvcled Water Main Location

Any public recycled water mains or recycled water lines owned by a public
agency other than the City shall obtain appropriate a provals from the
City for its facilities when they are located within City right of way and
their use governed by a Recycled Water User Agreement. ( Ord. 04- 241 

LMC 13. 09. 090 Cross- Connections

Cross- connections between potable water facilities and recycled water

facilities are prohibited. If potable facilities are present in the same propertx
as recycled water facilities, cross- connection testing must occur prior to
operation of the recycled water system and must be conducted by an AWWA
Cross- Connection Control Specialist.

LMC 13. 09. 100 Rules and regulations.

It shall be unlawful for any person to:   
A.  Contaminate the City' s water supply either by cross- connection or by

any other means.

J CTZ.TECQT

B.  Make a connection to the City' s recycled water system where a potable
well or some other outside water source used for drinking purposes is
present. Connection of the City' s recycled water system to a multi- use
non- potable irrigation system owned and operated by another public
agency shall be governed by a Recycled Water User Agreement
between the City and the public agency.

C.  Waste recycled water, use recycled water to excess or allow recycled

water to flow to waters of the United States without the issuance of a

NPDES permit. All recycled water use must comply with the State of
California Title 22 requirements for recycled water euse.

D.  Supply recycled water in any way for use outside other premises to
which the service is assigned, except by special consent of the Public
Works Director.

E.  Supply recycled water for resale, in any way, for use outside the  -
premises to which the service is assigned except by permission of the
Public Works Director.

F.  Fail to keep and maintain their service pipes and connections in good
repair.

276



G. Interfere with the City' s service lines, valves or meters to construct a
bypass around a meter or service. ( Ord: 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09. 110 Interpretation of title.

The Public Works Director is empowered to make interpretations of this title

regarding the necessity, type, manner or method in which materials or
meters shall be installed. Interpretations may be appealed by the
owner/ consumer to the Council. Interpretations and appeals shall be in

writing and a copy thereof filed in the City' s office. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09._ i_20 Public works director to keep records of permits.

The Public Works Director shall keep complete records of all permits issued
through Recycled Water User Agreements and other official work performed

under the provisions of this title. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09. 130 Recycled water service outside of City boundaries.

Recycled water from the City water system may be delivered to consumers
outside the boundaries of the City herein provided. No recycled water service

extension shall be made outside the corporate limits except by written
agre.ement between the City and the owner/ consumer and with approval
from the CVRWQCB and shall be in compliance with all county zoning
ordinances. If pursuant to such an agreement to deliver recycled water

outside the corporate limits of the City, the City installs such recycled water
service extension, all costs of installation, plus twenfy percent ( 20%) shall

be charged to the owner/ consumer. If the owner/ consumer plans private

installation, the size, type and quality of materials and location of mains
shall '^ c-i-f^" o o'a, 2E e;- comply with the City' s design
and construction standards, and the plans }- shall, prior to

commencement of installation, have been approved by the Public Works
Director. The installation construction shall be performed. by a licensed
contractor, approved by the Public Works Director. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13. 09.-- 140 Contractors—Work to comply with City regulations.

A.  When it has been determined that work within and without the City
shall be contracted out, or put out to bid, }^ rn i,. ni. n..,r„+,. r-, ii

the contractor and/ or

subcontractor shall conform to the specifications in the City' s design
and construction standards, including, but not limited to, statements of   

277



work; period of performance; site inspection; excavation and backfill;

base material; forms; reinforcement and concrete; curing; plans;

specifications; profiles and modifications; and performance and

acceptance. Any contractor and/ or subcontractor shall comply with all
state and county laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations pertaining to
the cutting of pavement, backfilling and repaving thereof and shall
obtain permits and pay all fees required by the department having
jurisdiction prior to the issuance of consent to proceed by the Public
Works Director.

B.  Prior to accepting any work, and prior to the use thereof, the work
shall be tested and shall complete in full compliance with all

requirements of the City' s standard specifications and to the
satisfaction of the Public Works Director.   

LMC 13. 09. 150 City not responsible for duty of care.

This title is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a

manner that imposes upon the City within or without the City any duty of
care so as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as
otherwise imposed by law. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

zZ- S
h I I h., r, 1-., F I q p q, CJ' TI' e CCTT" rCr V{-e7LTrZ}.T. b'TC•, I irrnLw J f

flil_' il i   1 \
J /

LMC 13. 09. 160 Installations and connection costs.

A.  Service Connection Fees. Service connection fees shall be established

from time to time by the City Council by resolution as authorized by
this chapter. Such fees shall be paid by the individual owner/ consumer
for all new service connections prior to the time of connection and for

any change in type or size prior to the time of change. Authorization
and the basis of payment ( if applicable) to service connections to

another public agency shall be in accordance with the specific Recycled

Water User Agreement between the City and the other public agency.

B. Advance Deposit. Prior to the installation of a new individual service
connection, or any change in type or size, or change in the use of the

278



premises, the owner/ consumer shall deposit with the City a sum equal
to the applicable charge set forth in the Council' s resolution advance

deposit against the cost of installation. Upon completion of the

installation, the City shall determine its cost of installation and shall
refund that portion of the advance deposit which exceeds the cost, or

bill the owner/ consumer for any cost in excess of the advance deposit.
Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

LMC 13 09 170 Cost to Retrofit and Maintain Onsite Recvcled Water Svstem

The cost for modifying or addinq facilities to convert the customer's onsite
nonpotable water system to receive recycled water shall be borne entirelv

bv the customer or a plicant. Customer is required to comply with the

City' s Rules and Regulations for Recycled Water Use in accordance with
Title 17 and Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and California

Water Code, the City' s Recycled Water User Guide, and the City' s Design
and Construction Standards where applicable

LMC 13. 09. 180 Metered services.

All owners/ consumers shall pay the rates specified in the City' s schedule of

recycled water rates for services inside and outside of the City' s corporate

limits. In the event that recycled water rates have not yet

been established, owners/ consumers shall pay fees as established in an

aqreement between the City and that owner/ consumer.

LMC 13. 09. 3 190 Charges for metered and unmetered recycled water

services.

All recycled water delivered through meters and single service connections

shall be charged monthly in accordance with the schedule of recycled water-
rates as amended and approved by the City Council.   In the event that

recycled water rates have not yet been established, owners/ consumers shall

pay fees as established in an agreement between the City and that
owner/ consumer. Further, notwithstanding any other provision of this
chapter, any charges relating to the use of recycled water between the City
and another public agency shall be governed by the Recycled Water User
Agreement between the City and the public agency.

A.  If a meter shall be found out of order, the monthly charge for water

shall be determined by the Public Works Director based upon previous
water consumption records.

279



B.  If an owner/ consumer has more than one meter, a separate minimum

charge will be made for each meter as well as the amount of recycled

water registered for each meter.

C.  Compound meters shall not be constructed to be a single meter.  The

Public Works Director will determine the minimum charge rate for

compound meters on a case- by- case basis.

D. The rate for any owner/ consumer using temporary meters for any
purpose, which are installed for less than one month, shall be charged

according to the schedule of recycled water rates, plus the cost of
installation. When a meter is not installed, the rate shall be

determined by the Public Works Director.
E.  A schedule of recycled water rates billing shall be furnished to each

customer at the beginning of each fiscal year. Any charges for_ recycled
water on the utility bill, as defined in Section 13. 09. 020 of this

chapter, shall be due and payable upon presentation. If such charges

are not paid by the last day of the month in which they are billed, the
late charges set forth in Section 13. 20. 050 of this title shall be added.

F.  If a recycled water bill has not been paid by the nineteenth day

following its mailing, the service shall be subject to disconnect. The

procedure specified in Public Utilities Code 10010. 1 shall be followed

when service is disconnected. Personal checks will not be accepted for

service subject to disconnect as a result of nonpayment. All unpaid

charges, penalties, and fees shall be a lien upon the parcel of real

property to which water service was provided.
G. At the direction of the finance director, small claims court proceedings

may begin on all accounts which remain unpaid.
H. When an owner/ consumer applies to the City to replace a meter with

one of a smaller or larger size, the City shall make such change, upon

payment to the City of fees.
I.   Water service shall be billed monthly to the users of the recycled water

system in accordance with current service

charQe plus recycled water usage charges. These charges are to be

established from time to time by the City Council by resolution as
authorized by this chapter.

q,_,

280



n.    

n r3
n

ii

ii

i i C' C'
ZTt. 7-J

J

13. 09. 200 A peals.

Any recycled water service customer who considers an action taken by the
Public Works Director under the provisions of this chapter to have been

erroneously taken may appeal such action and decision to the City Council in

the following manner:

A. All appeals shall be filed in writing with the clerk of the City and shall
state the nature. of the appeal or request and the basis upon which the

decision of the Public Works Director is considered to be in error.

B.  Such appeals, to be effective, must be received by the clerk of the City
not later than ten business days following the date that the Public
Works Director has given notice of such action from which the appeal

is being taken and be accompanied by a fee of fifty dollars ($ 50. 00).

The fee of fifty dollars ($ 50. 00) will be refunded if the appeal is

granted.

C. The City clerk shall schedule the appeal for consideration by the City

Council at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.
D. The decision of the City Council on the appeals shall be final.  (Ord. 04-

241  1)

13. 09.- 9 210 Compliance.

The enforcing authority shall have the right, and is hereby authorized and
empowered, to enter upon private property for the purpose of enforcing the
provisions of this title or for other purposed consistent therewith. The

enforcing authority shall be given prompt access upon oral notification to the
responsible person and upon exhibiting suitable-evidence of his or her
identify and authority; provided, however, except in an emergency, a

281



warrant issued pursuant to Part 3 of Title 13 of the Code of Civil Procedure

of the State ( Sections 1822. 50 through 1822. 57 inclusive), or its subsequent

counterparts, shall first be secured when entry or access thereto is denied.
Refusal to admit such members when a warrant is not required shall be a

misdemeanor. Neither the enforcing authority nor the City shall be liable for
any damage from any reasonable entry. ( Ord. 04- 241  1)

13. 09. 220 Warrants unnecessary.

The enforcing authority may enter upon private property without a warrant
for the following purposes:

A.  When he or she has the express permission of the owner or occupant of

the premises;

B.  When he or she has probable cause to believe there is immediate harm

to the public and/ or water is gushing; or

C.  When he or she has probable cause to believe that there exists in any

building or upon any premises or property any condition which may be
in violation of this title. ( Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

13. 09. 230 Violations of this chapter.

A. Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this title shall be
guilty of a misdemeanor. A misdemeanor may be punished by a fine of
not more than one thousand dollars ($ 1, 000. 00), or by imprisonment
in the county jail for no longer than six months, or by both such fine
and imprisonment. Any person violating any section of this chapter
shall be regarded as committing a separate offense on each day of
such violation.

B. In addition to the penalties provided in this section, any condition

caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of
this title shall be deemed to be a public nuisance and shall be

subject to the administrative procedures set for in Chapter 1. 12.

Ord. 04- 241 § 1)

Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application
thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the

Ordinance, including the application of such part or provision to other persons
or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force
and effect.  To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City
Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection,       

subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the

282



fact that any one or more sections,  subsections,  subdivisions,  paragraphs,

sentences,   clauses,   or phrases be held unconstitutional,    invalid,    or

unenforceable.

The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause the
same to be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least once

in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the City. In
lieu of publishing the entire ordinance within 15 days of adoption, the City
Clerk may instead publish a summary of the proposed ordinance  (with a

certified copy of the entire ordinance posted at the City Clerk' s office), not less

than five ( 5) days before adoption, with a second publication of the summary,
complete with the votes cast, similarly posted and published within 15 days
following adoption in accordance with Government Code § 36933( c)( 1).

283



The foregoing Ordinance was introduced the 12t" day of March and adopted
this 9th day of April 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:    

NOES:   '

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
t

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

284



ITEM 5. 3    '

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:    DISCUSSION OF PARK LIGHTING AT

MOSSDALE LANDING COMMUNITY PARK

RECOMMENDATION:  Council to Discuss and Provide Direction

Related to Park Lighting at Mossdale
Landing Community Park

SUMMARY: 

At the January 29,  2018 Special City Council Meeting, the City Council requested
information regarding the current level of lighting within Mossdale Park, as well as
the costs associated with placement of additional lighting.  Tonight, staff is looking
for direction from Council in regards to lighting in Mossdale Park.

BACKGROUND:

At the Council Meeting on January 29,  2018,  Council requested staff provide an

informational item on the current lighting at Mossdale Landing Community Park, the
costs associated with placing additional lighting, as well as possible funding sources
should Council determine additional lighting is necessary.

Currently, there are 10 street lights that line the perimeter of the park along Towne
Centre Drive on the north, Golden Spike Trail on the east, and Open Range Avenue

on the south.  There are 7 lights within the parking lot, 10 interior lights along the
pedestrian pathways,  as well as lights on both sides of the concession restroom

building in the park. These lights operate on a day/ night sensor that turns them on
at dusk and off at dawn.

The western edge of the park includes a maintenance road to provide vehicular access

to both the levee as well as the pump station in the southwest corner of this facility.
There are no lights along this roadway as it was not originally intended for pedestrian
traffic.  This roadway is approximately 850 feet from Towne Center on the north to
Open Range Avenue on the south.

This report includes both hard wired and solar pathway lighting options.   If Council

desires to install lighting along this portion of the property, due to the accessibility of
the existing electrical, staff recommends utilizing the wired pathway lighting option
with one light approximately every 160 feet, for a total of 6 light fixtures.

Option 1: To install wired pathway lighting, similar to the lights that currently exists,
including the purchase,  trenching,  wiring,  and repair of turf associated to the

installation, including a 10% contingency the total expense would be approximately
56, 500.  This option would also require a budget amendment of approximately $450

annually to cover the additional electrical expenses.

285



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PARK LIGHTING AT MOSSDALE LANDING COMMUNITY PARK

Option 2: To install solar pathway lighting, as was done at Sangalang Park, the total
expense including a 10% contingency would be approximately $ 64, 610.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon the direction of the Council, a budget amendments will be approved as follows:

Option 1a: Upon approval. of the installation of additional wired lighting at Mossdale
Park,  City Council may consider a budget amendment from the General Fund
Reserves   ( 1010- 9900- 990- 90- 10)   of   $ 56, 500.       With an additional budget

amendment in the amount of $450 annually into account 2570- 5063- 430- 49- 00, to
cover the additional electrical expenses.

Option 1b: Upon approval of the installation of additional wired lighting at Mossdale
Fark,  City Council may consider a budget amendment from the General Fund
Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990- 90- 10) of $56, 500 to be reimbursed by Measure C ( 1060-

9900- 990- 90- 10) upon review and confirmation by the Measure C committee.  With

an additional budget amendment in the amount of $450 annually into account 2570-
5063- 430- 49- 00, to cover the additional electrical expenses.

Option 2a: Upon approval of the installation of additional solar lighting at Mossdale
Park,  City Council may consider a budget amendment from the General Fund
Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990- 90- 10) of $64, 610.

Option 2b: Upon approval of the installation of additional solar lighting at Mossdale
Park,  City Council may consider a budget amendment from the General Fund
Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990- 90- 10) of $64, 610 to be reimbursed by Measure C ( 1060-
9900- 990- 90- 10) upon review and confirmation by the Measure C committee.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.       Resolution approving the installation of additional pathway lighting at Mossdale
Park and Authorizing Related Budget Amendments.

Page 2

286



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

MARCH 12, 2018 CITY COIDNCIL REGIlLAR MEETIfVG

PARK LIGHTING AT MOSSDALE LAIVDING COMWIIJNITY PAI QC

APPROVALS:

2  2  - 2i
chary Jon Date

Director of Pa s a Recreation

O'' 4/  

s

oC  

Ken Reed Date

Projects Manager

a 
Cari Jam Date

Director Finance

r   / 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3•1• 1
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Page 3

287



ATfACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PLACEMENT OF ADDITIONAL LIGHTING AT MOSSDALE

LANDING COMMUNITY PARK

WHEREAS, City Council considered the installation of additional lighting at
Mossdale Park; and

WHEREAS, City Council also consider options for a budget amendment for
the installation of additional lighting as listed below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the installation of the following additional. lighting at Mossdale
Park and the following budget amendment:

Option ia:  The installation of additional wired lighting at Mossdale Park,
and a budget amendment from the General Fund Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990-

90- 10) of $56, 500.   With an additional budget amendment in the amount of

450 annually into account 2570- 5063- 430- 49- 00,  to cover the additional

electrical expenses.

Option 1b:  The installation of additional wired lighting at Mossdale Park,
and a budget amendment from the General Fund Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990-

90- 10)  of $ 56, 500 to be reimbursed .by Measure C  ( 1060- 9900- 990- 90- 10)

upon review and confirmation by the Measure C committee.     With an

additional budget amendment in the amount of $ 450 annually into account
2570- 5063- 430- 49- 00, to cover the additional electrical expenses.

Option 2a: The installation of additional solar lighting at Mossdale Park, and
a budget amendment from the General Fund Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990- 90-

10) of $64, 610.

Option 2b: The installation of additional solar lighting at Mossdale Park and
a budget amendment from the General Fund Reserves ( 1010- 9900- 990- 90-

10)  of  $64, 610 to be reimbursed by Measure C  ( 1060- 9900- 990- 90- 10)

upon review and. confirmation by the Measure C committee.

288



ATTACHMENT A

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 12th

day of March
2018, by the following vote of:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPF OVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

289



290



i- E w . i      f' I       
V       ''

j; ` .    COI!IlVIISSIOIoT/COlYIl' ITTEE APPLICA' IOl_

L..
ApPlyin fore    ' u} h     1(' G    o( li li S OV

Snecial Re4uirements:

Youth Advisory Co»: s: issio:: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve on this commission
Senior Advisory Comn: ission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered;voter to serve on this commission.
Planning m:d Parks& Recreation Commissions: Ivlust be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PflZIN'I' 012 T PE T'HE FOLI.OWING I1' 012MA' ION:

Name:      1 Q,

Address: City:   { p z p:  q5 33 c,

Telephone( home)      Telephone( work)

Telephone( cell)      
y        

Telephone( other)    ,     S,;

Irl`,' 15 ltz rn, efi
Email:       Resident of the City of Lathrop: _ years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes C   l o 

Back round Inforanation:     

Are you related to a current City Employee?   Q,

If yes, give name and relationship

Employpnent/Volunteer Informafion:

C 6    ,, fi  .  r..  . 2/ 1/ I
Organization Date

0`' 1li i l   C2i   tt, u't t
Location Position(s)'

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:     £`       ,    ' v' 

Organization Date

Location Position(s)

Responsibilities/accomplishments:    \'      (,   ``" 1'      ;,` 1r     `,

291



Communaty Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

Name ofOrganization Position/Responsibilities Dates

Name ofOrganization Position/Responsibilities/Accomplishments  .  Dates

Special. wards or Recognitioaas you have received:   l,    Av   eVe     3 GIWG' S

P' on    Y u o{c   scl ao   C'' ResaPL   Q 1   las 41 ness

Educational Inforanation:

T n' a    1a tln Se1na\     f      
Educationallnstitution Degree/Diploma Field Year

Educationallnstitution Degree/Diploma Field Year

Additional Inforanation (Please provide any other information which youfeel would be useful to the City Council in
reviewing you application.)

e          wa,    w•     , c      - c

He1      O h S ,       .    '    C            ,(.

Hi,      ol

Please sigra nd dszte ou plication and subrnit to the Office o' the C'ity Clerk ct the arld ess below..

I     
j

l 1
i afuc Dat

l

lJ1 l  !/    

ParendGuar ian Sig fu e Required or Xo th: visory Candidates only)          

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Tovvne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Ct 95330

292


	2018-03-12 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2018-03-12 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for Regular Council Meeting of February 12, 2018
	2018-03-12 Item 4.3 Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 18-388 Adding Chpt 3.25 SLSP CFF to Title 3 Revenue & Finance of LMC
	2018-03-12 Item 4.4 Second Reading and Adoption Ordinance 18-389 Amending Title 10, Chapter 10.24, Section 10.24.030 of LMC No Parking Zone
	2018-03-12 Item 4.5 Declare Certain Vehicles and Equipment Surplus Property and Authorize Disposal
	2018-03-12 Item 4.6 Approval of FM and SIA for 34 Lots in Tract 3830 Village H within East Village of River Islands
	2018-03-12 Item 4.7 Approve Agreement with Woodard and Curran for Recycled Water Program Administration and Management CIP RW 16-06
	2018-03-12 Item 4.8 Certify and Approve Sewer System Management Plan Update
	2018-03-12 Item 4.9 Traffic Calming Request Associated with CIP PS 18-02
	2018-03-12 Item 4.10 Approve the Longitudinal Pipeline Agreement with UPPR Associated with the River Islands East Side Sewer Force Main Project
	2018-03-12 Item 4.11 Accept Crossroads Storm Drain Detention Basin Improvements
	2018-03-12 Item 4.12 Acceptance of Recycled Water Storage Pond, Sprayfields, Pipeline and Pump Station for River Islands Lathrop Project
	2018-03-12 Item 5.1 PH to Consider Ordinance to Transfer SLSP Development Agreement and Richland's Interest in Ph II Expansion of LCTF Funding Agreement
	2018-03-12 Item 5.2 Public Hearing to Consider an Ordinance Amending LMC Title 13 Public Services Chapter 13.09 Recycled Water Service System
	2018-03-12 Item 5.3 Discussion of Park Lighting at Mossdale Landing Community Park
	2018-03-12 Item 6.1 Application of YAC Appointment



